
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE
________________________________________________

Wednesday, 23 September 2015 at 7.00 p.m.

Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, London, E14 2BG

This meeting is open to the public to attend. 

Members:
Chair: Councillor Candida Ronald
Vice-Chair: Councillor Sabina Akhtar

Councillor Rachel Blake, Councillor Abjol Miah, Councillor Ayas Miah, Councillor 
Mohammed Mufti Miah and Councillor Andrew Wood

Deputies: 
Councillor Amina Ali, Councillor Dave Chesterton, Councillor Joshua Peck, Councillor 
Gulam Kibria Choudhury and Councillor Muhammad Ansar Mustaquim

[The quorum for this body is 3 Members]

Contact for further enquiries:
Antonella Burgio, Democratic Services
1st Floor, Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, E14 2BG
Tel: 020 7364 4881
E-mail: antonella.burgio@towerhamlets.gov.uk
Web: http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committee

Scan this code 
for an 
electronic 
agenda:



Public Information
Attendance at meetings.
The public are welcome to attend meetings of the Committee. However seating is limited 
and offered on a first come first served basis. 

Audio/Visual recording of meetings.
Should you wish to film the meeting, please contact the Committee Officer shown on the 
agenda front page.

Mobile telephones
Please switch your mobile telephone on to silent mode whilst in the meeting. 

Access information for the Town Hall, Mulberry Place.     

Bus: Routes: 15, 277, 108, D6, D7, D8 all stop 
near the Town Hall. 
Docklands Light Railway: Nearest stations are 
East India: Head across the bridge and then 
through complex to the Town Hall, Mulberry Place 
Blackwall station. Across the bus station then turn 
right to the back of the Town Hall complex, 
through the gates and archway to the Town Hall. 
Tube: The closest tube stations are Canning 
Town and Canary Wharf 
Car Parking: There is limited visitor pay and 
display parking at the Town Hall (free from 6pm)

If you are viewing this on line:(http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/content_pages/contact_us.aspx) 

Meeting access/special requirements. 
The Town Hall is accessible to people with special needs. There are accessible toilets, lifts 
to venues. Disabled parking bays and an induction loop system for people with hearing 
difficulties are available.  Documents can be made available in large print, Braille or audio 
version. For further information, contact the Officer shown on the front of the agenda 
Fire alarm
If the fire alarm sounds please leave the building immediately by the nearest available fire 
exit without deviating to collect belongings. Fire wardens will direct you to the exits and to 
the fire assembly point. If you are unable to use the stairs, a member of staff will direct you 
to a safe area. The meeting will reconvene if it is safe to do so, otherwise it will stand 
adjourned.
Electronic agendas reports and minutes.
Copies of agendas, reports and minutes for council meetings can also be 
found on our website from day of publication.  

To access this, click www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committee and search for
the relevant committee and meeting date.

Agendas are available at the Town Hall, Libraries, Idea Centres and One 
Stop Shops and on the Mod.Gov, iPad and Android apps.  

QR code for 
smart phone 
users.

PAGE
NUMBER(S)

http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committee


APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

1. DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY 
INTEREST 

1 - 4

To note any declarations of interest made by Members, including those 
restricting Members from voting on the questions detailed in Section 106 
of the Local Government Finance Act, 1992.  See attached note from the 
Monitoring Officer.

2. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING(S) 

Item deferred to next meeting .

3. KPMG ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 

3 .1 Report to Those Charged with Governance - ISA260 2013/14  

Report to follow.

All Wards

4. TOWER HAMLETS ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 

4 .1 Annual Financial Report  2013/14  5 - 132

4 .2 Quarterly Assurance Report  133 - 162

4 .3 Social Housing Fraud Update  163 - 168

4 .4 Single Fraud Investigation Service- Position Update  169 - 174

4 .5 Annual Risk Management Report 2015/16  175 - 208

4 .6 Treasury Management Activity Report  for Year to 31 August 2015  209 - 226

4 .7 Audit committee forward plan  227 - 230

5. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THE CHAIR CONSIDERS URGENT 

Next Meeting of the Committee:
Tuesday, 8 December 2015 at 7.00 p.m.  to be held in the Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 
5 Clove Crescent, London, E14 2BG





DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS - NOTE FROM THE MONITORING OFFICER

This note is for guidance only.  For further details please consult the Members’ Code of Conduct 
at Part 5.1 of the Council’s Constitution.   

Please note that the question of whether a Member has an interest in any matter, and whether or 
not that interest is a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, is for that Member to decide.  Advice is 
available from officers as listed below but they cannot make the decision for the Member.  If in 
doubt as to the nature of an interest it is advisable to seek advice prior to attending a meeting.  

Interests and Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs)

You have an interest in any business of the authority where that business relates to or is likely to 
affect any of the persons, bodies or matters listed in section 4.1 (a) of the Code of Conduct; and 
might reasonably be regarded as affecting the well-being or financial position of yourself, a 
member of your family or a person with whom you have a close association, to a greater extent 
than the majority of other council tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the ward affected.

You must notify the Monitoring Officer in writing of any such interest, for inclusion in the Register 
of Members’ Interests which is available for public inspection and on the Council’s Website.

Once you have recorded an interest in the Register, you are not then required to declare that 
interest at each meeting where the business is discussed, unless the interest is a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest (DPI).

A DPI is defined in Regulations as a pecuniary interest of any of the descriptions listed at 
Appendix A overleaf.  Please note that a Member’s DPIs include his/her own relevant interests 
and also those of his/her spouse or civil partner; or a person with whom the Member is living as 
husband and wife; or a person with whom the Member is living as if they were civil partners; if the 
Member is aware that that other person has the interest.   

Effect of a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest on participation at meetings

Where you have a DPI in any business of the Council you must, unless you have obtained a 
dispensation from the authority's Monitoring Officer following consideration by the Dispensations 
Sub-Committee of the Standards Advisory Committee:-

- not seek to improperly influence a decision about that business; and
- not exercise executive functions in relation to that business.

If you are present at a meeting where that business is discussed, you must:-
- Disclose to the meeting  the existence and nature of the interest at the start of the meeting 

or when the interest becomes apparent, if later; and 
- Leave the room (including any public viewing area) for the duration of consideration and 

decision on the item and not seek to influence the debate or decision 



When declaring a DPI, Members should specify the nature of the interest and the agenda item to 
which the interest relates.  This procedure is designed to assist the public’s understanding of the 
meeting and to enable a full record to be made in the minutes of the meeting.  

Where you have a DPI in any business of the authority which is not included in the Member’s 
register of interests and you attend a meeting of the authority at which the business is 
considered, in addition to disclosing the interest to that meeting, you must also within 28 days 
notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest for inclusion in the Register. 

Further advice

For further advice please contact:-
John Williams, Service Head, Democratic Services, 020 7364 4204



APPENDIX A:  Definition of a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest

(Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012, Reg 2 and Schedule)

Subject Prescribed description
Employment, office, trade, 
profession or vacation

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on 
for profit or gain.

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other 
than from the relevant authority) made or provided within the 
relevant period in respect of any expenses incurred by the 
Member in carrying out duties as a member, or towards the 
election expenses of the Member.
This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union 
within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992.

Contracts Any contract which is made between the relevant person (or a 
body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest) and 
the relevant authority—
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works 
are to be executed; and
(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the 
relevant authority.

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the 
area of the relevant authority for a month or longer.

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to the Member’s knowledge)—
(a) the landlord is the relevant authority; and
(b) the tenant is a body in which the relevant person has a 
beneficial interest.

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where—
(a) that body (to the Member’s knowledge) has a place of 
business or land in the area of the relevant authority; and
(b) either—

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or 
one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or

(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the 
total nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the 
relevant person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth 
of the total issued share capital of that class.





Non-Executive Report of the:

Audit Committee

24th September 2015

Report of: Zena Cooke – Corporate Director of Resources
Classification:
Unrestricted

Annual Financial Report  2013/14

Originating Officer(s) Kevin Miles – Chief Accountant
Wards affected N/A

Summary
 This report presents the Authority’s Annual Financial Report containing the 

Statement of Accounts for the financial year ending 31st March 2014 following 
the completion of the audit by KPMG. 

 This report was delayed as a result of concerns raised by PwC on the Best 
Value conclusion and this required KPMG to undertake additional work to 
provide assurance in these areas.  

 The final version of the accounts is attached.  Although there are some minor 
changes to the accounts, the Council’s overall financial position is unchanged 
from the draft circulated to Members in June 2014, except for a £1.3m 
reduction in earmarked public health reserves following the notification of a 
third party liability after the draft accounts were prepared. This was reported 
when the draft ISA260 was reported in September and since then there have 
been no changes to the councils resources.

 The auditors will also be presenting their final annual audit report at this 
meeting which will contain their opinion on the Accounts subject to any further 
review work they feel is necessary.  Members of the Committee will be asked 
to approve the Statement of Accounts at this meeting. 

Recommendations:

The Audit Committee is recommended to: 

 Approve the Annual Financial Report including the Statement of Accounts for 
the financial year ending 31st March 2014, having regard for the auditor’s 
Annual Governance Report 



1. REASONS FOR THE DECISIONS

1.1 The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 require that the council 
produces and publishes a signed Statement of Accounts within statutory 
deadlines. These statements must then be audited and an opinion issued 
section 9 of the Audit Commission Act 1998. 

2. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS

2.1 The Council produces its Statement of Accounts in line with the appropriate 
guidance and legislation.

2.2     This report is produced to ensure that the correct approval process is followed 
and Members are kept informed of the Council’s financial position as a result 
no alternative action is considered necessary beyond that included below. 

3. BACKGROUND

3.1 In June 2014, officers presented the draft Statement of Accounts for 2013/14 
to Audit Committee (including the pension fund accounts) which was subject 
to audit.  This was the fourth set of accounts to be compliant with the 
requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).   This 
report now presents the final set of accounts following the completion of the 
KPMG audit review.
 

3.2 To follow the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) 
best practice, Audit Committee is requested to approve the Statement of 
Accounts which will then be formally published.  The audited accounts should 
have been published in September 2014; however due to concerns raised by 
PwC on the Best Value conclusion, our external auditors, KPMG, were 
required to undertake a significant amount of additional work to obtain the 
assurance needed to sign off the financial statements.

3.3 KPMG will be presenting their Annual Governance Report, the ISA260 on this 
agenda, detailing changes made to the draft accounts and any matters of a 
non-trifling nature that need to be brought to the attention of the Committee.  
A draft version of the accounts was tabled in September 2014 and there are 
no significant changes to be reported.

4. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2013/14

4.1 The restated Statement of Accounts for 2013/14 is attached to the report as 
Appendix 1. This includes the Council’s Income and Expenditure Account for 
the year, the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2014, the Cash Flow Statement, 
the Housing Revenue Account, the Collection Fund and the Council’s Pension 
Fund Accounts. 



4.2 The contents of the accounts are largely determined by statutory requirements 
and mandatory professional standards as set out within the “Code of Practice 
on Local Authority Accounting” published by CIPFA.

4.3 The accounts are an important aspect of the financial management of the 
Council as they set out the Council’s financial position as at 31st March each 
year. They include details of the main assets and liabilities, and the year-on-
year movements both in the income and expenditure accounts and balance 
sheet.  The accounts are also an integral part of the Medium Term Financial 
Planning process.

4.4 The usable reserves of the Accounts are unchanged from the draft previously 
circulated except for an accrual of £1.3m for third party Public Health services 
which hadn’t been notified by the time the draft accounts were prepared and 
published in June.

4.4.1 Audit Opinion – the external auditor has given an unqualified opinion on the 
accounts and that they give a true and fair view for the year ended 31st March 
2014.  There were no material changes to the draft accounts that materially 
affected the Council’s usable reserves.

4.4.2 Addressing of audit risks – officers liaised closely with auditors to ensure 
risk areas arising from Agresso, the new financial management system, were 
addressed.  These risk areas covered the frequency of bank and payroll 
reconciliations.  Officers are ensuring regular reconciliations are conducted 
throughout the year.

4.4.3 There are some audit recommendations that KPMG brought to the attention of 
Members at the September 2014 meeting.  

4.4.4 The recommendations relating to the 2013/14 accounts concern:

School bank reconciliations - the auditors have also highlighted some old 
timing differences with school bank reconciliations. 

Property values - though property valuations for non-housing stock buildings 
are conducted on a five year rolling programme in preparing the Accounts (in 
accordance with CIPFA guidelines), there is a risk that property values may 
be under stated.  Officers are working with Valuers to minimise the risk of 
material misstatement of property without increasing valuation fees.

Budget monitor variance explanations – some budget monitoring reports 
during the year did not contain sufficient information on spend variances.  
Officers are working with budget managers to ensure the information 
contained in reports is sufficient to explain the reasons for the variances and 
what action is being taken.

Corporate governance review – as part of preparing for the reduction in 
financial resources, a corporate review is being undertaken to ensure the 
council has suitable structures in place to provide services.  The auditors have 



highlighted that this process is on-going, and it is acknowledged that the 
changes the Council will make will take time to plan, review and implement.   

4.5 As part of the Accounts inspection process, members of the community are 
able to raise objections to the Statement of Accounts with the external 
auditors.  An objection to the accounts was received concerning parking 
enforcement income on housing estates. Officers are liaising with Legal 
Services on this matter.
 

4.6 Members are now requested to approve the Statement of Accounts for 
2013/14.  The auditors are required to complete and sign off the Whole of 
Government Accounts return as part of providing their opinion on the 
accounting statements. 

4.7 2014/15 Statement of Accounts - The final version of the 2014/15 financial 
accounts has been delayed whilst the 2013/14 items are finalised and is still 
undergoing audit review. It is envisaged that the 2014/15 Statement of 
Accounts will be presented to this committee on 8th December 2015.

4.8 Value For Money Assessment – Following last year’s Best Value report from 
PwC, the auditors are considering issuing an adverse opinion in respect of the 
Council securing value for money.  KPMG are considering the areas of 
concern before reaching a conclusion.  Details are contained within their 
ISA260 report.  These value for money concerns do not affect how the 
accounting statements have been presented.

4.9 Best Value and Control Recommendations – The findings of the report 
have raised some Value for Money concerns that will be responded to and 
addressed, as set out below:

4.9.1 Declarations of Interest: need to review and if necessary improve approach 
to identifying potential interests and ensure that members and senior officers 
declarations are up to date and complete.

4.9.2 Governance Arrangements in Schools: seek to review and improve the 
control and governance arrangements in schools that currently fall below the 
minimum standard.

4.9.3 S106 Arrangements – review arrangements for the receipt and payment of 
S106 monies, ensuring that control and reporting mechanisms are appropriate 
and robust.

4.9.4 Mayoral Expenses – ensure that where appropriate documentation is held in 
a sufficient level of detail.

Officers are addressing these issues and KPMG will be following these items 
up as part of future audits.  



5. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER

5.1     The comments of the chief financial officer are incorporated within this report.

6. LEGAL COMMENTS 

6.1. The Council is required to prepare a statement of accounts in accordance with 
the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 (‘the 2011 Regulations’).  
The statement must include statements about the housing revenue account 
(setting out prescribed particulars) and each and every other fund in relation 
to which the Council has a statutory function to keep a separate account.  The 
statement must include notes: demonstrating that Dedicated Schools Grant 
has been deployed in accordance with regulations; of the number of 
employees in each £5,000 salary bracket starting at £50,000, not including 
senior employees; and of the remuneration and the Council’s contribution to 
pension for each senior employee.

6.2. The 2011 Regulations specify a procedure for signing, approval and 
publication of a statement of accounts.  The chief finance officer is required to 
sign and date the statement of accounts by 30 June each year, certifying that 
it presents a true and fair view of the Council’s financial position at the end of 
the relevant financial year and of the Council’s income and expenditure for the 
year.  The audit committee must approve the statement of accounts by 30 
September each year and the statement must be signed by the chair of the 
meeting at which the accounts were approved.  The statement of the 
accounts must be published by 30 September along with any certificate, 
opinion or report issued or given by the Auditor under section 9 of the Audit 
Commission Act 1998.

6.3. Section 11 of the Audit Commission Act requires the Council to consider the 
auditor’s report or recommendations at a meeting within one month of receipt 
of the auditor’s report, and decide whether to accept the recommendations 
and what, if any action to take. The auditor is able to extend this timescale if 
they are satisfied that this is reasonable. Notice of the meeting must be 
published in a local newspaper at least 7 days before the meeting, and the 
auditors notified of the outcome of the meeting.

6.4. The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (‘the Act’) abolishes the Audit 
Commission and repeals the Audit Commission Act 1998. The Act and 
supporting regulations (which replace the 2011 Regulations) came into effect 
on 1 April 2015 and will apply from the 2015/16 financial year onwards and 
are therefore not relevant to the matters referred to in this report. The aim of 
the Act, as stated in DCLG guidance, is to give local bodies the freedom to 
appoint their own auditors from an open and competitive market and to 
manage their own audit arrangements, with appropriate safeguards to ensure 
independence. However, the new local arrangements for the appointment of 
auditors are expected to start after the Commission’s current contracts with 
audit suppliers end in 2016-17, although this could be later if the contracts are 
extended to 2019-20.



7.1 ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS

7.1 The Statement of Accounts is a single statement of the financial position of 
the whole Council which is potentially of interest to all individuals and 
organisations which have dealings with the Council.

7.2 The statements are published on the Council’s website both in draft and in 
audited form.  Interested parties had the right to inspect the accounts during 
July 2014 and local electors had the right to submit questions or objections to 
the accounts to the auditor. Details of these rights are published in local 
newspapers at appropriate stages. 

8. BEST VALUE (BV) IMPLICATIONS

8.1 KPMG will report on the Council’s arrangements for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources as part of the Annual Audit 
Letter.

9. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT

9.1 There are no SAGE implications arising out of this report. 

10. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS

10.1 There are no specific risk management implications

11. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS

11.1 There are no crime and disorder reduction implications. 
 

____________________________________

Linked Reports, Appendices and Background Documents

Linked Report
 Draft Annual Financial Report 2013/14 – Audit Committee 30/06/2014 
 Interim Report to those Charged with Governance (ISA260) 2013/14 – Audit 

Committee - 16/09/2014
 Annual Governance Statement 2013/14 – Audit Committee 24/09/2015

Appendices
Appendix 1 – Explanatory Foreword and draft Statement of Accounts for the 
year ended 31st March 2014 (subject to final audit opinion)



Local Government Act, 2000 (SECTION 97)
LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS 
REPORT

Brief description of "background papers" Name and telephone number of 
holder and address where open 
to inspection

Closure of Accounts Working Papers Kevin Miles, Ext. 6791
Capital Working Papers Alison Gebbett, Ext. 3360
HRA Closure of Accounts Working Papers Paul Leeson, Ext. 4995





LONDON BOROUGH OF 
TOWER HAMLETS 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 
2013-14 



  
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 2013/14 

 
CONTENTS 

   
Page 

 

Foreword by the Corporate Director of Resources 1 
 

Review of the Year 3 
 

The Accounting Statements 6 
 

Movement in Reserves Statement 
 

7 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account 8 
 

Balance Sheet 9 
 

Cash Flow Statement  10 
 

Notes to the Core Financial Statements  11 
 

Statement of Accounting Policies 
 

11 

Housing Revenue Account  
 

69 

Statement of Movement on the Housing Revenue Account Balance 
 

70 

Notes to the Housing Revenue Account 
 

71 

Collection Fund 75 
  
Pension Fund Accounts 
 
Pension Fund Notes 
 

78 
 

79 

Auditor’s Report (to be provided) 93 
 

Statement of Responsibilities 97 

Annual Governance Statement  98 
 

Glossary and Abbreviations 
 

111 



EXPLANATORY FOREWORD 

Overview by the Corporate Director of Resources 

I am pleased to introduce Tower Hamlets Council’s Statement of Accounts for 
2013/14, which reports our financial results for the year. 

The accounts have been compiled in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards, the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in 
the United Kingdom 2013/14, and the Service Reporting Code of Practice. 
These constitute “proper accounting practice” with which councils must 
comply by statute. The Council also produces a summary of the accounts, 
which is less detailed than the full statement. This has been produced 
following consultation with stakeholders and is available from the Council’s 
website at www.towerhamlets.gov.uk 

Although the UK economy has shown early signs of improvement, on-going 
reductions in main stream government grant funding and a continuing upward 
trend in the demand for key front line services in adult social care, children’s 
services and housing have collectively created a challenging financial 
environment for the Council. Indeed, the resultant pressures on the Council’s 
budget from inflation, demographic growth and the impact of new legislation 
required it to achieve overall budget savings for the year of £26 million; a 
reduction of some 9% of the net revenue budget.  

However, through strong financial management the Council’s spend is in line 
with the revenue budget for the year and the level of general reserves 
increased by £26.9 million to £65.0 million.  This increase is broadly in line 
with the revised plan in 2014/15 budget setting to increase reserves by £21.5 
million. The remaining balance of £5.4 million is the result of unallocated 
contingencies for price increases that did not materialise and additional 
income from core grants.  The Council’s Value for Money assessment 
continues to be positive, so the overall financial position remains sound. 

This solid financial base has helped to underpin the delivery of the Council’s 
key objectives and specifically the Mayor’s priorities, namely: improving the 
condition of social housing; increasing the supply of affordable social housing 
(particularly family sized housing); maintaining the provision of services for 
young people; delivering programmes of skills development, employment and 
enterprise activity; maintaining support to vulnerable adults; minimising the 
impact on resident household budgets and; protecting investment in activity 
that promotes community safety. 

Key achievements in 2013/14 include: 

1. Managing the impact of welfare reform on local residents
2. Signing up, with our partners, to implement the Tower Hamlets

Fairness Commission’s recommendations
3. Keeping our streets clean - levels of litter, detritus and fly-posting are

among the lowest in London

1



4. Making our streets safer - more THEOs and funding an extra 35 police 
officers are helping to reduce crime  

5. Reducing the number of young people not in education, employment or 
training 

6. Delivering 581 affordable homes in 13/14, 39% of which are family 
sized. 

7. Bringing 1,785 homes up to the decent homes standard. 
8. Supporting young people into training, jobs and apprenticeships, and 

reducing youth unemployment 
9. Continuing to raise attainment - Tower Hamlets beats the national 

average at Key Stage 2 and GCSEs for all children, and for looked 
after children 

10. Prioritising quality through contractually requiring home care providers 
to pay their staff the London Living Wage as a minimum salary 

 
Many of the key policy objectives have been delivered in conjunction with the 
Council’s strategic partners including the; Police, NHS Tower Hamlets, 
Jobcentre Plus and the Voluntary and Community sector (VCS). This joined 
up approach to the provision of services for our residents is fundamental to 
improving the outcomes for service users and is overseen by the Local 
Strategic Partnership Executive, chaired by the Mayor.  
 
The Council has continued to invest in its infrastructure with £130 million 
spent on its capital programme. The main areas of investment were in 
housing and schools, with £50 million of improvement works through the 
housing programme and £49 million through the Building Schools for the 
future programme. Other major projects included the Bromley by Bow Station 
upgrade and school expansion schemes to allow for additional pupil places. 
 
On 4th April the DCLG appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers to carry out an 
inspection of compliance by the London Borough of Tower Hamlets with the 
requirements of Part 1 of the Local Government Act in relation to the 
authority’s functions in respect of governance, particularly in respect of the 
authority’s functions under Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 
and as they relate to the following: 
 
• The authority’s payment of grants and connected decisions; 
• Transfer of property to third parties; 
• Spending and decisions in relation to publicity; and 
• Processes and practices relating to entering of contracts.    
In light of this a footnote has been included in the provisions note. 
 
Looking forward the Council will continue to face significant financial 
challenges. The 2014-2017 Medium Term Financial Plan agreed by Full 
Council in March 2014 includes a £71.1 million savings programme in the 
years to 2016/17, and whilst this forms the basis of a balanced budget over 
the next three years, there remain a number of major financial risks – in 
particular the expectation that £64.4 million of savings will be required in 
2015/16 and 2016/17 combined. Chief among these are the potential impact 
of government welfare reform and changes to the way in which local authority 
services are funded. Whilst the strength of the Council’s balance sheet will 

2



enable it to effectively manage those risks in the short term, over the longer 
term they may require a further, more fundamental review of the way in which 
local services are delivered. 
 
Review of the Year 
 
Revenue Income and Expenditure 
 
To provide a comparable analysis of income and expenditure across all local 
authorities there is a standard service analysis. However, it is worth pointing 
out that the Council budget is structured in line with its service directorates; 
this sometimes makes it difficult to compare the analysis in the Statement of 
Accounts with say, the budget analysis in Council Tax Leaflet. 
 
Overall, the Council’s Directorate spend was £0.5m overspent against the net 
General Fund budget of £297.8 million after the planned transfer of £27.5 
million to General Fund Reserves. The HRA account showed an additional 
surplus of some £1.9 million against budget after non-dwellings revaluation 
loss of £2.1 million which has been transferred to HRA reserves. 
 
The Council’s gross expenditure on services, excluding accounting 
adjustments, was £1.4 billion (£1.3 billion in 2012/13). An analysis by 
directorate is shown in the following diagram.  
 

 
 
 
Revenue Funding 
 
Government grants and subsidies continue to be the main sources of revenue 
funding (£0.64 billion).   
 
The main specific grant continues to be the Dedicated Schools Grant which 
can only be used to fund the education services and is largely ‘passported’ 
directly to the schools.  An analysis of all the funding sources is shown in the 
diagram below. 
 

49%

10%

1%

5%

7%

20%

8%

Analysis of Gross Revenue  Expenditure by 
Service Area

Education, Social Care and Wellbeing £690m

Communities, Localities & Culture £145.5m

Law, Probity and Governance £19.3m

Housing Revenue Account £77.2m

Development & Renewal £91.5m

Housing Benefits £278.9m

Central Services & Corporate Costs £105.4m

Total Gross Revenue Expenditure = 
£1,407.8m

3



 
 
Capital Investment 
 
The Council has continued to make considerable capital investment in its 
capital assets. The following table sets out the broad categories of investment 
during the year with the main areas of spending being on schools (primarily 
through the Building Schools for the Future Programme) and housing where 
the Council spent £48.3 million on its housing assets. 
 

 
 
Investment shown as being in ‘non-Council assets’ includes £20.9 million of 
expenditure on schools and children centres not owned by the Council (e.g. 
faith schools). 
 
The table below shows the sources of funding for the capital programme. The 
majority of this funding was from capital grants and contributions. In addition, 
£11.8 million was also used from the Major Repairs Reserve which is set 
aside from the Housing Revenue Account for capital investment. 

17%

8%

5%

21%19%

5%

25%

Analysis of Revenue Funding Sources

Formula Grant (including redistributed NNDR)
£243.5m
Other Government Grant Funding £114.8m

Council Tax £64.3.0m

Schools Grant Funding £305.8m

Housing Benefits Subsidy £277.4m

HRA Rents £66.5m

Fees and Charges £363.1m

Total Revenue Funding  = £1,435.4m

36%

31%

6%

4%

23%

Analysis of Capital Expenditure 

Council Housing £48.3m

Schools £41.1m

Other Council Assets £7.3m

Infrastructure Assets £5.3m

Non Council Assets £31.0m

Total Capital Expenditure  = £133m

4



 
 
Borrowing 
 
At the year end the Council had outstanding borrowings of £90 million (£92 
million 2012/13). This was reduced by PWLB loans that matured during the 
year. 
 
Pensions 
 
The Council offers retirement pensions to its staff under a statutory scheme 
and also makes contributions on their behalf. Although the pension benefits 
are not payable until employees retire, the Council has a commitment to make 
the payments and must account for them in the year in which the future 
entitlements are earned. This commitment is compared with the pension fund 
assets (investments) and the net amount is included in the accounts as the 
Council’s pension net surplus or liability. 
 
At the end of 2013/14 there was a net liability of £496 million (£524 million 
2012/13).  Although this sum has a significant impact on the net worth of the 
Council as shown in its Balance Sheet the deficit will be addressed by 
increased contributions to the scheme in future years.  These increased 
contributions have been reflected in the Council’s Medium Term Financial 
Plan. 
 
The deficit improved slightly as at 31 March 2014 compared to the value 
reported at 31 March 2013. This is principally due to a better than expected 
returns on asset, and this return had been partially offset by the impact of 
unfavourable financial assumptions used at 31 March 2014.  A significant 
increase in the net present value discount rate has led to a higher value being 
placed on liabilities - this has been the case for most LGPS funds.  This is a 
snapshot valuation for accounting purposes and the revaluation for 
contributory purposes took place at 31 March 2013 reporting a deficit of £365 
million (LBTH only). 
 
FURTHER INFORMATION 
Further information about the accounts and a copy of the summary are available from the 
Head of Corporate Finance, Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, London, E14 2BG. The 
summary is also on the Council’s website at www.towerhamlets.gov.uk 
 

1%

71%

9%

11%

8%

Analysis of Capital Financing

Borrowing £1m

Capital Grants and Contributions £95.2m

Major Repairs Reserve £11.8m

Capital Receipts £14.7m

Revenue budgets £10.3m

Total Capital Financing = 
£133m

5



 

THE ACCOUNTING STATEMENTS 
 
These comprise: 
 
The Statement of Accounting Policies on which the figures in the accounts are based. 
 
The Core Financial Statements: 
 
The Movement in Reserves Statement, as well as showing reserve movements during the year, it also 
splits reserves between 'usable reserves' (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce 
local taxation) and other reserves. The Surplus or (Deficit) on the Provision of Services line shows the 
true economic cost of providing the Council's services, more details of which are shown in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  
 
The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account which reports the net cost for the year of all 
the functions for which the Council is responsible and demonstrates how the cost has been financed 
from general Government grants and income from local taxpayers.  It brings together income and 
expenditure relating to all the Council’s functions in three distinct sections, each divided by a sub-total, 
to give the net deficit or surplus for the year. 
 
The Balance Sheet which shows the Council’s financial position at the year-end - its balances and 
reserves and its long-term indebtedness, and the fixed and net current assets employed in its 
operational activities together with summarised information on the fixed assets held.  
 
The Cash Flow Statement which summarises the inflows and outflows of cash arising from 
transactions with third parties for revenue and capital purposes.  Cash is defined as cash in hand and 
deposits repayable on demand less overdrafts repayable on demand. 
 
Notes to the Core Financial Statements 
 
The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) which reflects a statutory obligation to maintain a revenue 
account for local authority housing provision in accordance with Part 6 of the Local Government and 
Housing Act 1989, and details the credit and debit items required to be taken into account in 
determining the surplus or deficit on the HRA for the year. It is accompanied by the Statement of 
Movement on the HRA Balance and appropriate Notes. 
 
The Collection Fund which shows the transactions of the Council in relation to non-domestic rates 
and Council Tax and illustrates the way these have been distributed between Tower Hamlets Council 
and the Greater London Authority.  It reflects the statutory requirement for billing authorities such as 
the Council to maintain a separate account. 
 
The Pension Fund Accounts which provide information about the financial position, performance and 
the financial adaptability of the statutory pension fund. They show the results for the fund for the year 
and the disposition of its assets at the period end. 
 
We try to produce the statements in a form that is understandable to most stakeholders. However, 
they include some technical terms which are explained in the Glossary. 

6



G
E

N
E

R
A

L 
F

U
N

D
   

   
 

B
A

LA
N

C
E

E
A

R
M

A
R

K
E

D
 

G
E

N
E

R
A

L 
F

U
N

D
 

R
E

S
E

R
V

E
S

*

H
O

U
S

IN
G

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E
 

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 B

A
LA

N
C

E

M
A

JO
R

 R
E

P
A

IR
S

   
   

 
R

E
S

E
R

V
E

C
A

P
IT

A
L 

R
E

C
E

IP
T

S
 

R
E

S
E

R
V

E

C
A

P
IT

A
L 

G
R

A
N

T
S

 
U

N
A

P
P

LI
E

D

T
O

T
A

L 
U

S
A

B
LE

   
   

R
E

S
E

R
V

E
S

R
E

V
A

LU
A

T
IO

N
 

R
E

S
E

R
V

E

C
A

P
IT

A
L 

A
D

JU
S

T
M

E
N

T
 

A
C

C
O

U
N

T

P
E

N
S

IO
N

S
 R

E
S

E
R

V
E

C
O

LL
E

C
T

IO
N

 F
U

N
D

 
A

D
JU

S
T

M
E

N
T

 
A

C
C

O
U

N
T

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L 
IN

S
T

R
U

M
E

N
T

 
A

D
JU

S
T

M
E

N
T

 
A

C
C

O
U

N
T

A
C

C
U

M
U

LA
T

E
D

   
   

A
B

S
E

N
C

E
S

 
A

C
C

O
U

N
T

D
E

F
E

R
R

E
D

 C
A

P
IT

A
L 

R
E

C
E

IP
T

S

T
O

T
A

L 
U

N
U

S
A

B
LE

 
R

E
S

E
R

V
E

S

T
O

T
A

L 
A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y
 

R
E

S
E

R
V

E
S

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Balance as at 31 March 2012 26,380 123,715 14,578 7,985 27,608 50,156 250,422 497,734 1,068,460 (422,546) 24 959 (3,355) 156 1,141,433 1,391,855

Movement in reserves during 2012/13

Surplus or (Deficit) on the Provision of Services 58,710 0 45,465 0 0 0 104,175 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 104,175
Other comprehensive expenditure and income 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (168,459) 0 (94,692) 0 0 0 (263,151) (263,151)

Total Comprehensive Expenditure and Income 58,710 0 45,465 0 0 0 104,175 (168,459) 0 (94,692) 0 0 0 0 (263,151) (158,976)

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis 
under regulations (35,592) 0 (43,810) 4,379 (6,966) 5,545 (76,444) (4,589) 85,180 (5,724) 1,564 73 (14) (46) 76,444 0

Net Increase or Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked 
Reserves 23,118 0 1,655 4,379 (6,966) 5,545 27,731 (173,048) 85,180 (100,416) 1,564 73 (14) (46) (186,707) (158,976)

Transfers to or from earmarked reserves 8 (5,350) 5,350 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Transfers to or from school reserves 8 (6,088) 6,088 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Increase or (Decrease) in 2012/13 11,680 11,438 1,655 4,379 (6,966) 5,545 27,731 (173,048) 85,180 (100,416) 1,564 73 (14) (46) (186,707) (158,976)

Balance as at 31 March 2013 38,060 135,153 16,233 12,364 20,642 55,701 278,153 324,685 1,153,640 (522,962) 1,588 1,032 (3,369) 110 954,724 1,232,879
carried forward

Movement in reserves during 2013/14

Surplus or (Deficit) on the Provision of Services 20,383 0 61,812 0 0 0 82,195 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 82,195
Other comprehensive expenditure and income 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 32,686 0 44,724 0 0 0 77,410 77,410

Total Comprehensive Expenditure and Income 20,383 0 61,812 0 0 0 82,195 32,686 0 44,724 0 0 0 0 77,410 159,605

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis 
under regulations 13,197 0 (59,893) 4,032 306 (1,164) (43,522) (10,263) 72,615 (17,708) (821) (180) (58) (63) 43,522 0

Net Increase or Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked 
Reserves 33,580 0 1,919 4,032 306 (1,164) 38,673 22,423 72,615 27,016 (821) (180) (58) (63) 120,932 159,605

Transfers to or from earmarked reserves 8 (3,798) 3,798 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Transfers to or from school reserves 8 (2,853) 2,853 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Increase or (Decrease) in Year 26,929 6,651 1,919 4,032 306 (1,164) 38,673 22,423 72,615 27,016 (821) (180) (58) (63) 120,932 159,605

Balance as at 31 March 2014 64,989 141,804 18,152 16,396 20,948 54,537 316,826 347,108 1,226,255 (495,946) 767 852 (3,427) 47 1,075,654 1,392,484

*HRA Reserves  - The Housing Revenue Account reserve balance of £18.152 million includes an earmarked HRA reserve of £1 million for future housing supply.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
The HRA Reserve also includes a £2.1million reduction in relation to unrealised revaluation losses as per requirements of HRA self-financing legislation

MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT

This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Council, analysed into 'usable reserves' (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other reserves. The Surplus or (Deficit) on the Provision of Services line shows 
the true economic cost of providing the Council's services, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. These are different from the statutory amounts required to be charged to the General Fund Balance and the Housing Revenue Account 
for council tax setting and dwellings rent setting purposes. The Net Increase/Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked Reserves line shows the statutory General Fund Balance and Housing Revenue Account Balance before any discretionary transfers to or from earmarked reserves 
undertaken by the Council.

NOTES

USABLE RESERVES UNUSABLE RESERVES

7



Gross Gross Net Gross Gross Net
Expenditure Income Expenditure Expenditure Income Expenditure

Restated Restated Restated
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Continuing Operations

115,175 24,687 90,488 Adult Social Services 113,847 20,092 93,755

42,755 34,590 8,165 Central Services 8,478 6,866 1,612

537,216 442,173 95,043 Children's and Education Services 562,042 461,430 100,612

19,594 3,476 16,118 Corporate and Democratic Core 28,507 10,650 17,857

22,005 4,018 17,987 Cultural and Related Services 23,797 4,192 19,605

43,967 9,208 34,759 Environment and Regulatory Services 45,162 9,413 35,749

32,677 21,825 10,852 Highways and Transport Services 29,943 20,411 9,532

314,733 295,855 18,878 Housing Services 345,700 323,860 21,840

55,283 84,442 (29,159) Local Authority Housing (Housing Revenue Account) 53,883 90,274 (36,391)

5,862 1,719 4,143 Non-distributed Costs 0 1,023 (1,023)

21,968 9,483 12,485 Planning Services 26,748 15,283 11,465

0 0 0 Public Health 30,279 32,369 (2,090)

1,211,235 931,476 279,759 NET COST OF SERVICES 1,268,386 995,863 272,523

(161) Other Operating Expenditure 9 14,201

23,649 Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure1 10 34,018

(407,422) Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income 11 (402,937)

(104,175) (SURPLUS) OR DEFICIT ON THE PROVISION OF SERVICES (82,195)

Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

168,459 (Surplus)/Deficit on revaluation of non-current assets (32,686)

94,692 Actuarial (gains) or losses on pension assets and liabilities (44,724)

263,151 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE (77,410)

158,976 TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE (159,605)

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT

This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount 
to be funded from taxation. The Council raises taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations - this may be different from the accounting cost. 
The taxation position is shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

2012/13 2013/14

Note

8



31 March Notes 31 March
2013 2014
£'000 £'000

Long-term Assets
1,753,825 Property, plant and equipment 12 1,839,299

4,810 Heritage Assets 43 9,310
672 Long Term Debtors 13 590

1,759,307 Total Long-term assets 1,849,199

Current Assets
146,336 Short-term investments 15 185,636

3,248 Assets held for sale 21 225
390 Inventories 16 1,739

70,818 Short-term debtors 19 128,136
135,996 Cash and cash equivalents 20 138,111

356,788 Total Current Assets 453,847

Current liabilities
2,979 Short-term borrowing 15 1,984

149,693 Short-term creditors 22 199,552
921 Provisions 23 9,338

153,593 Total Current liabilities 210,874

Long Term Liabilities
13,071 Provisions 23 9,587
89,564 Long-term borrowing 15 88,892

522,962 Liability related to defined benefit pension schemes 41 495,946
61,341 Capital grants receipts in advance 37 64,475
39,410 Deferred liabilities 40 38,472

3,276 Deferred Income - Receipt in Advance 2,318

729,624 Total Long-Term Liabilities 699,690

1,232,878 NET ASSETS 1,392,482

Reserves
Usable Reserves

38,060 General Fund 64,989
16,233 Housing Revenue Account 18,152

103,282 Earmarked reserves 8 107,080
31,871 Schools reserves 8 34,724
20,642 Capital receipts reserve 20,948
55,701 Capital grants unapplied 54,537
12,364 Major repairs reserve 16,396

278,153 Total Usable Reserves 316,826

Unusable Reserves 25
324,686 Revaluation Reserve 347,108

1,153,640 Capital Adjustment Account 1,226,255
1,588 Collection Fund Adjustment Account 767
1,032 Financial Instruments Adjustment Account 852

(522,962) Pensions reserve (495,946)
(3,369) Accumulated Absences Account (3,427)

110 Deferred capital receipts 47
954,725 Total Unusable Reserves 1,075,656

1,232,878 TOTAL RESERVES 1,392,482

BALANCE SHEET 

This statement shows the Council's balances and reserves, its long term indebtedness and the non-
current assets and net current assets employed in its operations as at 31st March 2014.

9



2012/13 Notes 2013/14
£'000 £'000

104,175 Net surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services 82,195
42,320 Adjustments to  net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for non cash movements 26A 47,185

(132,944)
Adjustments for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the provision of services that 
are investing and financing activities 26A (62,227)

13,551 Net cash flows from Operating Activities 67,153
(1,753) Investing Activities 27 (64,145)
(2,528) Financing Activities 28 (893)

9,270 Net increase or decrease in cash and cash equivalents 2,115
126,726 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period 135,996
135,996 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period 20 138,111

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the authority during the reporting period. The 
statement shows how the authority generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing 
and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the 
operations of the authority are funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the recipients of services provided by the 
authority. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have been made for resources which are intended to 
contribute to the authority’s future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on 
future cash flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the authority.

10



 

 
 
 

 
NOTE 1.   STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
1. General Principles 
 
The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council’s transactions for the 2013/14 financial 
year and its position at the year-end of 31st March 2014. The Council is required to prepare 
an annual Statement of Accounts by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 which require 
the document to be prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices. 
 
These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the 
United Kingdom 2013/14 and the Service Reporting Code of Practice (SeRCOP) 2013/14, 
supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and statutory guidance 
issued under section 12 of the 2003 Act. 
 
The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical 
cost, modified by the revaluation of certain categories of long-term assets and financial 
instruments. 
 
This is to ensure that the Statement of Accounts gives a true and fair view of the financial 
position of the Council including the group accounts for the year ending 31st March 2014 and 
to ensure it is compliant with relevant statutory accounting requirements issued by the 
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).  Expenditure and income are reported in 
accordance with a total cost basis of accounting. Gross total cost includes all expenditure 
attributable to the service/activity, including employee costs, expenditure relating to premises 
and transport, supplies and services, third party payments, transfer payments, support 
services and depreciation. No categories of income are considered to be abatements of 
expenditure, and movements to and from reserves are excluded from total cost. 
 
The accounting concepts of ‘materiality’, ‘accruals’, ‘going concern’ and ‘primacy of 
legislative requirements’ have been considered in the application of accounting policies. In 
this regard the: 
• Materiality concept means that information is included where the information is of 

such significance as to justify its inclusion. 
• Accruals concept requires the non-cash effects of transactions to be included in the 

financial statement for the year in which they occur, not in the period in which the 
cash is paid or received. 

• Going concern concept assumes that the Council will continue in operational 
existence for the foreseeable future 

• Primacy of Legislation - local authorities derive their power from statute and their 
financial and accounting framework is closely controlled by legislation. Where there is 
conflict between a legal requirement and an accounting standard, the legal 
requirement will take precedence. 

 

2. Accruals of Income and Expenditure 
 
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are 
made or received. In particular: 

11



• Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Council transfers the 
significant risks and rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that 
economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the 
Council. 

• Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Council can measure 
reliably the percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable that 
economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the 
Council.  This includes the accounting for fees, charges and rents due from 
customers; these are accounted for as income at the date the Council provides the 
relevant goods or services. 

• Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where there is a 
gap between the date supplies are received and their consumption; they are carried 
as inventories on the Balance Sheet. 

• Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) 
are recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when 
payments are made. 

• Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for 
respectively as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for 
the relevant financial instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the 
contract. 

• Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been 
received or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the 
Balance Sheet. Where debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is written 
down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might not be collected. 

• Exceptionally, income in respect of adults in residential care under the National 
Assistance Act 1948 is accounted for on a cash basis, although the amount involved 
is not material to the presentation of the accounts.  

• The Council operates a de minimus of £5,000 below which items of income and 
expenditure are not normally accrued for. 

 
3. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable 
without penalty on notice.  Cash equivalents are investments that mature no more than three 
months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts 
of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.   
 
In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts 
that are repayable on demand within the short-term and form an integral part of the Council’s 
cash management. 
 
4. Exceptional Items 
 
When items of income and expense are material, their nature and amount is disclosed 
separately, either on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or in 
the notes to the accounts, depending on how significant the items are to an understanding of 
the Council’s financial performance. 
 
5. Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and 

Estimates and Errors  
 

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to 
correct a material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, 
i.e. in the current and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior 
period adjustment. 

12



 
Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices 
or the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, 
other events and conditions on the Council’s financial position or financial performance.  
Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise or not 
material) by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if 
the new policy had always been applied. 
 
Changes in Accounting Policy: 
 
Discontinuation of Group Accounts - Previously the Council has included the Accounts of 
its wholly owned ALMO, Tower Hamlets Homes in the groups accounts section.  As the 
assets and liabilities are not material compared to the Council’s assets and liabilities, from 
2013/14 group accounts have not been prepared. 
 
Future Changes in Accounting Policy - The Code of Practice on Local Council Accounting 
in the United Kingdom 2014/15 (the Code) has introduced several changes in accounting 
policies which will be required from 1st  April 2014. If these had been adopted for the financial 
year 2013/14 there would be no material changes as detailed below. 
A number of new and revised standards have been issued addressing the accounting for 
consolidation, involvements in joint arrangements and disclosure of involvements in other 
entities. These include: 
 
•  IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements – This standard introduces a new definition 

of control, which is used to determine which entities are consolidated for the purposes of 
group accounts.  There is no impact of this change as the Council has one subsidiary but 
has not produced consolidated accounts for this financial year on the basis of materiality 
and there are no associates.  

 
•  IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements – This standard addresses the accounting for a ‘joint 

arrangement’, which is defined as a contractual arrangement over which two or more 
parties have joint control. These are classified as either a joint venture or a joint operation. 
In addition proportionate consolidation can no longer be used for jointly controlled entities. 
The Council has no material joint venture arrangements. 

 
• IFRS 12 Disclosures of Involvement with Other Entities – This is a consolidated 

disclosure standard requiring a range of disclosures about an entity’s interests in 
subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and unconsolidated ‘structured entities’. The 
Council has no material arrangements with other entities under IFRS12. 

 
• IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and 

Joint Ventures – These statements have been amended to conform with the changes in 
IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12. Given that there would be no alterations in the financial 
statements, due to the changes to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12, there is no impact as a 
result of changes in IAS 27 and IAS 28. 

 
IAS 32 Financial Instruments Presentation – The Code references to amended application 

guidance when offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability. The gains and losses 
are separately identified on the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and 
therefore no further disclosure is required. 

 
IAS 1 Presentation of the Financial Statements – The changes clarifies the disclosure 

requirements in respect of comparative information of the preceding period. As the 
Accounts already  discloses comparative information for the preceding year, these 
changes will not have a material impact on Accounts. 

13



 
The impact to accounting policies of future changes to legislation or accounting standards 
has to be disclosed, these are disclosed below. 

 

6. Charges to Revenue for Long-term Assets 

Service revenue accounts, support services and trading accounts are debited with the 
following amounts to record the cost of holding long-term assets during the year: 

• Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service 

• Revaluation losses (general fall in prices across the board) and impairment losses 
(fall in price specific to an asset) on tangible non-current assets used by the service 
where there are no accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the 
losses can be written off 

• amortisation of intangible long-term assets attributable to the service 

The Council is not required to raise Council Tax to fund depreciation, revaluation, impairment 
losses or amortisations.  However, it is required to make an annual provision from revenue to 
contribute towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement (equal to an amount 
calculated on a prudent basis determined by the Council in accordance with statutory 
guidance).  Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisations are therefore 
replaced by the contribution in the General Fund Balance (Minimum Revenue Provision), by 
way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement for the difference between the two.  The Minimum Revenue Provision 
(MRP) relating to non-housing assets has been calculated for 2013/14 in accordance with 
Option 1 (the Regulatory Method) set out in the statutory guidance on MRP.   
 
7. Employee Benefits 
 
a. Benefits Payable during Employment 
 
Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end.  
They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, 
bonuses and non-monetary benefits for current employees and are recognised as an 
expense for services in the year in which employees render service to the Council.  If 
material, an accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements (or any form of leave, e.g. 
time off in lieu) earned by employees but not taken before the year-end which employees 
can carry forward into the next financial year. The accrual is made at the wage and salary 
rates applicable in the following accounting year, being the period in which the employee 
takes the benefit. The accrual is charged to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services, 
but then reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement so that holiday benefits 
are charged to revenue in the financial year in which the holiday absence occurs. 
 
b. Termination Benefits 
 
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council to 
terminate an officer’s employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision 
to accept voluntary redundancy and are charged on an accruals basis to the appropriate 
service line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when the Council is 
demonstrably committed to the termination of the employment of an officer or group of 
officers or making an offer to encourage voluntary redundancy and a reliable estimate can be 
made of the cost. 
 
Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions 
require the General Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to 

14



the pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the 
relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are 
required to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for 
pension enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to 
the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end. 

c. Post-Employment Benefits 

Employees of the Council are members of three separate pension schemes: 

• The Local Government Pension Scheme, administered by the Council 

• The Local Government Pension Scheme, administered by the London Pensions Fund 
Authority  

• The Teachers’ Pension Scheme, administered by Capita Teachers’ Pensions on 
behalf of the Department for Education (DfE). 

 
All the schemes provide defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and pensions), 
earned as employees work for the Council.  
 
However, the arrangements for the Teachers’ scheme mean that liabilities for these benefits 
cannot be identified to the Council. The scheme is therefore accounted for as if it were a 
defined contributions scheme – no liability for future payments of benefits is recognised in the 
Balance Sheet.   The Children’s and Education Services line in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement is charged with the employer’s contributions payable to 
Teachers’ Pensions in the year.  The DfE set the teacher’s pension contribution rate. 
 

The Local Government Pension Scheme  

The Local Government scheme is a defined benefits scheme. 
 
The Council’s wholly owned subsidiary, Tower Hamlets Homes Limited (THH), is a Local 
Government Pension Scheme Employer in accordance with the Local Government Pension 
Scheme (Amendment) Regulations 2002. The Council has indemnified THH in respect of all 
liabilities that have arisen or may arise from its pension obligations.  

The liabilities of the pension scheme attributable to the Council are included in the Balance 
Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method – an assessment of the future 
payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, 
based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc. and estimates of 
projected earnings for current employees.  

Council liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate derived 
from corporate bond yields (as measured by the yield on iBoxxSterling Corporates Index, AA 
over 15 years) as at 31st March 2014.   

Assets attributable to the Council are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value. 
Quoted or unitised securities are valued at current bid price; unquoted securities on the basis 
of professional estimate; and property at market value. 

The change in the net pension liability is analysed into seven components: 

• current service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned 
this year, allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the 
revenue accounts of services for which the employees worked. 

• past service cost – the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions the 
effect of which relates to years of service earned in earlier years, debited to the 

15



Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services as part of Non Distributed Costs within 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

• interest cost – the expected increase in the present value of liabilities during the year 
as they move one year closer to being paid, debited to Financing and Investment 
Income and Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  

• expected rate of return (on assets) – the annual investment return on the fund assets 
attributable to the Council, based on an average of the expected long-term return, 
credited to Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement.  

• gains and losses on settlements and curtailments – the result of actions to relieve the 
Council of liabilities or events that reduce the expected future service or accrual of 
benefits of employees, credited or debited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 
Services as part of Non Distributed Costs within the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. 

• actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pensions liability that arise because 
events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or 
because the actuaries have updated their assumptions, debited to the Pensions 
Reserve. 

• contributions paid to the pension funds – cash paid as employer’s contributions to the 
pension funds. 

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to be 
charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund in the year, not the 
amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement of 
Reserves Statement, this means that there are appropriations to and from the Pensions 
Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them 
with debits for the cash paid to the pension funds and any amounts payable to the funds but 
unpaid at the year-end.  The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby 
measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being required to account for 
retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are earned by 
employees as calculated under IAS19. 

Discretionary Benefits 

The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits 
in the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to 
any member of staff (including teachers) are accrued in the year of the decision to make the 
award and accounted for using the same policies as are applied to the Local Government 
Pension Scheme. 
 
8. Events after the Balance Sheet date 
 
Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, 
that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of 
Accounts is authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified: 
a. those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting 

period – the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such material events 
b. those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period – the 

Statement of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of 
events would have a material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of 
the events and their estimated financial effect, or a statement that an estimate cannot 
be reliably made. 

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement 
of Accounts. 

16



 
Events after the Balance Sheet date are reflected up to the date when the Statement of 
Accounts is authorised for issue  
 
9. Financial Instruments 
 

a. Financial Liabilities 
 
Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party 
to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value 
and are carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing and Investment 
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for 
interest payable are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective 
rate of interest for the instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts 
estimated future cash payments over the life of the instrument to the amount at which it was 
originally recognised. 
 
For most of the borrowings that the Council has, this means that the amount presented in the 
Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued interest); and interest 
charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for 
the year according to the loan agreement. 
 
Gains and losses on the repurchase or early settlement of borrowing are credited and 
debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement in the year of repurchase/settlement. However, where 
repurchase has taken place as part of a restructuring of the loan portfolio that involves the 
modification or exchange of existing instruments, the premium or discount is respectively 
deducted from or added to the amortised cost of the new or modified loan and the write-down 
to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is spread over the life of the loan 
by an adjustment to the effective interest rate. 
 
Where premia and discounts have been charged to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement, regulations allow the impact on the General Fund Balance to be 
spread over future years. The Council has a policy of spreading the gain or loss over the 
term that was remaining on the loan against which the premium was payable or discount 
receivable when it was repaid. The reconciliation of amounts charged to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement to the net charge required against the General Fund 
Balance is managed by a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account 
in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 

b. Financial Assets 

Financial assets are classified into two types: 

• loans and receivables – assets that have fixed or determinable payments but are not 
quoted in an active market 

• available-for-sale assets – assets that have a quoted market price and/or do not have 
fixed or determinable payments 

 

Loans and Receivables 

Loans and receivables are recognized on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a 
party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair 
value and carried at their amortised cost. Annual credits to the Financing and Investment line 

17



in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are based 
on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the 
instrument. For most of the loans that the Council has made, this means that the amount 
presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest) 
and interest credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the 
amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement.  

Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that 
payments due under the contract will not be made, the asset is written down and a charge 
made to the relevant service (for receivables specific to that service) or the Financing and 
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement.   

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of the asset are credited / debited to the 
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. 
 
 
10. Foreign Currency Translation 

 
Where the Council has entered into a transaction denominated in a foreign currency, the 
transaction is converted into sterling at the exchange rate applicable on the date the 
transaction was effective.  

11. Government Grants and Contributions 

 
Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party 
contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is reasonable 
assurance that: 
• the Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and 
• the grants or contributions will be received. 
 
Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution have been 
satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service 
potential embodied in the asset acquired using the grant or contribution are required to be 
consumed by the recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service potential must 
be returned to the transferor. 
 
Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied 
are carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors (revenue grants) or Capital Grants Receipts in 
Advance account (capital grants). When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is 
credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and contributions) or 
Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (non-ring-fenced revenue grants and all capital 
grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Unapplied revenue grants 
without repayment conditions are shown as earmarked reserves. 
 
Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, 
they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.  
Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital 
Grants Unapplied reserve. Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment 
Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied reserve are transferred to the Capital 
Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund capital expenditure. 
 
 
 

18



 
12. Heritage assets 
 
The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom requires material 
heritage assets held by the Council to be disclosed..  
 
The value of heritage assets currently held in the Balance Sheet as part of long-term assets 
is £9.3 million at 31 March 2014.  This valuation is based on valuations for art and museum 
collections where the asset has a material value.   The council holds information on the value 
of an item of material value within the art collection (one painting), two public statues and 
civic regalia (value held for insurance purposes). 
 
Valuations are made by any method that is appropriate, including reference to sale proceeds 
of similar items by same artist to demonstrate values are clearly under materiality values.  
There is no requirement for valuations to be carried out or certified by external valuers nor is 
there any prescribed minimum period between valuations.  The Council has four heritage 
assets that have material values, these values are reviewed periodically, however the real 
value would only be established upon sale as valuations on assets of this nature are 
subjective.   
 
Where the Council has information on the cost or value of a heritage asset the Council 
includes that value in its 2013/14 balance sheet.  Where this information is not available and 
the historical cost information cannot be obtained the asset is excluded from the balance 
sheet.   
 
Heritage assets (other than operational heritage assets) shall normally be included in the 
balance sheet at their current value where material.  The Council has a materiality threshold 
of £50,000 for considering heritage assets for valuation.  Where it is not practical to obtain a 
valuation at a reasonable cost heritage assets are valued at cost where known.   Most 
heritage assets owned by the council have an historical interest to the Borough, but would 
not have material market value.   
 
Operational heritage assets (i.e. those that in addition to being held for their heritage 
characteristics are also used for other activities or provide other services) are accounted for 
as operational assets and valued in the same way as other assets of that type.  
 
Depreciation is not required on heritage assets with indefinite lives. However where there is 
evidence of physical deterioration to a material heritage asset or doubts arise to its 
authenticity the value of the asset would be reviewed. 
 
 

13. Intangible Long Term Assets 
 

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled 
by the Council as a result of past events (e.g. software licences) is capitalised when it is 
expected that future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible asset 
to the Authority. 
 
Internally generated assets are capitalised where it is demonstrable that the project is 
technically feasible and is intended to be completed (with adequate resources being 
available) and the Council will be able to generate future economic benefits or deliver service 
potential by being able to sell or use the asset. Expenditure is capitalised where it can be 
measured reliably as attributable to the asset and is restricted to that incurred during the 
development phase (research expenditure cannot be capitalised).  Annual software licence 
fees are charged to capital and amortised in that year 

19



 
Expenditure on the development of websites is not capitalised if the website is solely or 
primarily intended to promote or advertise the Council’s goods or services. 
 
Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair 
value of the assets held by the Council can be determined by reference to an active market. 
In practice, no intangible asset held by the Council meets this criterion, and they are 
therefore carried at amortised cost. The depreciable amount of an intangible asset is 
amortised over its useful life to the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement.  An asset is tested for impairment whenever there is an indication 
that the asset might be impaired – any losses recognised are posted to the relevant service 
line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  Any gain or loss arising 
on the disposal or abandonment of an intangible asset is posted to the Other Operating 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory 
purposes, amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted 
to have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore 
reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and 
posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than £10,000) 
the Capital Receipts Reserve.  
 

14. Interests in Companies and Other Entities 
 
The Council has an interest in Tower Hamlets Homes which is a wholly owned subsidiary of 
the Council but is not considered material and does not require group accounts to be  
prepared (a summary of this interest can be found in note 47). The Council, as part of the 
Government’s Building Schools for the Future (BSF) initiative, also has a ten percent 
shareholding in the delivery company Tower Hamlets Local Education Partnership Ltd. but 
has determined that the interest is outside the group accounts requirement. In the Council’s 
own single-entity accounts, interests in companies and other entities are recorded as 
financial assets at cost, less any provision for losses.  

 

15. Inventories and Long Term Contracts 
 
Inventories (stocks) are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable 
value.  Where material, the council would select a valuation process appropriate for the 
asset. 
 
Long term contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the Surplus or Deficit on the 
Provision of Services with the value of works and services received under the contract during 
the financial year.  
 
16. Jointly Controlled Operations and Jointly Controlled Assets 

 
Jointly controlled operations are activities undertaken by the Council in conjunction with other 
venturers that involve the use of the assets and resources of the venturers rather than the 
establishment of a separate entity. The Council recognises on its Balance Sheet the assets 
that it controls and the liabilities that it incurs and debits and credits the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement with the expenditure it incurs and the share of income it 
earns from the activity of the operation. 
 
Jointly controlled assets are items of property, plant or equipment that are jointly controlled 
by the Council and other venturers, with the assets being used to obtain benefits for the 

20



venturers. The joint venture does not involve the establishment of a separate entity. The 
Council accounts for only its share of the jointly controlled assets, the liabilities and expenses 
that it incurs on its own behalf or jointly with others in respect of its interest in the joint 
venture and income that it earns from the venture. 

 

17. Leases 

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all 
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the 
lessor to the lessee.  All other leases are classified as operating leases. 
 

The Council as a Lessee 

The Council has reviewed its leases in detail and has determined that, except for PFI 
agreements, there are a small number of finance leases with immaterial asset values, so the 
agreement costs are charged to revenue.  For finance leases (including the PFI assets), the 
accounting policy is as follows; 

a. Finance Leases 
 
The Council accounts for leases as finance leases when substantially all the risks and 
rewards relating to the leased property transfer to the Council. Rentals payable are 
apportioned between: 
 
• a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment 

(recognised as a liability in the Balance Sheet at the start of the lease, matched with a 
tangible property, plant or equipment asset – the liability is written down as the rent 
becomes payable), and 

• A finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement). 

 
Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the 
policies applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the 
lease term if this is shorter than the asset’s estimated useful life (where ownership of the 
asset does not transfer to the council at the end of the lease period). 
 

b. Operating Leases 

Leases that do not meet the definition of finance leases as described above are accounted 
for as operating leases. Rentals payable are charged to the relevant service revenue account 
within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an equalised basis over 
the term of the lease, to reflect the economic benefits consumed over the life of the lease, 
irrespective of fluctuations in annual payments.  
 
The Council as a Lessor 
 
The council has some operating leases as a lessor; the accounting policy is as follows: 
 
Operating Leases 
 
Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or 
equipment, the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Other 
Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
Credits are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not 
match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a premium paid at the commencement of the 
lease). Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging the lease are added to the 

21



carrying amount of the relevant asset and charged as an expense over the lease term on the 
same basis as rental income. 

 
18. Overheads and Support Services 

The costs of overheads and support services are charged to those services that benefit from 
the supply or service in accordance with the costing principles of the CIPFA Service 
Reporting Code of Practice 2013/14 (SeRCOP). The total absorption costing principle is 
used – the full cost of overheads and support services is shared between users in proportion 
to the benefits received, with the exception of: 

• Corporate and Democratic Core – costs relating to the Council’s status as a multi-
functional, democratic organisation. 

• Non Distributed Costs – costs not attributable to services such as depreciation and 
impairment losses chargeable on non-operational properties 

 
These two cost categories are defined in SeRCOP and accounted for as separate headings 
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, as part of Net Expenditure on 
Continuing Services.  

 
 

19. Property, Plant and Equipment 

 
Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of 
goods or services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected 
to be used during more than one financial year are classified as Property, Plant and 
Equipment. 
 
Recognition 
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is 
capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits 
or service potential associated with the item will flow to the Council and the cost of the item 
can be measured reliably.  Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset’s 
potential to deliver future economic benefits or service potential (i.e. repairs and 
maintenance) is charged as an expense when it is incurred.  The de minimus level above 
which expenditure on tangible property, plant and equipment assets is classified as capital is 
£50,000 except where the expenditure is financed by grants or contributions; or where lesser 
amounts on the same asset accumulate above that level. 
 
Measurement 
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising: 

• the purchase price 
• any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for 

it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management 
 
The Council does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under 
construction. The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair 
value, unless the acquisition does not have commercial substance (i.e. it will not lead to a 
variation in the cash flows of the Council). In the latter case, where an asset is acquired via 
an exchange, the cost of the acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset given up by the 
Council. 
 
Donated assets are measured initially at fair value. The difference between fair value and 
any consideration paid is credited to the Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income line of the 

22



Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, unless the donation has been made 
conditionally. Until conditions are satisfied, the gain is held in the Donated Assets Account. 
Where gains are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they 
are reversed out of the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement. 
Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases: 
• infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction – depreciated 

historical cost. 
• dwellings – fair value, determined using the basis of existing use value for social 

housing (EUV-SH). 
• All other assets – fair value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the 

asset in its existing use (existing use value – EUV).  
Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of the specialist 
nature of an asset, depreciated replacement cost (DRC) is used as an estimate of fair 
value.  Where non-property assets that have short useful lives or low values (or both), 
depreciated historical cost basis is used as a proxy for fair value – this is commonly 
used as a basis for valuing vehicles, plant and equipment. 

 
Assets included in the Balance Sheet at fair value are revalued sufficiently regularly to 
ensure that their carrying amount is not materially different from their fair value at the year-
end, but as a minimum every five years. Increases in valuations are matched by credits to 
the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains. Gains are credited to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement where they arise from the reversal of a 
loss previously charged to a service. 
 
Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for by: 
• Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation 

Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to 
the amount of the accumulated gains) 

• Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the 
carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

 
The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1st April 2007 only, the 
date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into 
the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 
Impairment 
Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset 
may be impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be 
material, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the 
carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall. 
Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by: 
• Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation 

Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to 
the amount of the accumulated gains) 

• Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the 
carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant 
service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount 
of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had 
not been recognised. 
 
Depreciation 

23



Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the systematic 
allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for 
assets without a determinable finite useful life (i.e. freehold land and certain Community 
Assets) and assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets under construction).  
Deprecation is calculated on the following bases: 
• dwellings - equivalent to the Major Repairs Allowance payable by the Government 

which has been used as an appropriate proxy for depreciation 
• other buildings – straight-line allocation over the useful life of the property as 

estimated by the valuer 
• vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment – a percentage of the value of each class 

of assets in the Balance Sheet, as advised by a suitably qualified officer.  For 
equipment, over five years 

• infrastructure – straight-line allocation over 40 years 
 
Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between 
current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been 
chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation 
Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 
Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components whose cost is 
significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately 
if they have a materially different remaining life from the underlying asset.  
 
Any assets with a value below £0.5 million are not considered material for containing 
separate components.  Separate components will be considered in an asset with a value 
greater than £0.5 million if the component has a value of greater than 25% of the asset and 
the remaining life of the asset is materially different from the underlying asset.  
 
Disposals and Non-Current Assets Held for Sale 
When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally 
through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset 
Held for Sale. The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at 
the lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent 
decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted to the Other Operating 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Gains in fair 
value are recognised only up to the amount of any previous losses recognised in the Surplus 
or Deficit on Provision of Services. Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale.  If 
assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are 
reclassified back to long-term assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount before 
they were classified as held for sale; adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations 
that would have been recognised had they not been classified as Held for Sale, and their 
recoverable amount at the date of the decision not to sell.  Assets that are to be abandoned 
or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets Held for Sale. 
 
When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the 
Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off 
to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal.  Receipts from disposals (if any) are 
credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as 
part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at 
the time of disposal). Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation 
Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account.   
 
Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts. A 
proportion of receipts relating to housing disposals (75% for dwellings, 50% for land and 

24



other assets, net of statutory deductions and allowances) is payable to the Government. The 
balance of receipts is required to be credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve, and can then 
only be used for new capital investment or set aside to reduce the Council’s underlying need 
to borrow (the capital financing requirement). Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from 
the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against Council Tax, as the cost of long-
term assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts 
are appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement. 

 

20. Private Finance Initiative (PFI) and Similar Contracts             
 
PFI contracts are agreements to receive services, where the responsibility for making 
available the property, plant and equipment long-term assets needed to provide services 
passes to the PFI contractor. As the Council is deemed to control the services that are 
provided under its PFI schemes, and as ownership of the property, plant and equipment will 
pass to the Council at the end of the contracts for no additional charge, the Council carries 
the assets used under the contracts on its Balance Sheet as part of Property, Plant and 
Equipment.The Council is party to two PFI contracts in respect of schools which terminate in 
2027 and 2029.  
 
The original recognition of these long-term assets at fair value (based on the cost to 
purchase the property, plant and equipment) was balanced by the recognition of a liability for 
amounts due to the scheme operator to pay for capital investment. Non current assets 
recognised on the Balance Sheet are revalued and depreciated in the same way as property, 
plant and equipment owned by the Council. 
 
The amounts payable to the PFI operators each year are analysed into five elements: 
 
• fair value of the services received during the year – debited to the relevant service in 

the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
• finance cost – an interest charge on the outstanding Balance Sheet liability, debited 

to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement 

• contingent rent – increases in the amount to be paid for the property arising during 
the contract, debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

• payment towards liability – applied to write down the Balance Sheet liability towards 
the PFI operator (the profile of write-downs is calculated using the same principles as 
for a finance lease). 

• lifecycle replacement costs – recognised as long-term assets on the Balance Sheet if 
capital in nature  

 
MRP policy for PFI schemes - a minimum revenue provision is charged based on a share 
of the charge paid within the above contracts - this represents repayment of the contract 
liability for the long-term assets within the contract. 
 
There is also a third PFI contract for the Barkantine Heat and Power scheme.  This 
concession agreement is a user pay arrangement where the end user pays the operator for 
the combined heat and power (CHP) services rendered.  The Council receives a profit share 
but pays no unitary charge for the service.  As the Council does not pay for this scheme, 
there is no MRP chargeable.The assets of the CHP scheme are included on the council’s 
balance sheet with a deferred income balance (from 2010/11), both of which are written 
down over the term of the contract. 

25



 

21. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 

a. Provisions 

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council an obligation 
that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or service potential and 
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.  For instance, if the Council 
were to be involved in a court case that could eventually result in the making of a settlement 
or the payment of compensation. 

Provisions are charged to the appropriate service revenue account in the year that the 
Council becomes aware of the obligation, based on the best estimate at the balance sheet 
date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into account relevant risks and 
uncertainties. When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried 
in the Balance Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year. 
Where it becomes more likely than not that a transfer of economic benefits will not be 
required (or a lower settlement than anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and 
credited back to the relevant service account. 

Where some or all of the payment required to settle an obligation is expected to be met by 
another party (e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income in the relevant 
revenue account if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the Council 
settles the obligation. 

 

b. Contingent Liabilities 
 
A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible 
obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of 
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Council. Contingent liabilities also 
arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not 
probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot 
be measured reliably. 
 
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in note 45 to the 
accounts. 
 

c. Contingent Assets 
 
A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible 
asset whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain 
future events not wholly within the control of the Council. 
 
Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the 
accounts where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service 
potential. 
 

22. Reserves 

The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover 
contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund 
Balance in the Movement of Reserves Statement. When expenditure to be financed from a 
reserve is incurred it is charged to the relevant service revenue account in that year to score 
against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and 

26



Expenditure Statement.  The reserve is then appropriated back into the General Fund 
Balance statement so that there is no net charge against Council Tax for the expenditure. 

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for long-term assets, financial 
instruments, retirement and employment benefits and do not represent usable resources for 
the Council – these reserves are explained in the relevant policies. 
 
The Council treats transfers from the insurance reserve as above the line income to services 
rather than below the line transfers between reserves.  This is a deviation from the 
Accounting Code of Practice but does not have a material effect on the financial statements. 
 

23. Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute (REFCUS) 

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but 
does not result in the creation of long-term assets has been charged as expenditure to the 
relevant service revenue account in the year. Where the Council has determined to meet the 
cost of this expenditure from existing capital resources or by borrowing, a transfer in the 
Movement of Reserves Statement from the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment 
Account then reverses out the amounts charged so there is no impact on the level of Council 
Tax.  
 

24. VAT 
 

VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her 
Majesty’s Revenue and Customs. VAT receivable is excluded from income.  
 
25. Collection Fund 
 
The Council is required by statute to maintain a separate fund for the collection and 
distribution of amounts due in respect of Council Tax, Business Rate Supplements (BRS) 
and National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR).  This account receives income on behalf of the 
Council, Central Government and its other preceptor the Greater London Authority (GLA).  
The sharing of NNDR arrangements came into effect from 1st April 2014, previously NNDR 
was collected on behalf of the CLG. 
 
Collection Fund income for the year is the Council’s accrued income for the year and not the 
amount required to be transferred from the Collection Fund under regulation. The difference 
between the amount included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and 
the amount required by regulation to be credited to the General Fund is taken to the 
Collection Fund Adjustment Account and included within the Movement of Reserves 
Statement. 
 

The cash collected by the Council from Council Tax, BRS & NNDR debtors belongs 
proportionately to the billing authority, Central Government and the preceptors.  This results 
in a debtor / creditor position between the Council, Central Government and preceptors for 
the difference between the cash collected from Council Tax, BRS & NNDR debtors and the 
precept paid over during the year.  The Balance Sheet includes the Council’s share of 
Council Tax & NNDR arrears and impairment for bad debts, Council Tax & NNDR over 
payments and prepayments and the debtor/ creditor from the preceptors. 
 
The Council’s share of net cash collected from Council Tax & NNDR debtors in the year is 
included within the Cash Flow Statement. The difference between the major preceptors’ 
share of net cash collected and amounts paid to the precepting authorities is included in the 
net cash-flows for financing activities.  
 

27



The amount included in the Council’s Balance Sheet is the amount of cash collected from 
NNDR taxpayers (less the amount retained in respect of a cost of collection allowance) that 
has not yet been paid to the Central Government & GLA or has been overpaid to the Central 
Government & GLA on the Balance Sheet date.  
 
There are a number of NNDR appeals outstanding that date back to 2005.  These are to be 
heard by the Government’s external Valuation Office.  A provision has been raised based on 
an estimate of the income from a lower valuation.   
 
26. Carbon Reduction Commitment Scheme 
 
The Council is required to participate in the Carbon Reduction Commitment (CRC) Energy 
Efficiency Scheme. This scheme is currently in its introductory phase which will last until 31 
March 2014. The authority is required to purchase and surrender allowances, currently 
retrospectively, on the basis of emissions i.e. carbon dioxide produced as energy is used. As 
carbon dioxide is emitted (i.e. as energy is used), a liability and an expense are recognised. 
The liability will be discharged by surrendering allowances. The liability is measured at the 
best estimate of the expenditure required to meet the obligation, normally at the current 
market price of the number of allowances required to meet the liability at the reporting date. 
The cost to the Council is recognised and reported in the costs of the Council’s services and 
is apportioned to services on the basis of energy consumption. 
 
   
NOTE 2.   CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING 

POLICIES 
 
In applying the accounting policies set out in note 1, the Council has had to make certain 
judgments about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events.  
The critical judgements made in the Statement of Accounts are: 
 
• The Council is accounted for on a going concern basis this is supported by the 

Council’s medium term financial plan which Assets have been valued at an 
appropriate level - property is regularly reviewed to identify possible impairment and 
there is a rolling five-year valuation programme. 

• All assets are reflected in the Council’s balance sheet – the Council maintains a 
comprehensive asset register and contracts have been reviewed to identify potential 
embedded service concessions or embedded leases. Included in property, plant & 
equipment are community schools and PFI schools that are owned by the council or 
in the case of PFI schools, will revert to council ownership at the end of the contract.  
Voluntary aided, academies, foundation and trust schools are not owned by the 
council so are not included on the council’s balance sheet. 

• The Pension Fund deficit can be managed within the constraints of the medium term 
financial plan - the Council’s pension fund investment strategy and funding level is 
closely monitored in conjunction with the Fund’s Advisors and Actuary and 
appropriate provision is included in the accounts to ensure that pension liabilities can 
be met over the longer term. 

• The level of creditors shown in the accounts properly reflects the level of such 
liabilities - the Council has an effective purchase ledger system and associated 
internal control procedures to ensure that all creditors are recognised in the accounts 
with an appropriate value based on the expected value of goods ordered and 
received in the prior financial year but not paid. 

• To ensure that the carrying value of the PPE assets are not materially different from 
the fair value the council engages the professional services of a firm of external 
property valuers to review the Councils property portfolio in line with the CIPFA and 

28



RICS guidelines. Given the size, value and complexity of the asset base it is likely 
that a revaluation could have a significant impact on the financial statements, 
however any adjustments should not impact materially on usable reserves. 

• National Non Domestic Rates appeals – NNDR bills are based on the valuation of 
properties.  The accounts have been prepared on the basis of the valuations included 
within bills raised, however payers have the right to appeal against valuations.  There 
are outstanding appeals going back to 2005.  Resolution of these appeals is due by 
mid 2015.  The Council has made provision to meet some of the potential 
revaluations.    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

29



3

4

5
Previous Year Items

Current Year Items

6

The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by the Council about the 
future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking into account historical experience, current trends and 
other relevant factors. However, because balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual results could be 
materially different from the assumptions and estimates.

The items in the Council's Balance Sheet at 31st March 2014 for which there is a significant risk of material adjustment 
in the forthcoming financial year are as follows:

Property, Plant and Equipment - Assets are depreciated over useful lives that are dependent on assumptions about 
the level of repairs and maintenance that will be incurred in relation to individual assets. The current economic climate 
makes it uncertain that the Council will be able to sustain its current spending on repairs and maintenance, bringing 
into doubt the useful lives assigned to assets.

Restated Accounting Statements

No prior year comparative figures within the Council's 2012/13 accounts have been restated.

Assumptions Made About the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation 
Uncertainty

The Council received a large invoice from the  Barts NHS Trust in July. This was considered material (£1.306m) and 
was included within the financial statements as a Post Balance Sheet Event.

Material Items of Income and Expense

Actuarial loss on pension fund - there was a £96 million actuarial loss on the pension fund due to higher inflation 
estimates and lower net present value discounting factors being used.  

Events After the  Balance Sheet Date

Within the Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure line of the accounts, there are no material non-cash 
expenditure items to report. 

Revaluation of Properties - a £166m unrealised revaluation loss on the value of property (in particular schools) was 
shown on the face of the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Account.  For 2013/14, there was a minor gain of 
£19m on properties (mostly dwellings).

Pensions Liability - Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex judgements 
relating to the discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are projected to increase, changes in retirement ages, 
mortality rates and expected returns on pension fund investments.  A firm of consulting actuaries is engaged to provide 
the Council with expert advice about the assumptions to be applied.  

The assumptions interact in complex ways.  During 2013/14, the Council’s actuaries advised that the net pensions 
liability had decreased by £27million to £495.9 million mainly as a result of increases in the value of investments.

If the useful life of assets is reduced, depreciation increases and the carrying amount of the assets falls.  It is estimated 
that the annual depreciation charge for buildings would increase by approximately £1 million for every year that useful 
lives had to be reduced.

Creditor Accruals - creditor accruals are raised based on the value of goods received in the old financial year where 
payment has not been made to the supplier.  The value of year-end creditor is based on the expected value of the 
order to be paid, however there is the possibility that the final amount payable might vary.  At 31st March 2014, the 
value of these creditors was £76.9 million (£57.5 million at 31st March 2013).

Heritage Assets - In valuing material heritage assets, valuations have been obtained from independent Valuers where 
practicable.  Where a value has been given between a certain band, then the mid-point valuation is used.  However, 
because of their unique nature the value of heritage assets is difficult to predict.  There is a risk that the value of 
heritage assets is incorrectly stated, but this would only become apparent if the asset is sold.  Most heritage items have 
been given a nil value in the Accounts as their values are significantly below the materiality threshold - any risk is the 
assets' value is understated.  

Debtors - The Council has a balance of £87.8 million sundry debtors as at 31st March 2014 (£47.7 m at March 2013).  

NNDR Appeals - There are over 3,800 NNDR (Business Rates) appeals that are yet to be heard by the Government's 
Valuation Tribunal.  These appeals relate to both the 2005 and 2010 valuation list, and the Government has committed 
to resolving 95% of these by July 2015.

30



7

G
E

N
E

R
A

L 
F

U
N

D
   

   
 

B
A

LA
N

C
E

E
A

R
M

A
R

K
E

D
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L 

F
U

N
D

 R
E

S
E

R
V

E
S

*

H
O

U
S

IN
G

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E
 

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 B

A
LA

N
C

E

M
A

JO
R

 R
E

P
A

IR
S

   
R

E
S

E
R

V
E

C
A

P
IT

A
L 

R
E

C
E

IP
T

S
 

R
E

S
E

R
V

E

C
A

P
IT

A
L 

G
R

A
N

T
S

 
U

N
A

P
P

LI
E

D

T
O

T
A

L 
U

S
A

B
LE

   
   

R
E

S
E

R
V

E
S

T
O

T
A

L 
U

N
U

S
A

B
LE

 
R

E
S

E
R

V
E

S

T
O

T
A

L 
A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y
 

R
E

S
E

R
V

E
S

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Adjustments involving the Capital Adjustment Account

Reversal of items debited or credited to the Comprehensive I&E

Charges for depreciation and impairment of non current assets 23,405 0 0 15,831 0 0 39,236 (39,236) 0

Revaluation losses on PPE (charged to SDPS) 374 0 (21,748) 0 0 0 (21,374) 21,374 0

Movements on the market value of investment assets 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Amortisation of intangible assets 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Capital grants and contributions applied (45,478) 0 0 0 0 (49,653) (95,131) 95,131 0

Movement in the donated assets account 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 29,010 0 1,994 0 0 0 31,004 (31,004) 0
Amounts of non current assets written off on disposal or sale as 
part of the gain/loss on disposal to the CIES 21,753 0 5,754 0 0 0 27,507 (27,507) 0
Capital receipts from Secretary of State used to repay debt in 
accordance with the HRA Settlement Determination 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment (6,836) 0 0 0 0 0 (6,836) 6,836 0

Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund and HRA 
balances (1,175) 0 (9,083) 0 0 0 (10,258) 10,258 0

Adjustments involving the Capital Receipts Reserve

Transfer of sale proceeds credited as part of the gain/loss on 
disposal to the CIES (5,870) 0 (10,189) 0 16,059 0 0 0 0

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital 
expenditure 0 0 0 0 (14,701) 0 (14,701) 14,701 0

Contribution from the Capital Receipts Reserve towards 
administrative costs of non current asset disposals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Contribution from the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance the 
payments to the Government capital receipts pool 1,807 0 0 0 (1,807) 0 0 0 0

Unattached capital receipts (666) 0 (26) 0 692 0 0 0 0

Deferred Capital Receipts 0 0 0 0 63 0 63 (63) 0

Adjustment involving the Major Repairs Reserve

Use of the Major Repairs Reserve to finance new capital 
expenditure 0 0 0 (11,799) 0 0 (11,799) 11,799 0

Amount by which finance costs charged to the CIES are different 
from finance costs chargeable in the year in accordance with 
statutory requirements 101 0 79 0 0 0 180 (180) 0

Adjustment involving the Pensions Reserve

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or 
credited to the CIES 53,378 0 3,480 0 0 0 56,858 (56,858) 0

Employer's pensions contributions and direct payments to 
pensioners payable in the year (36,837) 0 (2,313) 0 0 0 (39,150) 39,150 0

Amount by which council tax credited to the CIES is different 
from council tax income calculated in accordance with statutory 
requirements 821 0 0 0 0 0 821 (821) 0

Amount by which amounts charged for Equal Pay claims to the 
CIES are different from the cost of settlements chargeable in the 
year in accordance with statutory requirements 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other adjustments include

Adjustments involving the Capital Grants Unapplied Account

Capital grants and contributions unapplied credited to CIES 
when receivable (20,648) 0 (27,841) 0 0 48,489 0 0 0

Depreciation of non-current asset revaluation gains 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Revaluation gains written out on disposal 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the CIES on 
an accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable in 
the year in accordance with statutory requirements 58 0 0 0 0 0 58 (58) 0

13,197 0 (59,893) 4,032 306 (1,164) (43,522) 43,522 0

Inclusion of items not debited or credited to the Comprehensive 

Adjustments involving the Accumulated Absences Account

ADJUSTMENTS BETWEEN ACCOUNTING BASIS AND FUNDING BASIS UNDER REGULATIONS

USABLE RESERVES
UNUSABLE 
RESERVES

Total Adjustments

2013/14

Adjustments involving the Unequal Pay Back Pay Adjustment 
Account

Adjustment between the Capital Adjustment Account and the 
Revaluation Reserve

Adjustments involving the Financial Instruments Adjustment 
Account

Adjustments involving the Collection Fund Adjustment Account

Transfers from General Fund (as directed by Secretary of State)

31



7

G
E

N
E

R
A

L 
F

U
N

D
   

   
 

B
A

LA
N

C
E

E
A

R
M

A
R

K
E

D
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L 

F
U

N
D

 R
E

S
E

R
V

E
S

*

H
O

U
S

IN
G

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E
 

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 B

A
LA

N
C

E

M
A

JO
R

 R
E

P
A

IR
S

   
   

   
   

 
R

E
S

E
R

V
E

C
A

P
IT

A
L 

R
E

C
E

IP
T

S
 

R
E

S
E

R
V

E

C
A

P
IT

A
L 

G
R

A
N

T
S

 
U

N
A

P
P

LI
E

D

T
O

T
A

L 
U

S
A

B
LE

   
   

R
E

S
E

R
V

E
S

T
O

T
A

L 
U

N
U

S
A

B
LE

 
R

E
S

E
R

V
E

S

T
O

T
A

L 
A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y
 

R
E

S
E

R
V

E
S

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Adjustments involving the Capital Adjustment Account

Reversal of items debited or credited to the Comprehensive I&E

Charges for depreciation and impairment of non current assets 20,695 0 0 15,754 0 0 36,449 (36,449) 0

Revaluation losses on PPE (charged to SDPS) 19,852 0 (21,350) 0 0 0 (1,498) 1,498 0

Movements on the market value of investment assets 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Amortisation of intangible assets 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Capital grants and contributions applied (76,849) 0 (4,442) 0 0 (40,982) (122,273) 122,273 0
Movement in the donated assets account 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 34,838 0 3,130 0 0 0 37,968 (37,968) 0
Amounts of non current assets written off on disposal or sale 
as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the CIES 1,147 0 1,122 0 0 0 2,269 (2,269) 0
Capital receipts from Secretary of State used to repay debt in 
accordance with the HRA Settlement Determination 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment (7,280) 0 0 0 0 0 (7,280) 7,280 0
Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund and 
HRA balances (192) 0 (3,465) 0 0 0 (3,657) 3,657 0

Adjustments involving the Capital Receipts Reserve
Transfer of sale proceeds credited as part of the gain/loss on 
disposal to the CIES (1,245) 0 (2,069) 0 3,314 0 0 0 0
Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital 
expenditure 0 0 0 0 (11,194) 0 (11,194) 11,194 0
Contribution from the Capital Receipts Reserve towards 
administrative costs of non current asset disposals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Contribution from the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance the 
payments to the Government capital receipts pool 944 0 0 0 (944) 0 0 0 0
Unattached capital receipts (368) 0 (1,444) 0 1,812 0 0 0 0
Deferred Capital Receipts 0 0 0 0 46 0 46 (46) 0

Adjustment involving the Major Repairs Reserve
Reversal of Major Repairs Allowance credited to the HRA 0 0 0 (11,375) 0 0 (11,375) 11,375 0
Use of the Major Repairs Reserve to finance new capital 
expenditure 0

0
103 0 (176) 0 0 0 (73) 73 0

Amount by which finance costs charged to the CIES are 
different from finance costs chargeable in the year in 
accordance with statutory requirements 

Adjustment involving the Pensions Reserve 38,959 0 1,156 0 0 0 40,115 (40,115) 0
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or 
credited to the CIES (32,177) 0 (2,214) 0 0 0 (34,391) 34,391 0
Employer's pensions contributions and direct payments to 
pensioners payable in the year 0

(1,564) 0 0 0 0 0 (1,564) 1,564 0
Amount by which council tax credited to the CIES is different 
from council tax income calculated in accordance with 
statutory requirements

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Amount by which amounts charged for Equal Pay claims to 
the CIES are different from the cost of settlements chargeable 
in the year in accordance with statutory requirements

Other adjustments include
Adjustments involving the Capital Grants Unapplied Account (32,469) 0 (14,058) 0 0 46,527 0 0 0

Capital grants and contributions unapplied credited to CIES when receivable

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Depreciation of non-current asset revaluation gains 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Revaluation gains written out on disposal 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

14 0 0 0 0 0 14 (14) 0

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the CIES on 
an accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable in 
the year in accordance with statutory requirements

(35,592) 0 (43,810) 4,379 (6,966) 5,545 (76,444) 76,444 0

Adjustments involving the Accumulated Absences Account

Total Adjustments

ADJUSTMENTS BETWEEN ACCOUNTING BASIS AND FUNDING BASIS UNDER REGULATIONS

2012/13

Inclusion of items not debited or credited to the Comprehensive 

Adjustments involving the Financial Instruments Adjustment 

Adjustments involving the Collection Fund Adjustment 
Account

Adjustments involving the Unequal Pay Back Pay 

Adjustment between the Capital Adjustment Account and the 

Transfers from General Fund (as directed by Secretary of 

USABLE RESERVES
UNUSABLE 
RESERVES

32



8

BALANCE AT 
1 APRIL 2012    

£'000

TRANSFERS 
OUT 2012/13    

£'000

TRANSFE-RS 
IN 2012/13     

£'000

BALANCE AT 31 
MARCH 2013      

£'000

TRANSFERS 
OUT 2013/14 

£'000

TRANSFERS IN 
2013/14£'000

BALANCE AT 
31 MARCH 

2014    £'000

GENERAL FUND
General Fund Reserve 26,380 0 11,680 38,060 0 26,929 64,989

EARMARKED RESERVES
Corporate

1 Improvement & Efficiency 11,496 (2,333) 249 9,412 (1,446) 4,527 12,493
2 Severance 4,000 0 3,000 7,000 0 4,000 11,000
3 Finance Systems 2,724 (624) 0 2,100 0 410 2,510
4 ICT Refresh 1,355 0 0 1,355 0 500 1,855
5 Olympic Legacy Schemes 1,879 (1,168) 0 711 (60) 0 651
6 Education Grant Reduction 4,000 (2,109) 678 2,569 (670) 194 2,093
7 Employment and other Corporate Initiatives 6,236 (1,198) 6,867 11,905 (5,656) 8,215 14,464
8 Other 1,941 (1,706) 1,900 2,135 (162) 1,491 3,464

Service Specific
9 Homelessness 2,924 (380) 480 3,024 (449) 0 2,575

10 Parking Control 2,596 (840) 0 1,756 (1,383) 540 913
11 Development & Renewal Other 2,804 (284) 681 3,201 (415) 79 2,865
12 Communities, Localities & Culture 667 (436) 858 1,089 (209) 336 1,216
13 Children, Schools & Families 503 (238) 907 1,172 (380) 803 1,595
14 Adults, Health & Wellbeing 5,534 (2,066) 1,825 5,293 (4,493) 0 800
15 Chief Executives & Resources 102 0 362 464 0 100 564

Revenue Reserves - Other
16 Insurance 24,087 (1,184) 205 23,108 (2,255) 58 20,911
17 Schools Balances 25,783 (787) 6,875 31,871 0 2,853 34,724
18 CSF - Early Intervention 4,184 (674) 1,459 4,969 (3,359) 706 2,316
19 Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 13,578 0 1,655 15,233 0 1,920 17,153
20 Housing Revenue Account - Future Housing Supply 1,000 0 0 1,000 0 0 1,000

Capital Reserves
21 Capital Programme (General Fund)          20,900 (3,168) 4,287 22,019 (751) 3,527 24,795

Earmarked Reserve Total 138,293 (19,195) 32,288 151,386 (21,688) 30,259 159,957
(21,260) 117,033 2,980 (5,006) 122,140

Total Usable Reserve Total 164,673 (19,195) 43,968 189,446 (21,688) 57,188 224,946

Corporate Reserves
1

2

3 & 4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11-15

16

17 Reserves held by schools under the scheme of delegation.

18 Reserve created from grant for early intervention schemes.

19

20

Capital Reserves
21

Reserve to mitigate the impact of reductions to education improvement grant funding.

Revenue Reserves - Other

A reserve to mitigate the impact of the increased cost of dealing with homelessness.

Reserve for employment, business support and corporate initiatives.

Other reserves for community based initiatives.

Reserve to finance highways and transport related improvements.

An earmarked HRA reserve to fund future housing projects.

Reserves to support the financing of the capital programme.

Reserves held for service specific initiatives.

TRANSFERS TO / FROM EARMARKED RESERVES 

This note sets out the amounts set aside from the General Fund and HRA balances in earmarked reserves to provide financing for future expenditure plans and the 
amounts posted back from earmarked reserves to meet General Fund and HRA expenditure in 2013/14

The Council is self insured for most liability and property risks below £1 million. The level of the reserve is reviewed annually and where appropriate an amount 
transferred to the Insurance Provision. 

Reserve created to support the delivery of the Council's savings programme.

Service Specific Reserves

The reserve balance on the ring-fenced Housing Revenue Account to be used for the provision of social housing in the Borough.

Reserve for potential severance / redundancy payments.

Reserve to support the planned investment  in a new finance system.

Reserve created from grant income to support initiatives related to the Olympics programme. 

33



9

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 Note £'000

Levies
261  - Lee Valley Regional Park Authority 235
177  - Environment Agency 171

1,313  - London Pensions Fund Authority 1,233
1,751 Total Levies 1,639

944 Payments to Housing Capital Receipts Pool 1,807
(1,044) Net (gain)/loss on disposal of non-current assets 11,447
(1,812) Unattached capital receipts (692)

(161) Total 14,201

10

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000

9,952 Interest payable and similar charges 13,186
17,050 Pensions interest cost and  expected return on pensions assets 23,137
(3,179) Interest receivable and similar income 15 (2,336)

(174) Surplus or deficit of trading operations 29 31
23,649 Total 34,018

11

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000
(81,994) Council Tax income (64,266)

(209,738) Non domestic rates (96,259)
(16,569) Non-ringfenced Government grants 37 (172,749)
(99,121) Capital grants and contributions 37 (69,663)

(407,422) Total (402,937)

Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure

Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income

Other Operating Expenditure

34



12

COUNCIL 
DWELLINGS

OTHER LAND 
AND 

BUILDINGS

VEHICLES, 
PLANT, 

FURNITURE & 
EQUIPMENT

INFRA-                
STRUCTURE 

ASSETS

COMMUNITY 
ASSETS

SURPLUS 
ASSETS

ASSETS UNDER 
CONSTRUCTION

TOTAL 
PROPERTY, 
PLANT AND 
EQUIPMENT

PFI ASSETS 
INCLUDED IN 
PROPERTY, 
PLANT AND 
EQUIPMENT

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost or Valuation

At 1 April 2013 856,007 929,231 22,629 138,660 49,381 16,537 4,206 2,016,651 250,283
Additions 48,260 47,247 785 5,315 296 0 0 101,903 27,282

Revaluation 
increases/(decreases) recognised 
in the Revaluation Reserve (14,223) 16,603 0 0 0 6,837 0 9,217 0
Revaluation 
Increases/(decreases) recognised 
in the Surplus/Deficit on the 
provision of services 21,748 (3,660) 0 0 0 1,214 0 19,302 0
Derecognition - Disposals (4,979) (19,780) 0 0 0 0 0 (24,759) (6,711)
Derecognition - Other 0 (515) 0 0 0 0 0 (515) 0
Assets Reclassified (to)/from Held 
for Sale 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other Reclassification of Assets
(900) 5,106 0 0 0 0 (4,206)

0
0

At 31 March 2014 905,913 974,232 23,414 143,975 49,677 24,588 0 2,121,799 270,854

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment
At 1 April 2013 152,722 55,856 17,380 35,466 0 1,402 0 262,826 830
Depreciation charge 14,234 19,360 1,726 3,510 0 604 0 39,434 6,258
Depreciation written out to the 
Revaluation Reserve (14,223) (3,099) 0 0 0 (1,647) 0 (18,969) 0
Derecognition - Disposals 0 (742) 0 0 0 0 0 (742) (366)
Derecognition - Other 0 (49) 0 0 0 0 0 (49) 0
Assets reclassified (to)/from Held 
for Sale 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other Reclassification of Assets 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
At 31 March 2014 152,733 71,326 19,106 38,976 0 359 0 282,500 6,722

Net Book Value
At  31 March 2014 753,180 902,906 4,308 104,999 49,677 24,229 0 1,839,299 264,132
At 31 March 2013 703,285 873,375 5,249 103,194 49,381 15,135 4,206 1,753,825 249,453

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

MOVEMENTS IN 2013/14

35



12

COUNCIL 
DWELLINGS

OTHER 
LAND AND 
BUILDINGS

VEHICLES, 
PLANT, 

FURNITURE & 
EQUIPMENT

INFRASTRUCTURE 
ASSETS

COMMUNITY 
ASSETS

SURPLU
S 

ASSETS

ASSETS UNDER 
CONSTRUCTION

TOTAL 
PROPERTY, 
PLANT AND 
EQUIPMENT

PFI ASSETS 
INCLUDED 
IN 
PROPERTY, 
PLANT AND 
EQUIPMENT

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost or Valuation

At 1 April 2012 812,418 1,119,403 22,280 132,608 50,122 10,439 1,385 2,148,655 314,787
Additions 35,914 65,621 349 6,052 563 0 2,821 111,320 39,812

Revaluation 
increases/(decreases) recognised 
in the Revaluation Reserve

(13,021) (227,441) 0 0 0 0 0

(240,462)

(104,316)
Revaluation 
Increases/(decreases) recognised 
in the Surplus/Deficit on the 
Provision of Services 21,350 (19,672) 0 0 0 0 0

1,678

0
Derecognition - Disposals (654) (203) 0 0 0 0 0 (857) 0
Derecognition - Other 0 (435) 0 0 0 0 0 (435) 0
Assets reclassified (to)/from Held 
for Sale 0 (3,248) 0 0 0 0 0

(3,248)
0

Other reclassification of assets 0 (4,794) 0 0 (1,304) 6,098 0 0 0
At 31 March 2014 856,007 929,231 22,629 138,660 49,381 16,537 4,206 2,016,651 250,283

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment
At 1 April 2012 151,520 99,132 14,841 32,111 0 546 0 298,150 24,609
Depreciation charge 14,223 16,323 2,539 3,355 0 206 0 36,646 4,234
Depreciation written out to the 
Revaluation Reserve (13,021) (58,982) 0 0 0 0 0

(72,003)
(28,013)

Impairment losses/(reversals) 
recognised in the Revaluation 
Reserve 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0
0

Impairment losses/(reversals) 
recognised in the Surplus/Deficit 
on the Provision of Services 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0

Derecognition - Disposals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Derecognition - Other 0 33 0 0 0 0 0 33 0
Assets reclassified (to)/from Held 
for Sale 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0
0

Other reclassification of assets 0 (650) 0 0 0 650 0 0 0
At 31 March 2013 152,722 55,856 17,380 35,466 0 1,402 0 262,826 830

Net Book Value
At 31st March 2013 703,285 873,375 5,249 103,194 49,381 15,135 4,206 1,753,825 249,453
At 1st April 2012 660,898 1,020,271 7,439 100,497 50,122 9,893 1,385 1,850,505 290,178

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

COMPARATIVE MOVEMENTS IN 
2012/13

36



12

Depreciation

Capital Commitments

Committed Costs to 2014/15 Contract
sum 31/3/2014 onwards End Date
£m £m £m

Stebon Primary School 4.985 1.322 3.663 31/01/2015
Woolmore Primary School 9.995 3.575 6.420 31/07/2015
Decent Homes Contract 105.334 29.899 75.436 31/07/2016
Building Schools for the Future ICT 23.671 16.993 6.678 31/01/2015

TOTAL 143.985 51.788 92.197

Revaluations

COUNCIL 
DWELLINGS

OTHER 
LAND AND 
BUILDINGS

VEHICLES, 
PLANT, 

FURNITURE & 
EQUIPMENT

INFRASTRUCT-
URE ASSETS

COMMUNITY 
ASSETS

SURPLUS 
ASSETS

ASSETS UNDER 
CONSTRUC-TION

TOTAL 
PROPERTY, 
PLANT AND 
EQUIPMENT

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Valued at historic cost -               -             4,308             104,999             49,677           -                 -                      158,984         
Valued at fair value in:

2013/14 753,180       69,057        -                -                     -                 24,229           -                      846,466         
2012/13 -               673,936      -                -                     -                 -                 -                      673,936         
2011/12 -               26,075        -                -                     -                 -                 -                      26,075           
2010/11 -               43,621        -                -                     -                 -                 -                      43,621           
2009/10 -               90,217        -                -                     -                 -                 -                      90,217           

Value at 31 March 2014 753,180 902,906 4,308 104,999 49,677 24,229 0 1,839,299

13
Balance at 
1st April 

2012 Advances
Income and 
Adjustments

Balance at 31st 
March 2013 Advances

Income and 
Adjustments

Balance at 31st 
March 2014

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Mortgages on Right to Buy properties 181 0 (53) 128 5 (72) 61
Sundry Loans 587 89 (132) 544 154 (169) 529

768 89 (185) 672 159 (241) 590

14

Balance at Expenditure Revenue Balance at
1st April 2013 2013/14 Charge 31st March 2014

2013/14
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Software licences 0 0 0 0

These are computer software licences which are treated as non-financial, non-current assets which do not have a substance but are controlled by and provide a future 
economic benefit to the Council. The cost of the licences is charged to revenue over the economic life of the licences, which is currently one year. 

LONG TERM DEBTORS

The Council accounts for its software as intangible assets, to the extent that the software is not an integral part of a particular IT system and accounted for as part of the 
hardware item of Property, Plant and Equipment.  The intangible assets include only purchased licenses, not internally generated software. For 2013/14 there are no 
intangible asset transactions as the provision of IT services has transferred to the Council's partner organisation.

The Council had contractually binding capital commitments, in respect of schemes costing in excess of £1 million, totalling £92.19 million at 31st March 2014 (£28.013 
million at 31st March 2013). 

The Council carries out a rolling programme that ensures that all Property, Plant and Equipment required to be measured at fair value is revalued at least every five
years. Valuations are as at 1st April in the year of valuation. A summary of total valuation per asset category is shown below. 

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The following useful lives and depreciation rates have been used in the calculation of depreciation:
- Council Dwellings – As a method of depreciation, the council has used the Major Repairs Allowance (MRA) to adjust the value of the housing stock to reflect the effects  
of use, deterioration and obsolescence. In 2013/14, the council compared the MRA figure to a depreciation figure calculated based on figures from a qualified valuer to 
ensure the depreciation charge to the HRA was adequate to finance the HRA’s long-term financial plan.
- Other Land and Buildings – As advised by qualified valuer
- Vehicles, Plant & Equipment - 5 years on a straight line basis                                                                                                                                                                                                
- Infrastructure assets - 40 years

ANALYSIS OF ROLLING REVALUATION 
PROGRAMME

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

In 2012/13, the housing stock was valued by DVS and the other assets were valued by Deloitte. Valuations of land and buildings were carried out in accordance with the
methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the professional standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. The valuation of council dwellings is in
accordance with guidelines produced by Communities and Local Government in the 'Stock Valuation for Resource Accounting: Guidance for Valuers 2010'.

37



15 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT NOTES

1

2

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings at amortised cost 89,564 88,892 2,090 1,046 91,654 89,938
Deferred Liabilities (PFI) 39,410 38,472 889 938 40,299 39,410

0 0 66,892 87,343 66,892 87,343
Total Liabilities 128,974 127,364 69,871 89,327 198,845 216,691
Financial Assets
Loans and receivables 0 0 146,336 185,636 146,336 185,636

0 0 14,019 25,348 14,019 25,348
Cash held at bank and cash equivalents 0 0 135,996 138,111 135,996 138,111
Total Financial Assets 0 0 296,351 349,095 296,351 349,095

NOTES

7. In addition to the above financial liabilities, the Council has contingent liabilities for  warranties provided to landlords.  Details are 
outlined in note 45 to the accounts. The Council has also provided an assurance that it will meet the pension liabilities of Tower 
Hamlets Homes in the event the ALMO is unable to fund the liabilities arising from its pension obligations.

Creditors - Financial Liabilities carried at contract 
amount

3. The Authority's investment portfolio consists of fixed term deposits, callable deposits, two collar deposits, two call accounts and 
money market funds. 

Current Total

1. Market loans (LOBOs) of £77.5 million have been included in long term borrowing.

Financial Instrument Categories

4. The terms of the collar deposits, referenced to 3 month LIBOR are: £5m from 10.01.2014 - 09.01.2017, with a floor of 1.74% and a 
cap of 2.50%; £5m from 20.03.2014 - 20.03.16, with a floor of 1.25% and a cap of 1.80%.

5. Balances in the money market funds and call accounts at 31 March 2014 are shown under 'cash and cash equivalent' in the balance 
sheet. Cash equivalents are highly liquid deposits which are readily convertible into cash at short notice. They include £107.567 million 
(£99.014 million as at 31st March 2013) of short-term deposits with banks and building societies excluded from loans and receivables.

2. Included in loans and receivables is £25m of deposits due to be settled within 1 and 3 years as at 31 March 2014.

Compliance

6. The above long term figures are based on paragraph B9, Module 7 of the 2013/14 code of practice guidance notes which states an 
instrument will be held for its full term unless the Council has a specified intention to repay/call in early or reliable experience of similar 
instruments being derecognised before the full term.

Local authorities are required to comply with the requirements of the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 
Kingdom, issued by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy / LASAAC Joint Committee.  This requires the 
disclosure of financial instruments at amortised cost and fair value.

These accounting standards have meant that most financial instruments (whether borrowing or investment) have to be valued on an 
amortised cost basis using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. 

In these disclosure notes, financial instruments are also required to be shown at fair value.  Fair value is defined as the amount for 
which an asset could be exchanged or a liability settled, assuming that the transaction was negotiated between parties knowledgeable 
about the market in which they are dealing and willing to buy/sell at an appropriate price, with no other motive in their negotiations 
other than to secure a fair price.

The Council has:

Adopted the CIPFA‘s Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice.

Set treasury management indicators to control key financial instrument risks in accordance with CIPFA’s Prudential Code .

Types of Financial Instruments

Amortised Cost

Fair Value

Long-Term

Debtors - financial assets carried at contract 
amounts

38



16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Gains and Losses on Financial Instruments

Financial 
Liabilities 

measured at 
amortised cost

Financial 
Assets Loans 

and 
receivables

Financial 
Liabilities 

measured at 
amortised cost

Financial Assets 
Loans and 
receivables

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Interest expense 9,952 0 13,186 0
Interest income 0 3,179 0 2,336
TOTAL INTEREST AND INVESTMENT INCOME 9,952 3,179 13,186 2,336

31 March 2013 31 March 2013 31 March 2014 31 March 2014
Carrying 
amount Fair value

Carrying 
amount Fair value

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
13,845 17,195 12,131 14,996

Lender's option, borrower's option loans 77,809 80,924 77,807 76,876
40,299 40,299 39,410 39,410
66,892 66,892 87,343 87,343

198,845 205,310 216,691 218,625

31 March 2013 31 March 2013 31 March 2014 31 March 2014
Carrying 
amount Fair value

Carrying 
amount Fair value

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Fixed term deposits with banks and building societies 146,213 147,008 185,629 185,807
Equity Shares (not quoted in an active market) 123 123 7 7

14,019 14,019 25,348 25,348
Cash held at Bank 36,982 36,982 30,544 30,544
Cash equivalents (deposits with banks and other financial institutions) 99,014 99,014 107,567 107,567

296,351 297,146 349,095 349,273

The fair value is higher than the carrying amount because the Council's portfolio of investments includes a number of fixed rate loans where the 
interest rate receivable is higher than the rates available for similar loans at the Balance Sheet date. 

Public Works Loans Board

The fair values are as follows:

The commitment to pay interest below current market rates reduces the amount that the Council would have to pay if the lender requested or 
agreed to early repayment of the loans. Fair value is more than the carrying amount because the Council’s portfolio of loans includes a number 
of fixed rate loans where the interest rate payable is higher than the rates available for similar loans at the Balance Sheet date. 

Fair Value of Liabilities Carried at Amortised Cost

Deferred liabilities - Private Finance Initiatives (PFI)

Fair Value of Assets Carried at Amortised Cost

Creditors - Financial Liabilities carried at contract amount

Debtors - financial assets carried at contract amounts

Financial Assets

Financial Liabilities

The gains and losses recognised in the Income and Expenditure Account in relation to financial instruments are made up as follows:

2012/13 2013/14

The fair value of an instrument is determined by calculating the Net Present Value (NPV) of future cash flows, which provides an estimate of the 
value of payments in the future in today's terms.

The discount rate used in the NPV calculation is the rate applicable in the market on the date of valuation for an instrument with the same 
structure, terms and remaining duration.  For debt, this will be the new borrowing rate since premature repayment rates include a margin which 
represents the lender's profit as a result of rescheduling the loan; this is not included in the fair value calculation since any  motivation other than 
securing a fair price should be ignored. The rates quoted in this valuation were obtained by the Council's treasury management consultants from 
the market on 31st March, using bid prices where applicable.

The fair value of each class of financial assets and liabilities which are carried in the balance sheet at amortised cost is disclosed below:

Methods and Assumptions in valuation technique

  • Fair values for all instruments in the portfolio have been calculated, but only those which are materially different from the carrying value are 
disclosed.

The calculations are made with the following assumptions:

  • The fair value of trade and other receivables is taken to be the invoiced or billed amount.

  • The PWLB liabilities have been calculated by reference to the "Premature Redemption" set of rates in force on the 31st March 2014.
  • For other market debt and investments the discount rate used is the rate available for an instrument with the same terms from a comparable 
lender.
  • Interpolation techniques have been used between available rates where the exact maturity period was not available.
  • No early repayment or impairment is recognised.

39



15 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

1. Credit Risk 

Amounts at 
31 March 

2013

Historical 
experience 
of default

Historical 
experience 

adjusted for market 
conditions as at 31 

March 2013

Estimated 
maximum 

exposure to 
default and non-

collection
£'000 % % £'000

Cash & cash equivalents deposits 81,994 0% 0% 0%
Money Market Funds 54,002 0% 0% 0%

1 - 3 months 0 0% 0% 0%
3 - 6 months 10,022 0% 0% 0%
6 - 12 months 95,714 0% 0% 0%
Over 12 months 40,477 0% 0% 0%
TOTAL 282,209 0% 0% 0%

Amounts at 
31 March 

2014

Historical 
experience 
of default

Historical 
experience 

adjusted for market 
conditions as at 31 

March 2014

Estimated 
maximum 

exposure to 
default and non-

collection
£'000 % % £'000

Cash & cash equivalents deposits 40,549 0% 0% 0%
Money Market Funds 97,562 0% 0% 0%

1 - 3 months 0 0% 0% 0%
3 - 6 months 25,056 0% 0% 0%
6 - 12 months 125,468 0% 0% 0%
Over 12 months 35,105 0% 0% 0%
TOTAL 323,740 0% 0% 0%

The Council does not generally allow credit for customers, such that £5.6 million of the £87.8 million balance (2012/13 - 
£1.375 million of the £47.7 million) is past its due date for payment, but not impaired. The past due amount can be 
analysed by age as follows: 

Nature and extent of risks arising from Financial Instruments 

Credit risk is the possibility that other parties may not pay amounts due to the Council. This risk arises from the short-term
lending of surplus funds to banks, building societies and other local authorities as well as credit exposures to the Council’s
customers. The Council invests primarily on the basis of prudence and then the level of returns. It is the policy of the
Council to place deposits only with a limited number of high quality banks and building societies whose credit rating is
independently assessed as sufficiently secure by the Council’s treasury advisers and to restrict lending to a prudent
maximum amount for each institution or those underwritten by the Government. The Council has a policy of limiting
deposits with institutions to a maximum of £10 million for financial institutions and £70 million for government backed
borrowing, in any one transaction. The authority's minimum credit rating criteria is as detailed in the Treasury Management
Strategy.

The following maturity profile summarises the Council’s potential maximum exposure to credit risk, based on past
experience and current market conditions. No credit limits were exceeded during the financial year and the Council
expects full repayment on the due date of deposits placed with its counterparties. 

No credit limits were exceeded during the reporting period and the Council does not expect any losses from non-
performance by any of its counterparties in relation to deposits and bonds.

The Council’s management of treasury risks actively works to minimise the Council’s exposure to the unpredictability of 
financial markets and to protect the financial resources available to fund services.  Risk management is carried out by a 
central treasury team under policies approved by the Council in the annual treasury management strategy report.  The 
Council has fully adopted and implemented CIPFA’s Code of Treasury Management Practices and has written principles 
for overall risk management as well as written policies and procedures covering specific areas such as credit risk, liquidity 
risk and market risk.  The treasury management team have also fully implemented the Government's national investment 
guidance.

Fixed term deposits with banks and other financial 
institutions:

Fixed term deposits with banks and other financial 
institutions:

40



15 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Credit Risk
31 March 

2013
31 March 

2014
£'000 £'000

Three to six months 476 1,307
Six months to one year 265 1,104
More than one year 634 3,178

TOTAL 1,375 5,589

2. Liquidity Risk

The maturity structure of financial liabilities is as follows (at nominal value):

Loans outstanding
31 March 

2013
31 March 

2014
£'000 £'000

13,845 12,131

77,809 77,807

PFI 40,299 39,410
TOTAL 131,953 129,348

2,979 1,984

1,609 2,032

7,444 8,626

17,757 17,886

102,164 98,820
TOTAL 131,953 129,348

3. Market Risk
Interest rate risk

The current interest rate risk for the Council is summarised below:

The Council has a number of strategies for managing interest rate risk. The policy is to keep variable rate borrowings
to a minimum. During periods of falling interest rates, and where economic circumstances make it favourable, fixed
rate loans will be repaid early to limit exposure to losses. 

Between 2 and 5 years

Between 5 and 10 years

More than 10 years

In the more than 10 years category, there are £77.5 million of Lender's Option, Borrower's Option (LOBO) market
loans, of which £17.5 million have call dates in the less than one year category. The Council uses money market funds
to provide liquidity.

• The fair value of fixed rate financial liabilities will rise if interest rates fall. This will not impact on the Balance Sheet
for the majority of liabilities held at amortised cost, but will impact on the disclosure note for fair value.

The Council is exposed to interest rate risk in two different ways - the uncertainty of interest paid/received on variable
rate instruments and the effect of fluctuations in interest rates on the fair value of an instrument.

• Decreases in interest rates will affect interest earned on variable rate investments, potentially reducing income
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account.

• Increases in interest rates will affect interest paid on variable rate borrowings, potentially increasing interest
expense charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account.

• The fair value of fixed rate financial assets will fall if interest rates rise. This will not impact on the Balance Sheet for
the majority of assets held at amortised cost, but will impact on the disclosure note for fair value. It would have a
negative effect on the Balance Sheet for those assets held at fair value in the Balance Sheet, which would also be
reflected in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Between 1 and 2 years

Nature and extent of risks arising from Financial Instruments (Continued)

Public Works Loans Board

Market debt

Less than 1 year

The Council has access to a facility to borrow from the Public Works Loans Board. As a result there is no significant
risk that the Council will be unable to raise finance to meets its commitments under financial instruments. The Council
has safeguards in place to ensure that a significant proportion of its borrowing does not mature for repayment at any
one time in the future to reduce the financial impact of re-borrowing at a time of unfavourable interest rates. The
Council’s policy is to ensure that not more than 20% of loans are due to mature within any financial year through a
combination of prudent planning of new loans taken out and, where it is economic to do so, making early repayments.

41



15 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000

Increase in interest payable on variable rate borrowings 707 706
Increase in interest receivable on variable rate investments (2,709) (4,140)

(2,002) (3,434)

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000

Decrease in fair value of fixed rate investments 1,027 861
Decrease in fair value of fixed rate borrowing liabilities 625 2,890

1,652 3,751
The impact of a 1% fall in interest rates would be as above but with the movements being reversed.

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000

London Mutual Insurance Limited 116 0
The Tower Hamlets Local Education Partnership 7 7
Total 123 7

16

2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Balance outstanding at start of year 19 20 498 370 517 390
Purchases 25 0 1,327 1,664 1,353 1,664
Recognised as an expense in the year (25) (6) (1,455) (309) (1,480) (315)

Balance outstanding at year-end 20 14 370 1,725 390 1,739
Note: consumable stores consists of pre-paid postage rechargeable to services. 

17

18

Nature and extent of risks arising from Financial Instruments (Continued)

TotalConsumable Stores Client Services 
Work in Progress

Impact on Income and Expenditure Account

The treasury management strategy assesses interest rate exposure - this feeds into the setting of the annual budget.

According to this assessment, at 31st March 2014, if interest rates had been 1% higher with all other variables held
constant, the financial effect would be :

Interest Rate Risk

Equity Shares (not quoted on an active market)

Paragraph 4.7.4.2(1) of the Code requires disclosure by class of assets of the amounts for impairment losses and 
impairment reversals charged to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services and to Other Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure. These disclosures are consolidated in note 12 reconciling the movement over the year in the 
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Asset balances. An impairment review was carried out by qualified 
valuers at 31st March 2014 and concluded that there was no significant impairment to report. 

The Council does not have any construction contracts (work in progress) where the construction work is undertaken for 
the Council's customers.

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

Impact on Income and Expenditure Account

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

INVENTORIES

Fair Value Movements

42



19 DEBTORS

31 March 2013 31 March 2014
£'000 £'000

Central government bodies               19,603               38,044 
Other local authorities 0 0
Other entities and individuals               47,782               87,851 
Payments in advance                 3,433                 2,241 

Total               70,818             128,136 

20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

31 March 2013 31 March 2014
£'000 £'000

Cash held by the Council 36,982 30,544
99,014 107,567

135,996 138,111

21 ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14
£000 £000 £000 £000

Value at 1st April 945 3,248 0 0
Assets newly classified as held for sale:

3,248 0 0 0
Assets sold (945) (3,023) 0 0
Value at 31st March 3,248 225 0 0

22 CREDITORS 31 March 2013 31 March 2014

£'000 £'000
Central government bodies 58,849 56,092
Other local authorities 2,342 10,105
Public corporations and trading funds 0 0
Other entities and individuals 19,976 41,047
Accruals* 57,528 76,949
Receipts in advance 10,998 15,359
Total 149,693 199,552

* 31st March 2013 accruals now shown separately from other entities & individuals creditor balance

  Property, Plant and Equipment

Short-term deposits with banks and building societies

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

The balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents is made up of the following elements:

As at the 31st March 2014, the Council has one property which is classified as Assets Held for Sale.  There  

Current Non Current

43



23 PROVISIONS

SHORT-TERM PROVISIONS
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

(a) Single Status 174 0 155 329 (155) 0 174
(b) ICT provision and other corporate provisions 0 0 0 0 0 772 772
(c) Adoption Fees 0 0 40 40 0 0 40
(d) Redundancy provisions 144 (27) 0 117 (117) 0 0
(e) Carbon Reduction provision 315 (315) 333 333 (333) 0 0
(f) Contract disputes 102 0 0 102 (102) 102 102
(g) Business rates appeals provision 0 0 0 0 0 8,250 8,250
(h) Inquest provision 859 (859) 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 1,594 (1,201) 528 921 (707) 9,124 9,338
Note - all short term provisions are due to be realised in the next financial year.

LONG-TERM PROVISIONS
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

(h) Inquest provision 241 (241) 0 0 0 0 0
(i) Insurance Fund 11,884 (690) 1,314 12,508 (4,112) 628 9,024
(j) Repayment of deposits 169 0 0 169 0 0 169

(k) Repayment of European funding 394 0 0 394 0 0 394
(l) Pension liability - part time staff 400 (400) 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 13,088 (1,331) 1,314 13,071 (4,112) 628 9,587

18,925
(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

(h)

(i)

(j)

(k)

(l)

There are a number of European funded schemes where there is a probability that grant will need to be repaid.  The potential for 
repayment will expire in 2017, ten years after the grant has been received. 

This pension provision was not required, therefore it has been transferred back to general fund reserves.

The provision is used to hold deposits received from contractors with approval for erecting temporary structures. On completion of the 
work, the deposits will be refunded to the contractors, less deductions for any liabilities incurred.  The refund of deposits will depend on the 
successful completion of contracts.

To cover a range of self-insured risks including personal accident cover for staff, motor car credit guarantee insurance and miscellaneous 
items of property. Amounts are transferred to the provision from the insurance reserve on an annual basis if a reliable estimate can be 
made of the likely settlement amount. The nature of insurance claims means it is not possible to accurately forecast when settlement of 
claims will take place.  The Council is active in risk management, identifying areas of particular risk and taking management steps with a 
view to reducing possible future claims and losses. There are no material risks which are not covered by either direct insurance or self 
insurance via the provision.

Provision for inquest contribution.  Provision removed as central Government have agreed costs of inquest no longer a Council liability. 

The above provisions exclude provision for an external audit inspection of the Council being undertaken by PricewaterhouseCoopers.  
This is an inspection of compliance under Part 1 of the Local Government Act in respect of governance, particularly in respect of the 
Authority's functions under Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 and as they relate to the Council's payment of grants and 
connected decisions; the transfer of property to third parties; spending and decisions on relation to publicity; and processes and practices 
relating to the entering of contracts.  

For additional costs resulting from the single status agreement which changed employees' conditions of service. 

ICT provision - Provision created to allow for increased usage of SAP licences between 2008 to 2012 and other corporate provisions.

Provision for contract disputes.

Provision created to cover the council's liability towards the Governments carbon reduction energy efficiency scheme.

Provision for the final payment to other authorities should particular children placed with potential adopters resident in other boroughs 
ultimately be legally adopted

Provision for redundancy settlements outstanding at 31st March 2013.

Council share of provision for NNDR business rates appeals.

Balance at 1 
April 2012

Balance at 31 
March 2014

Amounts 
used in 
2012/13

Contributions 
in 2012/13 Balance at 31 

March 2013

Contributions in 
2013/14

Amounts 
used in 
2013/14

Amounts 
used in 
2013/14

Contributions in 
2013/14 Balance at 31 

March 2014

Balance at 1 
April 2012

Amounts 
used in 
2012/13

Contributions 
in 2012/13 Balance at 31 

March 2013

44



24 USABLE RESERVES

25

31 March 2014
£'000

324,686 Revaluation Reserve 347,108

0 Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve 0

1,153,640 Capital Adjustment Account 1,226,255

1,032 Financial Instruments Adjustment Account 852

(522,962) Pensions Reserve (495,946)

1,588 Collection Fund Adjustment Account 767

(3,369) Accumulating Compensated Absences Adjustment Account (3,427)

110 Deferred Capital Receipts 47

 Total Unusable Reserves            1,075,656 

Revaluation Reserve

497,734 Balance at 1 April 324,686

30,670 Upward revaluation of assets 33,643

(199,129)
Downward revaluation of assets and impairment losses not charged to the 
Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services (957)

(168,459)
Surplus or deficit on revaluation of non-current assets not posted to the 
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services 32,686

(3,202) Difference between fair value depreciation and historical cost depreciation (3,595)

(1,387) Accumulated gains on assets sold or scrapped (6,668)

(4,589) Amount written off to the Capital Adjustment Account (10,263)

           324,686  Balance at 31 March               347,109 

Movements in the Council’s usable reserves are detailed in the Movement in Reserves Statement and note 7.

The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Council arising from increases in the value of its Property, Plant and 
Equipment. The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are:

• revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost
• used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation, or
• disposed of and the gains are realised.

The Reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the date that the Reserve was created. 
Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into the balance on the Capital Adjustment Account.

UNUSABLE RESERVES

31 March 2013
£'000

                  954,725 

2012/13
£'000

2013/14
£'000

45



25 UNUSABLE RESERVES

Capital Adjustment Account

2012/13
£'000
1,068,459 Balance at 1 April 1,153,639

Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or credited to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:

(36,449) Charges for depreciation and impairment of non current assets (39,236)

1,498 Revaluation losses (and reversals) on Property, Plant and Equipment 21,374

(37,968) Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute (31,004)

(2,269)
Amounts of non current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of the 
gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement

(27,507)

(75,188) (76,373)

4,589 Adjusting amounts written out of the Revaluation Reserve 10,263

(70,599)
Net written out amount of the cost of non current assets consumed in the 
year

(66,110)

Capital financing applied in the year:

11,194 Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure 14,701

11,375 Use of the Major Repairs Reserve to finance new capital expenditure 11,799

122,273
Application of grants and contributions to capital financing from the Capital 
Grants Unapplied Account

95,131

7,280
Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment charged against 
the General Fund and HRA balances

6,836

3,657 Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund and HRA balances 10,258

155,779 138,725

1,153,639 Balance at 31 March 1,226,254

£'000
2013/14

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting for 
the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assets 
under statutory provisions. The Account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as 
depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
(with reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve to convert fair value figures to a historical cost basis). The Account 
is credited with the amounts set aside by the Council as finance for the costs of acquisition, construction and 
enhancement.

The Account contains accumulated gains and losses on Investment Properties and gains recognised on donated assets 
that have yet to be consumed by the Council.

The Account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment before 1 April 2007, the date 
that the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains.

Note 7 provides details of the source of all the transactions posted to the Account, apart from those involving the 
Revaluation Reserve.

46



25 UNUSABLE RESERVES (continued)

Financial Instruments Adjustment Account

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000

959 Balan ce at 1 April 1,032

73

Amount by which finance costs charged to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement are different from finance costs chargeable in the year in 
accordance with statutory requirements (180)

1,032 Balance at 31 March 852

Pensions Reserve

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000

(422,546) Balan ce at 1 April (522,962)

(94,692) Actuarial gains or losses on pensions assets and liabilities 44,724

(40,115)
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited to the Surplus or 
Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement 

(56,858)

34,391
Employer’s pensions contributions and direct payments to pensioners payable in the 
year

39,150

(522,962) Balance at 31 March (495,946)

The Financial Instruments Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different 
arrangements for accounting for income and expenses relating to certain financial instruments and for bearing 
losses or benefiting from gains per statutory provisions. The Council uses the Account to manage premiums paid on 
the early redemption of loans. Premiums are debited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
when they are incurred, but reversed out of the General Fund Balance to the Account in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement. Over time, the expense is posted back to the General Fund Balance in accordance with statutory 
arrangements for spreading the burden on council tax. In the Council’s case, this period is the unexpired term that 
was outstanding on the loans when they were redeemed. As a result, the balance on the Account at 31 March 2014 
will be charged to the General Fund over the next 11 years.

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting for post 
employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory provisions. The Council accounts for post 
employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned by 
employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions 
and investment returns on any resources set aside to meet the costs. However, statutory arrangements require 
benefits earned to be financed as the Council makes employer’s contributions to pension funds or eventually pays 
any pensions for which it is directly responsible. The debit balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a 
substantial shortfall in the benefits earned by past and current employees and the resources the Council has set 
aside to meet them. The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will have been set aside by the time the 
benefits come to be paid.

47



25 UNUSABLE RESERVES

Collection Fund Adjustment Account

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000

24 Balance at 1 April 1,588         

1,564

Amount by which council tax income credited to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement is different from council tax income calculated for 
the year in accordance with statutory requirements (821)

1,588         Balance at 31 March 767            

Deferred Capital Receipts

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000

156 Balance at 1 April 110            
(46) Transfer to the Capital Receipts Reserve upon receipt of cash (62)
110            Balance at 31 March 48              

The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the recognition of council tax income
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as it falls due from council tax payers compared with the
statutory arrangements for paying across amounts to the General Fund from the Collection Fund.

The Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve holds the gains recognised on the disposal of non-current assets but for which
cash settlement has yet to take place. Under statutory arrangements, the Council does not treat these gains as usable
for financing new capital expenditure until they are backed by cash receipts. When the deferred cash settlement
eventually takes place, amounts are transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve.

48



26a NOTE A TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

£'000

104,175 Net Surplus or (Deficit) on the Provision of S ervices 82,195
Adjust net surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services for non cash movements

36,449 Depreciation 39,235

(1,678) Impairment and downward valuations (21,374)

175 Adjustments for effective interest rates (244)

(211) Increase/Decrease in Interest Creditors (969)

(3,985) Increase/Decrease in Creditors 38,160

268 Increase/Decrease in Interest and Dividend Debtors 1,225

718 Increase/Decrease in Debtors (57,651)

127 Increase/Decrease in Inventories (1,349)

5,724 Pension Liability 17,712

2,450 Contributions to/(from) Provisions 4,933

14 Provision for Equal Pay

2,269
Carrying amount of non-current assets sold (property, plant and equipment, investment 
property and intangible assets) 27,507

42,320 47,185

(127,818) Capital Grants credited to surplus or deficit on the provision of services (45,477)

(5,126)
Proceeds from the sale of property plant and equipment, investment property and intangible 
assets (16,750)

(132,944) (62,227)
13,551 Net cash flows from operating activities 67,153

26b CASH FLOW STATEMENT - OPERATING ACTIVITIES

The cash flows for operating activities include the following items:

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000

3,447 Interest received 3,688

(10,163) Interest paid (14,299)

(6,716) (10,611)

27 CASH FLOW STATEMENT - INVESTING ACTIVITIES

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000

(110,037) Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible assets (90,462)

(14,429) Purchase of short-term and long-term investments (39,300)

(89) Other payments for investing activities (159)

2,115
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible 
assets 16,122
Proceeds from shot-term and long-term investments

120,687 Other receipts from investing activities 49,654

(1,753) Net cash flows from investing activities (64,145)

28 CASH FLOW STATEMENT - FINANCING ACTIVITIES

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000

(793) Billing Authorities - Council Tax and NNDR adjustments 841

(791)
Cash payments for the reduction of the outstanding liabilities relating to finance leases and on-
balance sheet PFI contracts (845)

(944) Repayments of short- and long-term borrowing (889)

(2,528) Net cash flows from financing activities (893)

2013/14
£'000

Adjust for items included in the net surplus or defi cit on the provision of services that are 
investing or financing activities

2012/13

49



29 TRADING OPERATIONS

The following services are reported as trading activities in 2013/14:

Expenditure Income Surplus/ Expenditure Income Surplus/ Bal ance
        (Deficit)         (Deficit) 31/03/2014

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

2,152 2,326 174 2,419 2,388 (31) 210

2,152 2,326 174 2,419 2,388 (31) 210

30 AGENCY SERVICES

31 POOLED BUDGETS

ICES LDSA OTS
£'000 £'000 £'000

The Council 986 1,196 0

Barts and the London Trust health services 851 1,721 0

1,837 2,917 0

Expenditure 1,723 3,016 0

114 (99) 0

ICES LDSA OTS
£'000 £'000 £'000

The Council 930 1228 1806

Barts and the London Trust health services 841 1704 1805

1,771 2,932 3,611

Expenditure 1862 3105 3563

(91) (173) 48

32

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000

940 959

940 959

Allowances

Total

The Council has an agency agreement with the Thames Water Authority whereby the Council is responsible for collecting unmetered water
charges from council tenants. For this service the council receives a commission based on the total TWA bill chargeable for the year. In
2013/14 this commission amounted to £788,521 (£741,213 in 2012/13).

The purpose of these arrangements is to work collaboratively with health providers in the Borough, to deliver efficient, joined up health and 
social care services to residents.

A summary memorandum Income and Expenditure Account for each pooled budget is shown below. The Council's contribution to each pool is 
included in the Adult Social Care gross expenditure figure disclosed in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account.

The Council paid the following amounts to members of the council during the year.

Surplus/Deficit for the year

Surplus/(Deficit) for the year

MEMBERS' ALLOWANCES

(c) Occupational Therapy Service (OTS) - pooled budget arrangements ceased in 2012/13.

2012/13 2013/14

Income

2012/13

Income

2013/14

Under the terms of a Section 75 Agreement (National Health Service Act 2006), the Council entered into three Pooled Budget and Lead 
Commissioning agreements with the Primary Care Trust. The Council will manage and deliver statutory functions, alongside the Primary Care 
Trust, in respect of the following:

(a) Integrated Community Equipment Service (ICES)

(b) Services for Adults with Learning Difficulties (LDSA)

TOTAL TRADING ACCOUNTS

Street Trading

50



33

Salary, Fees 
and 

Allowances Expenses 

Compen-
sation for 
Loss of 
Office

Pension 
Contribu-

tion Other Total
£ £ £ £ £ £

Mr A Dalvi - Chief Executive (Interim) 1 115,007 0 0 3,884 0 118,891

Mr S Halsey - Head of Paid Service 2 30,638 0 0 4,760 0 35,398
Total Chief Executive / Head of Paid Service 145,645 0 0 8,644 0 154,289

Corporate Directors
 Children, Schools and Families 141,414 0 0 21,857 0 163,271

 Communities, Localities and Culture 3 120,700 0 0 18,925 1,645 141,270

 Resources 4 108,262 0 0 16,678 0 124,940

 Resources (Acting) 5 24,036 0 0 3,702 0 27,738

 Adults Health and Wellbeing 6 74,894 0 0 0 0 74,894

 Development and Renewal 7 119,155 0 0 18,406 0 137,561

 Development and Renewal (Acting) 8 16,792 0 0 2,586 0 19,378
Assistant Chief Executive (Legal) 124,186 0 0 19,135 0 143,321

875,084 0 0 109,933 1,645 986,662

Salary, Fees 
and 

Allowances Expenses

Compen-
sation for 
Loss of 
Office

Pension 
Contrib-

ution Other Total
£ £ £ £ £ £

Mr S Halsey - Head of Paid Service & Corporate Director CLC 160,915 0 0 25,004 0 185,919
Total Head of Paid Service 160,915 0 0 25,004 0 185,919

Corporate Directors
      Assistant Chief Executive (Legal Services) 1 85,260 0 0 9,948 0 95,208

Resources (Acting) 122,100 0 0 18,866 0 140,966
Development and Renewal 143,054 0 0 22,116 0 165,170

Education, Health and Wellbeing 2 74,000 0 0 11,449 0 85,449

Children, Schools & Families (Acting) 3 13,043 0 69,341 434 0 82,818

Education, Social Care & Wellbeing (Acting) 4 58,859 0 0 8,051 0 66,911
Other

Interim Monitoring Officer 6 22,295 0 0 3,523 0 25,818
Monitoring Officer 7 23,839 0 0 0 0 23,839

Public Health 5 89,786 0 0 12,570 0 102,356
793,151 0 69,341 111,962 0 974,454

1 Left 31/08/2013 
2 Commenced 01/10/2013
3 Left 07/04/2013 
4 Ceased as Corporate Director of ESCW on 30/09/13
5 Director transferred to the authority from NHS Primary Care Trust to form LBTH Public Health 01/04/2013
6 Commenced 18/09/2013, left 31/12/2013
7 Commenced 20/01/2014

2012/13 2013/14

Teaching 
Staff

Includes 
Teaching 
Redund-
ancies

Other      
Staff

Includes 
Other Staff 

Redund-
ancies Total Staff

Teaching 
Staff

Includes 
Teaching 
Redund-
ancies Other Staff

Includes 
Other Staff 

Redund-
ancies Total Staff

212 (2) 78 (3) 290 201 (2) 82 (2) 283
121 (2) 65 (3) 186 134 (3) 43 (3) 177
42 0 32 (3) 74 48 0 46 (1) 94
30 0 19 (1) 49 31 0 16 0 47
29 (2) 20 (1) 49 22 0 26 0 48
19 (1) 9 (3) 28 17 0 5 (1) 22
7 (1) 7 (2) 14 8 0 4 0 12
4 0 6 0 10 3 0 8 (1) 11
7 (2) 4 (2) 11 8 (1) 2 (1) 10
4 (1) 4 (1) 8 4 (1) 6 (1) 10
0 0 7 (1) 7 2 0 7 0 9
3 (1) 2 0 5 1 0 1 0 2
3 0 1 0 4 1 0 2 (1) 3
1 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1
0 0 2 (2) 2 1 0 0 0 1
1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0
2 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2
1 0 0 0 1 1 0 1 0 2
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 (1) 1

486 (12) 256 (22) 742 485 (7) 250 (12) 735

*2013/14 includes 12 higher paid staff that have transferred over from NHS PCT to form LBTH Public Health

The Council's other employees receiving more than £50,000 remuneration for the year (excluding employer's pension contribution) were paid the following 

 65,000   -   69,999

OFFICERS' REMUNERATION

 125,000 - 129,999

 70,000   -   74,999
 75,000   -   79,999
 80,000   -   84,999
 85,000   -   89,999
 90,000   -   94,999
 95,000   -   99,999
 100,000 - 104,999
 105,000 - 109,999
 110,000 - 114,999
 115,000 - 119,999

 170,000 - 174,999

 130,000 - 134,999
 135,000 - 139,999
 140,000 - 144,999

The remuneration paid to the Council’s senior employees is as follows:

2012/13

amounts:*

1 Ceased as Interim Chief Executive on 21/05/2012

8 Ceased as Acting Corporate Director, Development and Renewal on 21/05/2013

2013/14

7 From 22/05/2012 when Acting Chief Executive role ended.

2 Commenced as Head of Paid Service 23/01/2013
3 'Other' Includes additional payments for duties of Head of Paid Service.
4 Left Council 06/01/2013
5 Acting Corporate Director, Resources effective from 07/01/2013
6 Interim Post Holder left Council 28/09/2012.

 50,000   -   54,999
 55,000   -   59,999
 60,000   -   64,999

Remuneration band 
(£)

 120,000 - 124,999

51



2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14

12 8 35 28 47 36 317 414

20,001 - 40,000 3 0 8 6 11 6 275 753

40,001 - 60,000 2 0 9 26 11 26 560 530

60,001 - 80,000 1 0 11 12 12 12 815 613

80,001 - 100,000 0 0 1 9 1 9 81 284

100,001 - 150,000 0 0 2 3 2 3 220 726

150,001 - 200,000 0 0 1 0 1 0 160 0

200,001 - 250,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
18 8 67 84 85 92 2,429 3,320

34 CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND CAPITAL FINANCING

The following table shows how capital expenditure was financed in the year.

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000

Expenditure

111,320       101,903      

- -             

Heritage Assets 11                -             

37,968         31,004        

149,299       132,907      

Sources of Finance
Borrowing 800              1,018         

Capital Grants and Contributions 122,273       95,131        

Capital Receipts 11,194         14,701        

Major Repairs Reserve 11,375         11,799        

Direct Revenue Funding 3,657           10,258        

149,299       132,907      

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000

Opening Capital Financing Requirement 231,735 225,848
Capital investment

111,320 101,903

Heritage Assets 11 0

37,968 31,004

Sources of finance
(122,273) (95,131)

(11,194) (14,701)

(11,375) (11,799)

(3,657) (10,258)

(6,687) (6,146)

Closing Capital Financing Requirement 225,848 220,720

Explanation of movements in year

(5,887) (4,763)

0 (365)

Increase/(decrease) in Capital Financing Requirement (5,887) (5,128)

1 Capital Financing Requirement excludes PFI schemes

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute

TOTAL 

TOTAL 

Decrease in underlying need to borrow (supported by government financial assistance)

Decrease in underlying need to borrow (unsupported by government financial assistance)

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute

Intangible Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment

Major repairs reserve

Capital receipts

•          Minimum Revenue Provision1

•          Direct revenue contributions

Sums set aside from revenue:

Capital grants and contributions

Exit Payments

Total cost of exit 
packages in each band 

(£000)

The number of exit payments with total cost per band and total cost of the compulsory and other redundancies 
are set out in the table below:

0 - 20,000

Number of compulsory 
redundancies

Number of other 
departures agreed

Total number of exit 
packages by cost band

Total

The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below (including the value of assets acquired 
under finance leases and PFI contracts), together with the resources that have been used to finance it. Where capital 
expenditure is to be financed in future years by charges to revenue as assets are used by the Council, the expenditure results 
in an increase in the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), a measure of the capital expenditure incurred historically by the 
Council that has yet to be financed. The CFR is analysed in the second part of this note.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Intangible Assets

Exit Package cost band 
(£)

52



35

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000

277 291            

0 12              

0 0                

51 35              

20 26              
Total 348 365            

36

Notes DSG Receivable for 2012/13
Central 

Expenditure

Individual 
Schools 
Budget Total

£'000 £'000 £'000
A DSG for 2012/13 before Academy Recoupment 22,468 277,491 299,959

B Academy figure Re-recouped 2012/13 0 (7,657) (7,657)

C Total DSG after Academy Recoupment 2012/13 22,468 269,834 292,302

D Brought forward from 2011/12 5,915 0 5,915

E Agreed initial budgeted distribution in 2012/13 28,383 269,834 298,217

F In-year adjustments (523) 523 0

G Final budget distribution for 2012/13 27,860 270,357 298,217

H Less actual central expenditure (22,306) 0 (22,306)

I Less actual ISB deployed to schools 0 (270,357) (270,357)

J Plus Council contribution for 2012/13 0 0 0

K Carry forward to 2013/14 5,554                  0 5,554         

A

B Academy figure recouped 2012/13

C Total DSG after Academy recoupment 2012/13

D
E

F Changes to initial distribution in 2012/13

G Final distribution of DSG 2012/13

H

I

J

K

Notes DSG Receivable for 2013/14
Central 

Expenditure

Individual 
Schools 
Budget Total

£'000 £'000 £'000
A DSG for 2013/14 before Academy Recoupment 46,952 265,608 312,560

B Academy figure Recouped 2013/14 (12,330) (12,330)

C Total DSG after Academy Recoupment 2013/14 46,952 253,278 300,230

D Brought forward from 2012/13 5,554 0 5,554

E Carry forward to 2014/15 agreed in advance 0 0 0

F Agreed initial budgeted distribution in 2013/14 52,506 253,278 305,784

G In-year adjustments 428 0 428

H Final budget distribution for 2013/14 52,934 253,278 306,212

I Less actual central expenditure (45,355) 0 (45,355)

J Less actual ISB deployed to schools 0 (253,465) (253,465)

K Council contribution for 2013/14 0 0 0

L Carry forward to 2014/15 7,579                  (187) 7,392
A DSG figure as issued by DfE in July 2013

B

C Total DSG after Academy Recoupment 2013/14

D Figure brought forward from 2012/13

E

F

G 

H Budgeted distribution of DSG at year end.

I Actual amount of central expenditure items in 2013/14.

J

K

L

Contribution from the Council in 2013/14 which substituted for DSG in funding the Schools Budget

Difference between budgeted distributions and actuals plus carry forward agreed in advance.

EXTERNAL AUDIT COSTS

DEDICATED SCHOOLS GRANT

Actual amount of central expenditure items in 2012/13

Figure brought forward from 2011/12

The Council has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the Statement of Accounts, certification of grant claims and statutory 
inspections and to non-audit services provided by the Council’s external auditors - KPMG.

The Council's expenditure on schools is funded by grant monies provided by the Department for Children, Schools and Families, - the 
Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG). DSG is ring-fenced and can only be applied to meet expenditure properly included in the Schools Budget. The 
Schools Budget includes elements for a restricted range of services provided on an authority-wide basis and for the Individual Schools Budget, 
which is divided into a budget share for each school. Over and underspends on the two elements are required to be accounted for separately.  

DSG figure as issued by DfE on 30th June 2012

Fees payable to appointed external auditor with regard to external audit services carried out by the 
appointed auditor for the year*

Fees payable to appointed external auditor  for the certification of grant claims and returns for the year

Fees payable in respect of other services provided by external auditors during the year

Fees payable to appointed external auditor in respect of statutory inspections

Academy figure Recouped 2013-14

Difference between budgeted distributions and actuals plus carry forward agreed in advance.

Contribution from the Council in 2012/13 which substituted for DSG in funding the Schools Budget.

The fees payable to the external auditors for other services comprise of an IT audit fee - £14.5k, Member & Public inquires - £14.3k (2013/14), 
Subscription to the VAT Forum - £5k, and an apportionment of fees relating to provision of VAT advice £6.5k. 

The Audit Commission has paid a rebate of £38k to reflect attaining internal efficiency savings in 2013/14.  This has not been included in the 
table above but has the effect of reducing the overall cost to the Council.

Budgeted distribution of DSG, adjusted for carry forward, as agreed with the schools forum.

In addition to the above, there were Member & Public Inquiries fees of £11.8k for 2012/13.

The above table does not include provision for an external inspection being conducted by PricewaterhouseCoopers.

Amount of ISB distributed to schools.

Amount of ISB distributed to schools.

Changes to Initial distribution in 2013/14

Budgeted distribution of DSG, adjusted for carry forward, as agreed with the schools forum.

The amount which the Council decided after consultation with the schools forum to carry forward to 2014-15 rather than distribute in 
2013/14

Addition fees payable to external Audit for inquiries relating to 2012/13 invoiced in 2013/14

53



37 GRANT INCOME

2012/13 2013/14

£'000 £'000

Non-Ringfenced Government Grants
Business Rate Related Grants 0 (4,981)
Council Tax Freeze Grant (3,972) (846)
Council Tax Related Grants 0 (788)
Education Services Grant 0 (1,889)
High Street Innovation Fund (100) 0
Local Service Support Grant (282) (135)
New Homes Bonus (10,110) (16,896)
Revenue Support Grant (Formula Grant) (2,105) (146,442)
RSG Capitalisation 0 (772)

Total Non-Ringfenced Government Grants (16,569) (172,749)

Capital Grants and Contributions
Non-conditional grants:

Schools-funded Capital Programme (4,439) (2,402)
Transport for London Funding (2,880) (2,781)
Contributions from schools towards BSF (2,083) (791)
Major Works Contributions (cash received) (2,506) (2,716)
Capital Maintenance Grant (3,633) (3,554)
Basic Needs/New Pupil Places (12,652) (8,181)
Decent Homes Backlog Funding (11,000) (25,000)
2-Year Olds Entitlement (1,207) 0
Contribution relating to George Green Alms houses (1,219) 0
Other Non-Conditional Grants Received (2,407) (1,543)

Conditional grants:

Building Schools for the Future (46,194) (19,179)
Watney Market Idea Store Lottery Grant (1,613) 0
HCA National Affordable Housing Programme (1,635) 0
Building Britain's Future Grant (98) 0
Other Conditional Grants Applied (144) (147)

Developers' Contributions (5,411) (3,369)
Total Capital Grants and Contributions (99,121) (69,663)

Credited to Services

Capital Grants funding REFCUS (27,844) (19,933)
Developers' Contributions (capital)  funding REFCUS (852) (4,370)
Developers' Contributions (revenue) (1,483) (1,249)
PFI Credits (8,741) (8,124)
School Sixth Form Grant (15,789) (16,619)
Early Intervention Grant (21,300) 0
Pupil Premium Grant (14,002) (20,658)
Public Health Grant 0 (31,382)
Other Revenue Grants (11,130) (20,372)

Total Credited to Services (101,141) (122,707)

Total Grant Income in Comprehensive Income & Expendi ture Account (216,831) (365,119)

31st March 
2013

31st March 
2014

£'000 £'000
Capital Grants Receipts in Advance

Developers' Contributions 38,917 45,454
Building Schools for the Future 3,440 71
Major Works Invoices 9,638 8,546
National Affordable Housing Programme 6,265 6,265
Energy Efficiency Programme (DECC) 2,254 2,254
Targeted basic need programme 0 1,179
Other capital grants and contributions 827 706

Total 61,341 64,475

The Council credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement in 2013/14:

Credited to Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income

The Council has received a number of grants, contributions and donations that have yet to be recognised as
income as they have conditions attached to them that will require the monies or property to be returned to the
giver. The balances at the year-end are as follows:

54



38 RELATED PARTIES

Central Government

Partnerships

NDC (New Deal for the Community)
PCT (Primary Care Trust)

Pension Fund

Subsidiary

Membership of and relationship with other organisations

Organisations Councillor Relationship With Organisation

Payments 
by the 

Council over 
£10k 

2012/13

Payments 
by the 

Council 
over £10k 
2013/14

Amounts 
due to 
Orgs. > 
£10k at 
31/03/14

£'000 £'000 £'000
Action for Bow M Francis Council Representative

Aldgate and Allhallows Barking Foundation S Islam Council Representative

D Jones Council Representative

Balagonji Educational Trust S Ali Council Representative

Bengali Educational Society S Islam Treasurer

Bethnal Green Museum of Childhood D Jones Council Representative

Bishop Challoner Catholic Collegiate School A Asad Member

Bromley By Bow Centre H Uddin Employee 282 496 90

Citizens Advice Bureau C Gibbs Person in household board member in a private capacity 240

A Whitelock Trustee

Collingwood Tenants And Residents Association R MA Saunders Husband - Chris Weavers, is a Member of both

Cultural Industries Development Agency D Jones Council Representative

Developmental Council of Bangladeshi's in the UK K U Ahmed Joint Treasurer

Deaf Root M Uz-Zaman Board Member

Durga Pash Union Parishod M Uz-Zaman Member

Eastside Books Ltd D Jones Director of bookshop that supplies books to LBTH schools

East End Homes H Uddin Board Member 947 239 107

M Uz-Zaman Board Member

GMB AMO Ahmed Council Representative 87 95 26

K U Ahmed Member

Gohorpur Madrasha Bazar Unnoyon Shomiti S Ali Council Representative

Golapgonj Education Trust AMO Ahmed Trustee

A Khan Council Representative

Hamlet Supplementary Learning M Uz-Zaman Member

Heritage of London Trust D Jones Council Representative

Island Football Club M Miah Chair of Island FC which is a project of Island Neighbourhood

Island Homes Housing Association M Miah Resident Board Member - receives a monthly allowance

Island Neighbourhood Project M Miah Community Development Worker - Employee

Isle of Dogs Community Foundation D J Edgar Council Representative 224

T J Archer Trustee

Jagonari L Pavitt Council Representative 3,142

John Scurr Primary School S Islam Governor

Kobi Nazrul Centre Z Rahman Board Member 

Leaside Regeneration Ltd D J Edgar Council Representative 18

Lee Valley Regeneration & Planning Committee D Jones Council Representative

S Ali Deputy Member

London Canals Committee P Golds Council Representative

London Youth Games L Pavitt Council Representative 18

Moat Homes Ltd C Harper-Penman Director of Communications and Public Affairs

Norton Folgate Alms Houses R MA Saunders Husband is Board Member

Ocean Regeneration Trust R U Ahmed Cabinet member

Oxford House In Bethnal Green S Islam Board Member 25

Old Ford Housing Association M Francis Board Director 161 63 48

Poplar Harca H Uddin Employer has a Working Relationship with this Organisation 1,231 1,155 332

Rich Mix Cultural Foundation R MA Saunders Council Representative

D Jones Director

Solander Gardens Community & Education H Miah Secretary

Shadwell Basin Outdoor Activity Centre D Jones Board Member

Smithy Street Primary School A Khan School Governor

Spitalfields Housing Association Ltd M Mukit Board Member

Spitalfields Market Trust H U Abbas Council Representative 289

St Katherine and Shadwell Trust S Haque Deputy Member

D Jones Council Rep Ceased in Oct 2013

St Pauls Way School Trust R MA Saunders Council Representative

St Lukes C of E Primary School T J Archer School Governor

St Matthias Primary School M Mukit School Governor

Sylhet Divisional Welfare Council K U Ahmed General Secretary

The London Thames Gateway K Uddin Council Representative (organisation disbanded in 2012/13)

Tower Hamlets Community Housing K Ahmed Board Member 152 150 67

R Khan Board Member

G Robanni Council Representative

Tower Hamlets Council Of Mosques A Ullah Executive Committee Member

Tower Hamlets FE Trust L Pavitt Council Representative

Tower Hamlets Homes A Choudhury Council Representative 12,535 13,318 1,199

K Ahmed Vice Chair

G Robanni Council Representative

Tower Hamlets Sports Council K Ahmed Council Representative (not 2012/13)

Z E Davis Council Representative

L Pavitt Council Representative

Tower Project A T Jackson Attends Board and Family member contracts with organisation

Trinity Buoy Wharf D Jones Director

Wapping Bangladeshi Association A Ullah Council Representative

Whitechapel Art Gallery D Jones Council Representative

Wiltons Music Hall D Jones Trustee

The Council has partnership arrangements with the following organisations:

The Council oversees the administration of the pension fund.  The Pension Fund can borrow from the Council.  The Pension Fund accounts are presented on later pages to this 
Statement.

Where a Member has involvement with an external organisation, the Council discloses details of the relationship.  In addition, if the Council makes material payments to the organisation, 
then details of amounts over £10,000 are disclosed.

Tower Hamlets Homes is a wholly owned subsidiary of London Borough of Tower Hamlets.  Details of Tower Hamlets Homes are within note 47.

The Council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties – bodies or individuals that have the potential to control or influence the council or to be controlled or 
influenced by the council. Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which the council might have been constrained in its ability to operate independently or 
might have secured the ability to limit another party’s ability to bargain freely with the Council.

Central government has effective control over the general operations of the Council– it is responsible for providing the statutory framework within which the council operates, provides 
the majority of its funding in the form of grants and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that the Council has with other parties (e.g. council tax bills, housing benefits). Grants 
received from government departments are set out in the subjective analysis in Note 44 on reporting for resources allocation decisions. Grant receipts outstanding at 31 March 2014 are 
within the creditors note.

55



39 LEASES

Authority as Lessee

Finance Leases

As a Lessee the Council has no material finance lease to report.

Operating Leases

 The future minimum lease payments due under these leases in future years are:

Leased In Assets

Land & 
Buildings

Vehicles 
Plant & 

Equipment

Land & 
Buildings

Vehicles 
Plant & 

Equipment
31 March 

2013
31 March 

2013
31 March 

2014
31 March 

2014
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

164 0 164 0
654 0 654            0

2,156 0 1,992         0

240 762 240 337
569 464 421 265
708 0 634 6

0 643 0 654
0 1,931 0 1,775
0 952 0 651

3,698 6 2,896 6
11,579 0 11,579 0
7,818 0 7,818 0

4,102 1,411 3,300 997
12,802 2,395 12,654 2,040
10,682 952 10,444 657
27,586       4,758           26,398       3,694         

The Council leases in some properties (including office accommodation, car parks and business units),  and  as 
well as a number of vehicles (including minibuses and vans), plant and equipment (including office equipment, 
specialised health and safety and security equipment). These leases are for variable lengths and range between 1 
and 25 years in duration.

Later than five years

Total
Not later than one year

Later than five years

Development and Renewal
Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years

Later than one year and not later than five years

Later than five years

Later than one year and not later than five years
Later than five years

Later than one year and not later than five years

Adults Health and Wellbeing
Not later than one year

Children Schools and Families
Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years
Later than five years

Communities Localities and Culture
Not later than one year

56



39 LEASES (continued)

Land & 
Buildings

Vehicles 
Plant & 

Equipment

Land & 
Buildings

Vehicles 
Plant & 

Equipment
31st March 

2013
31st March 

2013
31st March 

2014
31st March 

2014
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

164 0 164 0

0 777               0 809               

250              1,555            250 957               

6,384           12                 2,896            6                   

6,798           2,344            3,310 1,772

Authority as Lessor
Finance Leases
As a Lessor the Council has no finance leases to report .

Operating Leases

31st March 
2013

31st March 
2014

£'000 £'000
(3,327) (3,262)

(11,594) (10,939)
(19,471) (17,262)
(34,392) (31,463)

The expenditure charged to the Services line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement during the 
year in relation to these leases was:

The Council leases out property and equipment under operating leases for economic development purposes to 
provide suitable affordable accommodation for local businesses.  

Adults Health and Wellbeing
Minimum Lease Payments

Communities Localities and Culture

Development and Renewal
Minimum Lease Payments

Minimum Lease Payments

Children Schools and Families
Minimum Lease Payments

Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years

Total
Minimum Lease Payments

Later than five years

The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable leases in future years are: 

As the primary purpose of holding these assets is to provide support to the community, rather than generating financial 
gain for the Council, these assets are not considered as investment properties.

57



40

Mulberry Grouped Barkantine
School Schools Energy Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Asset value at 31 March 2013 31,989 214,562 2,902 249,453
Depreciation (756) (5,298) (203) (6,257)
Revaluations 0 0 0 0
Enhancements 14 27,268 0 27,282
Derecognition 0 (6,345) 0 (6,345)

Asset value at 31 March 2014 31,247 230,187 2,699 264,133

Mulberry Group Barkantine
School Schools Energy Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Liabilities at 31 March 2013 6,935 30,597 2,767 40,299
Repayments (220) (471) (198) (889)

Liabilities at 31 March 2014 6,715 30,126 2,569 39,410

Consisting of:
Long term liability 6,478 29,622 2,372 38,472
Short-term liability 237 503 198 938

6,715 30,125 2,570 39,410

Mulberry Group Barkantine
School Schools Energy Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Liability
Within 1 year 237 503 198 938
Within 2 - 5 years 1,213 3,054 791 5,058
Within 6 - 10 years 1,955 10,864 988 13,807
Within 11 - 15 years 3,310 15,704 593 19,607

6,715 30,125 2,570 39,410

Interest

Within 1 year 754 4,740 0 5,494

Within 2 - 5 years 2,719 18,049 0 20,768

Within 6 - 10 years 2,558 18,194 0 20,752

Within 11 - 15 years 1,148 5,972 0 7,120

7,179 46,955 0 54,134

Service Charges

Within 1 year 673 4,415 0 5,088

Within 2 - 5 years 2,694 9,920 0 12,614

Within 6 - 10 years 3,367 13,787 0 17,154

Within 11 - 15 years 3,367 10,445 0 13,812

10,101 38,567 0 48,668

Payments due under PFI schemes

Liability value at 31 March 2014

A third PFI contract was entered into in relation to the Barkantine Estate Combined Heat and Power scheme. 
There are no unitary payments made under this scheme as it is classed as a user pay arrangement. An asset was 
brought onto the balance sheet in 2010/11, matched by a deferred income balance and contract ends in 2026.

PRIVATE FINANCE INITIATIVES AND SIMILAR CONTRACTS
The Council is party to two Private Finance Initiative (PFI) schemes in respect of the design, construction,
maintenance and servicing of 28 schools - the Mulberry and Group Schools schemes - until the years 2029 and
2027 respectively. Prior to 2010/11 the assets involved were treated as "off balance sheet" in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards the assets are included on the Council's Balance Sheet, matched by a
finance lease liability.

Movement on PFI Assets

Movement on PFI Liabilities

58



41 PENSIONS SCHEMES - DEFINED BENEFIT

Participation in pensions schemes

- The Local Government Pension Scheme, administered by the London Pensions Fund Authority 

Transactions Relating to Retirement Benefits

2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

22,218 32,829 341 397 22,559 33,226
506 495 0 0 506 495

22,724 33,324 341 397 23,065 33,721
(36,126) (38,328) 0 (1,670) (36,126) (39,998)

Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 55,574 60,790 2,657 2,345 58,231 63,135
19,448 22,462 2,657 675 22,105 23,137

42,172 55,786 2,998 1,072 45,170 56,858
 

Changes in demographic assumptions 0 (5,312) 0 671 0 (4,641)
Changes in financial assumptions 145,965 7,868 7,697 (3,579) 153,662 4,289
Other experience (2,100) (32,938) 419 (826) (1,681) (33,764)
Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in net interest (60,879) (467) 0 0 (60,879) (467)

82,986 (30,849) 8,116 (3,734) 91,102 (34,583)

(42,172) (55,786) (2,998) (1,072) (45,170) (56,858)

33,582 38,357 809 793 34,391 39,150

The TPS is an unfunded defined benefit final salary scheme meaning that there are no investment assets built up to meet the pensions liabilities, and
cash has to be generated to meet pensions payments as they eventually fall due. It does, however, use a notional fund as the basis for calculating the
employers' contribution rate paid by local education authorities (LEAs) of which the Council is one. It is not possible for the Council to identify a share of
the underlying liabilities in the scheme attributable to its own employees and it is therefore accounted for on the same basis as a defined contribution
scheme. This means that contributions are included on the basis of the actual amount paid into the scheme. 

The cost of LGPS retirement benefits is recognised in the Net Cost of Services when the benefits are earned by employees rather than when the benefits
are eventually paid as pensions. However, the charge required to be made against Council Tax is based on the cash payable in the year. The real cost of
retirement benefits is therefore reversed out in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the General Fund Balance. The following transactions have
been made in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account and Movement in Reserves Statement during the year:

The Council LPFA Total

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account
Cost of Services

39 members of staff were transferred from the Primary Care Trust. During 2013/14, the pension contributions to the National Health pension scheme
were £0.219 million.

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its employees, the Council offers retirement benefits. Although these benefits will not be payable
until employees retire, the Council has a commitment to make the payments which needs to be disclosed at the time the employees earn their future
entitlement.

The Council participates in three pensions schemes:

- The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) administered by the Council

- The Teachers’ Pension Scheme (TPS), administered by Capita Teachers’ Pensions on behalf of the Department for Children, Schools and     

Families (DCSF).

The LGP schemes are funded defined benefit final salary schemes, meaning that the Council and employees pay contributions into a fund, calculated at
a level intended to balance the pensions liabilities with investment assets.

Total Net Interest
Net Charge to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Account

Remeasurement of the Scheme Liabilities

Current service costs
Impact of settlements and curtailments
Total Service Cost
Interest income on plan assets

Total remeasurements recognised in Comprehensive Inco me and 
Expenditure Statement

Movement in Reserves Statement  - General Fund Balance
Reversal of net charges made for retirement benefits in accordance with IAS 
19

In addition to the recognised gains and losses included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account, actuarial gains of £ 47.143 million
(£95.878 million in 2012/13) were included in the Actuarial gains or losses on pension assets and liabilities within Other Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account. The cumulative amount of actuarial losses recognised is £380.304
million. 

Actual amount charged against the 
General Fund Balance for pensions in the year

In 2013/14 the Council paid £11.139 million into the Teachers Pension Scheme, representing 14.1% of pensionable pay. The figures for 2012/13 were
£14.202 million and 14.1% respectively. In addition, the Council is responsible for all pension payments and annual increases in respect of added years it
has awarded.  In 2013/14 no payment was made (£0.122 million in 2012/13).

59



41 PENSION SCHEME  (continued)

Assets and Liabilities in Relation to Retirement Benefits

2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

1st April (1,214,784) (1,453,831) (59,245) (67,336) (1,274,029) (1,521,167)

In-year adjustment to exclude/(incorporate) THH deficit (49,196) (19,959) 0 0 (49,196) (19,959)
Current service cost (22,218) (32,829) (341) (397) (22,559) (33,226)
Interest cost (55,574) (60,790) (2,657) (2,345) (58,231) (63,135)
Contributions (7,537) (8,858) (85) (79) (7,622) (8,937)
Actuarial gains / (losses) (143,865) 30,382 (8,116) 3,734 (151,981) 34,116
Benefits paid 39,849 43,280 3,108 4,472 42,957 47,752
Losses on curtailments (506) (495) 0 0 (506) (495)0
31st March (1,453,831) (1,503,100) (67,336) (61,951) (1,521,167) (1,565,051)

Reconciliation of fair value of the scheme assets (LGPS):

2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

1st April 803,077 947,684 48,405 50,521 851,482 998,205
In-year adjustment to exclude/(incorporate) THH deficit 46,332 22,537 0 0 46,332 22,537
Expected rate of return 39,137 38,328 2,044 1,670 41,181 39,998
Actuarial (losses) / gains 57,868 467 2,286 7,563 60,154 8,030
   Members 7,537 8,858 85 79 7,622 8,937
   Employer 33,582 38,357 809 793 34,391 39,150
Benefits paid (39,849) (43,280) (3,108) (4,472) (42,957) (47,752)
31st March 947,684 1,012,951 50,521 56,154 998,205 1,069,105

Scheme history

2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Present value of liabilities:

   The Council (1,457,968) (1,042,983) (1,214,784) (1,453,831) (1,503,100)
   LPFA (67,502) (54,168) (59,245) (67,336) (61,951)
Fair value of assets

   The Council 796,161 740,326 803,077 947,684 1,012,951

   LPFA 39,386 48,135 48,405 50,521 56,154

Deficit in the scheme
   The Council (661,807) (302,657) (411,707) (506,147) (490,149)

   LPFA (28,116) (6,033) (10,840) (16,815) (5,797)

(689,923) (308,690) (422,547) (522,962) (495,946)

The contributions expected to be made by the Council in the year to 31st March 2015 are £39.810 million to the Council's scheme and £0.526 million
to the LPFA scheme (per actuary's reports).

The expected return on scheme assets is determined by considering the expected returns available on the assets underlying the current investment
policy. Expected yields on fixed interest investments are based on gross redemption yields as at the balance sheet date. Expected returns on equity
investments reflect long-term real rates of return experienced in the respective markets.

Total deficit in the schemes

LPFA Total

The liabilities show the underlying commitments that the Council has in the long run to pay retirement benefits. Whilst the total deficit in the schemes of
£495.95 million has a significant impact on the net worth of the Council as recorded in the balance sheet, statutory arrangements for funding the deficit
mean that the financial position of the Council remains healthy - the deficit will be made good by increased contributions over the remaining working life
of employees, as assessed by the schemes' actuary.

LPFA TotalThe Council

The Council

Reconciliation of present value of scheme liabilities (LGPS):

60



41 PENSION SCHEME (continued)

Basis for estimating assets and liabilities

2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14

Long-term expected rate of return on assets in the scheme 1 4.5% 4.3% 4.3% 4.0%

Mortality assumptions:

Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:

   Men 21.8 years 22.2 years 20 years 21 years

   Women 23.9 years 24.2 years 23.3 years 24.4 years

Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:

   Men 23.3 years 24.3 years 22.1 years 23.4 years

   Women 26.5 years 26.4 years 25.2 years 26.6 years

Rate of inflation 3.2% 3.4%

Rate of increase in salaries 5.1% 4.1% 4.1% 4.4%

Rate of increase in pensions 2.8% 2.8% 2.4% 2.6%

Rate for discounting scheme liabilities 4.5% 4.3% 3.6% 4.2%

50%* 50%

1 The expected rates of return are set equal to the discount rate (as per the forthcoming revised version of IAS19).
* Pre-April 2008 service - 75% for post-April 2008 service

Major categories of assets as a proportion of total assets

The major categories of assets are as follows.

2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14
Equities 68% 65% 14% 53%
Bonds 21% 15% 0% 0%

Property 10% 10% 0% 3%

Infrastructure 0% 0% 0% 4%

Commodities 0% 0% 0% 1%

Cash 1% 1% 1% 3%

Cash flow matching 0% 0% 31% 6%

Target return portfolio/other 0% 9% 54% 30%

History of experience gains and losses

2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14
% % % % %

The Council

19.57 -8.88 -5.40 6.10 0.05

0.00 -16.98 5.98 9.89 -2.20

London Pensions Fund Authority

6.79 17.75 -0.01 4.52 13.47

-0.78 -1.58 8.19 12.05 -5.45

The Council LPFA

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method - an estimate of the pensions that will be payable in 
future years dependent on assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels etc. Both (Hymans Robertson LLP provide LBTH - Barnett 
Waddingham provide LPFA report) schemes have been assessed by Hymans Robertson, an independent firm of actuaries, based on the 
following main assumptions.

Take-up of option to convert annual pension into retirement lump sum

Experience gains and (losses) on assets

Experience gains and (losses) on liabilities

The Council

Experience gains and (losses) on liabilities

LPFA

The actuarial gains and losses identified as movements on the Pension Reserve in 2013/14 can be analysed into the following categories, 
measured as a percentage of assets or liabilities at 31st March 2014:

Experience gains and (losses) on assets

61



42 AMOUNTS REPORTED FOR RESOURCE ALLOCATION DECISIONS

Adults Health 
and Wellbeing

Law Probity & 
Governance 

(formerly 
Chief 

Executive's)

Children, 
Schools and 

Families

 Communities, 
Localities and 

Culture 
Development 
and Renewal Resources Corp & Others

Housing 
Revenue 
Account TOTAL

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Fees, charges and other service income (9,401) (109,742) (61,930) (71,710) (41,515) (68,265) (90,345) (452,908)
Government grants (529) (350,610) (3,890) (83) (282,256) 0 0 (637,368)

TOTAL INCOME 0 (9,930) (460,352) (65,820) (71,793) (323,771) (68,265) (90,345) (1,090,276)

Employee expenses 9,281 336,182 40,922 26,295 23,029 17,341 31,926 484,976
Other service expenses 4,113 240,021 47,648 47,148 248,195 2,661 51,223 641,009
Support service recharges 5,932 113,775 56,901 18,053 62,080 0 3,033 259,774

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 0 19,326 689,978 145,471 91,496 333,304 20,002 86,182 1,385,759

NET EXPENDITURE 0 9,396 229,626 79,651 19,703 9,533 (48,263) (4,163) 295,483

 £'000 

Net expenditure in the Directorate Analysis 295,483

Net expenditure of services and support services not included in the Analysis 0

Amounts in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement not reported to management in the Analysis (23,859)

Amounts included in the Analysis not included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 899

COST OF SERVICES IN INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 272,523

This reconciliation shows how the figures in the analysis of directorate income and expenditure relate to the amounts included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

The analysis of income and expenditure by service on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is that specified by the Service Reporting Code of Practice. However, 
decisions about  resource allocation are taken by the Council's Cabinet on the basis of budget reports analysed across directorates. These reports are prepared on a different basis from the 
accounting policies used in the financial statements. In particular:

 no charges are made to directorates for revaluation losses and revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute (REFCUS) whilst they are charged to services in the                           
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement; 

the cost of retirement benefits is based on cash flows (payment of employer's pensions contributions) rather than current service cost of benefits accrued in the year;

the gross expenditure and income associated with trading activities are reported for directorates whilst only the net position is included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement 

The income and expenditure of the Council's directorates to be recorded in the report to Cabinet in July 2014 is as follows: 

DIRECTORATE CI&E 2013/14

62



42 AMOUNTS REPORTED FOR RESOURCE ALLOCATION DECISIONS

Directorate 
analysis

Services & 
support 

services not 
in analysis

Amounts not 
reported to 

Management 
for Decision 

Making

 Amounts not 
included in 

I&E 
Cost of 

services
Corporate 
amounts TOTAL

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Fees, charges and other service income (452,908) 117,137 (757) 0 (336,528) 0 (336,528)
Interest and investment income 0 0 0 2,336 2,336 (2,336) 0
Unattached capital receipts 0 0 0 0 0 (692) (692)
Government grants and contributions - service specific (637,368) 0 0 0 (637,368) 0 (637,368)
Income from Council tax 0 0 0 0 0 (64,266) (64,266)
Government grants and contributions - non-service specific 0 0 0 0 0 (172,749) (172,749)
Distribution from non-domestic rates pool 0 0 0 0 0 (96,259) (96,259)
Capital Grants and Contributions 0 0 (24,303) 0 (24,303) (69,663) (93,966)
HRA Settlement Determination (including premia) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(Surplus)/Deficit on Trading Activities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL INCOME (1,090,276) 117,137 (25,060) 2,336 (995,863) (405,965) (1,401,828)

Employee expenses 484,976 0 (5,371) 0 479,605 0 479,605
Other service expenses 641,009 0 6,572 7,826 655,407 0 655,407
Support service recharges 259,774 (117,137) 0 0 142,637 0 142,637
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Interest payments 0 0 0 (7,594) (7,594) 13,186 5,592
Precepts and levies 0 0 0 (1,639) (1,639) 1,639 0
Payments to Housing Capital Receipts Pool 0 0 0 0 0 1,807 1,807
Gain or Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets 0 0 0 0 0 11,447 11,447
Pensions interest costs and expected return on pensions assets 0 0 0 0 0 23,137 23,137
HRA Settlement Determination (including premia) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(Surplus)/Deficit on Trading Activities 0 0 0 (31) (31) 31 0
TOTAL EXPENDITURE 1,385,759 (117,137) 1,201 (1,437) 1,268,386 51,247 1,319,633
SURPLUS OR DEFICIT ON THE PROVISION OF SERVICES 295,483 0 (23,859) 899 272,523 (354,718) (82,195)

SUBJECTIVE ANALYSIS 2013/14

This reconciliation shows how the figures in the analysis of directorate income and expenditure relate to a subjective analysis of the deficit on the Provision of Services included in the Income and 
Expenditure Statement 

63



42 AMOUNTS REPORTED FOR RESOURCE ALLOCATION DECISIONS

The income and expenditure of the Council's directorates recorded in the report to Cabinet on 3rd July 2013 was as follows: 

DIRECTORATE CI&E 
2012/13 

COMPARATIVE 
FIGURES

Adults Health 
and Wellbeing

Chief 
Executive's

Children, 
Schools and 

Families

 
Communities, 
Localities and 

Culture 
Development 
and Renewal Resources

Corporate & 
Others

Housing 
Revenue 
Account TOTAL

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Fees, charges and 
other service income (14,162) (9,286) (91,421) (49,388) (63,081) (44,286) (18,970) (84,233) (374,827)
Government grants (1,812) (309) (353,260) (8,019) (2,053) (291,890) 0 (274) (657,617)

TOTAL INCOME (15,974) (9,595) (444,681) (57,407) (65,134) (336,176) (18,970) (84,507) (1,032,444)

Employee expenses 28,079 8,540 336,591 37,894 21,860 45,160 0 2,165 480,289
Other service expenses 83,951 5,806 160,307 76,736 57,906 248,746 22,257 46,036 701,745
Support service recharges 5,404 5,067 25,170 22,961 4,898 53,097 0 34,830 151,427

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 117,434 19,413 522,068 137,591 84,664 347,003 22,257 83,031 1,333,461

NET EXPENDITURE 101,460 9,818 77,387 80,184 19,530 10,827 3,287 (1,476) 301,017

 £'000 

Net expenditure in the Directorate Analysis 301,017

Net expenditure of services and support services not included in the Analysis 0

Amounts in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement not reported to management in the Analysis (8,638)

Amounts included in the Analysis not included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (12,620)

COST OF SERVICES IN INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 279,759

The analysis of income and expenditure by service on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is that specified by the Best Value Accounting Code of 
Practice. However, decisions about  resource allocation are taken by the Council's Cabinet on the basis of budget reports analysed across directorates. These reports are prepared on 
a different basis from the accounting policies used in the financial statements. In particular:

This reconciliation shows how the figures in the analysis of directorate income and expenditure relate to the amounts included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

 - no charges are made to directorates for revaluation losses and revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute (REFCUS) whilst they are charged to 
services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement; 
 - the cost of retirement benefits is based on cash flows (payment of employer's pensions contributions) rather than current service cost of benefits accrued in 
the year;
 - the gross expenditure and income associated with trading activities are reported for directorates whilst only the net position is included in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

64



42 AMOUNTS REPORTED FOR RESOURCE ALLOCATION DECISIONS

SUBJECTIVE 
ANALYSIS 2012/13 

COMPARATIVE 
FIGURES

Directorate 
analysis

Services & 
support 

services not 
in analysis

Amounts not 
reported to 

Management 
for Decision 

Making

 Amounts not 
included in 

I&E 
Cost of 
services

Corporate 
amounts TOTAL

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Fees, charges and other service income (374,827) 92,768 (198) 8,397 (273,860) 0 (273,860)
Interest and investment income 0 0 0 0 0 (3,179) (3,179)
Unattached capital receipts 0 0 0 0 0 (1,812) (1,812)
Government grants and contributions - service specific (657,617) 0 0 0 (657,617) 0 (657,617)
Income from Council tax 0 0 0 0 0 (81,994) (81,994)
Government grants and contributions - non-service specific 0 0 0 0 0 (16,569) (16,569)
Distribution from non-domestic rates pool 0 0 0 0 0 (209,738) (209,738)
Capital Grants and Contributions 0 0 0 0 0 (99,121) (99,121)
HRA Settlement Determination (including Premia) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(Surplus)/Deficit on Trading Activities 0 0 0 0 0 (174) (174)
TOTAL INCOME (1,032,444) 92,768 (198) 8,397 (931,477) (412,587) (1,344,064)

Employee expenses 480,289 0 14 0 480,303 0 480,303
Other service expenses 701,745 0 (7,140) (21,017) 673,588 0 673,588
Support service recharges 151,427 (92,768) 0 0 58,659 0 58,659
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 0 0 (1,314) 0 (1,314) 0 (1,314)
Interest payments 0 0 0 0 0 9,952 9,952
Precepts and levies 0 0 0 0 0 1,751 1,751
Payments to Housing Capital Receipts Pool 0 0 0 0 0 944 944
Gain or Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets 0 0 0 0 0 (1,044) (1,044)
Pensions interest costs and expected return on pensions assets 0 0 0 0 0 17,050 17,050
HRA Settlement Determination (including Premia) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(surplus)/Deficit on Trading Activities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL EXPENDITURE 1,333,461 (92,768) (8,440) (21,017) 1,211,236 28,653 1,239,889
SURPLUS OR DEFICIT ON THE PROVISION OF SERVICES 301,017 0 (8,638) (12,620) 279,759 (383,934) (104,175)

This reconciliation shows how the figures in the analysis of directorate income and expenditure relate to a subjective analysis of the deficit on the Provision of Services included in the 
Income and Expenditure Statement 

65



43 HERITAGE ASSETS

Balance 
at 31st 
March 
2012

2012/13 
Acquisitions

2012/13 
Disposals

Balance 
at 31st 
March 
2013

2013/14 
Acquisitions

2013/14 
Disposals

2013/14 
Revaluation

Balance 
at 31st 
March 
2014

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

(a) 4,410 0 0 4,410 0 0 4,500 8,910
(b) 389 0 0 389 0 0 0 389
(c) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(d) 0 11 0 11 0 0 0 11

4,799 11 0 4,810 0 0 4,500 9,310

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

- Public Art (Middlesex Street)

A new capital scheme started in 2012/13 to create a piece of public art funded by section 106 contributions from developments in the area. The 
agreed budget for the scheme is £250k and is not yet completed. The asset is shown at historical cost, which is 2012/13 expenditure.

These comprise the Mayor's chain and other civic regalia.  These were valued by the auctioneers Bonhams in January 2012.

Tower Hamlets Local History Library & Archives holds an extensive and unique collection of books, pamphlets, maps, photographs, press cuttings 
and ephemera, deeds, archives, audio-visual material, oral histories and sound recordings, digital records, and a range of other sources, all of which 
reflect and provide evidence of the history of the borough. 
It was not considered appropriate or practicable to place a value on these items due to their unique nature. It is highly unlikely that any of these 
assets would ever be sold as the council has a legal obligation to maintain its archives.

These collections are preserved and made publicly available at the library on Bancroft Road and increasingly through the web and a range of 
exhibitions and outreach projects. The library & archives continues to proactively collect resources which illustrate and provide evidence of the 
activities and experiences of residents, organisations and businesses active in the borough, including the local authority. 

The council also has a collection of 75 other paintings which are held at the local history library.  These paintings are of local scenes and past local 
dignitaries so intrinsic value is in local interest rather than realisable value.  

TOTAL HERITAGE ASSETS

The council holds a number of works of art.  The council has three works of art with a material value - the council has received indications of value on 
these assets from art experts at auction houses. 

There are 109 works of art across the borough for which the council has a duty of care. These include sculptures, statues, murals, memorials and 
other works.  The majority of these reflect the history of the borough.  It was not cost effective to obtain formal valuations for these immaterial items, 
however public data is available of sale proceeds of similar works by the same artists - none of these values are considered material.  The estimated 
value of these assets has not changed since 2010.

The Council holds a number of heritage assets.  These include civic regalia, works of art across the borough and collections at Tower Hamlets Local 
History Library and Archive (Bancroft Library).  These are held as part of increasing the knowledge and understanding of the area's history. 

Value of Heritage Assets held by Council
- Works of art
- Civic Regalia
- Local History Library and Archive Collections

The Council has held these heritage assets for a number of years pre-dating 2010.  These assets are held at an estimate of current value on the balance 
sheet, except for the local history collection which is not included on the balance sheet as valuations are not available due to the unique nature of the 
assets.  The council has a materiality threshold of £50,000 per asset.  There are only four heritage assets above this threshold - civic regalia, two 
sculptures and one painting.  The council has held these assets for a number of years.  It was not practicable or cost effective to obtain valuations prior to 
2010.

It is assumed that these material heritage assets have an indefinite lifespan, therefore depreciation is not charged on these assets.  If evidence was 
received that required the value of the heritage assets to be impaired, this reduction would be charged to the revaluation reserve.  The Council does not 
have any heritage assets buildings.

The council is considering a number of options relating to the future of one of the statues including the possibility of sale.

66



44 TRUST FUNDS

Balance at 
1/4/2012

2012/13 
Expenditure

2012/13 
Income

Balance at 
31/3/2013

2013/14 
Expenditure

2013/14 
Income

Balance at 
31/3/2014

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
(a) 909 582 627 954 3226 3226 954
(b) 2,329 2,292 1,593 1,630 91 5 1,544
(c) 614 1,359 959 214 806 755 163
(d) 160 0 0 160 0 0 160
(e) 91 56 4 39 0 15 54

4,103 4,289 3,183 2,997 4,123 4,001 2,875

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)
(e)

45 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Housing Transfers to Registered Social Landlords

46 CONTINGENT ASSETS

The Council has no material contingent assets.

Transfer of Primary Care Trust and Strategic Health Authority Assets and Liabilities - 1st April 2013

The Council took over some public health responsibilities following the disbanding of the Tower Hamlets PCT and Strategic Health organisations from 1st April 
2013.  The Government have indicated that Councils will be responsible for any unsettled assets and liabilities that remain after the winding up of these 
organisations where the body over seeing the discontinuation of the organisations have not settled debts.  Since 1st April 2013, no liabilities have crystallised that 
have required settlement by the Council.  No buildings transferred to London Borough of Tower Hamlets as part of the health re-organisation.   

Between March 1998 and March 2014 the Council transferred tenanted and leasehold properties to other landlords - 7,457 to Poplar Housing and Regeneration 
Community Association; 2,392 to Tower Hamlets Community Housing; 970 to Swan Housing Association; 3,537 to East End Homes; 2,079 to Toynbee Island 
Homes; 238 to Bethnal Green and Victoria Park Housing Association and 106 to Spitalfields Housing Association.  The Council has given warranties to provide 
the funders of those landlords with a level of comfort in relation to their loans, which represents a potential liability to the Council.  The amount of the potential 
liability cannot be determined with any certainty at present.

Welfare Savings
Social Services Trust Funds - sundry other

The Council acts as trustee for a number of Trust Funds, the principal ones being shown below. It should be noted that the Council's Balance Sheet does not 
include all Trust Fund assets and liabilities and so does not comply fully with relevant accounting standards, although the amounts involved are not material.

Sundry Other includes funds representing a number of miscellaneous deposits.

Tower Hamlets Further Education Trust
Globe Town  Picture Fund
Sundry Other
TOTAL TRUST FUNDS

This Fund represents monies held by Social Services residential establishments on behalf of residents in their care. It is used to finance the purchase 
of goods and services on behalf of residents.
These Funds represent monies held by the Council on behalf of any residents of the borough (including those in private accommodation) who are 
unable to manage their own personal affairs.

The Council also holds a number of deposits relating to Trust Funds administered by the Council. The funds are held in an interest bearing account maintained by 
the Council. The account is excluded from the financial statements relating to the Council. The  relevant Trusts and transactions during the financial year ended 
31st March 2014 may be summarised as follows: 

This was established by the Council in conjunction with Canary Wharf Limited with the objective of "the advancement of education and training for the 
residents of the London Borough of  Tower  Hamlets". The Council is the sole Trustee and the Trust is registered with the Charities Commission (No. 
1002772). Accounts relating to the Trust have been deposited with the Charities Commissioners.

This Fund was established with the proceeds of the sale of a painting by the Council.

67



47 TOWER HAMLETS HOMES

Number Voting Rights

Council nominees 4 4

Housing tenants and leaseholders 3 3
Independent 3 3
Total 10 10

2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Non-current assets - equipment 5,249 4,308 134 131 5,383 4,439

Inventories 390 1,739 0 0 390 1,739

Short-term debtors 70,818 128,136 (329) (334) 70,489 127,802

Cash and cash equivalents 135,996 138,111 5,329 5,366 141,325 143,477

Short-term creditors 149,693 199,552 1,764 1,489 151,457 201,041

Pensions liability 522,962 495,946 1,087 0 524,049 495,946

Pensions reserve (522,962) (495,946) (1,087) 0 (524,049) (495,946)

Income and Expenditure Reserve 0 0 3,370 3,674 3,370 3,674

The Group Balance Sheet reflects the following consolidated balances after eliminating intra-group transactions (transactions
between Tower Hamlets Homes and the Council).

The Council THH TOTAL

The Council's Arms Length Management Organisation (ALMO), Tower Hamlets Homes Limited ("THH"), was incorporated on 
16 May 2007 and commenced trading on 7 July 2008. It is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Council responsible for the 
management, maintenance and modernisation of the Council's housing stock. The stock remains in the ownership of the 
Council and rents are collected by THH on behalf of the Council.

Below is a summary of Tower Hamlet's Homes Balance Sheet alongside the Council's.

It should be noted that, although Board members have voting rights at Board meetings, the Council is the sole member of the 

company and therefore has 100% of the voting rights at the company's Annual General Meeting.

THH is a private company limited by guarantee with no share capital. The composition of the board of the company and the 
associated voting rights are as follows.

The Council undertakes, in the event of the company's being wound up, to contribute such amounts as may be required for the 
payment of the debts and liabilities of the company, provided this does not exceed £1. After the satisfaction of all the debts and 
liabilities, the remaining assets would revert to the Council. THH is an admitted body to the Council's local government pension 
fund. The full pension obligation and related deficit together with current and past services costs for THH employees passed to 
the company when it began trading. Should THH cease trading then the full pension obligation and related deficit or surplus 
would pass back to the Council as an integral part of the general business transfer. 

In previous years, the Council produced Group Accounts to incorporate THH, however as the assets and liabilities of THH are 
not material compared to the Council, a summary of the ALMO's accounts are provided for information.  A copy of THH's 
accounts is available from the company's registered office at Tower Hamlets Homes Limited, Jack Dash House, 2 Lawn Close, 
London E14 9YQ or from Companies House, Cardiff.

68



Note 2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000

EXPENDITURE
Repairs and maintenance 19,768 20,470
Supervision and management 34,893 31,946
Rents, rates, taxes and other charges 3,017 2,732
Depreciation of non-current assets 6

On dwellings 14,223 14,234
On other assets 1,531 1,596

Revaluation losses (and reversals) (21,530) (19,676)
Debt management costs 73 73
Movement in the allowance for bad debts 178 514
Sums directed by the Secretary of State that are expenditure in accordance with the Code 3,130 1,994

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 55,283 53,883

INCOME

Gross rental income
  Dwelling rents 63,252 66,530
  Non dwelling rents 3,394 3,545
Charges for services and facilities 17,407 20,064
Contributions towards expenditure 115 135
HRA subsidy receivable 11 274 0
Movement in the allowance for bad debts 0 0

TOTAL INCOME 84,442 90,274

(29,159) (36,391)

HRA services share of Corporate and Democratic Core 157 157
HRA Share of  other amounts included in the whole authority cost of services but not allocated to specific service 44 0

NET COST OF HRA SERVICES (28,958) (36,234)

HRA share of operating income and expenditure 
included in the whole authority Income and 
Expenditure Account
Gain or loss on sale of HRA non-current assets (947) (4,435)
Unattached capital receipts (1,444) (26)
Interest payable and similar charges 12 3,338 3,312
Interest and investment income (66) (69)
Pensions interest cost and expected return on pension assets 7 1,112 3,481
Capital grants and contributions receivable (18,500) (27,841)

DEFICIT / (SURPLUS) FOR THE YEAR ON HRA SERVICES (45,465) (61,812)

The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) deals with the provision and maintenance of council housing by the Council acting as
Landlord. It also shows income from rents and Government grant. There is a statutory requirement to keep this account separate
from other Council activities (including other housing activities).

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT
INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

NET COST OF HRA SERVICES AS INCLUDED IN THE WHOLE AUTHORITY INCOME 
AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

69



STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT ON THE HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT BALANCE

Note
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Balance on the Statutory HRA Brought Forward (13,578) (15,234)

(45,465) (61,812)

43,809 59,893

Decrease (Increase) in the HRA Balance (1,656) (1,919)

Transfers to or (from) reserves 0 0

Balance on the Statutory HRA Carried Forward (15,234) (17,153)

2013/14

Net additional amount required by statute to be credited to the HRA balance for the year                     1

Deficit / (Surplus) for the year on the HRA Income and Expenditure Account

The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Income and Expenditure Account discloses the income received and expenditure incurred in 
providing council dwellings to tenants for the year. However, the Council is required to raise council rents based on the balance on 
the Statutory Housing Revenue Account.

This reconciliation statement summarises the differences between the outturn on the HRA Income and Expenditure Account and the 
balance on the Statutory HRA.

2012/13

70



1. NOTE TO THE STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT ON THE HRA BALANCE

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Items included in the HRA Income and Expenditure Account but excluded from 
the movement on HRA balance for the year

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute (3,130) (1,994)
Capital grants and contributions 18,500 27,841
PWLB Debt Redemption as per HRA Settlement Determination 0 0
Amortisation of premia and discounts due to HRA settlement 0 (79)
Gain or loss on sale of HRA non-current assets 947 4,435
Unattached capital receipts 1,444 26
Reversal of revaluation losses on non-current assets 21,350 21,748
Transfer to / from the Major Repairs Reserve 0 0

Difference between amounts charged to the Income & Expenditure Account for
premia and discounts and the charge for the year determined in accordance with
statute 176 0
Net charges made for retirement benefits in accordance with IAS19 1,057 (1,167)
Transfers from General Fund (as directed by Secretary of State) 0 40,344 0 50,810

Items not included in the HRA Income and Expenditure Account but included in
the movement on HRA balance for the year
Capital expenditure financed from revenue 3,465 9,083
Other adjustments (transfer to capital receipts reserve) 0 3,465 0 9,083

Net additional amount required by statute to be debited to the HRA Balance for the year 43,809 59,893

2013/14

NOTES TO THE HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

2012/13

71



2 HOUSING STOCK

2012/13 2013/14

262 265
7,340 7,282
4,112 4,089

793 789

TOTAL AT 31 st MARCH 12,507 12,425

3 NON-CURRENT ASSETS

The balance sheet values of assets within the Council's HRA were as follows:
2012/13 2013/14

£'000 £'000
703,285 753,180

Other Land and Buildings 54,224 57,641
Surplus Assets Not Held for Sale 1,264 1,753
Assets Held for Sale 525 225

TOTAL 759,298 812,799

Dwellings Other land Surplus Assets Assets Held TOTAL
and buildings not held for sale For Sale

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Total value at 1st April 2012 660,898 56,751 912 0 718,561

   Additions, disposals, transfers and revaluations 42,387 (2,527) 352 525 40,737

Total value at 31st March 2013 703,285 54,224 1,264 525 759,298

   Additions, disposals, transfers and revaluations 49,895 3,417 489 (300) 53,501

   TOTAL VALUE AT 31 st MARCH 2014 753,180 57,641 1,753 225 812,799

4 MAJOR REPAIRS RESERVE

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000

Balance at 1 st April 7,985 12,364
Transfer from Capital Adjustment Account - depreciation 15,754 15,831

0 0
(11,375) (11,799)

Balance at 31 st March 12,364 16,396

Houses and bungalows

The type and number of dwellings in the Council's housing stock at 31st March were as follows:

Low-rise flats (1-2 storeys)
Medium-rise flats (3-5 storeys)
High-rise flats (6 or more storeys)

Transfer to HRA - depreciation on non-dwellings (pre 2013/14 only)
Financing of capital expenditure

Dwellings

The vacant possession value of dwellings within the Council's HRA was £2,878 million in 2013/14 (£2,727 million in 2012/13). The difference
between the vacant possession value and the balance sheet value shows the economic cost to the Government of providing council housing
at less than open market rents.

The balance sheet values of the land, houses and other property within the Housing Revenue Account are as follows:

72



5 CAPITAL TRANSACTIONS

(i) Capital expenditure and financing

Dwellings Other Total Dwellings Other Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Expenditure 35,914 3,130 39,044 49,061 1,194 50,255

Sources of finance
   Borrowing 0 0 0 0 0 0
   Capital Receipts 8,049 0 8,049 4,356 0 4,356
   Capital Grants and Contributions 16,155 0 16,155 25,016 0 25,016
   Major Repairs Reserve 8,245 3,130 11,375 10,605 1,194 11,799

Direct Revenue Financing 3,465 0 3,465 9,083 0 9,083

   TOTAL CAPITAL FINANCING 35,914 3,130 39,044 49,061 1,194 50,255

(ii) Capital Receipts

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000

Dwellings 1,264 9,247
Other land and buildings 805 1,030

TOTAL CAPITAL RECEIPTS 2,069 10,277

6 DEPRECIATION  

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000

Dwellings 14,223 14,234
Other Land and Buildings 1,531 1,596

     TOTAL DEPRECIATION 15,754 15,831

2013/142012/13

Capital receipts (gross) in 2013/14 from the disposal of non-current assets within the HRA amounted to £10.277 million 
(£2.069 million in 2012/13) as follows:

The total depreciation charge for the year was £15.831 million (£15.754 million in 2012/13), made up of £14.234 million
(£14.223 million in 2012/13) in respect of council houses and £1.596 million (£1.531 million in 2012/13) in respect of other
HRA assets. In the case of council housing, assets have been depreciated by an amount equivalent to the Major Repairs
Allowance, as this is the amount (based on a 30-year life cycle costing) which the Government estimates the Council needed
to spend this year to keep the housing stock in its current state. It is therefore considered an appropriate measure of
depreciation.  An analysis of the depreciation charges is set out below.

73



7 PENSION COSTS

2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14
Income and Expenditure Account £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

0 2,029 10 12 10 2,041

3,700 3,756 78 71 3,778 3,827
Settlements / Curtailments 34 31 0 0 34 31

(2,605) (2,368) (60) (50) (2,665) (2,418)
0 0 0 0 0 0

Expenditure Account 1,129 3,448 28 33 1,157 3,481

Statement of Movement in the HRA Balance

(1,129) (3,448) (28) (33) (1,157) (3,481)

Employer's contribution to scheme 2,172 2,307 7 7 2,179 2,314

8  RENT ARREARS

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000

3,110 3,407
4.9 5.1

2,252 2,478

9 TRANSFERS FROM GENERAL FUND (AS DIRECTED BY SECRETAR Y OF STATE)

10 HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT SUBSIDY ENTITLEMENT

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000

Prior Year Adjustment 274 0
TOTAL HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT SUBSIDY 274 0
2011/12 was the last full year of housing subsidy

11 ITEM 8 INTEREST ADJUSTMENT

      Interest cost

These figures represent the cost of pensions attributable to the HRA.  Further details of the treatment of pensions costs are shown in note 41 of the Core 
Financial Statements, together with details of the assumptions made in calculating the figures included in this note. The following transactions have been made in 
the account for the year.

The Council LPFA Total

    Net Cost of Services
      Current service costs
    Net Operating Expenditure

Gross rent arrears at 31st March

      Expected return on assets in the scheme
      Past Service Costs
Net Charge to the Income and

Reversal of net charges made for retirement benefits
in accordance with IAS19

Capital works on non-current assets within the council's HRA are partly funded by borrowing. The total interest cost of borrowing is allocated between HRA and 
General Fund in accordance with the Item 8 Credit and Item 8 Debit (General) Determination for the year, as specified in Schedule 4 of the Local Government and 
Housing Act 1989. These are included within the interest figures shown on the HRA Income and Expenditure Account.

Arrears as % of rent receivable
Provision made for bad debts

Authorities are allowed to transfer sums to the HRA from another revenue account on the basis of directions issued by the Government. No sums were transferred 
during 2013/14.  

74



Note 2012/13 2012/13 2013/14 2013/14
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

INCOME
Council Tax (net of benefits) 2 82,404       86,556
Transfers from General Fund - Council Tax Benefits 29,403       111,807 86,556       

Distribution of prior year deficit on Collection Fund 0 0

National Non-Domestic Rates 3 318,294 352,905
- Transitional Protection 449

Business Rate Supplement 11,908 12,026       

TOTAL INCOME 442,009 451,936     

EXPENDITURE

Council Tax
Precepts and demands 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets 80,430       63,342
Greater London Authority 27,859       108,289 21,674 85,016       

Increase in provision for Council Tax bad debts 5 1,412 292            

Distribution of prior year Council Tax surplus on Collection Fund 2,212

National Non-Domestic Rates 
Payment to National Pool 317,354     0

National Non-Domestic Rates 
Bad Debts Written Off 0 1,264
Cost of collection allowance 940            940 944 2,208

National Non-Domestic Rates Precepts & Demands
London Borough of Tower Hamlets 96,361
DCLG 160,602
Greater London Authority 64,241 321,204

Business Rate Supplement 4
Payment to Greater London Authority 11,878       12,000
Cost of collection allowance 30              11,908 26 12,026

National Non-Domestic Rates Provision For Bad Debt
London Borough of Tower Hamlets 0 835
DCLG 0 1,392
Greater London Authority 0 0 557 2,784         

National Non-Domestic Rates Provision For Appeals
London Borough of Tower Hamlets 0 8,250
DCLG 0 13,750
Greater London Authority 0 0 5,500 27,500       

Increase in provision for bad debts

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 439,903 453,242     

INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE 2,106 (1,306)

COLLECTION FUND BALANCE

Balance at the beginning of the year 33 2,139
(Deficit)/Surplus for the year 2,106 (1,306)

BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 1 2,139 833

COLLECTION FUND

75



 

1. GENERAL

2. COUNCIL TAX

 
Band Market Value in Fraction of

April 1991 Band D

A Up to £40,000 6/9
B Over £40,001 and up to £52,000 7/9
C Over £52,001 and up to £68,000 8/9
D Over £68,001 and up to £88,000 9/9
E Over £88,001 and up to £120,000 11/9
F Over £120,001 and up to £160,000 13/9
G Over £160,001 and up to £320,000 15/9
H Over £320,001 18/9

2012/13 2012/13 2013/14 2013/14
Band No. of Council No. of Council

Properties Tax Base Properties Tax Base
A 2,077 728 2,356 752
B 25,643 16,133 25,738 16,271
C 34,928 26,584 35,703 27,674
D 21,883 18,523 22,837 20,085
E 16,547 17,112 17,094 18,485
F 7,645 9,491 7,969 10,365
G 3,074 4,296 3,129 4,704
H 456 770 458 1,226

Total 112,253 93,637 115,284 99,562

Band D Tax
Amount to be 

raised Band D Tax
Amount to be 

raised
Increase / 
(Decrease)

£ £'000 £ £'000 £ %

Tower Hamlets 885.52 80,430 885.52 63,342 0 0
Greater London Authority 306.72 27,859 303.00 21,674 -3.72 -1.2%

TOTAL 1,192.24 108,289 1,188.52 85,016 -3.72 -0.31%

NOTES TO THE COLLECTION FUND

2012/13 2013/14

The Collection Fund accounts for all transactions in respect of Council Tax and National Non-Domestic Rates (also known as NNDR or Business
Rates) and Community Charge (prior to 1st April 1993). Although the account is kept separate from the Income and Expenditure Account, the
Collection Fund balance is included in the Council's Balance Sheet.

The Council Tax surplus on the Fund (£1,174,735.28) is attributable to the Council (£875,295.26) and the Greater London Authority (£299,440.02).
The latter amount is carried as a creditor in the Council's Balance Sheet.

When the 2013/14 Council Tax was set the position was as follows:

The Council Tax is made up of amounts for the Greater London Authority as well as the Council. The Band D tax and total amount to be raised in 
the last 2 years was as follows:

Council Tax is a tax payable depending on the nature and degree of occupation of the residential property concerned. It is subject to a system of 
personal discounts. For the purpose of calculating the individual tax, all domestic properties were valued by the Inland Revenue as at 1st April 
1991 and placed in one of eight bands. By law the tax for each Band is set as a fraction of Band D.

Under the new NNDR collection arrangements, there was a deficit of £342,366.83 during 2013/14.  Of this 30%, £102,710.05 (30%) is attributable 
to the Council, £68,473.37 (20%) to the GLA and £171,183.41 (50%) to the CLG.

76



3. NATIONAL NON-DOMESTIC RATES (NNDR)

4. CROSSRAIL BUSINESS RATE SUPPLEMENT

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000

13,348 Non Domestic Rates Due 13,431
Less Allowances and Other Adjustments

650 Mandatory   & Discretionary Relief 632

790 Provision for Bad Debts 772

30 Cost of Collection 26

11,878 Collectable from Business Rate Supplement Payers 12,001

5. PROVISION FOR IRRECOVERABLE COUNCIL TAX DEBTS

NNDR, or business rates, collected by local authorities are the way that those who occupy non-domestic property
contribute towards the cost of local services. Under the business rates retention arrangements introduced from
1st April 2013, authorities keep a proportion of the business rates paid locally. NNDR due is calculated by
multiplying a national uniform rate(set by the Government) by the rateable value of the property. The national
uniform rate in 2013/14 was 47.1p in the £ (45.8p in the £ in 2012/13). The total rateable value in the borough as
at 31 March 2014 was £815.6 million (£814.4 million at 31 March 2013). A periodic revaluation of business
properties took place in April 2010. At March 2014 there were over 3,800 NNDR appeals that are yet to be heard
by the Government's Valuation tribunal. These appeals relate to both the 2005 and 2010 valuation list and the
Government has committed to resolving 95% of these by July 2015. An estimated provision has been created to
contribute towards recent valuation appeals that were upheld. 

The Greater London Authority (GLA) introduced a business rate supplement (BRS) in April 2010 to finance £4.1 
billion of the costs of the £14.5 billion Crossrail project. Details on the progress of the project so far and the 
proposed policies for the BRS in the 2013/14 financial year are set out below.

The Crossrail BRS will be used to finance £3.5 billion worth of GLA borrowing and the repayment of this sum after 
Crossrail is completed. A further £0.6 billion of BRS revenues will be used to finance the construction works 
directly. The GLA will have contributed nearly £2.7 billion by March 2013 towards the project using revenues 
financed by the BRS. It expects the Crossrail BRS will run for a period of between 24 and 31 years until its 
borrowing is repaid. A further contribution of £875 million is forecast for 2013-14.

The Crossrail BRS multiplier for 2013-14 is 2p per pound of rateable value. Reliefs for the Crossrail BRS will apply 
on the same basis and at the same percentage rate as for your National Non Domestic Rates (NNDR) bill, 
although no transitional relief is provided for the BRS.

www.london.gov.uk/crossrail-brs

Contributions are made to or from the Collection Fund Income and Expenditure Account to a provision for bad
debts. For 2013/14 the Council Tax bad debt provision was increased by £0.292 million (increased by £1.412
million in 2012/13) and £1.949 million of irrecoverable debts were written off (£1.562 million in 2012/13).

77



PENSION FUND ACCOUNT Note 2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000

Contributions 

From employers 3 37,466 42,401
From members 3 8,637 9,982

Transfers in
Transfers in from other pension funds 4 2,939 3,527

Benefits 

Pensions 4 (34,271) (35,681)
Lump sum benefits 4 (7,115) (8,178)

Payments to and on account of leavers

Refunds of contributions (1) (3)
State scheme premiums (1) (3)
Transfers out to other pension funds (3,458) (2,778)

Administrative expenses 13 (926) (1,087)

NET ADDITIONS FROM DEALINGS WITH MEMBERS 3,270 8,180

RETURN ON INVESTMENTS 2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000

Investment income 11 10,586 11,540

Taxes on Income (396) (410)
Change in market value of investments

Realised 4,989 22,195
Unrealised 10 83,354 46,918

Investment management expenses 16 (2,283) (2,364)

NET RETURN ON INVESTMENTS 96,250 77,879

Net increase in the Fund during the year 99,519 86,059
Add: Opening net assets of the scheme 827,352 926,871

CLOSING NET ASSETS OF THE SCHEME 926,871 1,012,930

NET ASSETS STATEMENT AS AT 31ST MARCH 2013 2014
£'000 £'000

Investments Assets
  Equities 203,869 230,998
  Pooled Investment Vehicles
   Unit TrustsUnit Trusts 523,418 566,768
   PropertyProperty 92,128 102,073

Other 91,831 91,918
  Derivative Contracts 

Forward Foreign Exchange Contracts 654 238

911,900 991,995
  Cash deposits 6 6,198 5,292
  Other investment balances 5 1,001 817

Investments Liabilities
Forward Foreign Exchange Contracts 10 (122) (647)
Other investment balances 5 (215) 0

Current Assets 5 9,752 16,954

Current Liabilities 5 (1,643) (1,481)

TOTAL NET ASSETS 926,871 1,012,930

PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS 

DEALINGS WITH MEMBERS, EMPLOYERS AND OTHERS DIRECTLY 
INVOLVED IN THE SCHEME

78



1. INTRODUCTION

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Accounts

(b) Basis of preparation

(c)

Contribution Income

Normal contributions, both from the members and from the employer, are accounted for on an accruals basis at the 
percentage rate recommended by the  actuary in the payroll period to which it relates.  Any amount due in the year but
unpaid will be classified as a current asset.

Employer deficit contributions are accounted for in accordance with the agreement under which they are paid.

(d) Investments

(i)

   (ii)

   (iii)

   (iv)

   (v)

(vi)

(vii)

(e)

(i)

   (ii)

   (iii)

   (iv)

NOTES TO THE PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS

The Council is the administering authority for the Pension Fund and has executive responsibility for it. The Council delegates its responsibility
for administering the Fund to the Pensions Committee which is responsible for considering all pension matters and discharging the
obligations and duties of the Council under the Superannuation Act 1972 and other statutes relating to investment issues. The Committee
meets quarterly to determine investment policy objectives, appoint investment managers, monitor investment performance and make
representations to the Government on any proposed changes to the Local Government Pension Scheme. The Committee is required to
obtain proper advice on the investment strategy of the Fund for which it has established an Investment Panel which includes professional
investment advisors. The Panel meets quarterly to determine the general investment strategy, monitor the performance of the Fund and
individual managers and consider technical reports on investment issues. The Fund employs eight specialist investment managers with
mandates corresponding to the principal asset classes. 

The day to day administration of the Fund and the operation of the management arrangements and administration of the investment portfolio
is delegated to the Corporate Director of Resources.

The Fund is operated as a funded, defined benefits scheme which provides for the payment of benefits to former employees of the London
Borough of Tower Hamlets and those of bodies admitted to the Fund. These individuals are referred to as "members". The benefits include
not only retirement pensions, but also widows' pensions, death grants and lump sum payments in certain circumstances. The Fund is
financed by contributions from members, employers and from interest and dividend receipts and gains on the Fund's investments.

The objective of the Pension Fund's financial statements is to provide information about the financial position, performance and financial
adaptability of the Fund. They show the results of the stewardship of management - that is the accountability of management for the
resources entrusted to it - and the disposition of its assets at the period end. 

The accounts summarise the transactions and net assets of the Pension Fund and comply in all material respects with Chapter 2
("Recommended Accounting Practice") of the Statement of Recommended Practice (Financial Reports of Pensions Schemes) 2007
and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting issued by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA).

Except where otherwise stated, the accounts have been prepared on an accruals basis, that is income and expenditure are recognised
as earned or incurred, not as received or paid.  

The financial statements of the Fund do not take account of liabilities to pay pensions and other benefits after 31st March 2014. The
actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits, valued on an IAS19 basis is disclosed in note 12 of the Accounts as permitted
under IAS26.

The Fund is administered in accordance with the LGPS (Benefits, Membership and Contributions) Regulations 2007 (as amended), the 
LGPS (Administration) Regulations 2008 (as amended) and the LGPS (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009.

The Fund does not hold any direct property holdings and therefore does not employ a separate property valuer.

Investments designated in foreign currencies are valued in sterling at the exchange rates ruling on 31st March 2014. Where the
Council has entered into a transaction denominated in a foreign currency, the transaction is converted into sterling at the exchange
rate applicable on the date the transaction was effective.
Foreign exchange contracts are recognised in the net asset statement at their fair value.  The amounts included in the accounts 
represent unrealised gains or losses on forward contracts.

Investment Income

Cash is represented by deposits held with financial institutions repayable on demand without penalty.

Fund Account - Revenue Recognition

Interest income is recognised in the Fund account as it accrues.

Dividend income is recognised in the Fund account on an accruals basis.  Any amount not received by the end of the reporting period 

is disclosed in the net asset statement as a current financial asset.
Distributions from pooled funds are re-invested and as such are recognised in the change in market value.

Changes in the net market value of investments held at any time during the year are recognised as income and comprise all realised 
and unrealised gains/losses.

Pooled investment vehicles are valued at bid price, middle market price or single price at close of trading on 31st March 2014. 

Property unit trusts are shown by reference to bid price at close of business on 31st March 2014.

Investments are shown in the Net Assets Statement at market value on the following bases.

Listed securities are shown by reference to bid price at the close of business on 31st March 2014.

79



2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES Cont…

Fund account - expense items

(f) Management Expenses

(g) Benefits Payable

Net assets statement

Financial Assets
(h)

(i)

   (ii)

   (iii)

2.a CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Fund managers' fees are paid in accordance with the terms of each individual management agreement. The fees are
based mainly on a percentage of the value of funds under their management and increase or reduce as the value of the
investments change.

Pensions and lump sums payable include all amounts known to be due as at the end of the financial year. Any amounts
due but unpaid are disclosed in the net assets statement as current liabilities.

Financial assets are included in the net assets statement on a fair value basis as at the reporting date. A financial asset
is recognised in the net assets statement on the date the fund becomes party to the contractual acquisition of the asset.
From this date any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the assets are recognised by the fund.

The values of investments as shown in the net assets statement have been determined as follows:

NOTES TO THE PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS

Market-quoted investments

Fixed interest securities

Fixed Interest Securities – are recorded at net market value based on their bid price.
Unquoted investments

The Forward Foreign Exchange Contracts are stated at fair value which is determined by the gain or loss that would arise 
at the settlement date from entering into an equal and opposite contract at the reporting date.

Market quoted investments – the value of an investment for which there is a readily available market price is determined 
by the bid price ruling on the final day of the accounting period.

The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by the authority about the future or 
that are otherwise uncertain.  Estimates are made taking into account historical experience, current trends and other relevant 
factors.  However, because balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual results could be materially different from 
assumptions and estimates.

There is just one item in the authority's net asset statement as at 31st March 2014 for which there which there is a significant 
risk of material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year.

Pensions Liability - Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex judgements relating to 
the discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are projected to increase, changes in retirement ages, mortality rates and 
expected returns on pension fund investments.  A firm of consulting actuaries is engaged to provide the Council with expert 
advice about the assumptions to be applied.  

The assumptions interact in complex ways.  During 2013/14, the Council’s actuaries advised that the net pensions liability had 
decreased by £34.4 million to £488.6 million as a result of higher return on investment assets and a reduction in the salary 
increase rate.

80



3. CONTRIBUTIONS

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000

Members normal contributions
  Council 7,571 8,849
  Admitted bodies 223 222
  Scheduled body 843 911
Total members 8,637 9,982

Employers
 Normal contributions
  Council 17,979 21,210
  Admitted bodies 997 1,064
  Scheduled bodies 2,282 2,505
 Deficit funding contributions
  Council 15,250 16,500
Other contributions
  Council 958 1,122
Total employers 37,466 42,401

Total contributions 46,103 52,383

4. BENEFITS, REFUNDS OF CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFER VALUES

Council
Admitted 
Bodies

Scheduled 
Bodies Total Council

Admitted 
Bodies

Scheduled 
Bodies Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Pensions (32,650) (872) (749) (34,271) (33,852) (968) (861) (35,681)
Lump sum retirement benefits (4,943) (768) (392) (6,103) (6,817) (31) (288) (7,136)
Lump sum death benefits (1,012) 0 0 (1,012) (990) 0 (52) (1,042)
Total Pensions and Benefits (38,605) (1,640) (1,141) (41,386) (41,659) (999) (1,201) (43,859)
Transfer Values Received 2,939 0 0 2,939 3,527 0 0 3,527
Transfer Values Paid (3,458) 0 0 (3,458) (2,778) 0 0 (2,778)
Total (39,124) (1,640) (1,141) (41,905) (40,910) (999) (1,201) (43,110)

Benefits payable and refunds of contributions have been brought into the accounts on the basis of all valid claims approved during the year. Benefits 
are index linked to keep pace with inflation.  In April 2011, the method of indexation changed from the retail prices index to the consumer prices index.                                                                                                       
Transfers out/in are those sums paid to, or received from, other pension schemes and relate to the period of previous pensionable employment.  
Transfer values are brought into the accounts on a cash basis. Benefits payable are analysed below.

2012/13 2013/14

Contributions represent the total amounts receivable from the employing authority in respect of its own contributions and those of its pensionable 
employees.  Employees pay contributions based on the level of pay they receive, with contribution rates set between 5.5% and 7.5% dependent on 
pensionable pay. The employer's contributions are made at a rate determined by the Fund's actuary necessary to maintain the Fund in a state of 
solvency, having regard to existing and future liabilities.   The Primary Contribution Rates used during the financial year ending the 31 March 2014 
range from 15.8% to 44.1% of pensionable pay.  The Council paid an agreed additional monetary contribution of £16.5m to recover the deficit.  
Contributions shown in the revenue statement may be categorised as follows:-

Note: The Council is required to operate an Additional Voluntary Contribution (AVC) scheme for employees. In 2013/14 employees made
contributions of £26,465.94 (£44,059.40 in 2012/13) into the AVC Scheme operated by Aviva (Norwich Union) and £6,444.33 to Equitable Life
(£6,444.33 in 2012/13). The contributions are not included in the Pension Fund Accounts in accordance with regulation 4(2)(b) of the Local
Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009 but are deducted from salaries and remitted directly to the
provider.

81



5. DEBTORS AND CREDITORS

2012/13 2013/14

£'000 £'000
Debtors
Other Investment Balances
Investment sales 0 27
Dividends receivable 691 514
Tax recoverable 310 276

1,001 817
Current Assets
Contributions due from admitted bodies 87 86
London Borough of Tower Hamlets Pension Fund 340 62

427 148

Total Debtors 1,428 965

Creditors
Other Investment Balances
Investment purchases 215 0

Current Liabilities
Unpaid benefits 1,073 1,171
Administrative expenses 570 263
London Borough of Tower Hamlets Pension Fund 47

1,643 1,481

Total Creditors 1,858 1,481

Net Debtors (430) (516)

6. CASH

The deposits held by fund managers can be further analysed as follows:

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000

Aberdeen: Private Equity Portfolio 10 10
GMO 2,477 3,803
Schroders: Multi Asset Portfolio 15 14
Schroders: Property Portfolio 3,698 1,465
London Borough of Tower Hamlets Pension Fund 9,324 16,806

TOTAL CASH 15,524 22,098

7. TAXATION
£'000 £'000

UK Income Tax

Value Added Tax

Overseas Tax

8. STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT PRINCIPLES

The Council, as the Administering Authority of the Pension Fund, is required to prepare, maintain and publish a Statement of Investment Principles (SIP) 
in accordance with the Local Authority Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) (Amendment) Regulations 1999. The SIP which is 
published as part of the Local Government Pensions Scheme Annual Report was approved by the Council's Pensions Committee on 14th November 
2013. 

Investment income is subject to UK tax which the Fund cannot recover under current tax legislation, except for tax deducted at source from Property unit 
trusts.

By virtue of Tower Hamlets Council being the Administering Authority, VAT input tax is recoverable on all Fund activities.

Taxation agreements exist between the UK and certain other European countries whereby a proportion of the tax deducted locally from investment 
earnings may be reclaimed.   The proportion reclaimable and the timescale involved varies from country to country.

Unless otherwise stated, all transactions are accounted for on an accruals basis. The following amounts were debtors or creditors of the Pension Fund as
at 31st March. 

82



9. MEMBERSHIP OF THE FUND

2013 2014

London Borough of Tower Hamlets
Active Members 4,789 6,158
Pensioners 3,957 4,043
Deferred Pensioners 5,970 6,332
Dependants 965 959

15,681 17,492
Admitted & Scheduled Bodies
Active Members 509 634
Pensioners 191 203
Deferred Pensioners 322 332
Dependants 14 16

1,036 1,185

Admitted Bodies
Capita
Circle Anglia Ltd.
East End Homes
Ecovert FM Ltd.
Gateway Housing Association (formerly Bethnal Green and Victoria Park Housing Association)
Greenwich Leisure Limited
Look Ahead Housing and Care
One Housing Group (formerly Island Homes)
Redbridge Community Housing Ltd.
Swan Housing Association
Tower Hamlets Community Housing

Scheduled Bodies
Bethnal Green Academy
Canary Wharf College
Sir William Burrough School
St. Pauls Way Community School
Tower Hamlets Homes Limited
Culloden Primary School
Old Ford Primary School

10. INVESTMENTS

The Fund employs eight specialist investment managers with mandates corresponding to the principal asset classes. 

Manager Mandate
Baillee Gifford Life Ltd. Global Equity, Diversified Growth
GMO UK Ltd. Global Equity
Investec Asset Management Absolute Return Bonds
Legal & General Investment Management UK Equity, Index Linked Gilts
Ruffer LLP Diversified Growth
Schroders Asset Management Property Fund Property

The value of the Fund, by manager, as at 31st March was as follows:

£ million % £ million %
Baillee Gifford Life Ltd - Diversified Growth 46.3 5.0 46.9 4.7
Baillee Gifford Life Ltd - Equities 163.1 17.7 183.1 18.4
GMO UK Ltd. 227.3 24.7 261.3 26.2
Investec Asset Management 97.0 10.6 97.5 9.8
Legal & General Investment Management - Equities 194.1 21.1 211.6 21.2
Legal & General Investment Management 51.3 5.6 49.0 4.9
Ruffer LLP 45.5 5.0 45.0 4.5
Schroders Asset Management Property Fund 94.1 10.3 103.1 10.3

2013 2014

The following table sets out the membership of the Fund at 31st March 2014

The following bodies have been admitted into the Fund:

83



10. INVESTMENTS (continued)

 Market 
Value as at                    
1 Apr 2013

Purchases Sales Change in 
Market 
Value

Market Value 
as at                  

31 Mar 2014

Transaction Costs

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Baillee Gifford Life Ltd - Diversified Growth 46,313 69 0 507 46,889 0
Baillee Gifford Life Ltd - Equities 163,061 0 0 20,005 183,066 0
GMO UK Ltd. 223,829 138,258 (108,035) 2,626 256,678 74
Investec Asset Management 97,034 0 0 468 97,502 0
Legal & General Investment Management 245,390 0 0 15,166 260,556 0
Ruffer LLP 45,518 0 0 (488) 45,030 0
Schroders Asset Management Property 90,633 13,236 (10,879) 8,638 101,628 0

911,778 151,563 (118,914) 46,922 991,349 74

 Market Value 
as at                    

1 Apr 2013

Purchases Sales Change in 
Market            
Value

Market Value as at                  
31 Mar 2014

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
UK Investment Assets
   Quoted 687,949 13,305 (10,879) 44,296 734,671
Overseas Investment Assets
   Quoted 223,297 138,905 (108,273) 3,158 257,087
   Unquoted 532 (647) 238 (532) (409)

911,778 151,563 (118,914) 46,922 991,349

Derivative Contracts 

Forward Foreign Exchange Contracts

Gains/(losses) on 
Contract

£'000
(647)

238
Net Position (409)

Contract Manager Expiration
Gains/(Losses) on 

Contract
£'000

GMO UK Ltd April 2014 (16)
GMO UK Ltd April 2014 3

Danish Krone GMO UK Ltd April 2014
GMO UK Ltd April 2014 2
GMO UK Ltd April 2014
GMO UK Ltd April 2014 (351)
GMO UK Ltd April 2014 (32)
GMO UK Ltd April 2014 2
GMO UK Ltd April 2014 7
GMO UK Ltd April 2014 8
GMO UK Ltd April 2014 (32)

Unrealised Gain (409)

The movement in the opening and closing value of investments during the year, together with related direct transaction costs, were as follows:

Sterling value of obligation 
on purchase or sale date

Sterling value of equal 
and opposite obligation 

at 31 March 2014

Currency contracted to sell

Australian Dollar Foreign Currency
Canadian Dollar Foreign Currency

A further analysis of investments assets is as follows.

(34,483)
25,701
(8,782)

£'000 £'000

(25,463)
33,836

8,373

Swedish Krona Foreign Currency
Swiss Franc Foreign Currency
US Dollar Forward Currency

Unrealised losses were made on foreign exchange contracts in the year amounting to £0.409 million.

The fund managers GMO UK Ltd is permitted to use forward foreign exchange contracts to mitigate the effect on returns of appreciation or 
depreciation of Sterling against the local currencies of the assets held or to adjust the foreign currency exposure of the portfolio.  The only derivative 
contracts held at 31st March 2014 were forward foreign exchange contracts.
Forward  Foreign Exchange Contracts are over-the-counter contracts whereby two parties agree to exchange currencies on a specified future date at 
an agreed rate of exchange.  They are used to manage economic exposure to markets.

The amounts included in the accounts represent the unrealised gains or losses arising from the closing out of the contract at the reporting date.  The 
market value of the contracts is represented by the gain or loss that would arise at the settlement date from entering into an equal and opposite 
contract at the reporting date. 

The Forward Foreign Exchange Contracts are stated at fair value which is determined by the gain or loss that would arise at the settlement date from 
entering into an equal and opposite contract at the reporting date.

The global equity manager GMO is instructed to use forward foreign exchange contracts to minimise currency risk exposure. Net exposure to forward 
foreign exchange is restricted to 10% of the portfolio.

Euro Foreign Currency
Hong Kong Dollar Foreign Currency
Japanese Yen Foreign Currency
Norwegian Krone Foreign Currency
Singapore Dollar Foreign Currency

Currency contracted to purchase

84



11. INVESTMENT INCOME

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000

Dividends from overseas equities 7,217 7,886
Net rents from properties 3,159 3,427
Interest on cash deposits 51 58
Foreign tax 159 169

TOTAL 10,586 11,540

12 ACTUARIAL POSITION

£m
2014/15 18.50
2015/16 20.50
2016/17 22.00

Investment income is broken down as follows.

The basis of valuing the Fund's assets (see note 2) is compatible with the basis of placing a value on members' benefits as both
are related to market conditions at the valuation date.

The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations require a triennial revaluation of the Fund to assess the adequacy of the
Fund's investments and contributions in relation to its overall and future obligations. The contribution rate required for benefits
accruing in the future is assessed by considering the benefits that accrue over the course of the three years to the next valuation.
The employer's contribution rate is determined by the Actuary as part of the revaluation exercise.

The 2013 statutory triennial revaluation of the Pension Fund completed by the Actuary (Hymans Robertson) in the year estimated
the deficit on the Fund to be £365 million and the funding level to be 72%. This compares to a deficit at the previous revaluation in
2010 of £305 million and a corresponding funding level of 71%.

The Actuary has determined that the deficit can be recovered over a period of 20 years and the agreed contributions to recover the
deficit for the term of the revaluation is as set out below :-

The FSS requires that the Fund operates the same target funding level of all on-going employers of 100% of its accrued liabilities
valued on the on-going basis, to be achieved over a 20 year period (a period equivalent to the expected future working lifetime of
the remaining scheme members). The valuation of the Fund as at 31st March 2013 determined that this would require a
contribution (additional to the future contribution rate) of 15.2% of members' pensionable pay equivalent to £18.5 million per
annum.

The Council, as Administering Authority, prepares a Funding Strategy Statement (FSS) in respect of the Fund in collaboration with
the Fund's Actuary and after consultation with the employers and investment advisors. The Actuary is required to have regard to
this statement when carrying out the valuation. The FSS includes the Fund's funding policy, the objectives of which are:

- to ensure the long-term solvency of the Fund

- to ensure that sufficient funds are available to meet all benefits as they fall due for payment

- not to restrain unnecessarily the investment strategy of the Fund so that the Council can seek to maximise investment returns 
(and hence minimise the cost of the benefits) for an appropriate level of risk.

85



12. ACTUARIAL POSITION (continued)

Financial Assumptions Nominal Real
Price inflation (CPI) 2.5%
Pay increases 3.8% 1.3% Real rates are nominal rates
Funding basis discount rate 4.6% 2.1% adjusted for inflation

Longevity (in years) Male Female

22.2 24.2

24.3 26.4

13. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000

Investment Advice 116 153
Performance Measurement 15 15
Administration 806 686
Audit Fees 21 21
Other Fees/Income (32) 212

926 1,087

Average future life expectancy at age 65 for a non-
pensioner aged 45 at the valuation date

IAS 26 requires the present value of the Fund's promised retirement benefits to be disclosed and for this purpose the actuarial 
assumptions and methodology should be based on IAS19.

The actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits calculated in line with IAS19 assumptions is estimated to be £1.503 
million (£1,497 million in 2012/13).

Actuarial Value of Promised Retirement Benefits

In accordance with the funding policy, the Actuary determines the employer contribution requirement for future service for the Fund
as a whole, and for employers who continue to admit new members. The cost of future service benefits is assessed, taking into
account expected future salary increases. In order to place a current value on future benefit cashflows the Actuary "discounts" the
future cashflows to the valuation date at a suitable rate. The Actuary adopts a "gilt-based" valuation which uses the yield on suitably
dated Government bonds as the discount rate. This is then uplifted to the "funding basis discount rate" taking into account the
Fund's current and expected future investment strategy to reflect the percentage by which the Fund is anticipated to "outperform" the
yield on Government bonds. The contribution rate required to meet the expected cost of future service benefits is derived as this
value less expected member contributions expressed as a percentage of the value of members' pensionable pay. This is known as
the "Projected Unit method". The future contribution rate for 2013/14 was 15.8%.

In addition, the Actuary compares the value of the Fund's assets with the estimated cost of members' past service. The ratio of the
asset value to the estimated cost of members' past service benefits is known as the "funding level". If the funding level is more than
100% there is a "surplus"; if it less than 100% there is a "shortfall". The next valuation will be as at 31st March 2016 and the
recommendations implemented from 1st April 2017.

Although the funding shortfall is significant, it should be noted that current legislation provides that the level of members' basic
pension entitlement and contributions are not affected by the financial position of the Fund. It is the Council's responsibility to ensure
that pension entitlements are fully funded and that the impact on Council Tax is minimised. It should also be recognised that the
Council is a long-term investor both because a high proportion of pension benefits do not become payable until far in the future and
the Council has a relatively secure long-term income stream.

The latest full triennial actuarial valuation of the Fund's liabilities in accordance with IAS26 took place at 31st March 2013.  The main 
actuarial assumptions used in revaluation and applied during the intervaluation period were as follows:

Average future life expectancy for a pensioner aged 65 at 
the valuation date

86



14. RISK MANAGEMENT 

Nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments

Risk and Risk Management

Credit risk

Liquidity risk

Market risk

Interest rate risk

Interest Rate Risk
As At 31st March 

2013
As At 31st March 

2014

Asset Type £'000 £'000
Cash and cash equivalents 6,198 5,292
Cash balances 9,752 16,954
Fixed interest securities 148,287 146,517

Total 164,237 168,763

Interest Rate Risk - Sensitivity Analysis

+100 BPS -100 BPS

Asset Type £'000 £'000
Cash and cash equivalents 5,292 53 (53)
Cash balances 16,954 170 (170)
Fixed interest securities 146,517 1,465 (1,465)

Total change in net assets available 168,763 1,688 (1,688)

Interest rate risk - sensitivity analysis

Interest Rate Risk - Sensitivity Analysis

+100 BPS -100 BPS
Asset Type £'000 £'000
Cash and cash equivalents 6,198 155 (155)
Cash balances 9,752 4 (4)
Fixed interest securities 148,287 (1,483) 1,483

Total change in net assets available 164,237 (1,324) 1,324

The fund's primary long-term risk is that the fund's assets will fall short of its liabilities. The aim of investment risk
management is to minimise the risk of a reduction in the value of the fund and to maximise the opportunity for gains
across the whole portfolio. The fund achieves this through asset diversification to reduce exposure to market risk and
credit risk to an acceptable level.

Interest rates can vary and can affect both income to the fund and the value of net assets available to pay benefits. A
100 basis point (BPS) movement in interest rates is consistent with the level of sensitivity applied as part of the fund's
risk management strategy.  The table below shows the effect of a +/- 100 BPS change in interest rates.

Change in year in net assets available 
to pay benefits

Carrying Amount As 
At 31st March 2014

Carrying Amount As 
At 31st March 2013

This is the risk that fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. Market risk comprises; interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk. The Fund mitigates these risks as
follows:

Cash deposits held in the Pension Fund bank account are invested in accordance with the Council’s approved
Treasury Management Strategy.

The Fund holds a percentage of its portfolio in fixed interest securities to mitigate this risk should interest rates fall.

The Fund's direct exposure to interest rate movements as at 31st March 2013 and 31st March 2014 is set out below.

Change in year in net assets available 
to pay benefits

Should the Fund have insufficient money available to meet its commitments it may, under Regulation 5.2 borrow cash
for up to 90 days. If there was a longer term shortfall then the Fund’s assets could be sold to provide additional cash.
A significant proportion of the Fund is made up of readily realisable assets.

Credit risk is the risk that a counter party to a financial instrument may fail to pay amounts due to the Pension fund.
The market value of investments generally reflect an assessment of credit in their pricing and consequently the risk of
loss is implicitly provided for in the carrying value of the fund's financial assets and liabilities. The fund carries out a
review of its investment managers annual internal control reports to ensure that managers are diligent in their
selection and use of counterparties and brokers. Deposits are made with banks and financial institutions that are
rated independently and meet the Council's credit criteria. 

The Council only invests money with institutions with a minimum Fitch credit rating of A+ or higher.

This is the risk that the Fund might not have the cash flow required in order to meet its financial obligations when they
become due. Over the years contributions have tended to be greater than benefits and this has ensured that
sufficient cash has been available to meet payments.

The Fund currently operates two bank accounts. One is held by the Fund’s custodian (State Street Bank) and holds
cash relating to the investment activities and the other is the LBTH Pension Fund bank account and this is used to
hold cash relating to member activities.

87



14. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Currency risk

Currency Exposure - Asset Type As At 31st March 
2013

As At 31st March 
2014

Asset Type £'000 £'000
Overseas quoted securities 205,044 238,710
Overseas unit trusts 7,384 5,949
Cash 2,300 13
Total overseas assets 214,728 244,672

Currency Exposure - Sensitivity Analysis

+5.8% -5.8%

Asset Type £'000 £'000 £'000
Overseas quoted securities 238,710 252,555 224,865
Overseas unit trusts 5,949 6,294 5,604
Cash 13 14 12
Total change in net assets available 244,672 258,863 230,481

Currency Exposure - Sensitivity Analysis

+5.7% -5.7%

Asset Type £'000 £'000
Overseas quoted securities 205,044 216,732 193,356
Overseas unit trusts 7,384 7,805 6,963
Cash 2,300 2,431 2,169
Total change in net assets available 214,728 226,968 202,488

Other Price risk

Price Risk - sensitivity analysis 

Asset Type
UK equities 12.1%
Global equity 11.9%
Total fixed interest 2.8%
Alternatives 4.4%
Cash 0.0%
Pooled Property Investments 1.9%

The Fund invests in financial instruments denominated in currencies other than Sterling and as a result is exposed to exchange rate
risk. This is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. To alleviate this risk the Fund allows investment managers to use derivative contracts, in accordance with the contract
conditions:

Following analysis of historical data in consultation with the fund's investment advisors, the Council considers the likely volatility 
associated with foreign exchange rate movements to be 5.8%.  This analysis assumes all other variables, in particular interest rates, 
remain constant.

Carrying Amount 
As At 31st March 

2014

Change in year in net assets available to 
pay benefits

Carrying Amount 
As At 31st March 

2013

Change in year in net assets available to 
pay benefits

To mitigate the risk of a loss owing to a fall in market prices the Fund maintains a diverse portfolio of investments. Diversification
ensures that the Fund has a balance of investments that offer different levels of risk and return.

The Fund employs a number of investment managers, with differing but complementary styles, to mitigate the risk of underperformance
of any single manager and to ensure that any fall in market prices should not affect the Fund as a whole.   

Manager performance and asset allocation policy is regularly reviewed by the Pensions Investment Panel. The Fund also uses certain
derivative instruments as part of efficient portfolio management.

Other price risk - sensitivity analysis

Potential price changes are determined based on the observed historical volatility of asset class returns. 'Riskier' assets such as
equities will display greater potential volatility than bonds. The potential volatilities are consistent with a one standard deviation
movement in the change in value of the assets over the latest three years. 

Following analysis of historical data and expected investment return movement during the financial year, in consultation with the Fund's
investment advisors, the Council has determined that the following movements in market price risk are reasonably possible for the
2013/14 reporting period. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency exchange rates and interest
rates remain the same.

Potential Market Movements (+/-)

The percentage change in the year of 5.8% represents the average change in currency exposure, derived by multiplying the weight of
each currency by the change in its exchange rate relative to GBP.

The following table summarises the Fund's currency exposure as at 31 March 2014 and as at the previous year end.

88



14. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Value as at 31 
March 2014

Percentage 
change

Value on increase Value on decrease

Asset Type £'000 % £'000 £'000
Cash and cash equivalents 22,098 0.0% 22,098 22,098
Investment portfolio assets
UK equities 211,541 12.1% 237,074 186,008
Global equity 440,153 11.9% 492,311 387,995
Total fixed interest 146,517 2.8% 150,678 142,356
Alternatives 91,919 4.4% 95,963 87,875
Pooled Property Investments 101,628 1.9% 103,518 99,738
Net derivative assets (409) 0.0% (409) (409)
Investment income due 817 0.0% 817 817
Amounts receivable for sales 0 0 0

Amounts payable for purchases 0 0.0% 0 0
Total assets available to pay benefits 1,014,264 0% 1,102,050 926,478

Value as at 31 
March 2013

Percentage 
change

Value on increase Value on decrease

Asset Type £'000 % £'000 £'000
Cash and cash equivalents 15,523 0.0% 15,523 15,523
Investment portfolio assets
UK equities 194,137 13.4% 220,151 168,123
Global equity 386,358 12.8% 435,812 336,904
Total fixed interest 148,287 2.9% 152,587 143,987
Alternatives 91,831 4.7% 96,147 87,515
Pooled Property Investments 90,633 1.4% 91,902 89,364
Net derivative assets 532 0.0% 532 532
Investment income due 1,001 0.0% 1,001 1,001
Amounts receivable for sales 0 0
Amounts payable for purchases (215) 0.0% (215) (215)
Total assets available to pay benefits 928,087 1,013,440 842,734

Refinancing risk

Had the market price of the Fund's investments increased/decreased in line with the above, the change in net assets available 
to pay benefits in the market price would have been as follows:

The Council does not have any financial instruments that have a refinancing risk as part of its treasury management and 
investment strategies.

Had the market price of the Fund's investments increased/decreased in line with the above, the change in net assets available 
to pay benefits in the market price would have been as follows:

89



15. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES

The net assets of the Fund are made up of the following categories of financial instruments:

2012/13 2013/14 2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Financial Assets
Loans and receivables 0 0 16,611 17,709
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 911,246 991,757 994 5,592
Total Financial Assets 911,246 991,757 17,605 23,301

Financial Liabilities
Payables 0 0 (1,858) (1,481)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 0 0 (122) (647)
Total Financial Liabilities 0 0 (1,980) (2,128)

As all investments are disclosed at fair value, carrying value and fair value are therefore the same.

IFRS7 requires the Fund to classify fair value instruments using a three-level hierarchy.
The three levels are summarised as follows:

Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Equities 230,998 0 0 230,998
Pooled Funds

Unit Trusts 566,768 0 0 566,768
Property Unit Trust 102,073 0 0 102,073
Other 91,918 0 0 91,918

Derivative Contracts
Forward Foreign Exchange Contracts 0 (409) 0 (409)
Cash and bank Deposits 22,160 0 0 22,160

Current Assets 903 0 0 903
Current Liabilities (1,481) 0 0 (1,481)

1,013,339 (409) 0 1,012,930

During the year ended 31st March 2014 there were no transfers between the levels of the fair value hierarchy.

The equivalents at 31st March 2013 were as follows:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Equities 203,869 0 0 203,869
Pooled Funds

Unit Trusts 523,418 0 0 523,418
Property Unit Trust 92,128 0 0 92,128
Other 91,831 0 0 91,831

Derivative Contracts
Forward Foreign Exchange Contracts 0 532 0 532
Cash and bank Deposits 15,864 0 0 15,864

Current Assets 1,087 0 0 1,087
Current Liabilities (1,858) 0 0 (1,858)

926,339 532 0 926,871

Long-term Current

Fair Value Hierarchy

The following sets out the Fund's assets and liabilities according to the fair value hierarchy as at 31st March 
2014.

Level 1 - inputs that reflect quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets. Products classified as 
level 1 comprise quoted equities, quoted fixed securities, quoted index-linked securities and unit trusts

Level 3 - inputs that are not based on observable data.  Such instruments would include unquoted equity 
investments and hedge fund of funds.

90



15. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURES

Net gains and losses on financial istruments

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000

Financial Assets
Loans and receivables
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss* 88,568 69,645
Total Financial Assets 88,568 69,645

Financial Liabilities
Payables
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (225) (532)
Total Financial Liabilities (225) (532)

Long-term

91



16. INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT EXPENSES

2012/13 Fund Value 2013/14 Fund Value

£'000 % £'000 %
Payments to Managers              2,283 0.25 2,364 0.23

17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

2012/13 2013/14

Fund Administration Expenses £'000 £'000
Payroll / HR Support 478 374
Corporate Finance 328 306

806 680

Employees holding key positions in the financial management of the fund as at 31st March 2014 include:

The financial value of their relationship with the fund is as set out below

2012/13 2013/14
£'000 £'000

Short term benefits 25 18
Long term/post retirement benefits 3 4

18. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

19. CONTINGENT ASSETS

20. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

During 2013/14 impairment losses were nil (impairment losses in 2012/13 were also nil).

The London Borough of Tower Hamlets Pension Fund is administered by The London Borough of Tower Hamlets.

During the year no Committee Members or Council Chief Officers with direct responsibility for pension fund issues, have undertaken any
declarable transactions with the Pension Fund, other than administrative services undertaken by the Council on behalf of the Pension
Fund.

The pension fund cash held by London Borough of Tower Hamlets is invested on the money markets by the treasury management 
operations of the Council.  During the year to 31st March 2014, the Fund held an average investment of £6.0m (£5.5m 31st March 2013), 
earning interest of £62k (£68k in 2012/13).

Fund administration expenses payable to the administrating authority are as set out in the table below.

In accordance with IAS24 'Related Party Disclosure', material transactions with related parties not disclosed elsewhere in the financial 
statements are detailed below.

The Council incurred costs of £680k (£806k 2012/13) relating to administration of the Fund and has been reimbursed by the Fund for these 
expenses.  The Council contributed £16.5m (£15.3m 2012/13) to the Fund in respect of back funding.  All monies owing to and from the 
Fund were paid in the year.

The Council has a subsidiary company, Tower Hamlets Homes, who are within the Fund.  During the year the Fund received contribution 
payments totalling £2.3m (£2.2m 2012/13) from this company.

Compensation of key management - It was not practical to include costs relating to key management personnel within the Pension Fund 
Accounts, principally as they are charged to the Council's Accounts and have not been charged to the Pension Fund.  All costs are 
disclosed within note 33 of the Council's main accounts.

Key Management Personnel

Chief Accountant

Admitted body employers in the Fund hold insurance bonds to guard against the possibility of not being able to meet their pension 
obligations.  These bonds are drawn in favour of the pension fund and payment will only be triggered in event of employer default.

The Council has also provided an assurance that it will meet the pension liabilities of Tower Hamlets Homes in the event the ALMO is 
unable to fund the liabilities arising from its pension obligations. The liability as at 31st March 2014 was £1.572m (£5.338m 2012/13).

Each member of the pension fund committee is required to declare their interests at each meeting of the Committee.  These are recorded 
as part of the public record of each meeting. For 2013/14 there were no  Members of the Pension Fund Committee who had involvement 
with other organisations. 

Governance

92



 

 

Independent auditor’s report to the members of the London Borough of Tower 

Hamlets 

To Follow – allow 4 pages 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

93



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

94



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

95



96



STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 

The Council’s responsibilities 

The Council is required: 

• To make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure
that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this
Council, that officer is the Corporate Director of Resources.

• To manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and
safeguard its assets.

• To consider and approve the Statement of Accounts.

The Statement of Accounts for 2013/14 will be considered for approval by the Council’s Audit 
Committee on 23rd September 2015. 

Chair of Committee 

The responsibilities of the Corporate Director of Resources 

The Corporate Director of Resources is responsible for the preparation of the Council’s Statement of 
Accounts in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on 
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (“the Code of Practice”). 

In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Corporate Director of Resources has: 

• Selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently
• Made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent
• Complied with the Code of Practice.

The Corporate Director of Resources has also: 

• Kept proper accounting records which were up to date
• Taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

I certify that the Statement of Accounts 2013/14 presents fairly the financial position of the Council at 
31st March 2014 and its income and expenditure for the year. 

Zena Cooke 
Corporate Director of Resources 
Re–certified 23rd September 2015 

Original Certification 
Chris Holme – Acting Corporate Director of Resources 
30th June 2014  

97



Draft Annual Governance Statement 2013/14 

Tower Hamlets LBC (Tower Hamlets) is required by law to prepare a statement that details the Council’s framework 
for making decisions and controlling its resources. The statement includes the Council’s governance arrangements as 
well as control issues. This statement should enable stakeholders to have assurance that decisions are properly made 
and public money is being properly spent on behalf of citizens. The statement below complies with the Accounts and 
Audit Regulations 2003 as amended. 

1. Scope of Responsibility

Tower Hamlets is responsible for ensuring its business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, 
and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively. 
The Council also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous 
improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency 
and effectiveness. In discharging this overall responsibility, Tower Hamlets is responsible for putting in place proper 
arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, which includes 
arrangements for the management of risk. Risk management is a principal element of corporate governance, to this 
end a risk management strategy was adopted in March 2002 and is regularly reviewed and endorsed by the Mayor in 
Cabinet and the Head of Paid Service and was most recently endorsed in June 2014. 

Tower Hamlets’ has approved and adopted a code of corporate governance which is consistent with the principles of 
the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework, Delivering Good Governance in Local Government. A copy of the code is on our 
website at www.towerhamlets.gov.uk  or can be obtained from the Council's monitoring officer. This statement 
explains how Tower Hamlets currently complies with the code and also meets the requirements of regulation 4(2) of 
the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 as amended by the Accounts and Audit (Amendment) (England) 
Regulations 2006 in relation to the publication of the Annual Governance Statement. On 4th April 2014, the 
Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC) to carry 
out a Best Value inspection of the Council. PWC have completed their work and their findings are shown under 
section 4 of this statement, under Review of Effectiveness.  

The Council's Standards Advisory Committee received an update in June 2013 of the Council’s current local 
governance arrangements and the report recommended areas of improvement as part of the continuous improvement 
processes of the Council’s governance arrangements. Actions arising from this review continue to be monitored and 
implemented, a further review of the Council’s governance arrangements is underway. 

2. The Purpose of the Governance Framework

The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, and culture and values, by which the authority 
directs and controls its activities and through which, it accounts to, engages with and leads the community. It enables 
the authority to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led 
to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services. 

The system of internal control is a significant part of the governance framework and is designed to manage risk to a 
reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and can therefore only 
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-
going process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to achievement of Tower Hamlets’ policies, aims and 
objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to 
manage any such risks efficiently, effectively and economically. 

Tower Hamlets’ governance framework exists through its systems, processes, culture and values. These are regularly 
reviewed. The governance framework has been in place throughout the year ended 31 March 2014 and up to the date 
of approval of the statement of accounts.  

Independent Members of the Standards Advisory Committee review the Council’s performance in adhering to the core 
principles of good governance, which form Tower Hamlets Code of Corporate Governance. Following abolition of the 
Standards Board for England, local arrangements have been put in place including a code of conduct for elected 
members with a report being presented to the Full Council on 16 May 2012. The new regime operated from 1 July 
2012. 

98



 
 
3.  The Governance Framework 
 
The key elements of the systems and processes that comprise the Authority’s governance arrangements are 
described below. 
 
 
3.1  Vision and Priorities 
 
The Council’s vision is to improve the quality of life for everyone living and working in Tower Hamlets. This involves 
helping to create a thriving, achieving community in which people feel at ease with one another, have good learning 
and employment opportunities, experience a higher standard of living and good health, and enjoy a safe and an 
attractive environment together with a wide range of cultural and leisure opportunities.  
 
The Council is part of the Tower Hamlets Partnership with a vision to 2020 set out in the borough’s Sustainable 
Community Strategy, known as the Community Plan.  The Community Plan has four main themes to make Tower 
Hamlets: 
 
• A Great Place to Live  - Tower Hamlets will be a place where people live in quality affordable housing, 

located in clean and safe neighbourhoods served by well connected and easy to access services and 
community facilities;  

• A Prosperous Community  - Tower Hamlets will be a place where everyone, regardless of their background 
and circumstances, has the aspiration and opportunity to achieve their full potential; 

• A Safe and Cohesive Community  - Tower Hamlets will be a safer place where people feel safe, get on 
better together and difference is not seen as a threat but a core strength of the borough; and 

• A Healthy and Supportive Community  - Tower Hamlets will be a place where people are supported to live 
healthier, more independent lives and the risk of harm and neglect to vulnerable children and adults is 
reduced. 

 
Running through this vision is the core theme of “One Tower Hamlets” with a focus and drive around reducing 
inequality, strengthening community cohesion and working in partnership. The Council’s strategic plan flows from the 
Community Plan themes and for 2013/14, 19 priorities were identified, (http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/lgsl/20001-
20100/strategic_plan_2013-14.aspx). Within these broad themes, there are five strong priorities for the Council which 
the Mayor has made the centre-piece of his aspirations for the borough – these are: 
 
• Increasing the availability of affordable family sized housing and reducing overcrowding; 
• Improving attainment at age 16 and above and increasing activities out of school for young people; 
• Further reducing crime and anti-social behaviour; 
• Tackling worklessness; and 
• Further improving cleanliness and the public realm. 
 
Underpinning the Community Plan Themes and corporate priorities are the core values, which all officers are 
expected to adhere to, to build a more effective organisation.  The Council's values are: 
 
• Achieving results 
• Engaging with others  
• Valuing diversity 
• Learning effectively 
 
There was significant consultation with local people to develop the Community Plan through Local Strategic 
Partnership (LSP) events, as well as targeted consultation including with young people, older people, faith groups and 
disabled people, culminating in the development of the Tower Hamlets Community Plan 2011.  The Plan is due to be 
refreshed in 2014/15.  
 
The vision, themes and priorities of the Community Plan are delivered through the Tower Hamlets Partnership 
structures which comprise the Partnership Executive, the Community Plan Delivery Groups (CPDGs), and localised 
governance structures. 
 
The Community Plan falls within the Council’s Budget and Policy Framework.  This requires that Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee are given 10 working days to comment on the draft plans, that the Mayor in Cabinet takes account 
of Overview and Scrutiny Committee comments in their consideration of the draft plans before recommending them to 
Full Council.  The Plan is subject to approval by Full Council. 
 
 

99



 
 
3.2  Corporate and Service Plans 
 
The overall planning framework is illustrated in the following diagram.  As the diagram below shows, the Council aligns 
its Strategic Plan with the Community Plan and is structured around the themes, priorities and objectives of the 
Community Plan. 
 
The Strategic Plan is refreshed each year through Cabinet, at which time it is also reviewed by Overview and Scrutiny.  
The Community Plan is refreshed every three years. 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
The Council’s vision, priorities and objectives are used to structure all directorate service plans and Personal 
Development Plans (PDPs).  This ensures that there is a “golden thread” that runs from the Community Plan to each 
individual employee’s work.  This helps ensure that the vision, priorities and objectives are communicated to and 
delivered at all levels of the organisation.  Further communication of core values and key initiatives takes place 
through the Council’s staff newsletter “Tower Hamlets Now”. 
 
 
3.3  Performance Management 
 
The Council operates a comprehensive performance management framework to ensure that strategic priorities are 
embedded in service, team and individual performance development plans; that resources are linked to operational 
aims and plans; and that progress against plans and targets is monitored and evaluated at all levels. 
 
The Council’s Corporate Management Team (CMT), comprising the Corporate Directors for each service (including 
the Council’s Section 151 officer and the Monitoring Officer), is responsible for the overall management of the Council. 
The CMT also has responsibility for reviewing and challenging the Council’s performance and delivery of the strategic 
plan.  
 
 
 
 
 

COMMUNITY PLAN  
A strategic document prepared in partnership with local agencies (including the Police, NHS, 

Probation Service, Voluntary Sector etc) and people living and working in the borough. 

THE COUNCIL'S STRATEGIC PLAN  
The Council's corporate aims, objectives and key activities to achieve them, along with an 

analysis of performance against targets and future targets. 
 
 

SERVICE AND DIRECTORATE PLANS  
Linking operational aims and objectives for services/directorates to resource use.   

Purpose 
Strategic 

Focus 
Broad 

  

Specific 

TYPE OF PLAN 

TEAM PLANS  
Operational objectives and activities for teams working within services. 

PERSONAL DEVELOPMENT PLANS  
Set out performance objectives and training and development needs for individual staff. 

Operational 

100



 
 
3.4  Council Constitution 
 
The Council has an agreed Constitution that details how the Council operates and sets out: 
 
• the rules and procedures to be followed by the Council and committees when conducting their business;  
• the decision making powers of the Executive and of Committees; 
• the  financial and contract regulations;  
• the scheme of delegation to chief officers;  
• codes of conduct for councillors and employees; and 
• members' interests and allowances.  
 
 
Under the Council’s constitution, the Executive is the elected Mayor, who makes decisions in respect of all executive 
matters which cover the operational delivery of Council services within the delegation set out under the executive 
powers of the constitution. In making his decisions the Mayor is supported by the Cabinet, Corporate Directors and 
other officers of the Council. The Full Council retains some strategic decision making responsibilities such as the 
budget approval and the setting of Council Tax. A scheme of delegation is in place to enable officers to manage their 
services operationally.  
 
All key decisions required are published in advance in the Executive’s Forward Plan, and will generally be discussed 
in a meeting open to the public.  
 
In 2012, the Council requested a governance review of the constitution which was undertaken during 2013/14. This 
review has indicated that the constitution is fit for purpose and conforms with statute and best practice. The review has 
indicated that there are some areas of the constitution where we have options to expand or amend wording to clarify 
certain issues.  The Interim Monitoring Officer is reviewing the work done to date and will develop an options paper for 
consideration by a new Constitution Working Party to be set up after the 2014 election. A verbal update on the work of 
the Constitutional Working Party was given by the Monitoring Officer to the General Purposes Committee in 
September 2014. The Monitoring Officer continues to work with the General Purposes Committee to complete the 
constitutional review. 
 
The Council will consider and approve any changes proposed to the key strategic policies set out in article 4 of the 
constitution, including: 
 
• the constitution; 
• the corporate performance plan; 
• the corporate strategy; 
• the medium term financial plan including the capital programme and annual revenue budget; 
• the licencing policy; and 
• the local development framework. 
 
 
3.5  Codes of Conduct 
 
The Council has a code of conduct for officers supported by a requirement to make declarations of interest and to 
declare gifts and hospitality. Interests must be declared by officers above a certain grade and those in certain decision 
making and procurement positions. Officers are required to generally decline gifts and hospitality to ensure they are 
not inappropriately influenced. These codes and processes are made available to staff as part of their induction; they 
are also on the intranet and training is available to ensure every member of staff understands their responsibilities.  
 
Councillors are required to make declarations of interest when elected and to consider their interests and make 
appropriate declarations at each meeting they attend. Councillors must also declare any gifts and hospitality with the 
records made public on the Council’s website.  
 
 
3.6  Rules, Regulations,  Policies, and Procedures 
 
The Council’s rules and procedure is part of four of the Council’s Constitution. The Council has a duty to ensure that it 
acts in accordance with the law and relevant regulations in the performance of its functions. It has developed policies 
and procedures to ensure that, as far as are reasonably possible, all Members and officers understand their 
responsibilities both to the Council and to the public. These include the Constitution, Standing Orders, Financial 
Regulations and Financial Procedures, Codes of Conduct and Protocols. Key documents are available to Members 
and staff through the Council’s intranet and to a wider audience through publication on the Council’s website. All 

101



 
 
policies are subject to periodic review to ensure that they remain relevant and reflect changes to legislation and other 
developments in the environment within which the Council operates. 
 
 
3.7  Overview and Scrutiny 
 
During 2013/14 the work of the Executive was scrutinised by an Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the Health 
Scrutiny Panel. A “call-in” procedure allows Scrutiny to review Executive decisions before they are implemented, and 
to recommend alternative courses of action. 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny function reviews decisions made by the Mayor in Cabinet and raises proposals for the 
Mayor in Cabinet from its annual plan of work. The focus of their role is thus to provide a challenge and to support the 
development of policies. At their meetings they also consider performance monitoring information and have a key role 
in reviewing and challenging the Mayor in Cabinet’s budget prior to consideration at Full Council. 
 
 
3.8  Audit Committee 
 
For 2013/14, the Audit Committee comprised seven members; four from the majority group and one each from the 
three largest minority groups in proportion to their representation on the Council. The Audit Committee’s remit is to 
review the Council’s systems of internal control and its risk management and governance arrangements, as outlined in 
the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. The Audit Committee also reviews audit findings and the effectiveness of 
the internal audit function. Specifically, the core functions of the Audit Committee are to consider the annual audit plan 
and the performance of internal audit; to be satisfied that the authority’s annual governance statement properly 
reflects the risk environment; to demonstrate its fiduciary responsibilities in preventing and detecting fraud; to monitor 
the authority’s risk management framework; to meet the accounts and audit regulations in respect of approving the 
authority’s Annual Financial Report, including the annual statement of accounts, and to consider reports from the 
Council’s external auditor, KPMG. The Audit Committee met four times during the financial year 2013/14. 
 
 
3.9  Internal Audit 
 
Internal Audit provides assurance and advice on internal control to the Mayor, the Corporate Management Team and 
Members. Internal Audit reviews and evaluates the adequacy, reliability and effectiveness of internal control and 
where relevant, recommends improvements. It also supports the management of the Council in developing its 
systems and providing advice on matters pertaining to risk and control.  
 
Internal audit is an independent appraisal function that measures, evaluates and reports upon the effectiveness of the 
controls in place to manage risks. In carrying out this function Internal Audit contributes to the discharge of the 
Corporate Director, Resources’ Section 151 responsibilities.  
 
The work of the Internal Audit Section is monitored and reviewed by the Audit Committee. Annually the Head of Audit 
and Risk Management is required to give an opinion on the Council’s internal control framework based upon the work 
carried out during the year in the form of an annual report. For 2013/14, the overall the control environment is 
adjudged to be adequate. 
 
Following the publication of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS), the Council’s internal audit 
arrangements have been updated and the Audit Charter endorsed by the Audit Committee most recently in June 
2014. 
 
3.10  External Audit 
 
The Council’s external auditors, KPMG: 
 
• Review the Council’s accounts to ensure that they comply with statutory requirements and that proper practices 

have been observed in compiling them; and  
 
• Conclude on the Council’s arrangements in place for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 

resources (the value for money conclusion).  
 
In 2012/13 KPMG issued an unqualified audit opinion on the Council’s financial statements and were satisfied that the 
Council had put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources 
for that year.  
 

102



 
 
 
3.11  Whistle Blowing Policy and the Complaints Procedure 
 
The Council has a recognised complaints process which is administered by the Complaints and Information team. The 
complaints process comprises of a number of stages to enable the public to escalate their complaints if they are not 
satisfied with the answer they receive. Details of complaints are monitored by the Monitoring Officer and the 
Standards Advisory Committee.  
 
The Mayor and elected Members also receive enquiries and complaints via their surgeries, walkabouts and question 
time activities. The Council has arrangements to support members in addressing these queries to ensure that the 
public receive an appropriate answer. 
 
The Council also has a whistle blowing policy which is actively promoted with the number of whistle blows received 
during the year reported to the Corporate Management Team and the Audit Committee. The effectiveness of this 
policy and the type of issues raised are reviewed and monitored by the Audit Committee on an annual basis. 
 
Tower Hamlets also participates in the National Fraud Initiative (NFI) a computerised data matching exercise, led by 
the Audit Commission, designed to detect fraud perpetrated on public bodies.  The Corporate Anti-Fraud team 
continues to actively engage with the Audit Commission to test and improve the output from the NFI exercise. 
 
 
3.12  Risk Management 
 
The Authority has a Risk Management Strategy to identify and manage the principal risks to achieving its objectives. 
The principles of risk management are embedded in the Council’s decision making processes. The Strategy 
recognises that when making decisions the Council may not always adopt the least risky option, particularly where the 
potential benefits to the community warrant the acceptance of a higher level of risk.  All committee reports seeking 
decisions or approval to a proposed course of action contain an assessment of the risk involved and both financial and 
legal comments.  
 
Key risks are recorded in corporate and directorate risk registers, which are subject to periodic review and reporting to 
the Corporate Management Team. Directorate Risk Champions oversee the continued development of the Council’s 
approach to risk management. 
 
During 2013, Zurich Municipal Engineering undertook a review of the Council’s risk management arrangements and 
suggested enhancements to further embed risk management within the organisation. The risk team has developed an 
action plan and an Annual report which was also shared with the Audit Committee in June 2014. 
 
 
3.13  Financial Management 
 
Statutory responsibility for ensuring that there is an effective system of internal financial control rests with the 
Corporate Director, Resources (the Council’s S151 officer). The system of internal financial control provides 
reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded, that transactions are authorised and properly recorded, and that 
material errors or irregularities are either prevented or will be detected.  
 
Internal financial control is based on a well established framework of financial regulations and financial procedures 
which include the segregation of duties, management supervision and a system of delegation and accountability. On-
going development and maintenance of the various processes is a management responsibility. The control 
arrangements in 2013/14 included: 
 
• comprehensive corporate and directorate budgeting systems; 
• an annual budget approved by the Council that reflects strategic priorities; 
• a medium-term financial plan incorporating an analysis of the financial risks facing the Council over the next three 

years and an assessment of the adequacy of General Fund and HRA reserves; 
• regular reporting of actual expenditure and income against budgets and spending forecasts and service 

performance against targets; 
• an annual Treasury Management and Investment Strategy including a prudential borrowing framework and 

associated indicators; and 
• standing meetings of finance managers from across the Council (Finance Strategy Group and the Financial 

Reporting Technical Excellence Group) . 
 
Since the publication of the CIPFA statement on the role of the Financial Officer in Local Government (2010), a self 
assessment of the Council has shown the authority conforms to the good practice identified within the code.  

103



 
 
3.14  The Efficient and Effective Use of Resources 
 
Value for money and continuous service improvement are secured through a range of processes, including the 
application of best value principles and the carrying out of efficiency reviews. During 2013/14, the Council continued 
work on its efficiency programme and has made plans to manage with significantly reduced financial resource in the 
future. As part of its service and financial planning process, the Council set efficiency targets and brought performance 
data into the consideration of resource allocation. As noted under the Scope of Responsibility (section 1) of this 
statement, the authority has been subject to a Best Value inspection and the findings arising from the inspection are 
captured under review of effectiveness (Section 4). KPMG’s most recent assessment on the Council’s arrangements 
in place for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resource in relation to 2012/13 concluded that 
the Council had put proper arrangements in place. 
 
The strategic planning process ensures that resources are focused on the priorities set out in the Strategic Plan. 
Processes for service and financial planning are aligned and the annual budget process evaluates new requirements 
for resources in terms of their contribution to the objectives of the Strategic Plan. Corporate guidance on team 
planning requires consideration of value for money issues in developing annual objectives. Reports concerned with 
proposed expenditure, reviewing or changing service delivery or the use of resources contain an efficiency statement 
setting out how the proposals will assist towards achieving greater efficiency together with associated Equality Impact 
Assessments. 
 
 
3.15  Learning and Organisational Development 
 
The Council has a commitment that every member of staff receives an annual appraisal to discuss performance, 
targets and personal development. The Council provides a range of training opportunities for managers and staff to 
ensure that they are best equipped to deliver excellent public service. These include a Leadership programme, 
specific training relating to Recruitment and Selection, Risk Management, and computer based training.  
 
Councillors have a member support officer and a development program to keep them up to date with changes and to 
support training needs. Training is supplemented by information through briefings, conferences and weekly bulletins. 
For some aspects of Council work Members are required to undertake a period of study and pass a test to ensure 
they can demonstrate appropriate competence, for example the Licensing Committee. 
 
 
3.16  Communication and Engagement 
 
The Council publishes numerous documents on its website as well as providing a weekly paper, East End Life to keep 
residents up-to-date, in an informal and accessible way, on the work of the Council. The Secretary of State is 
considering whether the Council can continue to publish the weekly paper, East End Life.   
 
The Council also engages with citizens through surveys such as the annual resident’s survey and a tenants’ survey. 
These help to inform the Council on the perception of the services it provides and the experience of services users. 
Further, the authority uses its citizen engagement portal to engage with a wide range of stakeholders. The Council’s 
website is continually being developed to provide more information, enable more services to take place electronically 
and to receive comments from all stakeholders. 
 
On a more local basis the Council has a number of community forums which are used to engage with the community. 
Young people make up a greater proportion of the Tower Hamlets population compared to the rest of London, and the 
Council has thus sought to engage with them by enabling them to vote for a young Mayor of the Council. The young 
Mayor has a clear manifesto and is working to make a difference to young people’s lives within the borough. 
 
The Mayor’s twice weekly surgeries with community groups, local businesses and others also provide direct 
communication and engagement with all stakeholders.   
 
Elected Members of the council also hold regular surgeries for their wards. 
 
 
3.17  Partnerships 
 
The most significant partnership for the Council is the Tower Hamlets Partnership. In February 2012, the partnership 
structure was refreshed. In the new structure, the Partnership Executive and Board has been rationalised but still with 
responsibility for developing the overall strategy and for ensuring plans are delivered. The Community Plan Delivery 
Groups have been updated but with continued focus on the five key themes in the community plan including the 
statutory boards. The previously established eight local area partnerships whose role was to allow residents to 

104



 
 
influence their locality have been changed with the creation of Mayoral Assemblies. The Mayor’s Assemblies are a 
new element of the structure and provide a mechanism for residents to engage with the Mayor, the Cabinet and cross 
agency public service providers at a local level.  
 
The Council also has partnership arrangements with the clinical commissioning groups and the partnership has led on 
a number of public health programmes in recent months. There are also partnership arrangements with the Police, 
Probation and Youth Justice services to help to meet the targets for reducing crime and making Tower Hamlets a 
safer and stronger community.  
 
The Council has an established Arm’s Length Management Organisation, Tower Hamlets Homes, a wholly owned 
subsidiary limited by guarantee to manage its housing stock. Tower Hamlets Homes has a formal governance 
structure and manages its internal affairs and delegated budgets through the Company’s Board. Performance is 
monitored through a regular review process with senior council officers and elected Members. The company operates 
its own risk management strategy and is subject to internal and external inspections and audit in compliance with the 
Companies Acts. 
 
 
4.  Review of Effectiveness 
 
The Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of the system of internal 
control. The review of effectiveness is informed by the work of the executive managers within the authority who have 
responsibility for the development and maintenance of governance environment, the head of audit’s annual report, 
and also by comments made by the external auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates. The review 
involved the evaluation of the key sources of assurance: 

 
• The Council evaluated its corporate governance arrangements against good practice criteria set out in the 

CIPFA/SOLACE guidance. The arrangements were found to be sound albeit recommendations were made to 
enhance current arrangements.  
 

• The annual Head of Audit Opinion expressed the opinion that overall the Council’s system of internal control is 
adequate.  

 
• The risk management framework, including the corporate and directorate risk registers, provides assurance that 

the key risks to strategic objectives are managed effectively and are monitored by senior officers and Members. 
 

• The Council is subject to external audit activity both corporately and for individual services. The judgements of the 
external auditors contained in their annual audit letter and other reports provide assurance that the Council has a 
reasonable system of internal control.  

 
• Monitoring of performance shows improvement in performance against external measures, the Council’s own 

targets and in comparison to other authorities.  
 
• The provisional outturn on the 2013/14 budget shows that the financial management systems and processes of 

the Council succeeded in keeping expenditure within planned limits.  
 
• Quarterly monitoring of strategic risks of the Council by the Corporate Management Team and the Mayor’s 

Advisory Board. 
 
 
We have been advised on the implications of the review of the effectiveness of the governance systems of the Council 
having regard to the sources of assurance set out in this statement, and we are satisfied that the system of control is 
effective. We propose over the coming year to take steps to further enhance our governance arrangements.  
 
On 4th April the DCLG appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers to carry out an inspection of compliance by the London 
Borough of Tower Hamlets with the requirements of Part 1 of the Local Government Act in relation to the authority’s 
functions in respect of governance, particularly in respect of the authority’s functions under Section 151 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 and as they relate to the following: 
 
• The authority’s payment of grants and connected decisions; 
• Transfer of property to third parties; 
• Spending and decisions in relation to publicity; and 
• Processes and practices relating to entering of contracts.    
 

105



 
 
PricewaterhouseCoopers published their final report on 4 November 2014. In their report, PWC reported that the 
authority was not achieving Best Value in the following areas: - 
 

• The authority’s payments of grants and connected decisions; 
• The transfer of property to third party; and 
• Spending and the decisions of the authority in relation to publicity 

  

In respect of processes and practices relating to entering of contacts, the inspectors reported the Council was 
complying with its Best Value duty but highlighted areas where the authority could improve.  
 
The Secretary of State has considered the report and representations from the Council and issued Directions on 17 
December 2014. The directions issued by the Secretary of State to the Council were to:- 
 

• Draw up and agree with the Commissioners a strategy and action plan for securing the authority’s compliance 
with its Best Value duty, including putting in place robust and transparent arrangements for grant decisions; 

• Report on progress against the strategy and plan on a six monthly basis to the Secretary of State; 
• Undertake a recruitment exercise with the aim of appointing to all posts designated as statutory officers of the 

Council within three months of the Secretary of State’s directions; 
• Obtain written agreement of the Commissioners before entering into any commitment to dispose of, or 

otherwise transfer to third parties, any real property other than existing single dwellings for the purposes of 
residential occupation; 

• Prepare a fully costed plan for the authority’s proper use of publicity and agree that plan with the 
Commissioners; 

• Prepare and implement an action plan in consultation with the Commissioners to achieve improvements in 
relation to the processes and practices the authority adopts for entering into contracts; 

  
Further details of the directions can be found at https://www.gov.uk/government/news/secretary-of-state-sends-in-
commissioners-to-tower-hamlets. 
 
The Council is co-operating fully with the Commissioners to ensure it complies with the directions issued by the 
Secretary of State and the matters raised in the PwC report, and address the issues raised as soon as possible.  
 
 
Significant Governance Issues 
 
 
The review of the effectiveness of the governance arrangements in 2013/14 has identified areas where action is 
appropriate to enhance the Council’s governance. The specific actions are set out below and in all cases work is 
already underway to address the action points as shown by the reference to the strategic or directorate plan of the 
Council.  
 
 
Governance Issue  Action taken and next steps  CMT Lead  

Payments to third sector organisations 
outside Mainstream Grants. 

Following an external referral, internal 
audit findings from a review of an 
organisation that received payments 
from the Council raised concerns that 
have been reported to the police. 

A wider review of process 
management is underway covering all 
grant making and spot purchase 
functions. 

Corporate 
Director -  
Communities, 
Localities and 
Culture 

A comprehensive review of the 
management arrangements for the 
control and monitoring of grants.  

 

In view of the issues raised by the 
inspection around the current 
Mainstream Grant Programme and any 
future refresh of the programme, 
consideration is being given to 
proposals to improve the governance 
arrangements for third sector grants. 

Corporate 
Director -  
Development 
and Renewal 

106



 
 
Governance Issue  Action taken and next steps  CMT Lead  

 This will include improvements to 
management functions and systems, 
controls and processes.  

Strengthen controls over disposal of 
assets that demonstrate best value is 
secured by the Council. 

Following an investigation into disposal 
of assets by Mazars (Council’s internal 
audit partners), an action plan has 
been developed to improve the control 
environment by the end of the financial 
year. 

Corporate 
Director -  
Development 
and Renewal 

To make suitable permanent 
appointments to the posts designated as 
statutory officers of the Council. 

All statutory officer posts are in various 
stages of the appointment process with 
a view to making permanent 
appointments as soon as possible.  

Council 

Financial and workforce impact of 
delivering the new and revised duties 
within the Care Act (Care and Health 
Reform Bill). 

A Care and Health reform programme 
has been set up to oversee the 
implementation of the Care act. Work 
streams are planned out and risks 
identified, as follows: - 

Careful planning of the programme 
resources required and use of the 
grant money agreed. 

Programme Manager appointed within 
ESCW and is linked into the London 
region ADASS network that informs 
DH on funding issues. The Interim 
Corporate Director, Resources is a 
member of the Board. 

The next steps include development of 
work streams to identify workforce 
needs and issues that are being fed 
into a workforce lead in HR, which is 
linked to national and regional work. 

Careful planning of all work to deliver 
the changes to be through bespoke 
governance arrangements designed by 
the Programme Manager. 

Corporate 
Director -  
Education, 
Social Care 
and Wellbeing 

Pupil Place Planning to expand school 
provision to meet the rising demand for 
places. 

The directorate has identified the short 
term primary place needs (2014/15 
school year) and developed a technical 
feasibility plan of temporary school 
expansion.  

Further steps are planned to 
strengthen the pupil projections by 
engaging the Greater London Authority 
with projections modelling to ensure 
the pupil planning is based on robust 
data. Current medium term expansion 

Corporate 
Director -  
Education, 
Social Care 
and Wellbeing 

107



 
 
Governance Issue  Action taken and next steps  CMT Lead  

plans will continue to be implemented 
in to 2015/16. 

Budget pressures for adult social care 
packages have emerged during 
2013/14, which have been contained 
within existing directorate resources. 
The on-going position however points to 
an unfunded set of adults social care 
package. 

Action has been initiated by the 
directorate, which includes; transfer of 
management accountability to Adults 
Social Care service area; improved 
process, regularity and administration 
of care panels; and enhanced 
arrangements for identifying, 
monitoring and controlling costs. 

The next steps include the need to 
strengthen financial controls and lines 
of accountability; improved data quality 
and consideration of the policy 
framework. 

Corporate 
Director -  
Education, 
Social Care 
and Wellbeing 

Update the constitution to expand 
wording to clarify certain issues with the 
General Purposes Committee and 
update the local code of corporate 
governance. 

The Local Government Association 
reviewed the Council’s constitution and 
indicated that the constitution is fit for 
purpose and conforms with statute and 
best practice. Further, recognising that 
there may be areas where the 
authority may learn from other 
authorities with an Executive Mayor, 
an independent external review was 
also commissioned comparing the 
Council’s constitution with those of 
similar local authorities. This review 
confirmed there were no fundamental 
weaknesses of gaps in the Council’s 
constitution. There are opportunities to 
word elements more clearly or tighten 
up some areas of process to enable 
the Executive and non-Executive 
business to run more smoothly.  

Monitoring 
Officer – Law 
Probity and 
Governance 

Election and pre-election period.  Elections in Tower Hamlets are always 
vigorously contested and in the past 
there have been allegations of 
malpractice. These have been fully 
investigated by the police and Electoral 
Commission and none have been 
upheld. The Electoral Commission 
made various recommendations about 
improving the trust and confidence in 
the integrity of May 2014 elections, 
which have been implemented. 

The Electoral Commission has 
reviewed progress in the 
implementation of the 
recommendations and has strongly 
supported the steps that have been 

Returning 
Officer – Law 
Probity and 
Governance 

108



 
 
Governance Issue  Action taken and next steps  CMT Lead  

taken. 

In preparation for the 2015 general 
election, further action is planned to 
tighten up procedures around 
registration for, and management of 
postal votes. Other actions include; 
joint on-going working between the 
Returning Officer and police to deter 
and detect electoral fraud; local 
protocol committing all those involved 
in May 2014 elections to work towards 
free and fair elections; pre-election 
guidance reviewed and issued to all 
managers, staff and members and pre-
election restrictions from 14 April 
including complete review of Council 
website and other publicity.  

Enhance the financial system to 
maximise benefits derived from the 
enhanced functionality of the new 
finance system and refresh of financial 
regulations and procedures. 

The Council made a decision to 
replace its outmoded financial system 
to meet the evolving information needs 
of its users and the Council. The new 
system went live in May 2013 and 
working with the Council’s Strategic IT 
partner, Agilisys, the new 
arrangements continue to be 
monitored to ensure that they deliver 
the expected benefits and enhanced 
systems of controls.  

During 2013/14, the finance team was 
also re-structured to better align the 
finance service to the needs of the 
organisation. During 2014/15, the new 
structure will be monitored and key 
roles filled and the Council’s financial 
regulations and procedures refreshed. 

 

Interim 
Corporate 
Director -  
Resources 

Enhance contract management and 
contract letting process. 

 

The Procurement Strategy and 
procedures have been refreshed and 
adopted.  

To ensure compliance around 
procurement, the Competition Planning 
Forum and the Competition Board 
continue to monitor and recommend 
the best course of action for all 
significant purchases.  

The new procedures now provide 
greater visibility and input from the 
Corporate procurement team and over 
the next financial year, the team plan 

Chair of 
Competition 
Board – 
Interim 
Corporate 
Director, 
Resources 

109



 
 
Governance Issue  Action taken and next steps  CMT Lead  

to seek better outcomes from the 
organisation’s spend and enhance 
contract monitoring arrangements 
across the organisation. 

Governance arrangements at schools Following internal audit findings from 
regularity audits of schools and 
external referrals alleging irregularity at 
some schools, the governance 
arrangements are being reviewed with 
a view to ensuring sound practices are 
in place. 

Corporate 
Director -  
Education, 
Social Care 
and Wellbeing 

 
 
 
 
We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters to further enhance our governance 
arrangements and address the matters raised in the Best Value inspection. We are satisfied that these steps will 
address the need for improvement that were identified in our review of effectiveness and will monitor their 
implementation and operation as part of our next annual review. 
 
 
 
 
 
……….……….……….……….……….   ……….……….……….……….………. 
 

Head of Paid Service     Mayor 

Date:       Date:  
 

110



GLOSSARY OF FINANCIAL TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS 

The following terms and abbreviations, while not being exhaustive, may provide assistance in 
understanding the Statement of Accounts. 

FINANCIAL TERMS  

Acc ounting period  – The period of time covered by the Council’s accounts.  The Council’s financial 
year is from the period 1st April to the following 31st March. 

Accounting policies – The specific principles, bases, conventions, rules, and practices, applied by 
the Council, in preparing and presenting the financial statements. 

Accounting standards – A set of rules explaining how accounts are to be kept. (See ‘International 
Financial Reporting Standards’) 

Accrual – The recognition of income and expenditure in the year that they occur and not when any 
cash is received or paid. 

Accumulated Absences Account – This account represents the value of leave rolled over from one 
financial year to another.  This reserve account is used to avoid reducing general fund reserves.   

Actuary – An independent adviser to the Council on the financial position of the Pension Fund. 

Actuarial Valuation – Every three years the Actuary reviews the assets and liabilities of the Pension 
Fund and reports to the Council on the fund’s financial position and recommended employers’ 
contribution rates.  The most recent valuation was in 2013. 

Agency services – Services provided by or for another local authority or public body where the cost 
of carrying out the service is reimbursed.  

Arm’s Length Management Organisation (ALMO) – Arm's length management organisation.  An 
organisation set up to manage all or part of a local authority's housing stock. Ownership of the stock 
remains with the local authority. 

Amortisation – The writing off of an intangible asset or loan balance to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement over an appropriate period of time. 

Amortised Cost – The carrying value of an intangible asset or liability in the balance sheet, which has 
been written up or down via the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

Asset  – Something valuable that the Council owns, benefits from, or has use of, in generating 
income.  

Balance Sheet – A statement of all the assets, liabilities and other balances of the Council at the end 
of an accounting period. 

Benchmarking - the analysis of selected activities and processes, and their comparison with similar 
analyses for other organisations. 

Billing Authority – Refers to a local authority that is responsible for the collection of tax, both on 
behalf of itself and local authorities in its area. 

Budget – A forecast of future expenditure plans for the Council. Detailed revenue budgets are 
prepared for each year and it is on the basis of these figures that the Council Tax is set. Budgets are 
revised throughout the year for changes as necessary. 

111



Business Rate Supplement – The Business Rate Supplements Act 2009 enables levying authorities 
- county councils, unitary district councils and, in London, the Greater London Authority - to levy a 
supplement on the Business Rate to support additional projects aimed at economic development of 
the area.  
 
Capital Adjustment Account – Represents amounts set aside from revenue resources or capital 
receipts to finance expenditure on property, plant, and equipment (PPE) or for the repayment of 
external loans, or certain other capital financing transactions. 
 
Capital Expenditure – Expenditure on the acquisition of property, plant, and equipment (PPE) or 
expenditure which adds to the value of an existing item of PPE. 
 
Capital Financing Requirement – Represents the Council’s underlying need to borrow for a capital 
purpose. 
 
Capital Grants Receipts in Advance – Balances of capital grants and contributions that have 
conditions which may require future repayment if not spent. 
 
Capital Grants Unapplied  – Grant balances that will be used for future capital expenditure. 
 
Capital Receipt – Income received from the sale of PPE such as land or buildings. 
 
Capital Receipts Reserve – Represents proceeds from the sale of PPE available to meet future 
capital investment. 
 
Carrying Value – In relation to the value of assets, the value is based on the original cost of the asset 
less any depreciation, amortization or impairment costs made against the asset. It is the amount to be 
recognised on the Balance Sheet. 
 
Cash Equivalents  – Highly liquid and safe investments that can easily be converted into cash. 
 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) – A professional accountancy 
body, that specialises in the Public Sector. It promotes best practice by issuing guidelines and Codes 
of Practice. 
 
Collection Fund – A statutory account which receives Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates to cover 
the costs of services provided by the Council and its precepting authorities. 
 
Collection Fund Adjustment Account  – The Collection Fund Adjustment Account represents the 
Council’s share of the Collection Fund Surplus/Deficit.  
 
Community Assets - Assets that a local authority intends to hold in perpetuity, that have no 
determinable useful life and that may have restrictions on their disposal. Examples of Community 
Assets are parks and historic buildings. 
 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement - A statement showing the expenditure and 
income of the Council’s services during the year, and demonstrating how costs have been financed 
from general Government grants and income from local taxpayers. 
 
Contingent Liability - Where possible “one-off” future liabilities or losses are identified, but the level 
of uncertainty is such that the establishment of a provision is not appropriate. 
 
Corporate and Democratic Core (CDC)  - This includes corporate policy making, activities that relate 
to the corporate management of the Council and all other member-based activities. Under the terms 
of SeRCOP, all support costs are allocated to services except for CDC and Non Distributed Costs. 
 
Consumer Price Index (CPI) – Measures the average change in retail prices of a basket of goods 
and services purchased by most UK households, to provide an indication of the rate of inflation. The 
CPI includes some financial services in the basket of goods not included in the RPI. 
 
Creditors - Amount of money owed by the Council for goods and services received. Also referred to 
as, Payables. 
 

112



Current Assets  - Any asset expected to last or be in use for less than one year is considered a 
current asset. Examples are stock, cash and debtors. 
 
Current Liability - An amount which will become payable or could be called in within the next 
accounting period. Examples are creditors and Short Term Borrowing. 
 
Debtors - Amount of money owed to the Council by individuals, and organisations. Also referred to 
as, Receivables. 
 
Dedicated Schools Grant  – Grant monies provided by the Department of Education ring-fenced to 
schools budgets. This is a ring-fenced grant. 
 
Deferred Capital Receipts - Income that is received in instalments over agreed periods of time. They 
arise from mortgages on sales of Council houses and repayments from loans. 
 
Deferred Income – Receipt in Advance  – This represents a receipt received as part of entering into 
a building lease.  The credit is being released over the term of the lease.  
 
Deferred Liabilities  – These are future payments that the Council is contractually obliged to pay in 
future years.  These liabilities relate to Private Finance Initiative (PFI) schemes. 
 
Defined Benefit Scheme - A pension scheme which defines benefits independently of the 
contributions payable. Benefits are not directly related to the investments of the Pension Fund. 
 
Depreciation - The measure of the wearing out, consumption or other reduction in the useful 
economic life of PPE, whether arising from use, passage of time or obsolescence through 
technological or other changes. 
 
Direct Revenue Funding (DRF) – The use of revenue monies to pay for capital expenditure. Also 
referred to as Revenue Contributions to Capital Outlay (RCCO). 
 
Earmarked Reserves - Amounts set aside for a specific purpose to meet future commitments or 
potential liabilities, for which it is not appropriate to establish provisions. 
 
Fair Value - It is the amount for which an asset can be exchanged or a liability settled between 
knowledgeable and willing parties in an arms length transaction. 
 
Fees and Charges – Income receivable as payment for goods or services provided. These charges 
are reviewed annually as part of the annual budget process. 
 
Finance Lease - A lease that transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of an 
asset to the lessee. 
 
Financial Instrument  - Any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 
liability or equity instrument of another. 
 
Financial Instrument Adjustment Account - This represents the balance of deferred discounts 
relating to the premature redemption of Public Works Loans Board (PWLB) debt. 
 
General Fund (GF) - The Council’s main revenue account from which the cost of providing most of 
the Council’s services is met. 
 
Greater London Authority (GLA) – A strategic Local Authority with a capital-wide role. 
 
Gross Spending – the total cost of providing services before any income such as government grants, 
fees and charges are deducted. 
 
Group Accounts – Where a Council has a material interest in a separate entity, the entity’s assets 
and liabilities may need to be incorporated within the council’s group accounts.  If the council controls 
an entity, it is a subsidiary (as in the case of Tower Hamlets Homes for the Council).  
 
Heritage asset – An asset with historical, artistic, scientific, technological, geo-physical and/or 
environmental qualities that is held and maintained principally for its contribution to knowledge and 
culture. 

113



 
Historic Cost – The actual cost of an asset in terms of past consideration as opposed to current 
value. 
 
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) - A statutory account maintained separately from the General 
Fund for the recording of income and expenditure relating to the provision of council housing. 
 
Impairment – A reduction in the valuation of PPE caused either by a change in the market price of 
the asset or damage/deterioration of the asset in excess of depreciation. 
 
Infrastructure Assets – Inalienable assets, expenditure on which is only recoverable by continued 
use of the asset created. There is no prospect of sale or alternative use. Examples include roads, 
bridges, and tunnels. 
 
Intangible Assets – Non-financial long-term assets that do not have physical substance but are 
identifiable and controlled by the Council i.e. purchased software licences. 
 
Interest Rate Risk – The uncertainty of interest paid/received on variable rate instruments and the 
effect of fluctuations in interest rates on the fair value of an instrument. 
 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) – The set of international accounting standards 
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). Local Authorities are required to 
produce accounts based on IFRS. 
 
Inventories – The values of, stocks held and work in progress that have not been completed. 
 
Investment Properties – Those properties that are held solely to earn rentals and/or for capital 
appreciation, rather than for the delivery of services. 
 
Liability  – A liability is where the Council owes payment to an individual or another organisation. 
 
Levy – Payments to bodies such as the Environment Agency. The cost of these bodies is funded by 
local authorities in the area concerned based on their Council Tax base and is met from the General 
Fund. 
 
Long-Term Assets – Assets that yield benefit to the Council and the services it provides for a period 
of more than one year. 
 
Long-Term Liability  – An amount which by arrangement is payable beyond the next year at some 
point in the future or to be paid off by an annual sum over a period of time. 
 
Major Repairs Reserve – Represents the funds available to meet capital investment in council 
housing 
 
Materiality - t he level (usually expressed in financial terms but not usually expressly stated) below 
which accountants, auditors, or their clients or employers, consider risks or problems not to be 
significant. 
 
Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) – The Council’s strategic plan surrounding its finances for the 
next 3 years. 
 
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) – The amount that has to be charged to revenue to provide for 
the redemption of debt.  Not applicable to the HRA. 
 
Movement in Reserves Statement  – A summary of the Council’s reserves at the balance sheet date 
split between usable and unusable reserves.   
 
National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) Pool - Non-Domestic Rates are collected by the Council. As 
of 1st April 2013 the Council keeps 30%, gives the GLA 20% and the other 50% is passed over to the 
DCLG. 
 
Net Book Value – The amount at which PPE is included in the balance sheet after depreciation has 
been provided for. 
 

114



Net Realisable Value – The open market value of the asset less the expenses to be incurred in 
realising the asset. 
 
Non Current Assets Held for Sale – Items of PPE whose carrying amount is to be recovered 
principally through a sale rather than continued use by the Council. 
 
Operating Lease – A lease other than a finance lease - a lease which permits the use of the asset 
without substantially transferring the risks and rewards of ownership. 
 
Outturn – The actual level of expenditure and income for the year. 
 
Precept – The charge made by the Greater London Authority (the precepting authority) on the Council 
to finance its net expenditure. 
 
Private Finance Initiative (PFI)  – Instead of providing and owning the assets needed for their 
services, public authorities arrange for private sector bodies (usually formed from consortia) to provide 
and own them. These other bodies’ then make the assets available under operating leases to enable 
public authorities to deliver the services required. 
 
Projected Unit Method – Actuarial valuation method whose key feature is to assess future service 
cost; the Actuary calculates the employer’s contribution rate, which will meet the cost of benefits 
accruing in the year after the valuation date.  
 
Property, Plant, and Equipment (PPE) – The land and building assets under the council’s control or 
ownership. 
 
Assets under the control or owned by the Council that have a physical existence and are expected to 
be used for a period exceeding one year form PPE. Important components of PPE include land and 
land improvements, buildings, plant and machinery, vehicles and equipment where material. 
 
Provisions – Amounts set aside for liabilities and losses, which are certain or very likely to occur but 
where the exact amount or timing of the payment are uncertain. 
 
Public Works Loans Board (PWLB) – Central Government agency which funds much of local 
government borrowing. 
 
Registered Social Landlord – A not-for-profit organisation which owns and manages social housing. 
 
Reserves – Amounts set aside, which do not fall within the definition of a provision, to fund items of 
anticipated expenditure. These include general reserves or balances which every Council must 
maintain as a matter of prudence. 
 
Retail Price Index (RPI) – Measures the average change in retail prices of a basket of goods and 
services purchased by most UK households, to provide an indication of the rate of inflation. The RPI 
includes mortgage interest payments and council tax in the basket of goods not included in the CPI. 
 
Revaluation Reserve – Represents the increase in value of the Council’s land and building assets 
from 1st April 2007. 
  
Revenue Expenditure – The day-to-day expenditure of the Council - salaries, goods and services 
and capital financing charges. 
 
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute  (REFCUS) – Expenditure incurred 
during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but does not result in the creation of 
long-term assets, that has been charged as expenditure to the relevant service revenue account in the 
year 
 
Revenue Support Grant – General grant paid by the Government to local authorities. 
 
Right To Buy (RTB) - The council is legally required to sell council homes to tenants, at a discount, 
where the tenant wishes to buy their home. The money received from the sale is a capital receipt, 
some of which will be retained by the council to spend on capital expenditure, while the remainder 
must be paid over to the DCLG under pooling arrangements. 
 

115



Ring-Fenced Grant  – A grant that can only be spent on a specific purpose, such as the Dedicated 
Schools Grant. 
 
Service Level Agreements - agreements between operational units, which state the price and 
specifications of the support service by one to another. 
 
Service Reporting Code of Practice (SeRCOP) – CIPFA’s accounting recommendations for local 
authorities that legally constitute proper accounting practice, below the statement of accounts level. 
 
Soft Loan – Loans given at less than market/commercial rates to community or not-for-profit 
organisations. 
 
Supplementary Business Rates (SBR)  – Locally raised business rates for local projects.  London 
Councils are levying a SBR for the Cross-rail project.  
 
Support Services – Activities of a professional, technical and administrative nature which are not 
Council services in their own right, but support main front line services such as finance, information 
technology and human resources. 
 
Surplus Assets – Those assets which are not being used to deliver services, but do not meet the 
criteria to be classified as either Investment Properties or Non Current Assets Held for Sale. 
 
Unusable Reserves  – These represent reserve balances that cannot be spent as part of an 
organisation’s medium term financial plan. An example is the revaluation reserve. 
 
Usable Reserves  – These represent reserve balances that can be spent as part of an organisation’s 
medium term financial plan. Any organisation has to review reserve levels to ensure long-term 
financial stability. General fund and Housing Revenue Account reserves are usable reserves.   
 
Value for money (VFM) – This term is used to describe the relationship between the economy, 
efficiency, and effectiveness (known as the ‘three Es’) of a service, function or activity. Value for 
money is high when there is an optimum balance between all three. 
 

116



Abbreviations used in Accounts 
 

AGS Annual Governance Statement 

ALMO  Arm’s Length Management Organisation (Tower Hamlets Homes) 

BSF Building Schools for the Future 

CAA Capital Adjustment Account 

CDC Corporate and Democratic Core 

CFR Capital Financing Requirement 

CIES Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

CIPFA Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 

CPI Consumer Price Index 

CRR Capital Receipts Reserve 

DCLG Department of Communities and Local Government 

DEFRA – Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs 

DfE Department for Education 

DRF Direct Revenue Funding 

DSG Dedicated Schools Grant 

DWP Department for Work and Pensions 

EIR Effective Interest Rate 

GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 

GF General Fund 

GLA Greater London Authority 

HRA Housing Revenue Account 

IAS International Accounting Standard 

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards 

LABGI Local Authority Business Growth Incentive 

LAML  London Authorities Mutual Limited 

LASAAC Local Authority (Scotland) Accounts Advisory Committee 

LATS Landfill Allowance Trading Scheme 

LBTH London Borough of Tower Hamlets 

LGPS Local Government Pension Scheme 

LOBO Lender’s Option – Borrower’s option 

LPFA London Pensions Fund Authority 

MRA Major Repairs Allowance 

MRP Minimum Revenue Provision 

MTFP Medium Term Financial Plan 

NBV Net Book Value 

NCS Net Cost of Services 

NDC Non Distributed Costs 

(N)NDR (National) Non-Domestic Rates 

NPV Net Present Value 

NRV Net Realisable Value 

117



PBC Prepared By Client 

PCT Primary Care Trust 

PFI Private Finance Initiative 

PPA Prior Period Adjustment 

PPE Property, Plant and Equipment 

PWLB Public Works Loans Board 

RCCO Revenue Contributions to Capital Outlay 

REFCUS Revenue Expenditure Funded by Capital Under Statute 

RICS Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors 

RPI Retail Price Index 

RR Revaluation reserve 

RSG Revenue Support Grant 

RTB Right To Buy 

SBR Supplementary Business Rates 

SDPS Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services 

SeRCOP Service Reporting Code of Practice 

SLAs Service Level Agreements 

SORP Statement of Recommended Practice (now Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting) 

TH Tower Hamlets 

THH Tower Hamlets Homes 

VFM Value For Money 

WDA Waste Disposal Authority 

WGA Whole of Government Accounts 
 

118



1

Non-Executive Report of the:

Audit Committee

23rd September 2015

Report of:  Zena Cooke - Corporate Director - Resources
Classification:
Unrestricted 

Quarterly Assurance Report

Originating Officer(s) Minesh Jani and Bharat Mehta
Wards affected All wards 

1. SUMMARY

1.1. This report summarises the work of Internal Audit for the period June 2015 to 
August 2015.

1.2. The report sets out the assurance rating of each audit finalised in the period and 
gives an overall assurance rating. The quarterly assurance report feeds into the 
annual internal audit opinion which will be produced at the end of the financial 
year.   

2. RECOMMENDATION

2.1. The Audit Committee is asked to note the contents of this report and to take 
account of the assurance opinion assigned to the systems reviewed during the 
period. 



2

3. Background

3.1. From April 2005, we have assigned each review one of four ratings, depending 
upon the level of our findings. The ratings we use are: -

Assurance Definition 

Full
There is a sound system of control designed to achieve 
the system objectives, and the controls are being 
consistently applied;

Substantial

While there is a basically sound system there are 
weaknesses which put some of the control objectives at 
risk or there is evidence that the level of non-compliance 
with some of the controls may put some of the system 
objectives at risk;

Limited
Weakness in the system of controls are such as to put the 
system objectives at risk or the level of non-compliance 
puts the system objectives at risk;

Nil
Control is generally weak leaving the system open to 
significant error or abuse, or significant non-compliance 
with basic controls leaves the system open to error or 
abuse.

3.2. In addition, each review is also considered in terms of its significance to the 
authority in line with the previously agreed methodology. The significance of each 
auditable area is assigned, based on the following factors: - 

Significance Definition

Extensive
High Risk, High Impact area including Fundamental 
Financial Systems, Major Service activity, Scale of 
Service in excess of £5m.  

Moderate Medium impact, key systems and / or Scale of Service 
£1m- £5m.

Low Low impact service area, Scale of Service below £1m.  

4. Overall Audit Opinion 

4.1. Overall, based on work performed in the year to date, I am able to give a 
substantial level of assurance over the systems and controls in place within the 
authority. 



3

5. Overview of finalised audits 

5.1. Since the last Assurance Report that was presented to the CMT in May 2015, 
sixteen final reports have been issued. The findings of  these audits are presented 
as follows:
 Chart 1 below summarises the assurance rating assigned by the level of 

significance of each report. 
 Appendix 1 provides a list of the audits organised by assurance rating and 

significance.
 Appendix 2 provides a brief summary of each audit. 

5.2. Members are invited to consider the following:
 The overall level of assurance provided (para 5.3-5.5). 
 The findings of individual reports. Members  may wish to focus on those with a 

higher level of significance and those assigned Nil or Limited assurance. 
These are clearly set out in Appendix 1. 

5.3. The chart ranks the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the controls in place. 
This assurance rating will feed into Internal Audit’s overall assessment of the 
adequacy of governance arrangements that is required as part of the Accounts 
and Audit Regulations 20011 and the 2013 Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 
– Applying the IIA International Standards to the UK Public Sector.  

(Please refer to the table on the next page).



4

Chart 1  Analysis of Assurance Levels

Assurance
SUMMARY

Full Substantial Limited Nil Total
E

xt
en

si
ve

- 9 1 - 10

M
od

er
at

e

- 5 1 - 6

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e

Lo
w

- - - - -

Total Numbers - 14 2 - 16

Total % - 87% 13% - 100%

5.4. From the table above it can be seen that of the ten finalised audits which focused 
on high risk or high value areas; nine were assigned Substantial Assurance and 
one was assigned Limited assurance.  A further six audits were of moderate 
significance and of these five were assigned Substantial Assurance and one was 
assigned Limited Assurance. 

5.5. Overall, 87% of audits resulted in an adequate assurance (substantial or full). The 
remaining 13% of audits have an inadequate assurance rating (limited or nil).



5

6. Performance Indicators

6.1. At the start of the year, three performance indicators were formulated to monitor 
the delivery of the Internal Audit service as part of the Monitoring process. The 
table below shows the actual and targets for each indicator for the period:-.

Performance measure Target Actual

Percentage of Audit Plan completed up 
to the quarter to June 2015 20% 20%

Percentage of Priority 1 Audit 
Recommendations implemented by 
Auditees at six monthly follow up audit 
stage 

100%
66%

6 out of 9

Percentage of Priority 2 Audit 
Recommendations implemented by 
Auditees at six monthly follow up audit 
stage

95%
50%

4 out of 8

6.2. The percentage of priority 1 recommendations implemented at the follow up stage 
was 66%, whereas the percentage of priority 2 recommendations was 50%.  
Details of priority 1 and priority 2 recommendations not implemented are set out in 
Appendix 3.  Further to the usual escalation actions to the relevant Corporate 
Director and Service Heads, the Corporate Director - Resources has also been 
informed.  

7. Comments of the Chief Financial Officer

7.1. This is a quarterly noting report covering the period June 2015 to August 2015. 
There are no specific financial implications arising from the contents of this report.

8. Legal Comments

8.1 The Council has a duty to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement 
in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness by virtue of section 3 of the Local 
Government Act 1999.  This is known as its Best Value Duty.

8.2 Under Regulation 3 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, the Council is 
required to ensure that it has a sound system of internal control that facilitates 



6

effective exercise of the Council’s functions and includes arrangements for the 
management of risk. The Council is also required by Regulation 5 to maintain an 
effective system of internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk 
management, control and governance processes, taking into account public 
sector internal auditing standards and guidance. One of the functions of the Audit 
Committee under the Council’s Constitution is to review internal audit findings. 
The consideration by the Audit Committee of this report is consistent with the 
Council’s obligations and is within the Committee’s functions.

9. One Tower Hamlets

9.1. There are no specific one Tower Hamlets considerations.

9.2. There are no specific Anti-Poverty issues arising from this report

10.Best Value Implications

10.1. This report highlights areas where internal control, governance and risk 
management can be improved to meet the Best Value Duty of the Council. 

11.Risk Management Implications

11.1. This report highlights risks arising from weaknesses in controls that may expose the 
Council to unnecessary risk. The risks highlighted in this report require 
management responsible for the systems of control to take steps so that effective 
governance can be put in place to manage the authority’s exposure to risk.

12. Sustainable Action for a Greener Environment (SAGE)

12.1. There are no specific SAGE implications.

13.  Crime and Disorder Reduction Implications

13.1. By having sound systems of controls, the Council can safeguard against the risk of 
fraud and abuse of financial resources and assets. 



7

APPENDIX 1

Assurance level Significance Directorate Audit title 
LIMITED

Extensive Resources Contract Management of Photocopying and Printing Contract

Moderate Corporate Management and Control of Staff Use of Taxis and Minicabs

SUBSTANTIAL Extensive Communities, Locality and 
Culture 

Transport Services – Systems Audit

Extensive Development and Renewal Energy Management – Systems Audit

Extensive Law Probity and Governance Risk Management – Systems Audit
Extensive Resources General Ledger – Follow Up 
Extensive Resources Bank Reconciliation – Systems Audit
Extensive Resources Housing Benefits – Systems Audit
Extensive Resources Risk Management – Systems Audit
Extensive Resources Pensions – Systems Audit
Extensive Tower Hamlets Homes Leaseholder Service Charges – Systems Audit
Moderate Children’s Services Oaklands Secondary School 
Moderate Children’s Services Ben Jonson School – Follow Up Audit
Moderate Children’s Services Bowden House Special School
Moderate Children’s Services St. John’s C of England Primary School

Moderate Children’s Services Sir John Cass’s Foundation Secondary School



8

Summary of Audits Undertaken APPENDIX 2
Limited Assurance

Title Date of 
Report

Comments / Findings Scale of 
Service

Assurance 
Level

Contract 
Management of 
Photocopying 
and Printing 
Contract

Follow Up Audit

July 
2015

This audit followed up recommendations made at the conclusion of the original 
report on this subject finalised in June 2014.

Our testing showed that of the three high priority recommendations made in the 
original report, one recommendation had been fully implemented.  Of the 
remaining three medium priority recommendations made, one was partially 
completed.  The following issues were raised:-

 Our review of the photocopier asset database showed that there are currently 
11 lease agreements which have not been signed by the Authority and 
Supplier.  Some of these lease agreements date back to December 2013.  

 Testing showed that orders were being raised after invoices were received.  
Out of a sample of 10 invoices tested, in 4 cases the invoiced amounts did not 
match the agreements. There was an overpayment of £938.43.  

 A review of independent Safecom reports on MFD usage provided to us 
showed that this report did not capture accurate usage information and could 
not be relied upon. 

 ICT Client Officers informed Audit that they undertake sample checks of 
machine usage online via the MFD’s IP Address.  However, we could not be 
provided with the evidence that these checks were being carried out.  In 
addition, controls needed to be established by way of detailed monitoring 
procedures to enable effective contract management and monitoring.

 Our review showed that there were no detailed minutes of the meetings held in 
respect of monitoring undertaken by Agilisys on the Xerox contract. 
Examination of the action points did not give assurance that the performance 
of Agilisys or Xerox was being achieved or acted upon. 

 All findings and recommendations were agreed with the Head of ICT and final 
report was sent to Service Head - Customer Access and ICT Transformation and 
Interim Corporate Director – Resources.

Extensive Limited



9

 
Management Comments

1. It is accepted that the client team made a mistake and failed to follow correct procedures in purchasing 11 devices outside the original 
lease agreement.  This was done as a result of our incorrect understanding of the original lease agreement we genuinely believed that 
these purchases would have been covered by that agreement.  This will not happen again.  Any team member with responsibility for 
purchasing is clear now on the terms of that agreement as they will be on any other IT supplier agreements where we have a 
responsibility for procuring IT equipment or services on behalf of the Council.

2. We have significantly improved the ordering process with Xerox where the ICT Client team are responsible for raising Purchase Orders 
(PO) to ensure that all our invoices in the future have PO numbers and that orders are always matched to an agreement.  We have 
informed Xerox of the PO schedule and they know that they must only send invoices that match up with a PO number.  This will ensure 
that invoices do not get paid that do not have accurate PO in the future. This has finding is unique to the Xerox contract due to the 
complex nature of multiple lease ending dates.  By mid-September 15 we will have reconciled any outstanding overpayment or 
underpayment with Xerox.

3. Safecom is the reporting system used to monitor the usage of the Xerox MFD’s.  The ICT Client team do carry out checks on MFD 
usage so that we can alert high volume print users and work with them to change their behaviour with copying and printing.  We are 
working with Agilisys and Xerox to improve the accuracy of these reports.  Evidence of how and when the ICT Client team monitor MFD 
usage is now available.

4. We have significantly improved our sample checking process as a result of the audit and we have a sample checking quarterly usage 
report that is available for review whenever required.  Evidence of which machines are checked are now be logged and are also 
available for review whenever required.

5. We accept the finding regarding lack of detailed minutes from our Agilisys/Xerox contract review meetings.  We now have detailed 
minutes with actions and performance being tracked and monitored.  These are available for review



10

Title Date of 
Report

Comments / Findings Scale of 
Service

Assurance 
Level

Management and 
Control of Staff 
Use of Taxis and 
Minicabs

July 
2015

The objective was to provide assurance that secure systems were in place for 
procuring, requisitioning, approving, controlling and paying for taxis and minicabs 
used by Council officers. The responsibility for controlling taxis/minicabs use by 
staff rests with the respective services. However the facilitation of the bookings for 
taxis and paying for the journeys is carried out by Facilities Management within 
the Development and Renewal Directorate. Bookings are made electronically on 
the intranet and these are managed by the FM Helpdesk team. Invoices are 
processed by the Facilities Management Contracts Admin Officer who recharges 
the respective services budgets.  Although accurate management information was 
not available, we understand that some 811 journeys amounting to £15,386.38 
were undertaken during the period April 2013 to February 2015.

Our testing showed that a framework contract was put in place in January 2013 
and all the seven bidders were awarded the contract.  The most economical 
provider was initially used. However, due to various issues, the second highest 
provider is currently being used.  The contract, however, requires a call-off of the 
least expensive provider in turn.  

We reported that the contracts needed to be signed and sealed in accordance 
with the Council’s procedures.  Expenditure for taxi journeys needed to be 
authorised by approved officers in accordance with the Council’s Scheme of 
Delegation and not be self – authorised by officers undertaking the journeys.  
Invoices from the provider were not detailed enough to show full post codes of 
pick up points and destinations, which made it difficult to check that correct rates 
were being charged. Wait time duration was not detailed for further management 
checks so that charges levied can be verified to the agreed schedule of rates.  
Proper contract monitoring procedures were not invoked to monitor the contract to 
resolve the performance issues. Instead, the contract was awarded under the 
Framework to the second most expensive contractor.  

Moderate Limited



11

Title Date of 
Report

Comments / Findings Scale of 
Service

Assurance 
Level

We also noted that quarterly management reports were not produced for each 
Directorate with details of the journeys, names of officers requesting and 
authorising the journeys, spend analysis and names of most frequent users of 
taxis/minicabs.  The Council’s Asset Management system was used for recording 
details of journeys, which did not produce the required management reports.

All findings and recommendations were agreed with the Service Head, Corporate 
Property and Capital Delivery and final report was issued to all Corporate 
Directors.

Management Comments

1. The contract calls for management information to be provided by the taxi companies on the various lots of the framework to  the 
Transport Services Unit which was provided to FM at the start of the contract, but this has become less frequent as TSU has reduced in 
resources. Management information was collected at various points in the first year of operation of the contract which evidenced 
different aspects of performance, and the lowest bidder was found to use drivers that were not familiar with the area and as a result 
often got lost en-route and were the least punctual in terms of arriving at the booked time. Given the unseen costs of officer time waiting 
for taxis to turn up, and time wasted trying to find locations, the taxi firms selected for use were based on feedback on punctuality and 
local geographical knowledge. The view was taken that VFM should not just be based on the lowest operator price as it did not reflect 
the true cost of the provision of service when officer time delay was factored in. 

It is proposed that FM and procurement work together and look at ways in which performance monitoring can be reintroduced as the 
contract allows for the use of KPIs and to a limited extent Liquidated and Ascertained Damages in respect of additional costs being 
incurred because of failures of service (clause 9 of the contract and paragraphs 6, 17 & 18 of the Specification), and comparative pricing 
used on regularly benchmarked basis to select the lowest cost provider based on those rates (Clause 33.5 of the contract allows for 
annual tendering/mini-competition of fixed price journeys if the prices offered on an ad hoc basis do not meet with Council agreement, , 
therefore a mini-competition can weight price score against quality and rank the providers allowing us to select the provider(s) who 
demonstrates not just lowest price but best value for money).).

2. The issue of signing and sealing the contract is one that needs to be addressed by Legal Services and TSU as the lead procurers of the 
contract. 



12

The current process for booking cabs is for an e-form to be submitted which is authorised by the requestor’s manager. It is impossible for 
FM to know with absolute certainty if the authorisation is valid unless the process was changed so that journeys could only be authorised 
by a limited number of authorisers in each directorate. FM and Corporate Finance will review procedures to ensure that the 
commissioning directorates understand the requirements for approval by managers when booking cabs.

3.   Detailed management information should be provided to TSU on the Monday following the end of the month. Paragraph 3.2 specifies that 
this information must be made available to TSU, therefore a Variation of Contract Order must be agreed to amend this in such a way as 
to facilitate a change in this requirement. In the meantime FM and Procurement will agree local arrangements with providers based on a 
template that we will submit to the providers, this will be completed by the end of October This will assist more accurate monitoring and 
management for TSU and service directorates.



13

Substantial Assurance

Title Date of 
Report

Comments / Findings Scale of 
Service

Assurance 
Level

Transport 
Services

June 
2015

The audit was designed to provide assurance to management, as to whether the 
systems of control around the Transport Services system are sound, secure and 
adequate and also to evaluate the potential consequences which could arise from 
any weaknesses in the internal control procedures. The main weaknesses were 
as follows:-
 We identified that there was no effective stock management system in place 

and we were unable to verify that stock ordered by Transport Services had 
been consumed by the Workshop for the maintenance and repair of Transport 
Services vehicles. 

 Whilst a fuel card register was in place for Passenger Services, we noted that 
staff had not always completed the register in full as we identified instances of 
the fuel card not being signed out and back in. 

 Examination of the spare fuel card spreadsheet and fuel contingency bunker 
spreadsheet identified that the monitoring spreadsheets were not being 
completed in full and important information was not being recorded. 

 Non-professional drivers are not subject to driving assessments and eyesight 
checks on a regular basis.  Furthermore, there no continuous training is 
provided to non-professional drivers in relation to the Council's requirements.

 Examination of the external provision of Transport Services identified that 
effective contract performance monitoring arrangements for contractors were 
not in place such as key performance indicators.

 The Vehicle Maintenance, Fleet Management and Passenger Operational, 
Contractual and Financial Processes documents were last evidenced as 
reviewed on various dates in 2010.

All findings and recommendations were agreed with the Transport Operations 
Manager, and the Fleet Operations Manager and reported to the Interim Service 
Head, Development, Compliance and Commissioning, the Service Head, Parking, 
Mobility and Transport, and the Head of Paid Service and Corporate Director – 
Communities, Localities and Culture.

Extensive Substantial



14

Title Date of 
Report

Comments / Findings Scale of 
Service

Assurance 
Level

Energy 
Management

June 
2015

The objective of this audit was to provide assurance that the systems for 
procuring, managing, monitoring and reporting of energy contracts were sound 
and secure.

The procurement for the supply of gas and electricity through the framework 
operated by Crown Commercial Services (CCS) was approved by Cabinet.  LBTH 
procures the energy supply for its own sites, for Schools and for Tower Hamlet 
Homes. The total cost of supply is around £12M p.a.  A brokerage fee of £160,000 
is levied by CCS for their services.  

Our testing showed that contracts with the providers were not signed and sealed.  
The Energy Team needed to pro-actively monitor energy consumption and tariffs 
to ensure that sites were put on best tariffs, however, we understand that as a 
consumer we have no authority to request sites be placed in particular classes.   
The Energy Team relied on CCS to undertake benchmarking to ensure that best 

tariffs and best value was obtained.  A clear structure was not in place for the 
Energy Team to be notified of the change in circumstances for the properties on a 
timely basis for prompt actions to be taken.  Due to the nature of the contracts the 
Energy team stated that it was in close communication, sometimes daily, with all 
three suppliers and meet face to face at least twice a year.

All findings and recommendations were agreed with the Service Head, Strategy, 
Regeneration and Sustainability.  A copy of final report was issued to the 
Corporate Director, Development and Renewal.

Extensive Substantial



15

Title Date of 
Report

Comments / Findings Scale of 
Service

Assurance 
Level

Risk 
Management – 
Law, Probity and 
Governance

July 
2015

This audit provided assurance that the systems in place for identifying, assessing, 
mitigating and reporting of risks were sound and secure.  Our review found that 
Risk Management policies, procedures and guidance were readily available and 
staff received Risk Management training.  Roles and responsibilities for the Risk 
Champion were clearly defined. A Risk Register was maintained for the 
Directorate.

However, from our discussions with the Risk Champion and from our testing, we 
found that controls around risk identification needed to be strengthened. From 
discussions with senior officers, we found that the risk scoring and assessment 
process was not consistent across the Directorate and needed to be challenged 
by the DMT, Service Managers and the Risk Champion. 

Our testing of a sample of control measures documented in the Directorate Risk 
Register showed that in some cases the control measures needed to be properly 
considered and progress updates within the risk register needed to be detailed.

We note that the issues raised during the course of the audit were considered by 
the Risk Champion and the Risk Registers were being revisited and updated by 
the respective teams. However, we would emphasise that for risk management to 
be embedded effectively in the strategic and operational management and the 
decision making process, further improvements are required and the Risk 
Champion needs to play a more active role in challenging and scrutinizing the risk 
identification, definition, scoring, and reviewing and mitigation action.

All findings and recommendations were agreed with the Risk Champion and the 
Service Head, Legal Services. The Final report was issued to the Monitoring 
Officer.

Extensive Substantial



16

Substantial Assurance

Title Date of 
Report

Comments / Findings Scale of 
Service

Assurance 
Level

General Ledger 
Follow Up Audit

May 
2015

A full systems audit on General Ledger was undertaken for which the final report 
was issued in July 2014. The objective of this follow up audit was to assess 
whether the agreed recommendations at the conclusion of the initial audit had 
been implemented. Our follow up review showed that of the five recommendations 
raised at the conclusion of the full systems audit; one recommendation has been 
implemented; three recommendations have been partly implemented; and one 
recommendation could not be implemented.  

The main issues arising from our review are as follows: -
 There are 13 feeder systems in operation.  However, it was only possible 

for the Financial Systems Team (FST) to check the values of seven of 
these at the time of the audit, as information was not being provided by 
Agilisys for the six remaining feeder systems in order to reconcile these.

 A payroll reconciliation was completed for periods one through to eight of 
2014/15 simultaneously, and no reconciliations were completed in months 
April to October. Also, it was established in discussion that unreconciled 
items are being prioritised for investigation and resolution depending on 
the size of the variances, and this was ongoing at the time of the audit.

 The FST had requested from Agilisys that a system of automatic 
notifications the processing of interface uploads should be in place to 
notify the FST of any failures or missed uploads, so that these can be 
investigated and resolved. Agilisys have reported that this is not possible 
given the current financial system; therefore this recommendation has 
been removed.

All findings and recommendations were agreed with the Chief Accountant, and the 
Financial Systems Manager and reported to the Interim Service Head, Corporate 
Finance and Procurement, and the Interim Corporate Director of Resources.

Extensive Substantial



17

Title Date of 
Report

Comments / Findings Scale of 
Service

Assurance 
Level

Bank 
Reconciliation

Aug 
2015

The audit was designed to provide assurance to management, as to whether the 
systems of control around the Bank Reconciliation system are sound, secure and 
adequate and also to evaluate the potential consequences which could arise from 
any weaknesses in the internal control procedures. The main weaknesses were 
as follows:-

 The Bank reconciliation User Guide is still in draft format.  In addition, other 
relevant policies and procedures are out of date and have not been reviewed 
on a timely basis.

 The Council's Financial Procedures do not make any reference to 
undertaking the bank reconciliation.

 A large number of bank accounts are in existence, we have recommended 
the number of accounts is reviewed.

 Reconciliations are either not always carried out in a timely basis. In addition, 
reconciliations are not always signed, dated or reviewed by an independent 
officer.

All findings and recommendations were agreed with the Financial Systems 
Manager and reported to the Interim Service Head, Corporate Finance and 
Procurement, and the Corporate Director of Resources.

Extensive Substantial



18

Substantial Assurance

Title Date of 
Report

Comments / Findings Scale of 
Service

Assurance 
Level

Housing Benefits May 
2015

The audit was designed to provide assurance to management, as to whether the 
systems of control around the Housing Benefits system are sound, secure and 
adequate and also to evaluate the potential consequences which could arise from 
any weaknesses in the internal control procedures. The weaknesses identified 
were as follows:-

 Delays of more than two weeks were identified during our audit testing 
between the Council being notified of a change in benefit entitlement and the 
calculation of the overpayment.

 Version history control is not included on all policy and procedure documents. 
The procedure notes for backdated claims available on the intranet for staff 
are dated as 2008/09.

All findings and recommendations were agreed with the Head of Benefits Services 
and reported to the Interim Service Head, Corporate Finance and Procurement, 
and the Interim Corporate Director of Resources.

Extensive Substantial



19

Title Date of 
Report

Comments / Findings Scale of 
Service

Assurance 
Level

Risk 
Management – 
Resources

July 
2015

This audit provided assurance that the systems in place for identifying, assessing, 
mitigating and reporting of risks were sound and secure within Resources 
Directorate.   The Risk Management Team within Risk and Audit Service provides 
support in assessing service, directorate and corporate risks to ensure principles 
and standards in the Council’s Risk Management framework are achieved. The 
team is also responsible for facilitating risk management within the Directorate. 

Our review found that Risk Management policies, procedures and guidance were 
readily available and staff received Risk Management training.  Roles and 
responsibilities for the Risk Champion were clearly defined. A Risk Register was 
maintained for the Directorate.  The Resources DMT endorsed the directorate 
Risk Management Protocol on the 27th May 2014.  We highlighted the following 
issues:-

 Our review of the Directorate Risk Register showed that the quality of risk 
identification and assessment needed to be improved and that emerging risks 
needed to be captured, assessed and mitigated promptly.

 From discussions with senior officers and from our testing, we found that the 
risk scoring and assessment process required to be consistent across the 
Directorate and needed to be challenged by the DMT, Service Managers and 
the Risk Champion. There was a concern that an inconsistent approach when 
scoring the risk, could impact on the overall ranking of the risk, its mitigation, 
reporting and escalation of the risk to either Directorate Register or Corporate 
Risk Register. 

 Our testing of a sample of control measures documented in the Directorate 
Risk Register showed that in some cases the control measures had not been 
properly considered and progress had not been reported adequately

All findings and recommendations were agreed with the Head of Risk and Audit 
and final report was issued to the Interim Corporate Director – Resources.

Extensive Substantial



20

Title Date of 
Report

Comments / Findings Scale of 
Service

Assurance 
Level

Pensions Aug 
2015

The audit was designed to provide assurance to management, as to whether the 
systems of control around the Pensions system are sound, secure and adequate 
and also to evaluate the potential consequences which could arise from any 
weaknesses in the internal control procedures. The main weaknesses were as 
follows:-

 Supporting documentation is not always retained on file.  It was 
subsequently determined that the documentation was not on file since the 
necessary actions had not been taken.

 Policies and procedures are not up to date.
 Task Management (workflow) items are not always set up before tasks are 

completed.  This results in an incomplete audit trail and lack of delegation 
of tasks to other members of the team.

 The annual reconciliation of the transfer-in records as per the Altair and 
Agresso systems was not completed for 2013/14.

 The reconciliation of lump sum payments records as per the Altair and 
Agresso systems is not formally signed off by the officer responsible for 
producing the reconciliation, and by the officer responsible for reviewing 
the reconciliation.

 Amendments to officers’ pension records are not always updated in a 
timely manner.

 Declaration of business interest forms had not been completed by 
Pensions staff.

All findings and recommendations were agreed with the Pensions Manager and 
reported to the Interim Service Head, Corporate Finance and Procurement, and 
the Corporate Director of Resources.

Extensive Substantial



21

Title Date of 
Report

Comments / Findings Scale of 
Service

Assurance 
Level

Tower Hamlets 
Homes – 
Leaseholder 
Service Charges

Aug 
2015

The audit was designed to provide assurance to management, as to whether the 
systems of control around the Leaseholder Service Charges system are sound, 
secure and adequate and also to evaluate the potential consequences which 
could arise from any weaknesses in the internal control procedures. 
The main weaknesses identified were as follows:-
 The Arrears Recovery Procedure is not always being followed by staff in a 

timely manner.
 The suspense account does not show clearly items that are currently in the 

account and those that have been debited from the account. 
 There is currently no effective system in place to ensure that account 

adjustments submitted to Finance are actioned. 
 Policies and procedures do not show date of last review and when they are 

due for review.
 Patch lists are not reviewed on an annual basis and compared to declarations 

of business interests.
 Supporting documentation had not been retained for one of our sample of 

write-offs tested.

All findings were agreed with the Head of Leasehold Services and reported to the 
Director of Finance and Customer Services, and the Interim Chief Executive.

Extensive Substantial



22

Title Date of 
Report

Comments / Findings Scale of 
Service

Assurance 
Level

Oaklands 
Secondary 
School

July 
2015

The audit was designed to ensure that there were adequate and effective controls 
over the administration and financial management of the school.  The school has 
a Full Governing Body and a Finance and General Purposes Committee which 
have overall responsibility for financial planning and control.  The main 
weaknesses were as follows:-
A sample of ten purchase orders was sampled. It was found in testing that:

 For five, there was no evidence that the official order form was raised in 
advance of the invoice. For three of these orders there was no evidence 
that a goods/services received check had been performed, and as a result 
it was not evident that an adequate segregation of duties was in place. Of 
the remaining five orders sampled, it was found that for two of the orders 
that the goods received check was undertaken but the officer undertaking 
the check had signed either in the incorrect box within the certification 
stamp or outside of the certification stamp completely. For one of these 
orders, it appeared that the same person who raised the order also 
authorised the payment invoice and as a result it was not evident that an 
adequate segregation of duties was in place.  

 It could not be evidenced that monthly income and expenditure reports or 
budget monitoring reports were produced or signed by the Head Teacher 
in the previous six months. However, termly income and expenditure and 
budget monitoring reports were obtained.

 There was no evidence that income and expenditure had been 
appropriately reviewed for a school trip in January 2015, as the official 
costings had not been fully completed.

All findings and recommendations were agreed with the Head Teacher and 
reported to the Chair of Governors and the Interim Corporate Director – Children’s 
Services.

Moderate Substantial



23

Title Date of 
Report

Comments / Findings Scale of 
Service

Assurance 
Level

Ben Jonson 
School
Follow Up Audit

July 
2015

This audit report details the findings, conclusions and recommendations of a 
follow up audit carried out in Ben Jonson Primary School in May 2015.
A probity audit was undertaken in October 2013. This audit was assigned nil 
assurance. 
A number of serious concerns about the financial management and administration 
of the school under the previous Head teacher were identified during the original 
audit and key recommendations were made. 

From the work we have undertaken and the discussions held, it is apparent that 
the Interim Head Teacher and the School Business Manager have made 
significant progress towards improving the internal control framework within the 
school. Of the 70 recommendations made, we identified that 46 of these had been 
fully implemented and the remaining 24 had been partly implemented.  As a 
result, we have made recommendations that those outstanding issues be 
addressed, in order to enhance the control environment within this area. It should 
be noted that a number of the issues would now be deemed low priority, and 
would normally be combined together with other related recommendations noted 
within the report.
The minor issues still outstanding are in the following areas; Scheme of 
Delegation and Financial Code of Practice, Terms of Reference and School 
Policies, Budget Setting, Payroll Reconciliations, Staff Recruitment, Clearance 
and Attendance, Financial Controls, Voluntary Accounts, and Assets and 
Insurance.
All findings and recommendations were agreed with the Interim Head Teacher 
and reported to the Chair of Governors and the then Corporate Director - 
Education, Social Care and Wellbeing.

Moderate Substantial



24

Title Date of 
Report

Comments / Findings Scale of 
Service

Assurance 
Level

Bowden House 
School

June 
2015

The audit was designed to ensure that there were adequate and effective controls 
over the administration and financial management of the school.  The school has 
a Full Governing Body and a Finance Committee which have overall responsibility 
for financial planning and control.  The main weaknesses were as follows:-

 From examination of a sample of seven higher value purchases above 
£5,000, a number of exceptions were noted with regards to compliance 
with the procurement elements of the Council’s Financial Procedures 
Manual.  It is accepted that the bulk of these departures from the Manual 
arose as a result of the fact that these purchases related to contracts 
which had arisen as a legacy of the Building Schools for the Future 
initiative and the school was effectively tied into these arrangements.  It 
should also be noted that the Financial Procedures Manual does not 
cover such arrangements.

 Examination of the School’s Finance Committee Terms of Reference 
noted that whilst the terms of reference did state relevant authorisation 
limits, these limits did not agree to the limits stated with the London 
Borough of Tower Hamlets Financial Procedures Manual 2008 and no 
exception to this was noted in the School’s additional Scheme of 
Delegation.

 Examination of the School’s 3-year budget plan identified that for financial 
year 2016-2017 a cumulative deficit has been planned. There was an In 
Year Deficit planned for the current year’s budget (2014-2015) and for the 
following year (2015-2016). The School has had a surplus balance that 
has been carried forward which will absorb the In Year Deficit for financial 
years 2014/15 and 2015/16.  However, since the In Year deficit is 
ongoing, the School will need to revise budget plans to ensure that the 
School can meet its commitments and operate effectively in subsequent 
years.

All findings and recommendations were agreed with the Head Teacher and 
reported to the Chair of Governors and the then Corporate Director - Education, 
Social Care and Wellbeing.

Moderate Substantial



25

Title Date of 
Report

Comments / Findings Scale of 
Service

Assurance 
Level

St John’s C of E 
Primary School

June 
2015

The audit was designed to ensure that there were adequate and effective controls 
over the administration and financial management of the school.  The school has 
a Full Governing Body and a Finance, Personnel and Premises Committee which 
have overall responsibility for financial planning and control.  The main 
weaknesses were as follows:-

 Although governors and officers with financial responsibilities had signed 
the register of business interest forms, not all of these had been dated 
and therefore we could not confirm that these forms were completed 
recently.

 Although the Head Teacher, who is responsible for reviewing the 
reconciliation, had signed and dated the sample of disbursement 
reconciliations, the officer responsible for undertaking the task had not 
signed or dated the documents to help confirm segregation of duties. This 
is a requirement of the Financial Management Manual.

 For a sample of 10 payments it was identified in two cases that the 
invoices had not been signed as evidence of checking approval to pay.  
For three items in the sample, there was no evidence that a delivery note 
(or other paperwork) had been signed or stamped on receipt of goods.

 Examination of committee meeting minutes identified that the Finance, 
Personnel and Premises Committee meeting minutes for 16/10/2014 and 
06/11/2014 were not signed.

 For one out of 10 free school meals students tested, there was no 
evidence that eligibility have been confirmed. Further discussion and 
examination of documents identified that the Council had not been able to 
provide confirmation as the pupil could not be identified in their records.

All findings and recommendations were agreed with the Head Teacher and 
reported to the Chair of Governors and the then Corporate Director - Education, 
Social Care and Wellbeing.

Moderate Substantial



26

Title Date of 
Report

Comments / Findings Scale of 
Service

Assurance 
Level

Sir John Cass’s 
Foundation and 
Redcoat CE 
Secondary 
School

June 
2015

The audit was designed to ensure that there were adequate and effective controls 
over the administration and financial management of the school.  The school has 
a Full Governing Body and a Finance and Premises Committee which have 
overall responsibility for financial planning and control.  The main weaknesses 
were as follows:-

 The School’s main IT asset register did not include a large number of IT 
assets held at the School during the time of audit. A large number of items 
across the School could not be evidenced as security marked.  This 
included IT equipment, desirable premises items such as white goods and 
music equipment.

 Testing of a sample of 10 asset loans and examination of the loans 
register identified a number of issues where control could be improved.

 From examination of a sample of four higher value purchases above 
£10,000, we noted that a sufficient number of quotes had not been 
obtained for one purchase. It was noted that the purchase order form 
related to works/materials for two separate classrooms and the overall 
payment amounted to £36,444.00 (across four different orders).

 For two out of ten purchase orders sampled there was no evidence that 
the official order form was raised in advance of the invoice.

 There were a number of areas within the School’s “Financial Code of 
Practice” document which could have been more specific or clearer.

Three of the eight recommendations made were not fully accepted by the school 
which felt that further testing should have been undertaken where non-
compliance with procedures was identified.  Due to the time constraints we do not 
undertake additional testing in such cases, since the identification of any cases of 
non-compliance are sufficient for us to determine that the controls are not 
operating as they should and therefore the recommendations made are valid. 
The remaining five findings and recommendations were agreed with the Head 
Teacher and all eight issues were reported to the Chair of Governors and the 
then Corporate Director - Education, Social Care and Wellbeing.

Moderate Substantial



27

APPENDIX 3

Follow Up Audits – List of Priority 1 Recommendations still to be implemented

Audit Subject Recommendation Service Head Officer Name
Management of 
Photocopying and 
Printing Contract

It should be ensured that all Lease Agreements are signed as a matter of 
urgency to protect the Council contractually and legally.

Sean Green Khaled Hussain

Management of 
Photocopying and 
Printing Contract

In order to simplify the payments system, orders should be raised separately 
before the invoice is received for each agreement and the order raised should 
be for the amount stipulated on each agreement.
The ICT Client Monitoring Officer should undertake a full analysis of Orders / 
Invoices for each agreement since the contract start to establish the amount of 
under / over recovery of costs to Xerox. The outcome of this review should be 
reported to the Service Head for appropriate action.

Sean Green Khaled Hussain

Management of 
Photocopying and 
Printing Contract

It should be ensured that a performance monitoring process is established to 
enable the contractor’s performance to be independently assessed and 
reported upon as part of business as usual functions of the client team. There 
should also be a system for monitoring the delivery by Agilisys of the SLA for 
Managed Print Services and evaluate the overall value for money achieved 
through this approach on a regular basis. For example a 10% sample check 
can be introduced on the contractors meter readings invoiced by Agilisys.

The Contracts and Performance Manager Client Unit ICT should Investigate 
the inaccuracies in the data being provided by Safecom in order that these 
issues can be resolved and corrected prior to any Directorate user recharges 
being implemented

Sean Green Khaled Hussain



28

Follow Up Audits – List of Priority 2 Recommendations still to be Implemented

Audit Subject Recommendation Service Head Officer Name
Management of 
Photocopying and 
Printing Contract

The Contracts and Performance Manager Client Unit ICT should ensure that 
the minutes of meetings fully record the details held within the highlight reports 
to ensure that performance and risks associated with the project delivery and 
associated issues are documented and actioned.

Sean Green Khaled Hussain

Management of 
Photocopying and 
Printing Contract

The Contracts and Performance Manager Client Unit ICT should ensure that all 
associated risks are identified documented and scored to enable effective risk 
management to be undertaken for this Managed Print Service SLA with 
Agilisys. Controls need to be established by way of detailed monitoring 
procedures to enable effective contract management and monitoring to be 
achieved.

Sean Green Khaled Hussain



29





Non-Executive Report of the:

Audit Committee 

23rd September 2015 

Report of: Zena Cooke – Director of Resources 
Classification:
Unrestricted 

Social Housing Fraud Update

Originating Officer(s) Tony Qayum, Corporate Anti-Fraud Manager
Wards affected All wards 

Summary

This report provides the Corporate Management team with an update on the  work of 
the Social Housing Fraud team and its successes to date in the recovery of 
unlawfully let public sector dwellings. 

Recommendations:

1. The Audit Committee is recommended to:-
 
1.1 Note this report. 



1. REASONS FOR THE DECISIONS

1.1 To comply with the reporting requirements of the Audit Committee’s Terms of 
Reference.  

2. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS

2.1 There are no specific alternative options.

3. DETAILS OF REPORT

3.1 The Audit Committee has received reports previously on the creation of 
this team and its funding arrangements. The former Audit Commission 
had continued to highlight the abuse of Social Housing and in its last 
“Protecting the Public Purse” publication which was issued in October 
each year.

3.2 In 2010, it reported that through the efforts of some sixty councils in 
England 1,600 properties with an asset value of £240 million were 
recovered from unlawful tenants.

3.3 The paper stated that fewer than 5% of those evicted from Sublet 
properties sought assistance from Homeless Services as in most cases 
they found alternative accommodation in the private rented sector. This 
was and currently is not dissimilar to the experience at Tower Hamlets.

3.4 Following on from the Audit Commission paper and a report by the 
National Fraud Authority on abuse of Social Housing the Government 
advised that those authorities that had made the most effective use of 
earlier funding would be further supported by an award of £100,000 to 
continue the crackdown on tenancy cheats. 

4. CURRENT POSITION

4.1 In December 2012 the government assessed the Councils eligibility for 
further funding and made £100,000 available for the continuation of the 
function for financial years 2012-13 and 2013-14.

4.2 In Tower Hamlets terms we continued to utilise the services of the three 
temporary officers for which funding was awarded and have committed 
to maximise effectiveness by extending the existing arrangements for a 
further full financial year and to utilise, wherever possible, the use of 
technology to risk assess potential cases for follow up. To this end we 
acquired and developed a Fraud Case Management system funded 
from existing resources.

4.3 The Team have continued its joint working arrangements with Tower 
Hamlets Homes and following agreement to temporary funding a short 



term post was created to support THH on their recoveries. Following 
the recruitment of a temporary post holder the number of cases brought 
to a successful conclusion has increased thus justifying the initiative. 
This has continued into 2015-16.

4.4 We have also succeeded in acquiring funding for one post to support 
an RP for one year 2014-15 with recoveries which have been 
resourced from existing resources.

4.5 In June of this year we were able to appoint a seconded post holder 
from THH to work with team for a 12 month period thus increasing 
resources and increasing our target for recovery to 50 for the year.

4.6 The Team has examined inappropriate “right-to-buy” applications or 
potential unlawful subletting property with live “RTB” applications. 

4.7 These are either from referrals from THH “Right-to-Buy” team or from 
whistle blows, to avert an in-appropriate disposal of property and 
consider prosecution action. It is considered that this risk is likely to 
increase in light of the enhanced discount made available to tenants 
following the revisions to the Right to Buy scheme. 

4.8 We have also sought to make use of technology by taking our Housing 
Register and that of another RP’s tenancy records and running them 
through a Credit Reference check to test the credit footprint of our 
addresses on a RAG basis. This exercise has been undertaken for two 
successive years and results have been good e having targeted the 
Red and Ambers for specific investigation.

4.9 We are currently training both THH and the Lettings Service in the 
system to ensure matches are followed up and where appropriate 
identifying existing accommodation already acquired by applicants via 
the multi borough Hub element of the matching scheme. 

4.10 We have also ensured that publicity is maintained on the whistle 
blowing hotline and the anti-fraud email together with referrals through 
the Council and THH.

4.11 In the last financial year we recovered 42 properties, stopped 13 Right 
to Buy applications from being concluded and achieved 1 conviction in 
Court for a Fraudulent Housing Application that was effected against 
the Council. The outcome was that the case was successful with a 
£4,000 fine, victim Surcharge and costs awarded to the Council.

4.13 It is intended to provide regular reports to the Audit Committee on the 
success and achievements of this unit.



5. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER 

5.1 There are no financial implications emanating from the recommendations 
within this report.

6. LEGAL COMMENTS

6.1. The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (‘the Act’) abolishes the Audit 
Commission and repeals the Audit Commission Act 1998. The Act and 
supporting regulations (which replace the 2011 Regulations) came into effect 
on 1 April 2015 and will apply from the 2015/16 financial year onwards and 
are therefore not relevant to the matters referred to in this report. The aim of 
the Act, as stated in DCLG guidance, is to give local bodies the freedom to 
appoint their own auditors from an open and competitive market and to 
manage their own audit arrangements, with appropriate safeguards to ensure 
independence. However, the new local arrangements for the appointment of 
auditors are expected to start after the Commission’s current contracts with 
audit suppliers end in 2016-17, although this could be later if the contracts are 
extended to 2019-20.

6.2. Under the Local Government Act 1972 the Chief Financial Officer has a duty 
to ensure that there is an adequate process of Internal Audit to ensure the 
independent appraisal of the Council’s systems of internal control, practices 
and systems. This requirement is further reinforced by the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014.

6.3. Under Regulation 3 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, the Council 
is required to ensure that it has a sound system of internal control that 
facilitates effective exercise of the Council’s functions and includes 
arrangements for the management of risk. The Council is also required by 
Regulation 5 to maintain an effective system of internal audit to evaluate the 
effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance processes, 
taking into account public sector internal auditing standards and guidance. 
One of the functions of the Audit Committee under the Council’s Constitution 
is to review internal audit findings. The consideration by the Audit Committee 
of this report is consistent with the Council’s obligations and is within the 
Committee’s functions.

7. ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS

7.1 There are no specific One Tower Hamlets considerations.

8. BEST VALUE (BV) IMPLICATIONS

8.1 The effective investigation of allegations of Fraud and Corruption complies 
with the councils Best Value duty to manage its resources effectively and 



ensure that the three E’s of Economy, Efficiency and Economy are preserved 
in order to deliver effective services to the public we serve. 

9. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT

9.1 There are no specific SAGE implications.

10. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS

10.1 The need to manage resources effectively and identify fraud and abuse is a 
cornerstone in ensuring that risks to loss are effectively managed and the 
outcome for the last financial year demonstrates the Council’s commitment to 
foster an Anti-Fraud culture. 

11. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS

11.1 Effective Anti-Fraud arrangements the Council contributes to a reduction in 
crime and offers good practice in resolving scope for abuse of assets and 
systems.

 
____________________________________

Linked Reports, Appendices and Background Documents

Linked Report
 NONE 

Appendices
 NONE

Local Government Act, 1972 Section 100D (As amended)
List of “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report
 NONE 


Officer contact details for documents:
 N/A





Non-Executive Report of the:

Audit Committee 

23rd September 2015 

Report of: Zena Cooke – Director of Resources 
Classification:
Unrestricted 

Single Fraud Investigation Service- Position Update

Originating Officer(s) Tony Qayum, Corporate Anti-Fraud Manager
Wards affected All wards 

 SUMMARY

This report provides Audit Committee with an update of the 
arrangements for the transfer of existing Housing Benefit Fraud 
investigation Services to the DWP. The programme of rollout is largely 
complete, with London Borough of Tower Hamlets resources transferring 
in February 2016, and complete finalisation of the national scheme by 
March 2016.

RECOMMENDATION

The Audit Committee is asked to note the update on the creation of a            
Single Fraud Investigation Service.

The Audit Committee is asked to consider the resource gap the transfer 
will create and provide support in principle to minimise the exposure to 
abuse by resourcing the shortfall from Council funds.



1. REASONS FOR THE DECISIONS

1.1 To comply with the reporting requirements of the Audit Committee’s Terms of 
Reference.  

2. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS

2.1 There are no specific alternative options.

3. DETAILS OF REPORT

3.1 As part of the Government’s ongoing commitment to welfare reform the 
concept of a Single Fraud Investigation Service for the examination 
and review of all welfare related benefits was  developed with a series 
of ‘pilot’ authorities in various parts of the country being established. 
Following the early success of these pilots the DWP wrote to all Local 
Authorities in March 2014 setting out the approach to the transfer of 
Housing Benefit Fraud Investigation teams advising that the process 
would be outlined in a paper setting out the manner of the transfer, 
employment rights and clarity about how the scheme would be rolled 
out.

3.2 Each authority was asked to complete a questionnaire of 31 key 
questions covering resource and performance statistics and the 
percentage of posts that worked exclusively on Welfare related 
investigations as against corporate fraud work. 

3.3 The return gave the DWP an initial indication of work load and 
resources on which to base their statistics and likely transfer of 
resource to them.

 3.4 On 31 March 2014 a ‘Roadshow’ was organised by the DWP to provide 
more detail on the transfer of resource and each authority was 
requested to send up to two representatives from the Housing Benefit 
Fraud Investigation Service, one to be an operational investigator. The 
DWP undertook such events across the country and each roadshow 
would be represented by a cross section of authorities.

4. CONSULTATION WITH HUMAN RESOURCES

4.1 All information associated with this transfer has been communicated to 
the Head of HR who has informed Staff Side as part of ongoing 
communications. Legal Services have been kept informed from an 
Employment Law perspective, and in particular, an indication from the 
DWP that TUPE may not apply. 



4.2 This has been queried by UNISON who represent many of its members      
working under the auspices of the DWP Benefit Investigation Service.  
Local negotiations have been held with each Local Authority where 
those identified to be in scope have specific issues to resolve such as 
access to a local DWP site for future work or where special 
arrangements such as Travel Allowances, Parking Permits and other 
unique benefits apply.

4.3 Consultation with HR started on 13 August 2015 and with management 
on 17 August 2015. A meeting of staff, HR and the Trade unions is 
planned for the 10 September to consider contract terms and 
conditions.

4.4 The transfer for LBTH is still planned for February 2016.

5. RESOURCES GOING FORWARD

5.1 There will be areas of Fraud investigation which are presently   ‘by 
products’ of Housing Benefit Fraud Investigations that now require 
consideration for future resourcing.

5.2 These include Council Tax Investigations – Council Tax Reduction 
Scheme, Single Person Discount Investigation and Student status 
discount. In addition pro-active work on NNDR will need to be 
considered. 

5.3 At present there is no capacity within existing resources to pick this     
work up although there is a recognition both within the Council and      
more widely- Protecting the Public Purse 2014, Teicaff London centric 
Benchmarking (undertaken by the former Counter Fraud Specialists of 
the Audit Commission who authored the PPP) that these areas are 
ones with an increased fraud profile and need to be tackled.

5.4 Given this volume which has the potential for further growth the 
resource need to tackle this would be two full time equivalent posts.

5.5 Consideration has therefore been given to likely future resource needs 
and People Board’s endorsement will be sought to resource the areas 
highlighted above and other proactive fraud activities in recognition of 
the changing landscape of fraud which is constantly changing with 
emerging risks becoming clearer. The business supporting this request 
is based on an “invest to save” principle, the financial cost of the team 
more than paying for itself from Anti-Fraud / audit activities (notional 
and actual).

5.6 The Homeless Persons Unit currently hold Anti-Fraud resources to 
consider infringements and it is suggested that for a full and effective 
Corporate approach to Anti-Fraud work these resources be absorbed 
within the existing Corporate Anti-Fraud team thus ensuring all Anti-



Fraud investigation is maintained in one unit with the cross working and 
intelligence gathering it offers being maximised. 

6. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER 

6.1 There are no financial implications as a result of the recommendations within 
this report. However, the report does highlight the need to consider 
committing two FTE posts to address the residual issues identified in section 5 
above. Should these be approved, it will be on an invest to save basis, thus 
there should be no impact on Council resources.  

7. LEGAL COMMENTS

7.1 The Welfare Reform Act 2012 established the framework for the transfer of 
existing Housing Benefit fraud investigation services to the Department for 
Work and Pensions, as part of an array of reforms including the amalgamation 
of benefits to create the Universal Credit and the introduction of benefit caps.  
The main objective of the creation of the Single Fraud Investigation Service 
was to ensure that all types of social security and Tax Credits fraud would be 
investigated according to a single set of guidance and priorities. 

7.2 The Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations 2006 
(“TUPE 2006 Regulations”) provide that when a business or public service 
transfers from one organisation to another, employees transfer to the new 
employer under identical terms and conditions of employment.

7.3 The report indicates that the Government has deemed that the TUPE 2006 
Regulations will not apply.  This is because the transfer will be undertaken 
under regulations issued under section 38 of the Employment Relations Act 
1999. The Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) (Transfer of 
Staff to the Department for Work and Pensions) Regulations 2014 (The “DWP 
Regulations”) provide for similar protections of the employment terms and 
conditions as provided in the 2006 TUPE regulations.       

7.4 The DWP Regulations concern the treatment of persons employed by 
authorities administering housing benefit or council tax benefit (or employed 
by persons providing services to, or authorised to exercise functions of, such 
authorities). The Regulations apply to employees who are employed for the 
principal purpose of carrying out activities connected with the detection and 
investigation of offences relating to those benefits. They ensure that, if the 
function of carrying out those activities by a particular authority or service 
provider is transferred to the Secretary of State, those employees will have 
protection similar to that provided by certain provisions of the TUPE 
Regulations.

7.5 Regulation 3 is equivalent to regulation 4 of the TUPE Regulations and 
provides for the employees to be transferred to the employment of the 
Secretary of State. Regulation 4 is equivalent to regulation 7 of the TUPE 
Regulations and provides that those employees are to be treated for the 



purposes of Part 10 of the Employment Rights Act 1996 (unfair dismissal) 
as unfairly dismissed if the sole or principal reason for the dismissal is the 
transfer. Regulation 5 applies the provisions of regulation 10 of the TUPE 
Regulations in relation to pensions so as to exclude certain rights and 
liabilities in relation to occupational pension schemes.

7.6 The Report also confirms that consultation with staff and Unions is also 
underway.  

8. ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS

8.1 There are no specific One Tower Hamlets considerations.

9. BEST VALUE (BV) IMPLICATIONS

9.1 The effective investigation of allegations of Fraud and Corruption complies 
with the councils Best Value duty to manage its resources effectively and 
ensure that the three E’s of Economy, Efficiency and Economy are preserved 
in order to deliver effective services to the public we serve. 

10. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT

10.1 There are no specific SAGE implications.

11. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS

11.1 The need to manage resources effectively and identify fraud and abuse is a 
cornerstone in ensuring that risks to loss are effectively managed and the 
outcome for the last financial year demonstrates the Council’s commitment to 
foster an Anti-Fraud culture. 

12. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS

12.1 Effective Anti-Fraud arrangements the Council contributes to a reduction in 
crime and offers good practice in resolving scope for abuse of assets and 
systems.

 
____________________________________

Linked Reports, Appendices and Background Documents

Linked Report
 NONE 

Appendices
 NONE

Local Government Act, 1972 Section 100D (As amended)
List of “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report



 NONE 


Officer contact details for documents:
 N/A



Non-Executive Report of the:

Audit Committee

24th September 2015

Report of: Zena Cooke - Corporate Director Resources
Classification:
[Unrestricted or Exempt]

Annual Risk Management Report 2015/16

Originating Officer(s) Minesh Jani
Wards affected All wards 

1. Summary

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide the Audit Committee with:

a)   An oversight of the authority’s processes to facilitate the identification 
and management of its significant business risks. 

b)   Summary of the Q1 2015/16 Corporate Risk Register 

c)   Risk Management Team activity over the last 12 months 

The report enables the Audit Committee fulfil part of its functions as set out in 
the Committee’s terms of reference item no.8 - to review the Risk 
Management arrangements of the authority.  

2. Recommendations

2.1 The Committee is asked to: -

 note the contents of this report;
 agree the actions highlighted at section 9; 
 consider the corporate risks (table 2 on pages 7 and 8 of the attached 

paper) that the committee want to scrutinise; and 
 request the risk owner(s) requiring further scrutiny provide a detailed 

update on the treatment and mitigation of the risk including impact on 
the corporate objectives at its December meeting. 

3. Background

3.1 Risk management is an integral part of good corporate governance. There 
are many definitions of corporate governance but the one used by CIPFA is 



“…..the procedures associated with the decision making, performance and 
control of organisations, with providing structures to give overall direction to 
the organisation and to satisfy expectations of accountability to those outside 
it”.

3.2 All organisations face risks in everything that they do but by the proper 
management of its risks, organisations can benefit by reducing their 
significance; either by reducing the level of impact, or making the risk less 
likely to happen. Over the last few years, the use of risk management as a 
tool in the public sector has gained strength as the appreciation of how risk 
management can be used as a technique for delivering an efficient and 
effective service to all its stakeholders. This is demonstrated in guidance 
issued by CIPFA / SOLACE, “Delivering Good Governance in Local 
Government”, which makes reference to the need for effective management 
of risks and suggest how authorities can use audit committees to support a 
framework for effective systems of internal control.  

The council has developed a formal Risk Management framework and 
processes which is supported by the Risk Management and Audit team. This 
is part of the council’s corporate governance process and contributes to its 
compliance with Financial Regulations and Procedures as well as the 
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 (as amended). It is also a key part of 
the council’s Annual Governance Statement which is approved by the Audit 
Committee in June each year.

The council recognises that it has a responsibility to manage business risks 
and opportunities in a structured manner in order to achieve its corporate 
objectives and enhance the value of services it provides to the community.

 
4. Annual Risk Management Report 2014/5

4.1 The attached report sets out  in some detail the following:

a)  The corporate risk process; and

b)  The current corporate risks.

5. Reasons for the Decisions

5.1     The report is brought annually to provide the Committee with an 
oversight of the authority’s processes to facilitate the identification and 
management of its significant business risks.



6. Details of Report

6.1 The Audit Committee requires the Head of Audit and Risk Management to 
provide an annual report on the effectiveness of the process deployed to 
identify, assess, prioritise and mitigate the key risks which could affect the 
overall achievement of service objectives.

7. Comments of the Chief Finance Officer

7.1 There are no specific comments arising from the recommendations in this 
report.

8. Legal Comments 

8.1 There are no specific legal implications arising from the recommendations in this 
report.

9. One Tower Hamlets Considerations

9.1 There are no specific one Tower Hamlets considerations arising from the 
recommendations in this report.

10. Best Value (BV) Implications

10.1 The Council operates a risk management framework governed by a risk 
management policy to allow risk to be considered using a consistent model. 
The risk management cycle consists of the key steps for effective risk 
management which enables the Council to meet its best value duty to secure 
continuous improvement with regard to economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness.

11. Sustainable Action for a Greener Environment

11.1   There are no specific proposals in the report contributing to a sustainable
         environmental action for a greener environment.

12. Risk Management Implications

12.1 The report sets out arrangements for mitigating risks to the Council and 
actions taken to treat and eliminate identified risks.   

13. Crime and Disorder Reduction Implications

13.1 There are no specific crime and disorder reduction implications arising from 
this report. 

____________________________________



Linked Reports, Appendices and Background Documents

Linked Report
 None

Appendices
 Appendix 1 Corporate Risk Management Policy Statement
 Appendix 2 Corporate risk register
 Appendix 3 Risk Management scoring matrix

Local Government Act, 1972 Section 100D (As amended)
List of “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report
List any background documents not already in the public domain including officer 
contact information.

 None

Officer contact details for documents:
 N/A



LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS’
RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY STATEMENT

London Borough of Tower Hamlets is aware that risks will always arise from its 
various duties and functions. However, the Council recognises that it has a 
responsibility to manage business risks and opportunities in a structured manner in 
order to achieve its corporate objectives and enhance the value of services it 
provides to the community.

In pursuit of this aim the Council has adopted a risk management strategy that 
captures the following key objectives:

 Enable corporate, strategic, programme and partnership objectives to be 
achieved in the optimum way by controlling risks and exploiting opportunities 
which could impact on the Council’s success;

 The Council recognises that it has a responsibility to manage risks through a 
focused approach that includes risk taking in support of innovation to add 
value to service delivery;

 Risk management is seen as an integral element of the Council’s culture.

The Council aims to achieve the above objectives by:

 Establishing clear roles, responsibilities and reporting lines for risk 
management;

 Providing Members, the Corporate Management Team and the residents of 
the borough necessary assurance that the Council is actively managing its 
risks of not achieving the key corporate priorities to deliver value to the 
community.

 Providing opportunities for shared learning and working practices across the 
Council and its strategic partners.

 Monitoring arrangements on an on-going basis.

 
APPETITE FOR RISK

The Council seeks to minimise unnecessary risk and manage residual risk 
commensurate with its status as a public body. However, the Council will positively 
decide to take risks in pursuit of its ambitions for its community where it has sufficient 
assurance that:

1. The risks have been properly identified and assessed;

2. The risks will be appropriately managed, including the taking of mitigating 
actions and the regular review of risk;

3. The potential benefits accruing to the community justify the level of risk to be 
taken. 

Appendix 1





A
 S

af
e 

A
nd

 S
up

po
rti

ve
 C

om
m

un
ity

Detailed Risk Report (incl Control Measure Target Date)

Adults Services Directorate

CPTResponsibilityTotalILRequired Control MeasuresTotalILExisting Control Measures
Current Risk Target Risk

Risks ConsequencesTriggersRef

ASD0015 Luke AddamsRevised safeguarding procedures 
introduced from care act implemented.

Target operating module as part of the 
care act implemented.
Signs and safety framework 
implemented.
CQC care commission embargo list 
used.
Failed visit policy and procedures in 
place.

15 10Oversight through management 
reporting

11/11/2015

Required Control Measure Target 
Date:

Luke Addams

Information campaigns to raise 
awareness of safeguarding oversight 
from safeguarding adult’s board

15/12/2015

Required Control Measure Target 
Date:

Luke Addams

4 year (2015 – 2019) adults board 
strategy

25/01/2016

Required Control Measure Target 
Date:

Luke Addams

Safeguarding issues as part of 
contract management procedures

15/02/2016

Required Control Measure Target 
Date:

Luke Addams

Developing a strategic approach to 
reviewing and analysing data in a 
systematic way.

Required Control Measure Target 
Date:

Karen Sugars

 5 3  2  5Death or serious harm to a 
vulnerable adult that was or 
should have been in receipt 
of services, either from the 
council or a partner agency.

There is a failure of one or 
more of the controls which 
fails to identify the degree 
of risk to a vulnerable 
adult.
Poor practice and 
inadequate management 
oversight.
Failure of quality control 
systems.
Service user fails to work 
to agreed partnership / 
agency arrangements.
Poor communication and 
partnership work.
Poor resourcing of service 
areas against increased 
demand.
Local authority contracted 
out service do not have 
sufficiently robust 
safeguarding 
arrangements.

Harm to an individual.

Reputational damage to the 
Council.

Potential for legal 
proceedings against the 
council leading to financial 
loss.

Loss of confidence in 
safeguarding capability.

For more information contact the Risk Management Team on Ext: 0738 or 4051 Email: risk@towerhamlets.gov.uk Page 1 of 11
Risk & Controls Progress Report (with Control Target Date)2.rpt



A
 G

re
at

 P
la

ce
 T

o 
Li

ve

Detailed Risk Report (incl Control Measure Target Date)

CDResources

CPTResponsibilityTotalILRequired Control MeasuresTotalILExisting Control Measures
Current Risk Target Risk

Risks ConsequencesTriggersRef

CSDR0002 Kate BinghamService Head - Learning and 
Achievement chairs regular meeting to 
review short/medium and long term 
position

Monitoring of projected pupil numbers 
V roll numbers and planned capacity

Planning sufficient expansion options 
to provide additional capacity required

Sites for new schools secured 
following Examination in Public
Annual review of capital programme 
schemes and available resources 
(grant, s. 106 & CIL

Engagement of GLA to provide 
projections to strengthen reliance on 
LBTH model - Further review to 
provide annual projections

Produce briefing on primary sites and 
accurate timely updates.
GLA continue to provide roll 
projections; LBTH supply GLA with 
housing development data

Revise the governance arrangements 
of the Pupil Place Planning group to 
report directly to the Corporate Asset 
and Capital Board

Sites for two new primary schools 
secured

15 5Assessing financial implications 
(medium and long term) - Under 
further review

30/09/2015

Required Control Measure Target 
Date:

Kate Bingham

Continuing to engage Members

31/03/2016

Required Control Measure Target 
Date:

Pat Watson

Internal monitoring of programme 
(PPP meetings)

31/03/2016

Required Control Measure Target 
Date:

Pat Watson

Need for places included in LBTH 
Best Value Plan

28/07/2015

Required Control Measure Target 
Date:

Kate Bingham

Need for places included in LBTH 
Best Value Action Plan

28/07/2015

Required Control Measure Target 
Date:

Kate Bingham

 5 3  1  5Council’s inability to meet 
demand for school places

Actual roll > projected roll 
exceeds available capacity

Higher than anticipated 
birth rate / inward migration

Insufficient capacity 
created in time to meet 
need

Unable to secure executive 
decisions regarding the 
use of existing school, 

Decisions not taken in time 
to implement projects to 
provide places 

'Scheming" Powers:  
Schedule 1 of the 2010 
Academies Act gives the 
Secretary of State powers 
to transfer a school 
property to an academy 
and/or free school

Failure to have sufficient 
statutory school places to 
meet local need, children 
out of school and LA failing 
to meet duty

Additional transport costs; 
lack of parental 
engagement as children not 
at local school

Insufficient capacity for 
school places realised in 
existing estate. 

Additional costs incurred 
due to re phasing of 
projects if unanticipated 
delays in decision making.

For more information contact the Risk Management Team on Ext: 0738 or 4051 Email: risk@towerhamlets.gov.uk Page 2 of 11
Risk & Controls Progress Report (with Control Target Date)2.rpt



A
 S

af
e 

A
nd

 S
up

po
rti

ve
 C

om
m

un
ity

Detailed Risk Report (incl Control Measure Target Date)

Children's Services Department

CPTResponsibilityTotalILRequired Control MeasuresTotalILExisting Control Measures
Current Risk Target Risk

Risks ConsequencesTriggersRef

CSD0016 Debbie JonesAdherence to statutory government 
guidance, policies and procedures laid 
down by the council and LSCB / SAB

Quality assurance systems including 
case audits, LSCB and SAB 
sub-groups.

Effective working relations and swift 
communication across partnership 
agencies that is held at different levels 
of Children's s

Safeguarding board to seek evidence 
that existing performance measures 
are being upheld

Regular updates with key partner 
agencies, (examples) Police, NHS and 
Schools

Consultation with children subject to 
looked after plans to be sought in 
conjunction with the review of their 
plans

Quality assurance systems in place to 
provide triangulation of information

Regular and good quality management 
and performance information

Evolve System risk assessment of trips 
reviewed by Health and Safety Advisor

Serious/serious case review process in 
place
Safeguarding training programme in 
place covering induction and workforce 
development programme

Staff complete the Health and Care 
professions Council (HPC) 
re-registration process every 3 years

15 10Systematic feedback on the impact 
of services to be sought from 
children and used for training service 
development purposes

31/12/2015

Required Control Measure Target 
Date:

Nasima Patel

Implementation of a practice 
framework signs of safety which is a 
respected assessment tool

31/03/2016

Required Control Measure Target 
Date:

Paul McGee

Provide evidence to Children’s 
safeguarding board that 
performance measures are being 
upheld - ongoing

31/12/2015

Required Control Measure Target 
Date:

Nasima Patel

Ensure that CMT have a view of the 
activities within the service and 
develop some assurance using the 
corporate accountability f

Required Control Measure Target 
Date:

Debbie Jones

 5 3  2  5Death or serious harm to a 
child that was or should 
have been in receipt of 
services, either from the 
council or a partner agency.

There is a failure of one or 
more the controls which 
fails to identify the degree 
of risk to a child 

Poor practice and 
inadequate management 
oversight

Failure of quality control 
systems

Service user fails to work 
to agreed partnership / 
agency arrangements

Poor communication and 
partnership work

Poor resourcing of service 
areas against increased 
demand

Local authority contracted 
out service do not have 
sufficiently robust 
safeguarding 
arrangements

Harm to an individual

Poorer than expected 
outcomes for child.

Reputational damage to the 
council 

Potential for legal 
proceedings against the 
council leading to financial 
loss

Loss of confidence in 
safeguarding capability 
across the council, 
partnership and wider.

For more information contact the Risk Management Team on Ext: 0738 or 4051 Email: risk@towerhamlets.gov.uk Page3 of 11
Risk & Controls Progress Report (with Control Target Date)2.rpt



Detailed Risk Report (incl Control Measure Target Date)

Children's Services Department

CPTResponsibilityTotalILRequired Control MeasuresTotalILExisting Control Measures
Current Risk Target Risk

Risks ConsequencesTriggersRef
CEO appointed, independent Chair of 
the Safeguarding Board.
Robust commissioning that includes 
safeguarding checks of providers
Multi-agency safeguarding hub
Effective oversight of all key activities 
by service managers
Review arrangements of looked after 
children and child protection is led by 
the child protection review service 
which has a crit

For more information contact the Risk Management Team on Ext: 0738 or 4051 Email: risk@towerhamlets.gov.uk Page4 of 11
Risk & Controls Progress Report (with Control Target Date)2.rpt



O
ne

 T
ow

er
 H

am
le

ts

Detailed Risk Report (incl Control Measure Target Date)

Communications

CPTResponsibilityTotalILRequired Control MeasuresTotalILExisting Control Measures
Current Risk Target Risk

Risks ConsequencesTriggersRef

LPGCOM0
003

Stephen 
Halsey

Implementation of best value 
improvement plan
Clear communication protocols in 
place for both proactive and reactive 
management of the Council’s 
reputation.

Strategy laid out for how Service 
Heads communicate with third parties

Constitution in place that governs the 
actions and behaviours of members 
and officers.

Council code of conduct in place.
Communications strategy in place
Information Governance Group and 
FOI Board in place
Open and transparent decision making 
provisions in place. For example the 
filming of cabinet meetings.

12 12Delivery of best value action plan

31/12/2015

Required Control Measure Target 
Date:

Louise Russell
 3 4  4  3Failure to effectively 

manage the reputation of 
the Council

Relationship with central 
government / increased 
scrutiny 
Potential for criticism from 
constituents
Potential lack of clarity of 
political situation
Lack of clear guidance on 
reputation /”brand” 
management
Poor perception of Council 
following intervention from 
central government and 
PWC report and election 
petition

Breakdown in relationships 
with key stakeholders
Loss of key funding streams
Community becomes 
fractured
Impact upon service 
delivery
Increasing demands on 
core officers
Poor perception of the 
Borough
Increased external scrutiny

For more information contact the Risk Management Team on Ext: 0738 or 4051 Email: risk@towerhamlets.gov.uk Page 5 of 11
Risk & Controls Progress Report (with Control Target Date)2.rpt



O
ne

 T
ow

er
 H

am
le

ts
A

 H
ea

lth
y 

C
om

m
un

ity

Detailed Risk Report (incl Control Measure Target Date)

Corporate Finance

CPTResponsibilityTotalILRequired Control MeasuresTotalILExisting Control Measures
Current Risk Target Risk

Risks ConsequencesTriggersRef

RSB0019 Zena CookeFormal annual budget setting process 
and medium term financial plan

Continuous monitoring of Council’s 
medium term financial plan in place
Monthly monitoring and management 
reporting of Council’s financial position

Annual External Audit health check on 
financial processes including budgets 
and reporting

Programme Manager for Council 
Savings Plan in place.
Corporate Programme Board formed to 
monitor delivery of savings 
programme.

Develop and implement corporate 
approach to deliver and monitoring of 
Council savings plan and 
transformation plan

On-going advancement of linkages 
between the 30 year HRA Business 
Plan and Council service plans.

15 10Implement savings 
programme/opportunities

06/09/2015

Required Control Measure Target 
Date:

Zena Cooke

Methodology for council 
transformation in place and ongoing

30/11/2015

Required Control Measure Target 
Date:

Zena Cooke

 5 3  2  5Maintaining financial 
viability /balance in 2016/17 
to 2017/18

Reduction in funding 
NHS integration – 
unfunded services 
transferred in through 
Public Health 
Changes in Government 
initiatives
Potential inability to 
manage working capital 
effectively 
Increasing expectation of 
the Council aligned with 
increasing local need
Further austerity 
programme rolled out by 
central government 
impacting local authority
CSR in autumn 2015
HRA changes
Population growth

Claim resulting in circa 
£1m additional annual cost 
to the authority 

Future service cuts
Inability to meet public 
expectation
Increased pressure on 
delivery of statutory and 
priority services
Government intervention
Reduction in reserves

For more information contact the Risk Management Team on Ext: 0738 or 4051 Email: risk@towerhamlets.gov.uk Page 6 of 11
Risk & Controls Progress Report (with Control Target Date)2.rpt



O
ne

 T
ow

er
 H

am
le

ts

Detailed Risk Report (incl Control Measure Target Date)

Corporate Strategy And Equalities

CPTResponsibilityTotalILRequired Control MeasuresTotalILExisting Control Measures
Current Risk Target Risk

Risks ConsequencesTriggersRef

LPGSE000
1

Andy BamberFormal multi-agency approach in place

Cohesion Promotion Programme e.g. 
No Place for Hate Forum and Events
Use of Community Cohesion 
Contingency Planning & Tension 
Monitoring Group

Debrief programme in place for after 
key events/incidents.
Cohesion toolkit and impact 
assessment in place and used
Annual cohesion measured through 
residents’ survey.
Home Office funded programme of 
activities including interventions with 
young people.

Multi-agency SAP Panel in place to 
review case referrals of individuals of 
concern within the Borough.

On-going development of the “Prevent 
Programme” to include work in 
schools.

Competing prevent agenda action plan 
funded by Home Office

12 8

Required Control Measure Target 
Date:

 4 3  2  4Failure to achieve 
community cohesion
Radicalisation of young 
people and gangs

Extremist incident - local, 
national or international
Failure to engage with 
stakeholders in responding 
to extremism
Failure to liaise with police 
to address extremism
Increasing polarisation 
between communities in 
the borough
Council funding decision 
exacerbating community 
tension

Rising crime and unrest 
within the Borough
Damage to property and 
harm to persons
Reputation damage
Increase in social 
deprivation
More segmented society

For more information contact the Risk Management Team on Ext: 0738 or 4051 Email: risk@towerhamlets.gov.uk Page 7 of 11
Risk & Controls Progress Report (with Control Target Date)2.rpt



O
ne

 T
ow

er
 H

am
le

ts

Detailed Risk Report (incl Control Measure Target Date)

Legal Services

CPTResponsibilityTotalILRequired Control MeasuresTotalILExisting Control Measures
Current Risk Target Risk

Risks ConsequencesTriggersRef

LPGLS000
1

David GalpinCouncil Constitution in place
Annual Governance Statement 
process, incorporating the Audit 
Committee.

Bi-weekly meeting of the Statutory 
Officers Co-ordination Group.
Regular Section 151 Officer meetings.

Member training provided on Code of 
Conduct.
Mandatory training programme on 
licensing and planning in place for 
members of the Planning Committee.

Member Induction Programme in 
place.
Information Governance Group and 
FOI Board in place
Update Constitution to include agreed 
revisions.
Complete a refresh of the member 
induction programme after Election
Refresh mandatory training 
programme to include Bribery Act 
Provisions and any other 
developments

12 8Complete Governance Review in 
liaison with the Local Government 
Association

31/10/2016

Required Control Measure Target 
Date:

David Galpin

Refresh Local Code of Corporate 
Governance

31/03/2016

Required Control Measure Target 
Date:

Minesh Jani

 4 3  2  4Non-compliance with 
corporate governance 
procedures

Poor understanding of 
governance processes / 
lack of clarity of processes
Lack of awareness on 
areas such as conflict of 
interest and the Bribery Act
Possible pressure from 
politicians on officers to 
deviate

Ineffective decision making 
Potential for reputation 
damage
Poor council performance
Failure to optimise 
opportunities 
Adverse media reporting

For more information contact the Risk Management Team on Ext: 0738 or 4051 Email: risk@towerhamlets.gov.uk Page 8 of 11
Risk & Controls Progress Report (with Control Target Date)2.rpt



O
ne

 T
ow

er
 H

am
le

ts

Detailed Risk Report (incl Control Measure Target Date)

Procurement

CPTResponsibilityTotalILRequired Control MeasuresTotalILExisting Control Measures
Current Risk Target Risk

Risks ConsequencesTriggersRef

PPM0016 Zamil AhmedProcurement procedures in place
Head of Procurement is a member of 
East London Solutions and London 
Heads of Procurement Board 
(information sharing).

Procurement Analyst in post.
Dun & Bradstreet checks and 
monitoring pre and post appointment
Scrutiny Panel in place for all contracts 
over £250k
Strategic Competition Board in place
Tollgate processes in place to assess 
supply chain resilience risk pre and 
post appointment.

Rigorous due diligence and other 
financial checks completed as part of 
tendering process

Introduction of Directorate 
Procurement Dashboards

12 8Complete development of the 
Contract Management Toolkit.

31/12/2015

Required Control Measure Target 
Date:

Zamil Ahmed

 4 3  4  2Failure of the Council’s 
supply chain

Ineffective management of 
contractors
Breakdown in contractor 
relationships
Economic climate

Service interruption
Reputation damage
Council incurs significant 
expenditure 
Legal costs
Inability to deliver tax payer 
services

For more information contact the Risk Management Team on Ext: 0738 or 4051 Email: risk@towerhamlets.gov.uk Page 9 of 11
Risk & Controls Progress Report (with Control Target Date)2.rpt



A
 G

re
at

 P
la

ce
 T

o 
Li

ve

Detailed Risk Report (incl Control Measure Target Date)

Strategy, Regeneration & Sustainability

CPTResponsibilityTotalILRequired Control MeasuresTotalILExisting Control Measures
Current Risk Target Risk

Risks ConsequencesTriggersRef

DRA0016 Aman DalviBid for any available match funding 
made available by central government

Consider off site provision for specific 
private sector planning applications

Include an element of cross subsidy 
through mixed tenure development 
schemes

Develop the Homeless Statement & 
Action Plan
The preparation of master planning 
documents to promote housing growth 
in appropriate areas - Whitechapel 
Masterplan

Attain Housing Zone designation

15 10Investigate feasibility of using a joint 
venture to provide capital financing 
for new homes on available sites

31/03/2016

Required Control Measure Target 
Date:

Jackie Odunoye

Ensure all development & 
construction contracts are affordable 
within the current HRA Financial 
Model

31/03/2016

Required Control Measure Target 
Date:

Jackie Odunoye

The preparation of masterplanning 
documents to promote housing 
growth in appropriate areas - South 
Quay Masterplan

20/10/2015

Required Control Measure Target 
Date:

Owen Whalley

Develop and implement full housing 
zone project plan agreed with 
partners

20/10/2015

Required Control Measure Target 
Date:

Jackie Odunoye

 5 3  2  5Failure to meet the 
borough's housing targets

NB: The Mayor is reviewing 
current targets for 
affordable homes. As at the 
end of Quarter 1 (Q1) the 
service reported that it 
expects to deliver 1251 
affordable homes by the 
end of this financial year. Of 
the 220 units delivered in 
Q1 198 were rented and of 
these 93 were family rented 
units. Family sized 
affordable housing is a 
priority for the council and 
officers seek to achieve a 
policy compliant mix an 
every planning application.

1. Negative impact of 
ongoing welfare reform 
agenda
2. Reduction in supply of 
suitable accommodation
3. Private sector landlords 
increasingly resistance to 
accepting residents on 
benefits
4. Universal credit 
implications/potential 
increase in tenants in 
arrears
5. Insufficient capital 
financing to deliver new 
homes on available sites
6. Insufficient revenue 
protection to cover debt 
charges in the HRA 
following the July 2015 
budget. 
7. Right to Buy extended to 
housing association 
properties
8. As a result of policy 
changes set out in the 
Government’s Summer 
2015 budget local housing 
associations amend 
development plans in 
favour of shared 
ownership, market rent and 
outright sale at market 
rates.

1. Increase in 
homelessness
2. Increase in costs for 
temporary housing e.g. 
B&Bs
3. Rental market instability
4. Negative impact on 
initiatives to reduce 
overcrowding
5. Council fails to achieve 
its targets
6. Reputation damage
7. Increases in right to buy 
leading to a reduction in 
housing stock
8. Significant reduction in 
supply of housing 
association affordable and 
social rent housing

For more information contact the Risk Management Team on Ext: 0738 or 4051 Email: risk@towerhamlets.gov.uk Page 10 of 11
Risk & Controls Progress Report (with Control Target Date)2.rpt



O
ne

 T
ow

er
 H

am
le

ts

Detailed Risk Report (incl Control Measure Target Date)

Street Enforcement & Response Services

CPTResponsibilityTotalILRequired Control MeasuresTotalILExisting Control Measures
Current Risk Target Risk

Risks ConsequencesTriggersRef

CLSCEI000
8

Andy BamberBusiness continuity plans kept up to 
date
Staff with extensive experience in 
dealing with incidents need to be in 
place

Borough Emergency Management 
Team
6 month review of EP plan with 
Directorate changes.
Annual report to CMT

10 6Independently review the Borough 
Major Emergency Plan to ensure it is 
fit for purpose.

31/05/2016

Required Control Measure Target 
Date:

Andy Bamber

Rollout a refresh training programme 
for senior managers and officers 
supporting the emergency plan.

31/05/2016

Required Control Measure Target 
Date:

Andy Bamber

 5 2  2  3There is a risk that, should 
a major incident take place 
affecting Council services, 
there may be a failure to 
implement an effective 
response.
(Corporate level risk)

Failure by Directorates to 
ensure that the Borough 
Major Emergency Plan 
(Part 3B) is kept up to date 
with Directorate information 
and procedures, and that 
staff are unaware of the EP 
process.

(1) Systemic failure of the 
Council to continue to 
operate during a crisis 
period as a consequence of 
a civil event or situation;
(2) Resulting in a slower 
than expected management 
response causing increased 
disruption to key service 
delivery, inconvenience to 
service users and the 
stakeholders, adverse 
public criticism and 
additional costs to the 
Council.

For more information contact the Risk Management Team on Ext: 0738 or 4051 Email: risk@towerhamlets.gov.uk Page 11 of 11
Risk & Controls Progress Report (with Control Target Date)2.rpt





London Borough of Tower Hamlets – Risk Scoring Matri x

Impact Type

Impact
description

Service disruption Financial Loss Reputation Performan ce Health and Safety

Very High
5

Total failure of service for a 
significant period

Financial loss in 
excess of £1,000,001

National adverse  media 
coverage for more than 3 
days. Possible resignation 
of chief/senior officer's)

Failure to achieve a 
strategic theme or major 
corporate objective in the 
Council’s strategic plan

Fatality of employee. 
Service user or other 
stakeholder

High
4

Significant service 
disruption

Financial Loss  
between £500k to 
£1,000,000

Adverse national media 
coverage

Failure to achieve one or 
more strategic plan 
objectives

Serious injury/permanent 
disablement of one or 
more employees/service 
users

Medium
3

Disruption to service –
causing some concern

Financial loss between 
£51k - £500k

Adverse local media 
coverage/significant no of 
service-user complaints

Failure to achieve a 
service plan objective

Injury to staff/service user 
resulting in loss of 
working time

Low
2

Minor impact on service Financial loss  
between £5k and 50k

Service user complaints 
contained with directorate

Failure to achieve several 
team plan objectives

Minor injury to service 
user/staff

Negligible
1

Annoyance but does not 
disrupt service

Financial loss under 
£5k

Isolated service user 
complaints

Failure to achieve unit 
level objective

Slight  injury to an 
employee/service user

What is a risk?

• A risk can be defined as “an event or set of events that could impact on the achievement of objectives” . A risk can have a negative or a 
positive impact.

• A risk should be assessed against an objective.
• A risk is measured in terms of likelihood and impact. (see Tables below)
• It is important to note that if the likelihood of the event occurring is less than 100%, i.e. it is not a certainty 
• A risk may never 100% mitigated, but its risk score may reduce to an acceptable level
• A risk can be dealt with in 4 ways – Treat (mitigate), Tolerate (accept), Transfer to a third party or Terminate (avoid).

Impact Classification

Risk Matrix Risk Score definitions

How to use the Risk Scoring Matrix

To assess a risk , first consider the likelihood of that risk occurring. Consult the Likelihood Classification Table below and choose the 
most appropriate description e.g. Possible ,which has a score of 3. Next, consider the impact of that risk occurring using the Impact 
Classification Table. There may be several impacts of a risk e.g. service disruption and financial loss, choose the highest rated impact 
e.g. High which has a score of 4. It is essential to take into account, when scoring, any existing measures that either reduce the 
likelihood or/and impact of the risk occurring. Using the Risk Matrix below a likelihood score of Possible (3) and an Impact of High(4 ) 
gives a risk score of 12 (Amber ). The Risk Definition table indicates the meaning of that score in terms of management action required.

Risk Management Team (ext 4051)   May 2013

Score Likelihood Description Definition ( % = Chance of happening)

5 Almost certain Expected to occur in most circumstances (>80%)

4 Likely Will probably occur in most circumstances (51% - 80%)

3 Possible Fairly likely to occur (21% - 50%)

2 Unlikely Could occur at some point (6% - 20%)

1 Rare Extremely unlikely or virtually impossible (<5%)

Likelihood Classification

Likelihood

Almost certain 5 5 10 15 20 25

Likely 4 4 8 12 16 20

Possible 3 3 6 9 12 15

Unlikely 2 2 4 6 8 10

Rare 1 1 2 3 4 5

1 2 3 4 5

Negligible Low Medium High
V 

High

Impact

Red
(Severe)

Serious concern. Comprehensive 
Management action required immediately.

Amber
(Significant)

Significant concern. Some immediate action 
required plus comprehensive action plans.

Yellow
(Material)

Consequences of risk are of some concern 
although treating the risk will usually be 
through contingency planning. Risk to be kept 
under regular monitoring

Green
(Manageable)

The risk is relatively low however risk should 
be monitored.

paul.dudley
Typewritten Text
Appendix 3

A.Sotande-Peters
Sticky Note
Accepted set by A.Sotande-Peters

A.Sotande-Peters_1
Sticky Note
Completed set by A.Sotande-Peters

A.Sotande-Peters_2
Sticky Note
Completed set by A.Sotande-Peters





1

``

Annual Risk Management Report 
2015/16

Minesh Jani, 
Head of Audit and Risk Management



2

Contents

Section Page no

1.0 Introduction 3

2.0 Risk Management team 3

3.0 Corporate Risk Management Process 4

4.0 Risk Management Support and Interventions 7

5.0 Preparation and Publication of Risk Management 
Information

8

6.0 Risk Management training 8

7.0 Promotion of Risk Management          9

8.0 Risk Management performance 9

9.0 Risk Management Team Plan 2014/5 to 2015/16 10

Appendix 1: Corporate Risk Management Policy Statement

Appendix 2: Corporate Risk Register

Appendix 3: Risk Management scoring matrix



3

1.0 Introduction

1.1 The purpose of this report is to summarise the work of the Council’s risk management
team during 2014/15 and highlight its activities to promote the effectiveness of the
process deployed to identify, assess, prioritise and mitigate the key risks which could 
affect the overall achievement of Council objectives.

2.0 Risk Management Team

2.1 The Risk Management team comprises of Internal Audit, Fraud, Insurance and 
the Risk Management services. The team is led by the Head of Audit and Risk 
Management. The following section focuses on the Risk Management service which
is delivered by the Head of the team and the Strategic Risk Adviser. It highlights the 
aims of the team and the services that underpin these objectives.

The Risk Management team aim’s and services

2.2 The Risk Management Team has identified the following aims:

A. promoting the consistent use of risk management and ownership of risk at all levels;

B. building and maintaining  a risk aware culture within the council, including
appropriate education and training;

C. developing, implementing and reviewing the risk management framework and risk 
management processes;

D. developing competence and maturity in risk management;

E. linking with the other functions within and beyond the Risk Management team that
advise on specific aspects of risk management (e.g. insurance, health and safety,
business continuity, civil contingencies, occupational health, internal audit) ;

F. Reporting, escalating and communicating risk issues to key stakeholders.

2.3 In order to meet these aims the team delivers the following services:



4

 Management and coordination of the corporate risk management process which
is part of the council’s corporate governance framework.

 Provision of professional risk management support on a range of corporate and 
directorate projects. This includes, where appropriate, attendance at management 
meetings, risk interventions such as the production of risk strategies and process
guides, risk identification and control workshops, access and training to the 
council’s Risk Management Information System (JCAD).

 Preparation and publication of risk information on TH Net.

 Maintenance and development of the Risk Management Information System, 
Known as JCAD Risk.

 Provision of risk training including members, and senior managers, new managers
and staff as well as regular training opportunities on JCAD Risk.

2.4 Section 3 below provides information on the corporate risk process including the 
council’s corporate risks. Sections 4 to 7 below provide an update on the team’s work 
during the year and aligned to the above services it provides.

3.0 Corporate Risk Management  Process

3.1 The approach to managing risk is outlined in the Council’s Risk Management Policy
Statement (Appendix 1). The Statement encourages innovation and creative approaches
to service delivery whilst requiring careful consideration of the risks involved and 
taking appropriate measures to manage them. The Corporate Risk Management 
Process is aimed at identifying, assessing, prioritising and mitigating the significant risks 
which could impact on the delivery of the council’s objectives (i.e. corporate risks). This 
process is also aligned with the council’s team planning arrangements.

3.2 Corporate risks are those concerned with ensuring overall success of Council objectives,
and the vitality and viability of the organisation.  Materialisation of such risks can have a
number of consequences, for example they could significantly affect the reputation 
of the Council, or present significant financial costs. Guidance has been produced to 
help Risk Champions (see 3.4 below) and their directorates identify corporate risks 
from their service level assessments.



5

3.3 The review of both corporate and directorate risk is undertaken on a monthly basis by
The Risk Champions Group. A process is in place to aid all directorates capture key
risks and assess their significance. The methodology adopted by the authority (the 
UK Government’s Management of Risk approach) is used to assess and prioritise key 
risks and to focus attention on those risks that require attention. Significant risks are
examined at directorate level and any risk that remains significant after existing 
controls are taken into account (residual risk) are reported quarterly to the Corporate 
Management Team (CMT) so that they can be considered further.

Risk Champions Group

3.4 The Risk Champions Group is a key part of the council’s corporate risk process. The
Group is chaired by the Corporate Resources Director and its members comprise 
senior officers from each of the directorates. The group meets monthly and its primary
purpose is to ensure that there is appropriate scrutiny of risks that have been identified 
by directorates and recommended for elevation to the corporate risk register. It also 
reviews and scrutinises directorate risks.

3.5 The role of a Risk Champion is set out in the group’s terms of reference and includes
 the following activities:

o Update and maintain directorate risks on JCAD (Council’s Risk Management 
           Information System) Risk every quarter;

o Facilitate the embedding of risk management within the directorate;

o Maintain close liaison on risk and risk dynamics with individual service heads 
           and DMT collectively

o Challenge officers in their directorate in their assessment of risk and seek 
explanations over the proposed actions to manage the risk;

o Build a risk-aware culture within their directorate and disseminate good risk 
Management practices;

o Provide advice and assistance as required;

o Obtain and update on planned actions from appropriate service heads for 
Reporting to CMT; and

o Bring significant risks to the attention of the CMT.



6

3.6 Once the group have scrutinised, reviewed and updated the corporate risks 
the Risk Management team prepare a quarterly Risk Management update report 
for CMT and subsequently to Mayor’s Advisory Board (MAB).

3.7 Corporate risk owners continue to be invited to discuss their risk(s) with the group to 
get abetter understanding on how well the risk is being managed. It may 
then make recommendations to the risk owner for suggested improvements to the 
controls.

Corporate Risk Register

3.8 During November and December 2014 and January 2015, Zurich undertook a
series of meetings with members of the Corporate Management Team (CMT) to 
review risks and control measures on the Corporate Risk Register. This followed
on from a workshop with CMT on 2nd September where the risk register was 
initially reviewed and updated. These are listed in brief below (para 3.10) and a
detailed corporate register is set out as Appendix 2.

The meetings involved senior managers reviewing in more detail the risks
assigned to them and also reviewing more generally other risks on the register 
and identifying any risks to be added or taken off the risk register.

It was agreed that CMT should have a timescale for re-visiting all of the risks to
ensure that the Corporate Risk Register continues to be a relevant and robust 
document which accurately reflects the key risks facing the Council.

During the interviews it was suggested that CMT may also want to have sight of 
high level directorate risks when reviewing the corporate risks. This provides
assurance to CMT that although a decision has been made not to include them
on the Corporate Risk Register that they are being managed effectively. It will 
also ensure that the Corporate Risk Register only contains the key strategic
risks which need to be owned by CMT rather than higher level directorate risks.

Following a restructure of Education, Social Care and Wellbeing (ESCW) 
Directorate into Children’s Services Directorate and Adult’s Services Directorate,
former ESCW risk have been desegregated to two new directorates in the 
Risk information system (JCAD). Further work is to be undertaken in reviewing 



7

and updating risks in both directorates and resolving risk training issues
following the reorganisation.

3.9 The current corporate risk register (as at 31/08/15) identifies 10corporate risks.
The definition of each of these risk ratings is set out in Appendix 3.

Risk Scores

Directorate 8 10 12 15 20 Grand Total
ASD 0 0 0 1 0 1
CLC 0 1 0 0 0 1
CSD 0 0 0 2 0 2
D&R 0 0 0 1 0 1
LPG 0 0 3 0 0 3
Resources 0 0 1 1 0 2
Grand Total 0 1 4 4 0 10

Table 1. The number of risks within each directorate by risk score.

Key:  ASD – Adults Services directorate
CLC – Communities Localities Culture directorate
CSD – Children’s Services directorate
D&R – Development and Renewal directorate
LPG – Law, Probity and Governance directorate
Resources – Resources directorate

Compared with the same period in 2014, the number of corporate risks decreased to the
present 10.

The corporate risks and current risk ratings(August 2015) are shown below in 
Table 2.

Risk Ref Current 
Risk 
Rating

Risk Event Directorate

ASD0015 15 Death or serious harm to a 
vulnerable adult that was or should 
have been in receipt of services, 
either from the council or a partner 
agency.

ASD



8

CSDR0002 15 Council’s inability to meet demand 
for school places.

CSD

CSD0016 15 Death or serious harm to a child 
that was or should have been in 
receipt of services, either from the 
council or a partner agency.

CSD

LPGCOM0003 12 Failure to effectively manage the 
reputation of the Council.

LPG

RSB0019 15 Maintaining financial 
viability/balance in 2016/17 to 
2017/18.

Resources

LPGSE0001 12 Failure to achieve community 
cohesion and radicalisation of 
young people and gangs.

LPG

LPGLS0001 12 Non-compliance with corporate 
governance procedures

LPG

PPM0016 12 Failure of the Council’s supply 
chain.

Resources

DRA0016 10 Failure to meet the borough’s 
housing targets.

D&R

CLSCE10008 10 There is a risk that, should a major 
incident take place affecting council 
services, there may be a failure to 
implement an effective response.

CLC

Table 2 – Corporate Risk register summary

4.0 Risk Management Support and Interventions

4.1 An important role of the Risk Management team is to assist teams/services in using 
a Risk Management approach to help them deliver operational or project objectives.  
During the reporting period risk management has provided support to a number of 
areas within the council. Support can take various forms including the provision of 
advice and guidance as well as setting up risk processes and training.

5.0 Preparation and Publication of Risk Management Information



9

5.1 The Risk Management pages on TH Net includes information and tools on managing risk
which are updated regularly. Over the period more documents have been added or 
revised:

 A quick reference guide to Risk Management (a user friendly two page guide)
 A new Risk matrix
 Further guidance on how to use the JCAD Risk system
 Generic Service related risk assessments
 Training materials

6.0 Risk Management Training

6.1 Risk Management training is essential if managers and staff are to understand the
benefits of this approach and use it to help make effective decisions and achieve 
directorate/corporate objectives. As a result a significant portion of time is allocated 
to this area.

Business Risk Management training staff

6.2 A new timetable is now in place for training commencing in September2015. This is 
starting with targeted training for senior managers/starters in the Adults and Children’s 
Services directorates. This will be followed by training in all directorates.

Senior Management Risk Management  training

6.3 Following on from the Corporate risk register refresh workshop conducted by Zurich 
Municipal Risk Consultancy, further workshops and training will be conducted with 
directorate management teams. 

E-Learning

6.7 The council uses a Risk Management Information System, known as JCAD which is 



10

used to record and report on risks. The reports 
produced by this system are used to provide risk 
information to DMTs, CMT, MAB and the Audit 
Committee. An ELearning course has been 
developed to help train new users of the system as 
well as provide a refresher for existing users. 
Pictured right is a screen shot showing part of
the E-Learning module.

Member Risk Management awareness

6.8 A Risk Management and Anti fraud awareness session is to be implemented as standard 
training for members. This is now included in the member development programme.

7.0 Promotion of Risk Management

7.1 This section highlights the promotional Risk Management activity which has taken place
during the reporting period.

Risk Talks

7.2 Risk talks are regular, usually monthly, lunch and learn sessions and were initiated in
May 2012. Their purpose being to bring life to Risk Management through the use of case
studies, research, sharing best practice and updates all highlighting the importance and
benefits of managing risk. The talks are advertised on the TH Net as well as targeted
invitations being sent to officers. There is usually a mixed audience of senior managers, 
managers and staff.

7.3 A programme of further risks talks featuring internal and external guests is programmed 
for the latter part of 2015 and in 2016.

8.0 Risk Management performance

8.1 This section provides evidence of the overall council performance of its formal Risk
Management arrangements. Two areas are highlighted. The first is the council’s 
Annual governance statement and also the result of the council’s most recent 
participation in the Alarm/CIPFA Risk Management benchmarking exercise 
in 2013. The evidence suggests that the council has processes in place which 
continue to improve.



11

The Council’s internal Audit service conducted an audit examining the systems
 in place for risk management across all Directorates in late 2014 and early 2015. 
Areas of good practice were identified during the audit, however they were all given
substantial assurance ( substantial assurance means while there is basically
 a sound system there are weaknesses which put some of the control objectives
 at risk and from testing there is evidence that the level of non-compliance with
 some of the controls may put some of the system objectives at risk).

An action plan is in place to address weaknesses found in risk management audit  
Which includes further training on risk identification process within services and on the 
quality of controls measures and progress/updates.

The council’s Annual Governance Statement

8.2 The Council is responsible for ensuring its business is conducted in accordance 
With the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded 
and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively. The 
Council also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements 
to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, 
having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. In 
discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for putting in 
place proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective 
exercise of its functions, this includes arrangements for the management 
of risk. Risk management is a principal element of corporate governance, to this 
end a risk management strategy was adopted in March 2002 and is regularly reviewed
and endorsed by the Mayor in Cabinet and the Head of Paid Service and was most 
recently endorsed in June 2014.

The 2014/15 Annual Governance Statement Report noted the following comments
Regarding the Risk Management arrangements.

“The Authority has a Risk Management Strategy to identify and manage the principal
risks to achieving its objectives. The principles of risk management are embedded
 in the Council’s decision making processes. The Strategy recognises that when 
making decisions the Council may not always adopt the least risky option, particularly 
where the potential benefits to the community warrant the acceptance of a higher level 
of risk. All committee reports seeking decisions or approval to a proposed course 
of action contain an assessment of the risk involved and both financial and legal 



12

comments. Key risks are recorded in corporate and directorate risk registers, which 
are subject to periodic review and reporting to the Corporate Management Team. 
Directorate Risk Champions oversee the continued development of the Council’s 
approach to risk management.”

Alarm/CIPFA Benchmarking Club

8.3 The council is a member of the Alarm/CIPFA Risk Management Benchmarking club
which comprises over 50 local authorities and other public bodies. The council last 
participated in the 2013 (May/June) Risk Management benchmarking exercise.

8.4 The Benchmarking Club uses a National Performance Model which is based on 
the highly respected tool developed by HM Treasury in 2002, ‘Risk Management 
Assessment Framework’.

It breaks down risk management activity into seven strands:

• Leadership and management
• Strategy and policy
• People
• Partnership, shared risks and resources
• Processes and tools
• Risk handling and assurance
• Outcomes and delivery

8.5 The Risk Management team completed the self-assessment questionnaire and 
Returned to CIPFA for analysis against the model. The council at the period of 
assessment on all the seven strands had either a Working or Embedded and Integrated 
classification. Comparison to the council’s responses with earlier results (2012) reflects
an upward trend in the overall direction in performance. This is recognition of the Risk 
Management work undertaken by the team since 2013.

8.6 The council was also compared with 5 other local authorities (London Boroughs). 
The comparison indicates that on five of the seven strands the council was slightly below 
The average although particularly strong on the Policy and Strategy and Process areas. 
The aim is to improve all the council’s scores to Embedded and Integrated and where 
possible to Driving. It is anticipated that with the measures taken in 2013/4 and those 
identified in the action plan, there should be some movement in this direction. The 



13

next Risk Management benchmarking exercise is due late summer 2016.

Table 3- LBTH Summary of Risk Management  Benchmarking results

9.0 Risk Management Team Plan 2014/15 to 2015/16



14

9.1 The Risk Management team plan includes a number of actions to address some 
of the points above and made elsewhere in this paper:

 The council’s Risk Management policy and manager’s guide will be reviewed and 
revised.

 Risks will be more closely aligned to service and business objectives.
 Additional Risk Management training for managers is being offered together with
           a refresher for senior managers.
 Risk Talks will continue with regular features in TH Now.
 Risk Management protocol will be refreshed to provide guidance and further
          Assurance on the application of Risk Management within directorates, with
          particular emphasis on identification of key risks, and what should be included on 
          the risk management information system (JCAD mainly at service  levels), and   
          quality of the controls measures and progress/updates.



1

Non-Executive Report of the:

Audit Committee

23 September 2015

Report of: Zena Cooke, Corporate Director of Resources
Classification:

Unrestricted 

Treasury Management Activity Report  for Year to 31 August 2015 

Originating Officer(s) Bola Tobun, Investment & Treasury Manager
Wards affected All wards

Summary
This report advises the Committee of the Council’s borrowing and investment 
activities during 2015/16 to 31 August 2015. The Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement and the Treasury Prudential Indicators, for 2015/16 were approved by the Council 
on 26 February 2015 as required by the Local Government Act 2003. 

The report also provides information on the economic conditions prevailing in the 
third quarter of 2015/16. The report also provides a summary of the prudential 
indicators, treasury management indicators and a summary of the credit criteria 
adopted by the Corporate Director of Resources for the reporting year and the 
projected investment returns. 

The Council earned an average return of 0.76% on its lending, outperforming the 
actual rolling average 7 day LIBID rate of 0.35%.

No long-term or short-term borrowing has been raised since the commencement of 
this financial year 2015/16 to reporting period.

Over the reporting period, all treasury management activities have been carried out 
in accordance with the approved limits and the prudential indicators set out in the Council’s 
Treasury Management Strategy statement. The outturn report of the Treasury Management 
Strategy will be presented to the Council at its meeting of the 16 September 2015.  

Recommendations:

Members are recommended  to:
 note the contents of the treasury management activities and performance 

against targets for year to period ending 31 August 2015 
 note the Council’s outstanding investments as set out in Appendix 1. The 

balance outstanding as at 31 August 2015 was £415.7m which includes 
£48.5m, pension fund cash awaiting investment.

1. REASONS FOR THE DECISIONS



2

1.1 This report updates on both the borrowing and investment decisions made by 
the Director of Resources under delegated authority in the context of 
prevailing economic conditions and considers Treasury Management 
performance measured against the benchmark 7 day LIBID rate.

1.2 Treasury management is defined as “the management of the council’s 
investments and cash flows; its banking, money market and capital market 
transaction; the effective control of the risks associated with those activities; 
and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks.

1.3 Legislation requires that regular reports be submitted to Council/Committee 
detailing the council’s treasury management activities.

1.4 The regular reporting of treasury management activities should assist in 
ensuring that Members are able to scrutinise officer decisions and monitor 
progress on implementation of investment strategy as approved by Full 
Council.

2. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS

2.1 The Council is bound by legislation to have regard to the Treasury 
Management (TM) Code. The Code requires that the Council or a sub-
committee of the Council (Audit Committee) should receive regular 
monitoring reports on treasury management activities.

2.2 If the Council were to deviate from those requirements, there would need to 
be some good reason for doing so.  It is not considered that there is any such 
reason, having regard to the need to ensure that Members are kept informed 
about treasury management activities and to ensure that these activities are 
in line with the investment strategy approved by the Council.

2.3 Within reason, the Council can vary its treasury management strategy having 
regard to its own views about its appetite for risk in relation to the financial 
returns required. 

3. DETAILS OF REPORT

3.1 The Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) Regulations 
2003 require local authorities to have regard to the Treasury Management Code. 
The Treasury Management code requires that the Council or a sub-committee of 
the Council (Audit Committee) should receive regular monitoring reports on 
treasury management activities and risks.

3.2 These reports are in addition to mid-year and annual treasury management 
outturn reports that should be presented to the Council midway through the 
financial year and at year end respectively.



3

3.3 TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2015/16

3.3.1 The Council’s Treasury Management Strategy was approved on 26 February 
2015 by Full Council. The Strategy comprehensively outlines how the treasury 
function would operate throughout the financial year 2015/16 including the limits 
and criteria for selecting institutions to be used for the investment of surplus cash 
and the council’s policy on long-term borrowing and limits on debt.

3.3.2 The Council complied with the strategy from the onset to reporting period, 31 
August 2015. And all investments were made to counterparties within the 
Council’s approved lending list.

3.3.3 The Pension Fund cash awaiting investment has been invested in accordance 
with Council’s Treasury Management Strategy agreed by Full council on the 26 
February 2015, under the delegated authority of the Corporate Director of 
Resources and is being managed in-line with the agreed parameters. The 
Pensions Committee is updated on Pension Fund investment activity on a 
quarterly basis.

3.4      ECONOMIC COMMENTARY

3.4.1 The August Bank of England (BoE) Inflation Report highlighted that the Monetary 
Policy Committee (MPC) intends to focus policy on ensuring that growth is robust 
enough to absorb the remaining slack in the economy and return inflation to its 
target of 2% within two years. The foreseeable outlook for inflation is muted as 
the falls in energy and commodity prices will weigh on inflation until mid-2016. 
The UK will remain reliant on domestic demand as households are supported by 
the boost to real incomes from lower food, clothing and energy prices. 
Businesses continue to invest to expand capacity and surveys suggest healthy 
investment growth ahead. This will help push productivity growth rates towards 
the previous rates.

3.4.2 The MPC voted to keep interest rates at their record low of 0.5% in August. For 
the first time since late 2014, the vote was not unanimous as one member voted 
in favour of raising the Bank Rate. The MPC minutes for the August meeting 
revealed that some policymakers saw a risk that inflation could pick up more 
strongly than the central forecast. However, the central bank suggested that they 
were more focused on the potential for the surge in sterling to suppress inflation.

3.4.3 The headline inflation figure fell to 0% in June from 0.1% in May. UK inflation 
neared its lowest rate as both food and summer clothing fell in price. UK 
economic growth for Q2 2015 showed that GDP grew by 0.7% compared to the 
previous quarter, with annual growth also 2.6% higher than a year before. This 
was driven by a pick up in the services sector and a surge in oil production.

3.4.4 The UK unemployment rate held steady at 5.6%, in June. British wage growth fell 
to 2.4% in June, the lowest rate in 3 months. However, excluding bonuses, 
average weekly earnings held steady at 2.8%. Rising earnings combined with 
stifled inflation is boosting the spending power of households.



4

3.4.5 There is little sign of a coordinated strategy for the private sector to finance a 
major expansion of infrastructure investment to boost UK growth. House prices 
continue to register positive readings however there are some disparities 
between mortgage lenders Halifax and Nationwide. According to Halifax in the 
three months to July house prices slowed to 7.9% from 9.6% in June whilst 
Nationwide reported house prices in July recording an increase of 3.5% from 
3.3% in June.  

3.4.6 Also encouraging has been the sharp fall in inflation (CPI), reaching 1.0% in 
November, the lowest rate since September 2002.  Forward indications are that 
inflation is likely to remain around or under 1% for the best part of a year.  The 
return to strong growth has helped lower forecasts for the increase in 
Government debt over the last year but monthly public sector deficit figures 
during 2014 have disappointed until November.  The autumn statement, 
therefore, had to revise the speed with which the deficit is forecast to be 
eliminated.

3.4.4 US economic growth sped up due to a pickup in consumer spending offsetting 
weak business spending, which may cause the Federal Reserve to increase 
rates soon. Q2 GDP grew at an annual rate of 2.3% whilst Q1 GDP was revised 
up to 0.6% after previously showing a contraction of 0.2%. 

3.4.5 In October 2014, the Fed announced that it had ended its Quantitative Easing 
(QE) programme, showing confidence in the US economy. The Fed will, 
nonetheless, continue to reinvest the maturing securities each month to maintain 
a balance sheet of over $4trn. Non-farm payrolls continued to grow in July, by 
215,000, as a pickup in construction and manufacturing employment offset 
further declines in the manufacturing sector. The unemployment rate held at a 
seven-year low of 5.3%.

3.4.6 Growth in Eurozone GDP was confirmed at 0.4% in its second estimate for Q1 
2015, unchanged from the revised 0.4% in Q4 2014. Growth in the first quarter 
was driven by exports and private consumption.

3.4.7 Austerity programmes in various countries have had a significant effect in 
reducing growth rates. Following the European Central Bank’s (ECB) meeting in 
June, its interest rate was held at 0.05%. The ECB also maintained a negative 
deposit rate at -0.20%. The ECB announced their Quantitative Easing (QE) 
programme in January and began the programme in March. They will purchase 
€60bn of public and private sector assets per month between now and 
September 2016.

3.4.8 The decision to cut interest rates and embark on a QE programme was made in 
order to spur economic growth and stave off the threat of deflation.

3.4.9 China’s annual GDP growth slowed to a six-year low of 7% in Q1 2015, amidst a 
housing slump and a downturn in investment and manufacturing The People’s 
Bank of China cut the reserve requirement ratio by 100bps to 18.5%. In an 
attempt to boost its slowing economy, China surprised markets and devalued the 
Yuan after a run of poor economic data. It is intended to help combat the large 



5

falls seen in exports.

3.5 INTEREST RATE FORECAST

3.5.1 The Council’s treasury advisor, Capita Asset Services, has provided the following 
forecast:

3.5.2 Capita Asset Services undertook a review of its interest rate forecasts on 11 
August 2015. There has been very little change in their forecasts since their 
previous forecasts in February and May. This time, they have left unchanged the 
start of the increases in Bank Rate at quarter 2 of 2016 which is in line with 
comments from the Bank of England.

3.5.3 The so called ‘Super Thursday’ in August (06 August) had the market 
expectations for the first increase in Bank Rate being pushed back to quarter 2 
2016 after the flurry of excitement caused by Governor Carney’s comments in 
July where he said that an interest rate rise would come “into sharper relief 
around the turn of the year”. However, as he has subsequently clarified, he did 
NOT say that this was meant to infer that rates would rise in 2015!



6

3.5.4 What did stand out in the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) vote on 10 
September 2015 was that one member started to vote for an immediate increase 
in Bank Rate while the minutes showed that “some members” were concerned 
about upside risks to inflation, (but not to downside risks).They concluded that 
their Bank Rate forecasts, (and also MPC decisions), will be liable to further 
amendment depending on how economic data transpires over 2015. 

3.5.5 Forecasts for average earnings beyond the three year time horizon will be heavily 
dependent on economic and political developments. Major volatility in bond yields 
is likely to endure as investor fears and confidence ebb and flow between 
favouring more risky assets i.e. equities, or the safe haven of bonds. 

3.5.6 The overall longer run trend is for gilt yields and PWLB rates to rise, due to the 
high volume of gilt issuance in the UK, and of bond issuance in other major 
western countries. Increasing investor confidence in eventual world economic 
recovery is also likely to compound this effect as recovery will encourage 
investors to switch from bonds to equities.  

3.6 INVESTMENT STRATEGY
3.6.1 The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2015/16, which 

includes the Annual Investment Strategy, it outlines the Council’s investment 
priorities as being:

 Security of capital;
 Liquidity; and
 Yield.



7

3.6.2 The Council aims to achieve the optimum return (yield) on investments equivalent 
with proper levels of security and liquidity.  In the current economic climate it is 
considered appropriate to keep investments short term to cover cash flow needs, 
but also to seek out value available in periods up to 12 months with highly credit 
rated financial institutions.

3.6.3 The approved limits within the Annual Investment Strategy were not breached 
during the period ended 31st August 2015.

Investment performance for financial year to date @ 31st August 2015  

Benchmark Benchmark 
Return

LBTH 
Performance

Over/(Under) 
Performance

Full Year 
2014/2015 0.35% 0.73% 0.38%

April 2015 0.36% 0.70% 0.34%

May 2015 0.36% 0.78% 0.42%

June 2015 0.36% 0.79% 0.43%

July 2015 0.36% 0.78% 0.42%

August 2015 0.36% 0.78% 0.42%

Year to Period 0.36% 0.76% 0.40%

3.6.4 As illustrated above, the Council outperformed the benchmark by 40bps for 
financial year to date. The Council’s budgeted investment return for 2015/16 is 
£2.5m, and performance for the year to date is in line with the budget.

3.6.5 Investment rates available in the market have been broadly stable during the 
period and have continued at historically low levels as a result of continuous 
ultra-low Bank Rate. 

3.6.6  The average level of funds available for investment purposes during the reporting 
period was £445.2m.  These funds were available on a temporary basis, and the 
level of funds available was mainly dependent on the timing of precept payments, 
receipt of grants and progress on the Capital Programme.

3.7 Investments Outstanding & Maturity Structure
 At the end of August, we have 17% of outstanding investments of £415.7m as 

overnight money and 18% maturing within 3months, 25% maturing within 3-6 
months, 29% maturing within 6-9 months, about 5% maturing within 9-12 
months and 6% to mature after 12months.

 The chart below illustrates the maturity structure of deposits as at 31 August 



8

2015, we had £70.7m as overnight deposits, and this is predominantly Money 
Market Funds. 

          
Maturity of Investment Portfolio as at 31 August 2015

-

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

Overnight
< 1 

Month
1- 3 

Months
3 - 6 

Months
6 - 9 

Months
9 - 12 

Months
Over 12 
Months

£ millions 70.70 30.00 45.00 105.00 120.00 20.00 25.00

% of Portfolio 17.01% 7.22% 10.83% 25.26% 28.87% 4.81% 6.01%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

Overnight
< 1 

Month
1- 3 

Months
3 - 6 

Months
6 - 9 

Months
9 - 12 

Months

Over 
12 

Months

£ millions 70.70 30.00 45.00 105.00 120.00 20.00 25.00

% of Portfolio 17.01% 7.22% 10.83% 25.26% 28.87% 4.81% 6.01%

Maturity Profile

£ 
M

ill
io

ns

 The Weighted Average Maturity (WAM) for outstanding investment is 167.5 days 
from 163 days for the month of July. This is the average number of outstanding days 
to maturity of each deal from 31st August 2015. 

Counterparty Exposure as at 31 August 2015

BNP P
ari

ba
s M

MF

Deu
tsc

he
 M

MF

IG
NIS

 M
MF

San
tan

de
r (

95
DN)

Llo
yd

s B
an

kin
g G

rou
p

Roy
al 

Ban
k o

f S
co

tla
nd

Aus
tra

lia
 &

 N
ew

ze
ala

nd
 B

an
k

Barc
lay

s

Com
mon

wea
lth

 B
an

k o
f A

us
tra

lia

Dev
elo

pm
en

t B
an

k o
f S

ing
ap

ore

DZ B
an

k

Hela
ba

Nati
on

al 
Aus

tra
lia

 B
an

k

Nati
on

wide
 B

uil
din

g S
oc

iet
y

New
ca

stl
e B

uil
din

g S
oc

iet
y

Nott
ing

ha
m B

uil
din

g S
oc

iet
y

Ska
nd

ina
vis

ka
 E

ns
kil

da
 B

an
ke

n

Stan
da

rd 
Cha

rte
red

 B
an

k (
CDs)

-

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

6.0%
5.0%

6.0%
4.8%

16.8%

9.6%

4.8% 4.8%

1.2%

7.2%
6.0%

4.8% 4.8% 4.8%

1.2% 1.2%

6.0%
4.8%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

£ 
m

ill
io

ns



9

 The above chart shows the deposits outstanding with authorised 
counterparties as at 31 August 2015, of which 26.4% were with part-
nationalised banks (Lloyds and RBS Groups).

3.8     DEBT PORTFOLIO

3.8.1 The Council’s Treasury Management Strategy Report approved in February     
2015 outlined the Council’s long term borrowing strategy for the year. 

3.8.2 The table below sets out the Council’s debt as at the beginning of the financial 
year and as at 31 August 2015. The overall debt fell by £0.216m from £88.893m 
at the start of the year. Total debt outstanding, stands at £88.677m, against 
estimated CFR of £305.356m for 2015/16, resulting in an under-borrowing of 
£216.679m.

31 March 
2015 

Principal

Loans 
raised

Loans 
repaid

31 August 
2015 

Principal
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Fixed Rate Funding:   
-PWLB 11,393 - 0.216 11,177
-Market 13,000 - - 13,000
Total Fixed Rate Funding 24,393 0.216 24,177
Variable Rate Funding: 
-PWLB - - -
-Market 64,500 - - 64,500
Total Variable Rate Funding 64,500 - - 64,500
Total Debt 88,893 - 0.216 88,677
CFR 227,517 - - 305,356
Over/ (under) borrowing (138,624) - - (216,679)

3.8.3 No borrowing has been undertaken in this financial year to date. Also no debt 
rescheduling opportunities have arisen during this financial year to reporting 
period as the cost of premiums outweighs savings that could be made from the 
lower PWLB borrowing rates. 

3.9 INVESTMENT BENCHMARKING CLUB
3.9.1 LBTH participates in a benchmarking club to enable officers to compare the 

Council’s treasury management /investment returns against those of similar 
authorities. The model below shows the performance of benchmark club 
members given the various levels of risks taken as at 31 August 2015. The 
model takes into account a combination of credit, duration and returns achieved 
over the duration, and it includes data from 20 local authorities. Tower Hamlets 
lies close to the expected return given the council’s portfolio risk profile, which is 
placing deposits with institutions with the sovereign rate of AAA.



10

3.9.2 The weighted average rate of return (WARoR) for Tower Hamlets is 0.82%, 
which is in line with the benchmarking group. The return on LBTH investment is 
commensurate with the Council’s risk appetite as set out in the Investment 
Strategy.

3.10 INVESTMENT STRATEGY UPDATE

3.10.1 Full Council approved the Investment Strategy on 26 February 2015. Officers 
continue to look for ways to maximise returns on cash balances within the 
constraints of the Investment Strategy. The Investment Strategy was developed 
based on prudent consideration and approach to the outlook in the money 
markets.

3.10.2 Wholly or partly owned government banks offer significantly higher rates than 
the DMO, but have similar levels of security based on government guarantee of 
their credit quality. The Council already relies on this guarantee and invests with 
these banks, and the current strategy is to have £70m money limit for each 
group with an aggregate of 40% of the overall investment portfolio.  This should 
ensure that the Council continues to receive good returns on its cash balances 
and that the investment strategy is optimised to support the Council’s efficiency 
programme.

3.10.3 The Government has started divesting from these banks. The current 
Government stake in Lloyds/Bank of Scotland is now reduced to 14.9%, further 
sales of 1% tranches expected before end of 2015. Therefore the group is no 
longer viewed by the Council’s Treasury Adviser as a part-nationalised 
institution and the current suggested duration for this group is now 6 months 
based on credit data. The Councils currently have £70m in total with this group 
with maturity profile up to 11 months. The Council therefore are not placing any 
funds beyond 6 months from 01 September 2015, but still maintain the 
monetary limit of £70m.



11

3.10.4 In August, the Government sold 5.4% stake in RBS/NatWest leaving the 
Government shareholding at around 73%. The Council maintains the monetary 
and time limits set for this group. Officers will continue to work with the Council 
treasury adviser to get future or further developments on this front and any 
related updates to their views on both Lloyds Banking Group and Royal Bank of 
Scotland Group and the Investment Strategy would be reflected as deemed 
appropriate. 

4. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER

4.1    The comments of the Corporate Director Resources are incorporated in the report.

5. LEGAL COMMENTS 

5.1 Treasury management activities cover the management of the Council’s 
investments and cash flows, its banking, money market and capital market 
transactions, the effective control of risks associated with those activities and the 
pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks.  The Local 
Government Act 2003 provides a framework for the capital finance of local 
authorities.  It provides a power to borrow and imposes a duty on local authorities 
to determine an affordable borrowing limit.  It provides a power to invest.  
Fundamental to the operation of the scheme is an understanding that authorities 
will have regard to proper accounting practices recommended by the Chartered 
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) in carrying out capital 
finance functions.

5.2 The Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) Regulations 
2003 require the Council to have regard to the CIPFA publication “Treasury 
Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice and Cross-Sectoral 
Guidance Notes” (“the Treasury Management Code”) in carrying out capital 
finance functions under the Local Government Act 2003.  If after having regard to 
the Treasury Management Code the Council wished not to follow it, there would 
need to be some good reason for such deviation.

5.3 The Treasury Management Code requires as a minimum that there be a practice 
of regular reporting on treasury management activities and risks to the 
responsible committee and that these should be scrutinised by that committee.  
Under the Council’s Constitution, the audit committee has the functions of 
monitoring the Council’s risk management arrangements and making 
arrangements for the proper administration of the Council’s affairs.

6. ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS

6.1    Interest on the Council’s cash flow has historically contributed significantly towards 
the budget. 

7. BEST VALUE (BV) IMPLICATIONS

7.1    Assessment of value for money is achieved through:



12

 Monitoring against benchmarks
 Operating within budget

7.2   For example, investment returns exceeded the LIBID benchmark up to August 
2015 and the treasury function operated within budget to date.

8. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT

8.1 There are no Sustainable Actions for A Greener Environment implications.

9. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS

9.1      Any form of investment inevitably involves a degree of risk. To minimise risk the 
investment strategy has restricted exposure of council cash balances to UK 
backed banks or institutions with the highest short term rating or strong long term 
rating.

10. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS

10.1 There are no crime and disorder reduction implications arising from this report.
 

____________________________________

Linked Reports, Appendices and Background Documents

Linked Report

 NONE 

Appendices
 Appendix 1 - Investments Outstanding as at 31st August 15.
 Appendix 2 – Lending List as at 31st August 2015.
 Appendix 3 – Prudential & Treasury Management Indicators for 2015/16

Local Government Act, 1972 Section 100D (As amended)
List of “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report
List any background documents not already in the public domain including officer 
contact information.
 Capita August 2015 Investment Portfolio Analysis Report 

Officer contact details for documents:
 Bola Tobun   Ext.  4733
 Mulberry Place, 3rd Floor.



13

Appendix 1
Investments Outstanding as at 31st August 2015

Time to 
Maturity Counterparty From Maturity Amount                   

£m Rate

Overnight BNP Paribas MMF  MMF 25.00 0.48%
 Deutsche MMF  MMF 20.70 0.46%

 IGNIS MMF  MMF 25.00 0.45%

 SUB TOTAL   70.70  
< 1 Month Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken 12/05/2015 14/09/2015 5.00 0.55%

 Barclays 17/03/2015 17/09/2015 10.00 0.63%
 Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken 26/03/2015 25/09/2015 5.00 0.60%
 Standard Chartered Bank (CDs) 01/04/2015 01/10/2015 10.00 0.68%

1 - 3 Months Development Bank of Singapore 29/06/2015 29/10/2015 10.00 55.00%
 Helaba 12/05/2015 12/11/2015 5.00 0.74%
 Australia & New Zealand Bank 12/08/2015 12/11/2015 10.00 0.54%
 Lloyds Banking Group 13/11/2014 13/11/2015 5.00 1.00%
 DZ Bank 26/08/2015 26/11/2015 5.00 0.55%
 DZ Bank 28/05/2015 30/11/2015 5.00 0.64%
 DZ Bank 29/05/2015 30/11/2015 5.00 0.64%

3 - 6 Months Santander (95DN)  Call - 95N 20.00 1.10%
 DZ Bank 01/06/2015 01/12/2015 5.00 0.64%
 Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken 03/06/2015 03/12/2015 10.00 0.61%
 Lloyds Banking Group 04/12/2014 04/12/2015 5.00 1.00%
 Australia & New Zealand Bank 12/08/2015 14/12/2015 10.00 0.55%
 Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken 03/07/2015 03/01/2016 5.00 0.64%
 Development Bank of Singapore 07/07/2015 07/01/2016 5.00 0.62%
 Lloyds Banking Group 04/02/2015 04/02/2016 5.00 1.00%
 Development Bank of Singapore 10/08/2015 10/02/2016 10.00 0.61%
 National Australia Bank 16/02/2015 16/02/2016 10.00   0.61% *
 Development Bank of Singapore 17/08/2015 17/02/2016 5.00 0.61%
 Royal Bank of Scotland 27/02/2013 26/02/2016 10.00 1.15%
 Helaba 26/05/2015 26/02/2016 5.00 0.86%

6 - 9 Months DZ Bank 26/08/2015 26/02/2015 5.00 0.66%
 Lloyds Banking Group 04/03/2015 04/03/2016 5.00 1.00%
 Lloyds Banking Group 05/03/2015 07/03/2016 10.00 1.00%
 Royal Bank of Scotland 20/03/2014 20/03/2016 5.00 1.25%
 Standard Chartered Bank (CDs) 01/04/2015 30/03/2016 10.00 0.86%
 Lloyds Banking Group 07/04/2015 07/04/2016 5.00 1.00%
 Lloyds Banking Group 10/04/2015 08/04/2016 5.00 1.00%
 Lloyds Banking Group 13/04/2015 12/04/2016 5.00 1.00%
 Nationwide Building Society 13/04/2015 12/04/2016 10.00 0.90%
 Lloyds Banking Group 15/04/2015 14/04/2016 5.00 1.00%
 Nationwide Building Society 16/04/2015 15/04/2016 5.00 0.90%
 Barclays 16/04/2015 15/04/2016 10.00 0.92%
 Lloyds Banking Group 17/04/2015 15/04/2016 10.00 1.00%
 Nationwide Building Society 24/04/2015 22/04/2016 5.00 0.90%
 Nottingham Building Society 29/04/2015 28/04/2016 5.00 1.00%
 Newcastle Building Society 29/04/2015 28/04/2016 5.00 1.10%
 Lloyds Banking Group 29/04/2015 29/04/2016 5.00 1.00%
 Helaba 01/05/2015 03/05/2016 10.00 0.94%

 9 - 12 Months National Australia Bank 25/06/2015 24/06/2016 10.00 0.75%
 Commonwealth Bank of Australia 05/08/2015 05/08/2016 5.00 0.84%
 Lloyds Banking Group 13/08/2015 12/08/2016 5.00 1.00%



14

> 12 Months Royal Bank of Scotland 10/01/2014 09/01/2017 5.00  1.74% *
 Royal Bank of Scotland 05/05/2015 05/05/2017 5.00  1.420% **
 Royal Bank of Scotland 08/05/2015 08/05/2017 5.00  1.420% **
 Royal Bank of Scotland 30/01/2015 30/01/2018 5.00  1.20% *
 Royal Bank of Scotland 30/04/2015 30/04/2018 5.00  0.90% *
 SUB TOTAL   345.00  
 TOTAL   415.70  

 * This is a structured deal, the terms of which could change during its tenor. ** This is certificate of Deposits



15

     Lending List for London Borough of Tower Hamlets
  Fitch Ratings Moodys Ratings S&P Ratings   

Counterpar
ty

 Long 
Term

Short 
Term 

Long 
Term

Short 
Term

Long 
Term

Short 
Term

Monetary 
Limit

Duration

              

Australia
S
B AAA   S

B Aaa   S
B AAA     

Australia and New Zealand Banking 
Group Ltd.

S
B AA-  F1+ S

B Aa2  P-1 S
B AA-  A-

1+ 30 Million 3 Years

Commonwealth Bank of Australia S
B AA-  F1+ S

B Aa2  P-1 S
B AA-  A-

1+ 30 Million 3 Years

Banks

National Australia Bank Ltd. S
B AA-  F1+ S

B Aa2  P-1 S
B AA-  A-

1+ 30 Million 3 Years

S
B AAA   S

B Aaa   S
B AAA     

DZ BANK AG Deutsche Zentral-
Genossenschaftsbank

S
B AA-  F1+ P

O Aa2  P-1 S
B AA-  A-

1+ 30 Million 3 Years
Banks

Landesbank Hessen-Thueringen 
Girozentrale

S
B A+  F1+ P

O A1  P-1 S
B A  A-1 20 Million 1 Years

S
B AAA   S

B Aaa   S
B AAA     

DBS Bank Ltd. S
B AA-  F1+ S

B Aa1  P-1 S
B AA-  A-

1+ 30 Million 3 YearsBanks

Oversea-Chinese Banking Corp. Ltd. S
B AA-  F1+ S

B Aa1  P-1 S
B AA-  A-

1+ 30 Million 3 Years

              

Sweden
S
B AAA   S

B Aaa   S
B AAA     

Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB P
O A+  F1 S

B Aa3  P-1 N
O A+  A-1 30 Million 2 Years 

Svenska Handelsbanken AB S
B AA-  F1+ S

B Aa2  P-1 N
O AA-  A-

1+ 30 Million 3 Years

S
B AA+   S

B Aa1   N
O AAA     

AAA rated 
and 
Governmen
t backed 
securities

Debt Management Office              6 Months

Bank of Scotland PLC S
B A+  F1 P

O A1  P-1 S
B A  A-1  Group (£70 Million - 6 

months) 

Co-operative Bank PLC (The) N
O B  B P

O
Caa

2  NP     30 Million 1 Days

HSBC Bank PLC S
B AA-  F1+ S

B Aa2  P-1 S
B AA-  A-

1+ 30 Million 3 Years

Lloyds Bank Plc S
B A+  F1 P

O A1  P-1 S
B A  A-1  Group (£70 Million - 6 

months) 

Santander UK PLC P
O A  F1 P

W A1  P-1 N
O A  A-1 20 Million 1 Years

Banks

Standard Chartered Bank N
O AA-  F1+ N

O Aa2  P-1 S
B A+  A-1 30 Million 2 Years

Nationwide Building Society S
B A  F1 S

B A1  P-1 S
B A  A-1 20 Million 1 Years

Newcastle Building Society S
B BB+  B         5 Million 12 Months

Nottingham Building Society     S
B

Baa
1  P-2     5 Million 12 Months

Building 
Societies

West Bromwich Building Society     S
B B1  NP     5 Million 12 Months

Nationalise
d and Part 
Nationalise
d Banks

National Westminster Bank PLC S
B

BBB
+  F2 S

B A3  P-2 S
B

BBB
+  A-2  Group (£70 Million - 3 

Years) 



16

The Royal Bank of Scotland Plc S
B

BBB
+  F2 S

B A3  P-2 S
B

BBB
+  A-2  Group (£70Mlllion - 3 

Years) 

APPENDIX 3

PRUDENTIAL AND TREASURY MANAGEMENT INDICATORS FOR 2015/16

Prudential Indicators 2013/14 2014/15 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
Extract from Estimate and 
rent setting reports Actual Original 

Estimate
Revised 
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate

 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Capital Expenditure       
Non – HRA 80.113 67.153 75.378 44.417 22.449 14.465 
HRA 50.255 99.760 115.866 127.555 94.794 1.594 
TOTAL 130.368 166.913 191.244 171.972 117.243 16.059 
      
Ratio of Financing Costs To 
Net Revenue Stream

     

Non – HRA 2.29% 3.51% 2.63% 2.74% 2.92% 3.04%
HRA 3.70% 3.69% 4.01% 5.40% 8.24% 8.28%
      
 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Gross Debt and Capital 
Financing Requirement

     

Gross Debt 129.990 141.060 136.788 171.395 226.238 219.192 
Capital Financing Requirement 260.130 317.600 267.727 305.356 362.910 355.915 
Over/(Under) Borrowing (130.140) (176.540) (130.939) (133.961) (136.672) (136.723) 
       
In Year Capital Financing 
Requirement

     

Non – HRA 0.000 57.470 7.597 4.790 1.033 (7.779) 
HRA 0.000 0.000 0.000 32.838 56.521 0.784 
TOTAL 0.000 57.470 7.597 37.628 57.554 (6.995) 
      
Capital Financing 
Requirement as at 31 March 

     

Non - HRA 190.455 247.925 198.052 202.842 203.875 196.096 
HRA 69.675 69.675 69.675 102.514 159.035 159.819 
TOTAL 260.130 317.600 267.727 305.356 362.910 355.915 
      
Incremental Impact of 
Financing Costs (£)

      

Increase in Council Tax (band 
D) per annum 

0.000 0.908 1.325 2.520 2.446 2.375

Increase in average housing 
rent per week 

0.000 0.000 0.000 7.804 4.404 0.060



17





1

Non-Executive Report of the:

Audit Committee

24th September

Report of:  Zena Cooke - Corporate Director - Resources
Classification:
Unrestricted 

Audit Committee Forward Plan 2015/16

Originating Officer(s) Minesh Jani, Head of Audit and Risk Management
Wards affected All wards 

1. Purpose of the Report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to present a forward plan of Audit 
Committee business for the next six months.

2. Recommendation

2.1 The Audit Committee is asked to consider the proposed forward plan for 
committee business as detailed at Appendix 1 for the remainder of this 
financial year.

2.2 The Audit Committee is also asked to note that any amendments to the 
plan will be reported as a standard item on the agenda.

3. Background

3.1 The Chair of Audit Committee met with the Corporate Director, 
Resources and the Head of Audit and Risk Management on 14th August 
2015 to consider arrangements to make the business of the Audit 
Committee more effective. At the meeting, it was agreed a forward plan 
of Audit Committee business would assist committee members be aware 
of the programme of audit business and allow the committee to reflect on 
other items it may wish to consider, within the Audit Committee’s remit.  

3.2 The purpose of this paper is to set out the business of the Audit 
Committee for the three remaining meetings for this financial year.



2

4. Comments of the Chief Financial Officer

4.1 There are no specific financial considerations.

5. Legal Comments

5.1 The Council has a duty to make arrangements to secure continuous 
improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having 
regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness by 
virtue of section 3 of the Local Government Act 1999.  This is known 
as its Best Value Duty. The introduction of a forward plan is 
consistent with this duty.

6. One Tower Hamlets

6.1 There are no specific one Tower Hamlets considerations.

6.2 There are no specific Anti-Poverty issues arising from this report.

7. Best Value Implications

7.1 There are no specific best value implications arising from this report.

8. Risk Management Implications

8.1 There are no specific Anti-Poverty issues arising from this report

9. Sustainable Action for a Greener Environment (SAGE)

9.1. There are no specific SAGE implications.

10.  Crime and Disorder Reduction Implications

10.1. There are no specific Crime and Disorder Reduction implications.



Audit Committee Forward Plan 2015/16 Appendix 1 

Lead 21-Jul-15 23-Sep-15 08-Dec-15 22-Mar-15

• Review Forward Plan COA /DOF � � �

• Approve Terms of Reference, Quorum, Membership and Dates of 
Meetings (annually)

Audit 
Committee

� �

• Carry out Self Assessment of Audit and Anti Fraud Arrangements
HOA / DOF

�

• Hold an Annual Private Meeting between Chair of Audit and Head 
of Audit and Risk Management

COA /HOA
�

• Determine and Deliver Training Requirements for Audit 
Committee Members as Required. COA /HOA ongoing ongoing ongoing

• Annual Head of Audit Opinion HOA �

• Quarterly Internal Audit Asurance reports HOA / AM � � �

• Review Internal Audit Strategy and Charter HOA / DOF �

• Present Annual Internal Audit Plan - 2016/17 HOA / AM �

• Present Updated Annual Internal Audit Plan - 2015/16 HOA / AM �

• Annual Schools Report 2014/15 HOA / AM �

• Annual Fraud Report 2014-15 HOA / CFM �

• Tenancy Fraud Update CFM �

• Update on Single Fraud Investigation Service CFM �

• Progress on National Fraud Initiative 2015/16 CFM �

• Protecting the Public Purse Update HOA / CFM �

•  Anti Fraud and Corruption Strategy HOA / CFM �

• Update Arising From Significant Fraud / Corruption Work HOA / CFM � � � �

• Report to Those Charged with Governance (Council and Pension 
Fund)

KPMG �

• Monitor Progress of Actions Arising from KPMG ISA 260 report 
(Council and Pension Fund)

CA �

• Agree annual External Audit Plan in respect of 2014/15 accounts 
and associated fees.

KPMG �

• Review Accounting Policies CA �

• Consider Annual Financial Statements CA � (draft) �

• Quarterly Treasury Management Report CA � � � �

• Annual Treasury Management Report CA �

• Receive and agree the Annual Governance Statement HOA � draft �

• Audit and Accountability Framework Legal �

• Update on implementation of Actions on the Annual Governance 
Statement

HOA �

• Annual Risk Management Report 2014/15 HOA �

• Review and Monitor of the Council's Strategic Risks Audit 
Committee

�

Strategy

� � �

• Bribery Risk Assessment HOA �

Key
COA - Chair of Audit

DOF - Corporate Director, Resources 17 Septmber 2015
HOA - Head of Audit and Risk Management 3 December 2015
AM - Audit Manager 17 March 2016
CFM - Corporate Fraud Manager

KPMG - External Auditors

CA - Chief Accountant

�An update to be provided to the Committee as and when significant issues arise. 

Note: outside the formal Committee meetings, member s will also review the 
following:
• Draft Annual Governance Statement (May)

• Terms of reference  (May)

3. Anti Fraud and Corruption

Chair of Audit's Meeting with DOF and HOA (provisio nal)

Task
1. Audit Committee Effectiveness

2. Internal Audit

7. Risk Management & Assurance

4. External Audit (KPMG)

5. Financial Reporting

6. Governance




	Agenda
	1 DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST
	4.1 Annual Financial Report  2013/14
	Statement of Accounts 2013_14 300615

	4.2 Quarterly Assurance Report
	4.3 Social Housing Fraud Update
	4.4 Single Fraud Investigation Service- Position Update
	4.5 Annual Risk Management Report 2015/16
	App 1 Risk Management Policy Statement Feb12 FV
	Appendix 2 CRR AC
	Appendix 3 Risk Matrix
	Risk Management report 2015 Final

	4.6 Treasury Management Activity Report  for Year to 31 August 2015
	4.7 150910 Audit committee forward plan
	Copy of Internal audit Forward Plan v1




